
Joint Select Committee on Collective 
Bargaining 

Senator Hays, Co-Chair 
Representative Van Zant, Co-Chair 

Meeting Packet 
Materials Submitted by: 

Department of Management Services 

Monday, February 16, 2015 
10:30 AM 

Webster Hall (212 Knott) 



Cover Letter 



::3\ ·ma·n age me nt 
rms\J SERV ICES 

We serve t.ho>e who •erve flond> 

Office of the General Counsel 

4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160 
Ta llahassee, FL 32399·0950 

Tel: a50·487· 1082 Fox: aS0·922 -631 2 

Rick Scott. Governor 

February 11 , 2015 

The Florida Legislature 
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 
218 House Office Building 
402 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300 

Re: Impasse of Fiscal Year 2015-16 Collective Bargaining Negotiations between 
the State of Florida and All Parties at Impasse 

Dear Members: 

Chad ?oppell, 3ecretory 

Please find the enclosed materials in response to the Joint Select Committee on Collective 
Bargaining's February 6, 2015, Notice of Public Hearing regarding the issues at impasse between the 
State of Florida and all parties at impasse pursuant to sections 216.163 and 447.403, Florida Statutes 
(2014). These materials include an overview of the collective bargaining units and state employee 
union membership, the state's notice of impasse to the Florida Legislature, the state and union 
proposals currently at impasse for each collective bargaining unit, the state's costing of union 
proposals, and the current status of negotiations. 

Thank you for the opportunity to present this information to the Committee. 

Respectfully submitted, 

::u~~ 
Michael Mattimore 
Chief Labor Negotiator 

MM/psr 

Enclosures 

cc: Mike Hogan, Chairman, Public Employees Relations Commission 
Ben Gibson, Assistant General Counsel, Executive Office of Governor Rick Scott 
Renee Tondee, Policy Coordinator, Office of Policy and Budget 
Chad Poppell , Secretary, Department of Management Services 
Bruce Conroy, General Counsel, Department of Management Services 
Sharon Larson, Director, Human Resource Management, Department of Management Services 
Marlene Williams, Legislative Affairs Director, Department of Management Services 





OVERVI EW OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNITS 
(Statistics for Represented Employees and Dues-Paying Members as of .January 13, 2015) 

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 

The Master Contract covers to ur bargaining units: 

Administrative and Clerical Unit - Includes Career Service employees whose work mvolves 
the keeping or examination of records and accounts, or general office work. All state 
agencies employ members of this unit. 

Operational Services Unit - lncludes Career Service laborers and artisans. as well as 
technicians, mechanics. operators. and service workers. All state agencies except the Agency 
for Health Care Administration, the Florida Commission on Offender Review. the Public 
Service Commission. and the Depru1ments of Legal A tfairs. and Elder Affairs employ 
members of this unit. 

Human Services Unit - Includes Career Scr ice employees involved in human or 
institutional services. The Departments of Con·ections, Children and Families. Economic 
Opportunity, Education, Health. Juvenile Justice, Military Affairs, Veterans· Affairs, the 
Agency for Persons with Disabilities, and the School for the Deaf and Bhnd employ 
members of thi s u11it. 

Professional Unit - Includes non-health care Career Service professional employees whose 
work requires the consistent exercise of discretion and judgment in its perfom1ru1ce. Work is 
predominately intellectual and 'aried in character, and requires knowledge of an advanced 
type in a field of science or learning customarily acquired by a prolonged course of 
special ized intell e<.:tual instruction and s tudy. All state agencies employ members of thi s 
unit. 

Includes 4!L40 I represented employees; I ,436 dues-paying members. 

Federation of Phvsicians and Dentists- SES Phvs icians Unit 

Includes 155 physicians and senior physicians in the Selected Exempt Service; 23 dues
paying members. The Agency tor Persons with Disabilities, and the Departments of 
CotTections, Children and Families, Education, Health, and Juven il e Justice employ members 
of this un it. 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists- SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 

Includes 1.284 non-professional supervisory employees in the Selected Exempt Service: 3 1 
dues-paying members. All state agencies except the Flo rida Commisjon on Offender 
Review employ members of this unit. 

January 13. 1015 



State Employees Attorneys Guild- SES Attorneys Unit 

Includes 718 attorneys and senior attom cys in the Selected Exempt Service who are not 
supervisory, or designated confidential o r managerial, and are required as a condition of 
employment to be members o f the Florida Bar; 5 dues-paying members. All agencies except 
the Depatiments of Citrus, Legal Affairs, Veterans· Affai rs. and the Schoo l for the Deaf and 
Blind employ members o f this unit. 

Florida Nurses Association- Professional Health Care Unit 

Includes 3,0 I 3 professional Career Service employees en gaged in direct health care 
activities; 27'2 dues-paying members. The Agency for Health Care Administrati on, the 
Agency for Persons vvith Disabilities, and the Departments of Business and Profess ional 
Regulation. Corrections, Children and Families, Elder Affairs, Financial Services, Health, 
Juvenile Justi ce, Veterans· Affairs. and the School for the Deaf and Blind employ members 
of this unit. 

Florida State Fire Service Association- Fire Service Unit 

Includes 580 Career Service unifom1ed firefighters and superv isors whose primary duties 
include tire prevention, fire suppression. and fire training and instruction; 222 dues-paying 
members. The Agency for Health Care Administration and the Depmiments of Agriculture 
and Consumer Services. Children and Families, Financial Services, and Military Affait·s 
employ members of this unit. 

Police Benevolent Association - Law Enforcement Unit 

Includes L I 83 Career Service sworn law enforcement officers and supervisors of law 
enforcement officers, except those members of the Department of Highway Safety and Motor 
Vehicles; 364 dues-paying members. The Departments of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services, Business and Professional Regulation, Financial Services. Law Enforcement, Legal 
Affairs, the School for the Deaf and Blind. and the Fish & Wildlife Conservation 
Commission employ members in thi s unit. 

Police Benevolent Association- Florida Highway Patrol Unit 

Includes I, 709 Career Service swom Jaw enforcement officers of the Depmiment of 
Highwuy Safety and Motor Vehicles; 740 dues-paying members. 

Jan uary 13,2015 



Police Benevolent Association- Special Agent Unit 

Includes 235 Career Service professional, sworn law enforcement investigators in the Florida 
Department of Law Enforcement, whose primary duties invo lve conducting criminal 
investigations of suspected law violations primarily connected with organized crime, and/or 
providi ng other specialized law enforcement services, including the investigation of other 
law enforcement officers; 153 dues-paying members. 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 - Securitv Services Unit 

Includes 17,521 Career Service employees whose primary duties involve the direct care, 
custody. and contro l of persons involuntarily confined in state institutions: or the supervised 
custody. surveill ance. and contTol of assigned probationers and parolees; 4,247 dues-paying 
members. The Department of Co1Tections, the Department of Children and Families, and the 
Agency for Persons with Disab ilities employ members of this bargain ing unit. 

January 13, 20 15 



Declaration of 
Statutory Impasse 



January 30, 2015 

The Honorable Andy Gardiner. President 
The Florida Senate 
409, The Capitol 
404 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1100 

The Honorable Steve Crisafulli, Speaker 
Florida House of Representatives 
420, The Capitol 
402 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300 

Re: Notification of Collective Bargaining Impasse 

Dear President Gardiner and Speaker Crisafulli: 

An impasse has occurred in the collective bargaining negotiations between the Governor and the seven 
employee associations representing 13 bargaining units of state employees, pursuant to section 
216.163(6). Florida Statutes. We will submit the list of collective bargaining contract articles on which 
the parties have not reached agreement on February 4 in accordance with section 447.403(5), Florida 
Statutes. 

If you have questions or concerns, please contact me at 561-3503, or Jim Parry, Assistant General 
Counsel for the Department of Management Services, at 414-7646. 

Sincerely, ~ 

~ ~~:.-<-~hael Mattimo 
Chief Labor Negotiator 

MM/psr 

cc: Mike Hogan, Chairman, Public Employees Relations Commission 
Ben Gibson, Assistant General Counsel, Executive Office of Governor Rick Scott 
Renee Tondee, Policy Coordinator, Office of Policy and Budget 
Chad Poppell, Secretary, Department of Management Services 
Bruce Conroy, General Counsel, Department of Management Services 
Sharon Larson. Director, Human Resource Management. Department of Management Services 
Marlene Williams, Legislative Affairs Director, Department of Management Services 
Collective Bargaining Agent Representatives 



"fil7iilagement 
SERV ICES 

We serve thO Sf~ who sen1e Florid~ 

•rc" Sec•· :::;over..-01 

·February 4, 2015 

The Honorable Andy Gardiner, President 
The Florida Senate 
409, The Capitol 
404 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1100 

The Honorable Steve Crisafulli, Speaker 
Florida House of Representatives 
420, The Capitol 
402 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300 

Re: Notification of Collective Bargaining Impasse 

Dear President Gardiner and Speaker Crisafulli : 

Offic2 01 the Gaf'ler'J t Co1.nse 

4050 ::spranode W<:Jy, Suite 160 
i~llorossee i'lorldo 32399·0950 

Tel: 850.487 1~82 fax~ 850.n2.63 12 

Chad ?oopeU, Sec•e•ory 

As indicated in our letter dated January 30, 2015, an impasse has occurred in the collective bargaining 
negotiations between the Governor and the seven employee associations representing 13 bargaining 
units of state employees, pursuant to section 216.163(6), Florida Statutes. 

In accordance with section 447.403(5)(a), Florida Statutes, we are respectfully submitting for resolution 
the attached list of collective bargaining contract articles on which the parties have not reached 
agreement as of the date of this letter. Negotiations continue and we will inform you of any tentative 
agreements reached by the parties regarding these impasse articles. 

If you have questions or concerns, please contact me at 561-3503, or Jim Parry, Assistant General 
Counsel for the Department of Management Services, at 414-7646. 

Sincerely, 

;;t(~~~~ 
Michael Mattimore 
Chief Labor Negotiator 

MM/psr 

Attachment 

cc: Mike Hogan, Chairman, Public Employees Relations Commission 
Ben Gibson, Assistant General Counsel , Executive Office of Governor Rick Scott 
Renee Tondee, Policy Coordinator, Office of Policy and Budget 
Chad Poppell , Secretary, Department of Management Services 
Bruce Conroy, General Counsel1 Department of Management Services 
Sharon Larson, Director, Human Resource Management, Department of Management Services 
Marlene Williams, Legislative Affairs Director, Department of Management Services 
Collective Bargaining Agent Representatives 



Florida State Fire Service Association - Fire Service Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Florida State Fire Service Association have not reached agreement to date 
on the following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 6 -Grievance Procedure 
Article 7 - Disciplinary Action 
Article 9- Voluntary Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station and Promotions (State 
proposed title change to Reassignment, Lateral Action, Transfer, Change in Duty Station. and 
Promotion) 
Article 13 - Health and Welfare 
Article 23 - Hours of Work and Overtime 
Article 25- Wages 
Article 26- Vacant (Proposed by union as new Promotional Step Pay Plan System article) 

Date: February 4, 2015 



American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees - Human Services, 
Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees have not 
reached agreement to date on the following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor 
collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 25- Wages 

Date: February 4, 2015 



Police Benevolent Association - Special Agent Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Police Benevolent Association have not reached agreement on the 
following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 23- Workday, Workweek and Overtime 
Article 24- On-Call , Call-Back, and Court Appearances 
Article 25- Wages 

Date: February 4, 2015 



Police Benevolent Association - Law Enforcement Unit 
Negotiations for 2015·16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Police Benevolent Association have not reached agreement on the 
following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 18- Hours of Work, Leave and Job-Connected Disability 
Article 25- Wages 

Date: February 4, 2015 



Police Benevolent Association - Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Police Benevolent Association have not reached agreement on the 
following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 18 - Hours of Work, Leave and Job-Connected Disability 
Article 25- Wages 

Date: February 4, 2015 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 -Security Services Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 have not reached agreement on the 
following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 3- Vacant (Proposed by union as new Dues Deduction article) 
Article 4 - No Discrlmination 
Article 5- Union Activities and Employee Representation 
Article 6- Grievance Procedure 
Article 7- Discipline and Discharge 
Article 8- Workforce Reduction 
Article 9- Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station (State proposed title change to 

Lateral Action, Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station) 
Article 10 - Promotions 
Article 11 - Classification Review 
Article 12 - Personnel Records 
Article 13 - Safety 
Article 18 - Leaves of Absence 
Article 24- On-Call Assignment and Call-Back 
Article 25- Wages 
Article 26 - Uniform and Insignia 

Date: February 4, 2015 



Florida Nurses Association - Professional Health Care Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Florida Nurses Association have not reached agreement on the following 
articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 3- Vacant (Proposed by union as new Dues Checkoff article) 
Article 5 - Employee Representation and Association Activities 
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure 
Article 7 - Disciplinary Action 
Article 8- Work Force Reduction 
Article 1 0 - Promotions 
Article 12 - Personnel Records 
Article 23 - Hours of Work/Compensatory Time 
Article 25- Wages 
Article 26 - Differential Pay 
Article 31 -Vacant (Proposed by union as new Prevailing Rights article) 

Date: February 4, 2015 



Federation of Physicians and Dentists - Selected Exempt Service Physicians Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Federation of Physicians and Dentists have not reached agreement on the 
following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 7 - Employee Standards of Conduct and Performance 
Article 12 - Personnel Records 
Article 18 -Wages 
Article 19- Insurance Benefits 
Union Proposed New Article - Retirement Benefits 

Date: February 4, 2015 



Federation of Physicians and Dentists - Selected Exempt Service Supervisory 
Non-Professional Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the Federation of Physicians and Dentists have not reached agreement on the 
following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 7 - Employee Standards of Conduct 
Article 12 - Personnel Records 
Article 23 - Insurance Benefits 
Article 25- Wages 
Union Proposed New Article - Retirement Benefits 

Date: February 4, 2015 



State Employees Attorneys Guild- Selected Exempt Service Attorneys Unit 
Negotiations for 2015-16 Successor Agreement 

The State of Florida and the State Employees Attorneys Guild have not reached agreement on the 
following articles in their negotiations for a 2015-16 successor collective bargaining agreement: 

Article 7- Employee Standards of Conduct and Performance 
Article 12 - Personnel Records 
Article 18 -Wages 
Article 19 - Insurance Benefits 
Union Proposed New Article - Retirement Benefits 

Date: February 4. 2015 



FSFSA 
Fire Service Unit 



Florida State Fire Servi~.:.e Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22,2015 

Page 1 of10 

Art icJe 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

It is the policy of the state and the FSFSA to encourage infor111al discussions of 
complaints between management and supervisors covered by this Agreement, as well as between 
those superv isors and covered employees. Such di scuss ions should be held with a view to 
reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee 
and the state. without need for recourse to the fonnal grievance procedure prescribed by this 
A11icle. 

SECTION 1- Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) ··Grievance'' shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, tiled on 
the appropriate term as contained in Appendix B of the Agreement. 

(B) "Grievant"' shall mean an employee, or a gro up of employees having the same 
grievance, or the FSFSA. In the case of a group of employees, one shall be designated by the 
group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar business days., excluding any day observed as a holiday 
pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes. If tbe due date for a grievance respoB:Se, or for a 
gtievance submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend or a holiday, the action shall 
be due the next business day. ·'Business days" refers to the ordinary business hours. i.e .. 8:00 
a.m. until 5:00 p.m .. Monday through Friday. in the time zone in which the recipient is located. 
Furthermore. "business days .. do not include any day observed as a holiday pursuant to section 
ll 0. I 17, Florida Statutes. holiday observed by the FSFSA pursuant to a list furnished to the state 
in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a suspension of gtievance 
processin2 as agreed in writing by the parties. "Business davs·· aJso do not include a dav(s) on 
which the offices of DMS or any agency employing bargaining unit members are closed under 
an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency condition or disaster under 
the provisions of Rule 60L-34.007l(3 ){e). 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Associat ion (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - A1iicle 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 2 of I 0 

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If an em13loyee a grievant or the FSFSA has a grievance which may be processed 
under this Article which may also be appealed to the Fl01ida Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the etl'l)31oyee grievant or the FSFSA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to 
be used and such election shall be binding on the employee grievant or the FSFSA. Jn the case 
of any duplicate filing. the action first fi led will be the one processed. 

(B) An employee A grievant who decides to use th is Grievance Procedure shall 
indicate at Step I (or the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) 
whether he shall be represented by the FSFSA. When the employee grievant has elected FSFSA 
representation, beta the employee grievant and the FSFSA Grievance Representative shall be 
notified of any Step I meeting. Further, any written communication concerning the grievance or 
its resolution shall be sent to both the erl'lployee grievant and the FSFSA Grievance 
t=Representative. and any decision agreed to by the state and the FSFSA shall be binding on the 
employee grievant. 

(C) If the emplO)'Oe grievant is not represented by the FSFSA, any adjustment of the 
grievance shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The FSFSA shall be given 
reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called tor the resolution of such grievance. 
AA em!)loyee A grievant using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by 
the procedure established by the pm1ies to the Agreement. Tbe FSFSA shall not be bound by the 
decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the employee grievant was not represented by 
the FSFSA. 

SECTION 3 - Procedures 

(A) Employee grievances fi led in accordance with thi s Article should be presented 
and handled promptly at the lowest level of management hav ing the authority to adjust the 
grievances. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an employee from presenting concems 
through infom1al discussions with management representative(s). 

(8) There hall be no reprisals against any of the participants 111 the procedures 
contained herein by reason of such participation. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Matt imore Tom my Price 
State· s Chief Labor Ncgot knor President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 3 of 10 

(C) The filing or pendency of any b'Tievance under the provisions of this Article shall 
in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action 
compl:lined ot; subjed. however. to the final disposition of the gJievance. 

(0) Once a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. When an 
issue is unchanged, but it is detenninecl that an atiicle, section, or paragraph of the Agreement 
has been cited imprecisely or etToneously by the employee grievant, ~the effit:>l-eyee grievant 
shall have the ri ght to amend that part of his gtievance. 

(E) The resolution of a grievance ptior to its submission in wntmg at gtep 2 
arbitration shall not establish a precedent binding on either FSFSA or the state in other cases. 

(F) If a grievance meeting. mediation. or arbitration hearing is held, and a required 
participant or requires reasonable travel time during the regular work hours of a grievant. a 
representative of the grievant, or any required witnesses. such hours shall must travel during 
work time, reasonable travel time will be deemed time worked. A required participa:At is defined 
as th.e grievant, th.e designated fgFgA Grie•rance Representative located it~ the grievant ' s district. 
or the fgFSA Grievance Representative from the nearest district if there is no designated 
representative in the grievant's district, and any person required by the state to attend. 
Attendance at grievance meetings. mediation. or arbitrations outside of a participant' s regular 
workin-g hours shall not be deemed time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of 
par1icipants attending such meetings on behalf of the FSFSA. All grievance meetings shall be 
held at times and locations agreed to by the parties. Unless agreed otherwise, all meetings shall 
be held wi thin SO miles ofthe grievant's place of work. 

(G) Grievances shall be preseA.ted and adjusted in the following manner, a:ad llO 

individual may respond to a grievance at more thao one written step. 

(H G) Grievances and gri evance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail 
(including e-mail), couri er, or electronit; facsimile. If sent via electronic facs imile, the burden 
sha ll be on the sending party to contim1 the correct electronic facsimile number before 
transmission. Documents sha ll be deemed filed upon receipt during regular business ho urs (8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Ftiday, ~in the time zone in which the recipient is 
located). Documents received after business hours shall be considered received the next business 
day. 

Fortbc State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mall'imore Tommy Price 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



\ 

Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/ Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - A1iicle 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 4 of 10 

(! H) Grievance Processing. Grievances shall be tiled aBd processed in the following 
manner: Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no individual 
may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(1) Step I 

(a) As employee having a grievance may, vrithin 14 days follow,ing 
actual knowledge of tJ1e occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, submit a gtievance 
at £tep l. Entployee grievances are to be filed-en the grievance form as COfltained in Append* 
B. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an emplayee from presenting concerns through 
informal discussions with management representative(s). ln filing a gtievaHce at £tep I , Within 
15 days following actual knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to tbe grievance, 
the employee grievant or his designated representative shall submit to the Step I Management 
Representative a grievance fom1. as contained in Appendix B, setting fcnih specifically the 
known facts on which the grievance is based, the spec ific provision or provisions of the 
Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. In discipline cases, it shall be presumed 
that the gtievance alleges that the discipline was .. vithout just cause, and requests as relief, at a 
miHiinum, reinstatement or other make whole relief 

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designee may meet 
with the employee grievant and/or the FSFSA Grievance Representative, or the grievant or 
representative if not represented by the union, and shall communicate a decision in writing to the 
employee grievant and F£F£A Grievance Representative his designated representative. if any, 
within +4 lQ days following receipt of the written grievance f.am:t. lf the Step l Management 
Representative fails to respond within the time limit, it shall be deemed a denial. 

(2) Step 2 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee grievant or 
the F£F£A Grievance Representative his designated representative may submit it to the Agency 
Head or designee within +4 10 days aftei: following receipt of the decision at Step I. 

(b) The Agency Head or designee may meet with the employee 
grievant and/or the F£F£A Grievance Representative his designated representative, and shall 
communicate a decision in w1iting to the employee grievant and F£F£A Grievance 
Representative his designated representative, if any, within +4 12 days following receipt of the 
w1itten grievance. lfthe Agency Head or designee fails to respond withi11 the time limits, it shall 
be deemed a denial. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Manimore Tommy Price 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal -Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 5 of 10 

(3) Step 3- Contract Language Disputes 

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this 
Agreement, other than a disciplinary gtievance alleging only a violation of AJ1icle 7 that a 
disciplinary action (reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles 
by h ighway, suspension, or dismissal) was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the 
employee grievant or the FSFSA Grievance Representative may submit it to the Department of 
Management Services within +41.2 days aftet: following receipt of the decision at Step 2. 

(b) The Department of Management Services shall meet with the 
employee grievant and/or the FSFSA Gtievance Representative, rf any, or the grievant or 
representati ve if not represented by the union, to discuss the grievance, and shall communicate a 
decision in writing to the FSFSA grievant or his designated representative, if any, within 
foUJ1een (+41.12 days following receipt of the written gtievance. 

(4) G rievance M ediation 

The patiies tnay, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to 
be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS ), either prior to the 
giievafl:ce being stJbn'litted to arbitration or after it has been submitted to arbitration but before 
the arbitration a hearing is scheduled. When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the 
scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (5)(c) below may be extended bv 
mutual agreement beyond five months. time l imits to file for, or process, an arbitration are 
automatically extended for the period necessary to oonclude the mediation process. Either party 
may withdraw from the mediation process with w1itten notice no later than "five ~ days before a 
scheduled mediation. 

(5) Arbitration 

(a) l f a disciplinary gtievance alleging only a violation of Alticle 7 
that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 
miles by highway, suspension. or dismissal) was taken without cause is not resolved at Step 2 , 
the FSFSA may appeal the gri~::vance to arb itration on the appropriate fonn as contained in 
Appendix C of this Agreement within +4 10 days a-fief following receipt of the decision at Step 
2. If a contract language dispute as desc1ibed in (3), above, is not reso lved at Step 3 , the FSFSA 
may appeal the grievance to arbitration on the approptiate form as contained in Appendix C of 
this Agreement within +4 .lQ days ffite:t: fOllowing receipt of the decision at Step 3 . It~ at the 
initial written step, the FSFSA declined to represent the employee grievant because he was not a 

For t he State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/ Fire Servit.:e Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-1 6 
January 22, 2015 

Page 6 of 10 

member of the FSFSA. the employee f,rrievant may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The 
appeal to arbitration shall be filed with the Department of Management Services on the 
approp~iate fom1 contained in Appendix C and shall include a copy of the grievance fom1 s 
submitted at Steps I, 2, and 3 (if applicable), together with all written responses and documents 
in support ofthe gri.evance. 

(b) The arbitrator shall be chosen ti·om a panel of at least four f4) 
arbitrators selected by the parties. The Department of Management Services' Arbitration 
Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration hearing with the state and FSFSA representatives and 
the arbitrator listed next on the panel in rotation, and coordinate the arbitmtion hearing time, 
date. and location. 

(c) The parties may. by mutual agreement in writing, submit related 
grievances for hearjng before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon 
as feasible but not more than five months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration 
Form. It the arbitrator injtially selected is not available to schedule within this period. the 
Arbitration Coordinator shall contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is 
identified who can schedule within the prescribed period. A party may request of the arbitrator, 
with notice to the other party and the Arbi tration Coordinator, an extension of time/continuance 
based on documented unusual and compelling circumstances. 

(d) The Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule AQrbitration hearings 
shall be held at times and locations mutually agreed to by the parties, takii1g into consideration 
the availability of evidence, location of witnesses, existence of appropriate facilities, and other 
relevant factors: however, unless mutually agreed otherwise. all heatings shall be held within 50 
miles of the grievant(s)' place of work. 

(e) At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration 
healing, the parties shall file with the arbitrator, and provide to each other, a list of witnesses to 
be called at the heating, except rebuttal witnesses, and a blief statement of the matetia1 facts or 
matters relevant to the grievance about which each witness will testify. A party may file a 
wrjtten request with the arbitrator. with a concutTent copy to the other party. for an exception to 
the tiling time limits tor good cause. If such exception is granted. the other party may request 
that the hearing be rescheduled if necessary for the party to respond to the late filed witness 
information. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mani more Tommy Price 
State's Chier Labor Negotiator President and Chier Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposa l - A1iicle 6 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 7 of 10 

( El D Issues of arbitrability, including timeliness. shall be separated from 
the substantive issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible. determined by a heating 
conducted by conference eall. The arbitrator shall have ten ( I 0) days from the hearing to render 
a decision on arbitrabillty. Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including 
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an exped ited arbitration hearing shall be 
conducted to address only the arbitrability issue. ln Sltch cases, the parties shall choose an 
arbitrator from the panel of arbitrators (see (5)(b), above), who is available to schedule a hearing 
and render a decision within 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen tor this limited purpose. The 
heating on this issue shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the 
issue with in five business days of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone 
upon the agreement of the parties and the atbitrator. The fees and expenses of the expedited 
arbitration shall be shared equall y by the parties. [f the decision is arbitrator determines that the 
issue is arbitrable, another arbitrator shall thea be selected chosen from the parties' regular 
arbitration panel in accordance with the provisions of 5(b) of this Article to conduct a heating on 
h-eat: the substantive issue(s).:. in accordance 'Nith the provisions of (5)(b) of this Article. 

(e g) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to reso lve the 
gtievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state. the FSFSA. the gtievant(s), and the 
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be governed by 
the fo llowing provisions and limitations: 

L) The arbitrator shall issue his decision not later than +4 22 
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2) The arbi trator's decision shall be in writing, shall be 
determined by applying a preponderance of the evidence standard. and shall set torth the 
arbitrator's opinion and conc lusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

3) The arbitrator shall have no authority to detem1ine any 
other issue, and sha ll refi·ain ti·om issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to 
the determination of the issues submitted. 

4) The arbitrator shall limit his decision strictly to the 
application and interpretation of the specitic provisions of this Agreetr1ent. 

Fo1· the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator President and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



any decisions that arc: 

Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15- 16 
January 12, 2015 

Page 8 of I 0 

5) The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make 

a) Contrary to or inconsi tent with. adding to. 
subtracting from. or modifying, altering or ignoring in any 'Nay. the term of this Agreement. or 
of applicable Jaw or rules or regulations having the terce and cftect of law. 

b) Limiting or interfe1ing in any way with the power, 
duties and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution. applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities 
have been abridged, delegated or modi fled by the express provisions of thi s Agreement. 

(fh) The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the Ggrievant(s); 
however. the following limitations shall apply to such monetary award, : 

l ) Ne An award fuf of back pay shall not exceed the amount 
of pay the employee grievant would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay. shall be 
reduced by the amount of wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment 
assistance benefits during the back pay period, shall not iJ1cLude punitive damages, and such back 
f*lY shall not be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving 
rise to the grievance uHder consideration 15 days prior to the date the grievance was initially 
filed . 

2) The a•Nard shall not exceed the aet1:1al loss to the grie't'Elflt, 
will not incl1:1de p1:1nitive damages, aHd ·.viii be reduced by tl~e anwunt of \vages earned from 
other so1:1rces excl1:1ding unemployment con~pensation received by the employee d1:1ring the 
period of time affected by the award. If the FSFSA is granted a continuance to reschedule an 
arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be responsible for back 
pay for the period between the 01iginal hearing date or the end of the five month period 
described in (6)(c), above. whichever is later, and the rescheduled date. 

(g i) The reasOJ'lable fee and expenses of the arbitrator sha ll be borne 
equally by the pat1ies for the first five ~ matters submitted tor arbitration in the respective 
contract year and thereafter the loser pays the fees and expenses of the arbi tration. Each pa1ty 
hall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its own representat ives, 

attorneys and witnesses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee statement to the Arbitration 
Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator's contract. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Dnte Date 



Florida State Fire Service Associatio n (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposa l - Ariicle 6 

Fiscal Year 201 5-16 
January 22, 20 15 

Page 9 o f 10 

{j) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the 
proceedings. Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter. If either 
party orders a transcript of the proceedings. the party shal l pay for the cost of the transcript and 
provide a photoco py to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript 
to the other patiy upon wtitten request and payment of copying expenses ($.15 per page). 

(R k) The FSFSA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitratio n to 
which it was not a party. 

SECTION 4- Time Limits 

(A) Fa ilure at any step ofthis procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specified time lim its shall petmit the employee grievant, or the FSFSA, where 
appropriate, to proceed to the next step. The state will make a good fa ith effort to timel y 
communicate decis ions at each step. 

(B) The number of clays indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, 
and every effort sho uld be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits speciti ed in 
any step of this procedure may be extended, in. any specific instance, by written agreement. 

(C) C lai ms of either an untimely tiling or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 

SECTION 5 - Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to 
permit the FSFSA or aJl employee to process a grievance ( 1) in behalf of any employee without 
his consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a g1ievance. appeal, 
administrative action before a government board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by the 
FSFSA. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 

( 1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Matti more Tommy Price 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Servit:e Association (FSFSA)/ Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 !5-16 
January 22,2015 

Page 10 of 10 

submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step I within -l4 1.2 days following the actual 
knowledge of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The FSFSA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf 
of employees in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 
this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against an employee. 
The FSFSA's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding in another 
forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of this procedure, in 
accordance with the provisions set fotih herein, within +4 li days of the knowledge or 
reasonable knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the gtievance. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
Stare·s Chief' Labor Negotiator Pt'esident and Chief Negotiator 

Date Dnte 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - A1iicle 7 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 
December 18, 20 14 

Page I of2 

Article 7 
DlSCJPLINARY ACTION 

(A) An employee who has satisfactorily completed at least a one year probationary 
peAOO attained permanent status in tftei.f his ~.:urrent position may be disciplined or discharged 
only for .fi:tst cause as provided in Section II 0.227, Florida Statutes, and Rule 60L-36.005, 
F.A.C. Cause shall include, but is not limited to, poor performance, negligence. inefficiency or 
inability to pertom1 assigned duties, insubordination, violation of provisions of law or agency 
mles. conduct unbecoming a public employee. misconduct, habitual drug abuse. or conviction of 
any cnme. 

(B) Reductions in base pay. demotions, involuntary transfers of more than 50 miles by 
highway, suspensions, and dismissals may be etTected by the state at any time. The state wi ll 
make a good faith effort to initiate a disciplinary action with in 60 days ofknowledge ofthe event 
giv ing rise to tbe disciplinary action discipline. Such disciplinary actions shall be grievable for 
employees with permanent status in their current position in accordance with the grievance 
procedure in Article 6. ln the alternative. an employee with pennanent status in his current 
position may file an appeal of a reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of over 50 
miles by highway, suspension, or di smissal with the Public Employees Relations Commission 
within 2 I calendar days after the date of receipt of notice of such action from the agency, under 
the provisions of Section 110.227(5) and (6). Florida Statutes, 

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in his 
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto. 

(D) An employee may request that an FSFSA Staff Representative be present during 
any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 
alleged misconduct of the employee. 

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary actions and Mt gt·ievable. Letters of 
counseling may be used at arbitration otily to slww that an employee was placed on notice of a 
rule not as an example of prior discipline. Memoranda of Record and Memoranda of 
Supervision (letters of counseling) are documentation of minor work deficiencies or conduct 
concerns. Such documents are not discipline, are not grievable; however. such documentation 
may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee's discipline to 
demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance deficiencies or conduct concerns. 
They shafl not be relied upon for the purposes of promotional decisions or perfonnance 
evaluations if the conduct resulting in the letter is not repeated in the following 11 months. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

· Michael Mnttitnore Tommy Price 
Slate· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Flotida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Atiicle 7 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 18, 1014 

Page 2 of2 

(F) Rcptimands shall be subject to the grievance procedure as follows: 

( I) Oral reprimands shall not be grievable under the provisions of thi s 
Agreement. 

(2) An oral reprimand will not be considered in detennining discipline, 
provided the employee is not disciplined for the same or a similar offense during the succeeding 
12 months. 

(3) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status 
in their current position up to Step 2; the decision at that level shall be final and binding. 

(4) A wtitten reprimand will not be considered in determining discipline. 
provided the employee is not disciplined for the same or a similar otTense during the succeeding 
18 months. and the written reprimand was not for a major offense which could have resulted in 
the employee· s dismissal. 

(G) The state may. at its discretion. assess discipl inary suspensions of more than three 
days over two pay periods. 

(H ) The state may have special colnpensatory leave equal to the length of a 
disciplinary suspension deducted from an emplovee·s leave balance in lieu of the emplovee 
serving the suspension .. In making such detetmination, the state shall take into consideration the 
preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted. If the 
employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, annual leave may be deducted. Lf 
there is not sufficient special compensatory or annual leave, the remainder of the period will be 
leave without pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty. 
The employee·s personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the 
employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State's Chief La bor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Flotida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal ~ Aliicle 9 

Fiscal Year20 l5-16 
January 22. 2015 

Pagelof5 

Article 9 
VOLUNTARY REASSIGNMENT, LATERAL ACTION, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN 

DUTY STATfON, AND PROMOTIONS 

Employees who have attained permanent status in their ctment position and who meet a ll 
eligibi lity requirements shall have the opportunity to request reassignment, lateral action, 
transfer, or change in duty station to vacant positions within their respective agencies and 
promotions to vacant positions within the bargaining unit in accordance with the provisions of 
this Article. 

SECTION I- Definition s 

As used in this Article: 

(A) '·Change in Duty Station'" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 
located within 50 miles, by highway. of his cutTent duty statilJn. 

(8) "Duty station·· shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official 
headquarters. 

(C) ··Broadband level'' shall mean all positions which are sufficientl y similar in 
knowledge, skills. and abili ties, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, 
level of difficulty or responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to wanant the 
same treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel tTansnctions. 

(D) ··Reassignment"' shal l mean the moving of an employee~ fi·oll'l: a positiofl in oRe 
broadband level to a differeflt lJOSition in the same broadbaRd level er to a different broadband 
level having the same maximum salary 

(I) to a position in the same broadband level and same maximum salaty but with 
different duties: 

(2) to a position in the same broadband level and same maximum salary. regardless 
of the duties, but to a different agency; or 

(3) to a position in a different broadband level having the same maximum salary. 

Fot· the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiatot· 

Date Dare 



Florida State Fire Sen·ice Associati<>n (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 2 ofS 

Upon a reassignment appointment. the employee shall be given probationary status. 
Lf the reas ignment appointment is in conjunction with a legislatively mandated transfer of the 
position, the employee retains the status held in the position unless the legislature directs 
otherwise. 

(E) "Lateral action .. shall mean the moving of an emplovee to another position in the 
same agency that is in the same occupation, same broadband level with the same maximum 
salary, and has substantially the same duties and responsibilities. 

Upon a lateral action appointment, the employee shall retain the status they held in 
their previous position. If probationary, time spent in the previous position shall count toward 
completion of the required probationary period for the new position. 

(e E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of nn employee from one geographic location of 
the state to a different geographic location in excess of 50 highway miles from the employee's 
curTent duty station. 

(~ G) "Promotion·· shall mean the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having a higher maximum salary, or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of 
responsibility. 

( G H) "Demotion .. shall mean the changing of the classi tic1:1tion of an employee to ::t 

broadband level having a lower maximum salary, or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a hight:r maximum salary but a lower level of 
responsibility. 

SECTION 2 - Procedures 

(A) An employee who has satisfactorily completed at least a one year probationary 
peFiOO attained petmanent status in his current position may apply for request a reassignment, 
lateral action. transfer, change in duty station, or promotion on a the approptiate Request f&t: 

Reassignment, Transfer. Change in Duty Station, and Promotion Form (supplied by the agency). 
Such requests shall indicate the broadband level(s). county(ies). duty station, andlor shift(s) to 
which the employee would like to be reassigned, transttmed. or pron10ted assigned. When the 
employee requests !!, reassignment to a different position in a different broadband level, or a 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mnttimore Tommy Price 
Stnte's Chief Labor Negoti:Hor Pre. idcnt and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 3 of5 

promotion, a State of Florida Employment Application Fom1 must be completed and sent with 
the request fonn. 

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change ifl Dllty 
Station, and Promotion Form at any time: however, all such requests shall expire on May 31 of 
each calendar year. Reqllests can be filed in May to become effective on June 1. 

(C) All Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, and Promotion 
Forms shall be submit1ed to the agency head or designee who shall be responsible for fumishing 
a copy of each request to the management representatives who have the authority to make 
employee hiring decisions in the work unit to which the employee has requested reassignment. 
lateral act] on, transfer. change in duty station. or promotion. 

(D) Except where a vacancy position is filled by demotion, or where reassignment, 
lateral action. transfer. or change in duty station, or promotion is not in the best inte1·ests of the 
agency, the management representative having hiring authority for that vacancy the position 
shall give first consideration to those employees who have subrnitted a Request fef 
Reassigmnent, Transfer, Change in D1:1ty Station, and Promotion Form; provided, however, that 
employees whose reques1 for reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall 
not be considered for vacancies which occur eluting that month. 

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy position with the 
applicant employee who has the greatest length of service in the broadband level and who has a 
Request Fonn on file for the vacancy. The pm1ies agree, however. that other factors, such as 
employees' work history and agency needs, will be taken into consideration in making the 
decis ion as to whether the applicant employee with the greatest length of service in the 
broadband level will be placed in the vacant position. 

(F) [f the applicant employee vvith the greatest length of service in the broadband 
level is not selected for the vacant position, all applicants employees who have greater length of 
service in the broadband level than the employee selected shall be notified in writing of the 
agency's decision. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned, transferred, or promoted, or had his duty 
station changed accepted a reassignment. lateral action, transfer. change in duty station. or 
promotion pursuant to a R.request filed unde1· this Article, all other pending Requests---:fuf 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State's Chief' Labor Negotiator President and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 4 of 5 

Reassignment, Traasfer, ChaRge in Duty StatioR, and Promotion Forms from that employee shall 
be canceled, and the employee will not be eligible to file another request tor a period of 12 
months following the appointment. No other Request may be filed by the employee ttnder this 
Article for a period of hvelve (12) moaths following th:e employee's reassignment, transfer, 
change in duty station, or promotioR. lf an employee declines an offer of reassignment, lateral 
action, transfer. change in duty station, or promotion pursuant to a request filed under this 
Article, the employee·s request shall be canceled, and the employee will not be eligible to 
resubmit that file another request for a period of t\vehre f 12j months from the date the employee 
declined the offer. 

SECTION 3 - Involuntary Reassignment, Lateral Action, Transfer! or Change in Duty 
Station 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its 
discretion, from effecting the involLmtary reassignment, lateral action. transfer, or change in duty 
station of any employee according to the needs of the agency; however. the agency will make a 
good t~:tith effmt to take such action only when dictated by the needs of the agencyi and in ead1 
case will take into consideration the needs and circumstances of the employee prior to taking 
such action. 

SECTION 4- Notice 

An employee sha ll be given a minimum of 14 calendar days· notice prior to the agency 
effecting any reassignment. lateral action, or transfer of the employee. fn the case of a transfer, 
the agency will make a good faith effott to give a minimum of 30 calendar days' notice. The 
parties agree, however, that these notice requirements shall not be required during an emergency~ 
or other extraordinary conditions. 

SECTION 5- Relocation Allowance 

An employee who is involuntary reassigned and required to relocate his residence shall 
be granted time off with pay tor one f4 work day for purposes of relocating his residence. No 
employee will be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee·s regular 
workday and s·uch time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing 
compensatory time or ovet·time. In add ition, the employee shall be granted travel #me 
reimbursement for n·avel from the old residence to the new location residence based on the most 
direct route. 

for the State For the FSFSA 

Michael M~ttimore Tommy Price 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



SECTION 6- Grievability 

Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Ariicle 9 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 22, 2015 

Page 5 of5 

The provisions of this Article regarding voluntary reassignment, lateral action. transfer, 
change in duty station, or promotion shall not be subject to tbe grievance procedures of Aliicle 6 
of this Agreement; however, an employee complaint concerning improper application of the 
provisions of Section 2(E), and Section 3 may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to and 
including Step 2 of the Grievance Procedure. In considering such complaints, weight shall be 
given to the speciftc procedures followed and decisions made, along with the needs of the 
agency. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State's Chiei'Labor Negotiator President nnd Chier Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSF'SA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - A1iicle 13 

Fiscal Year2015-16 
January 26, 20 15 

Page 1 of 4 

Article 13 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 

SECTION I - Insurance Benefits 

The state agrees to administer the State Employees Group H"ealth Self Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or i\ct affecting the plan or its operation. The benefits 
and the employee share of premiw11s for the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan 
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 

SECTlON 2- Employee Assistance Program 

(A) Where a state agency has adopted an employee assistance progt·am put·suant to 
section I I 0.1 091, Florida Statutes, the state will make psychological and substance abuse 
counseling services available. 

(B) Any complaint or claim by an employee concerning this sect ion shall not be 
subject to the gri evance procedure of this Agreement. 

SECTION 3- Death In-Line-Of Duty Benefits 

(A) Funeral and butial expenses will be as provided in section 112.191 , Florida 
Statutes. 

(B) Education benefits will be as provided in section 112.191, Florida Statutes. 

(C) Health insurance benefits wi ll be as provided in section II 0.123. Florida Statutes. 

(D) Any complaint or claim by an employee concerning this Article shall not be 
subject to the grievance procedure of this Agreement. 

SECTION 4 - Florida Forest Service Fire Fighter Health and Physical Fitness Standards 
Program 

The Florida Forest Service (FFS) and FSFSA agree to a fi re fighter health and physica l titness 
standards program, which shall include appropriate screening and vaccination of all bargain ing 
unit members. 

For the State Fot· the FSFSA 

Michael Manimore Tommy Price 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and ChiefNegotintor 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Articl e 13 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26. 20 15 

Page 2 of4 

(A) The FFS shall prov ide Fi tness Technician(s ) in each Field Uni t. 

( 1) Fitness Technicians must maintain a cunent AED CPR card or higher. 
(2 ) Fitness technicians will provide fitness, health, nutrition. and wellness 

infonnatio n to all bargaining unit employees, and the Fit11ess Technicians will be g iven 
opportunities to receive information and training in such areas as nutrition, exercise physiology. 
etc. 

(B) Employees wi ll be permitted to exercise a maximum of three~ times per week 
for 30 minutes per session. 

( I ) This is an employee optional activity and may be permitted if fLre 
conditions, emergency activities or other priority work projects, (that have been approved by the 
Field Unit M anager), do not preclude such activities. 

(2) Individual aerobic and/or strength exercises are authorized. 

(3) Team sports are prohibited. 

(4) If it is not possible for the employee to conduct aerobic exercises at the 
work site, then the employee must start and finish his exercise session from thdr work s ite and 
be ab le to respond back to the site within 15 minutes of notification. 

(5) The acquisition of all exercise equipment is a local decision. However, 
state thnds may not be used to purchase thi s equipment. 

(6) The FFS will not provide reduced memberships with any gyms or health 
clubs. This is a personal decis ion on the pari of employees. 

(C) FFS Employee Hualtlz Exam & Fitness Tust 

(I ) The FFS employee Health E-mm & Fitness Test is required for Special 
Risk employees hired or rehired atler January I , 1993. and includes the Initial or Annual Medical 
Examination and the Fitness Test. The Initi al Medical Exam shall be in accordance with the FFS 
approved edition of the National Fire Protection A ssociation (NFPA 1582) Medical 
Requiremt:nts for Fire·fighters. The Initial and Annual Medical Exams standards for the 
pulmonary function test and the resting blood pressure limits are established by FFS. The 
Annual Medical Examination co ns ists of specific components of the Initial Medical 
Examination, (Pulmonary Function Test & Resting Blood Pressure). For the Annlflfl Medical 
Exam, employees are required to utilize the FFS Annual Medical Exam standard. The employee 

For the State F9r the FSFSA 

M ichnel Matt imore Tommy Price 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA )/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 13 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26, 20 15 

Page 3 of4 

has the option of utilizing the FFS facility for the Annual Medical Exam. or obtaining 
certification to take the Annual Fitness Test, utilizing the FFS Annual Medical Exam standard, 
from their personal physician (at personal cost). The Fitness Test cunently is the United States 
Forestry Service (USFS) Work Capacity Test (WCT), also called the Pack Test. The employee 
must successfully complete the Medical Examination within 30 days prior to taking the Fitness 
Test. 

(2) Employees vvho fail the Amwal Fitness Tesr clue to fitness reasons will not 
be allowed to perfonn wi ldfire suppression duties until they retake and pass the Annual Fitness 
Test. The employee will be mandated to perfonn physical tltness training as described in (B) 
and will be permitted up to hvei•<'e f l 2} months and a minimum of four (4t attempts. at three 9-} 
month intervals or less. to retake the Annual Fitness Test. 

(3) Employees who fai l the Annual Medical EYam wi ll be placed on sick leave 
until they provide a personal physician·s statement allowing them to work in a modified duty 
capacity. Ifthe employee provides a personal physician·s statement releasing him to full duty 
status and successfully completes the Annual A1fedical Exam at a FFS medical examination 
facility, or is ceJtified to take the Annual Firness Test utilizing the FFS Annual Medical Exam 
standard, by his personal physician (at personal cost), he wil l be requi red to take the Annual 
Fitness Test within 30 days of medical release to full duty status. Should the employee fail the 
Annual Fitness Test after release to full duty status, he will be provided the opportunity to take 
the Annual Fimess Test in accordance with paragraph (C)(2) above. 

( 4) Employees who have exhausted all attempts to pass the Annual Medicul 
Eram andlvr Fitness Test, may be offered a vacant position that does not include firetighting 
duties in the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services. If another position cannot be 
identified and agreed upon, termination may result. 

(5) The FFS employee Annual Fitness Test and the .. National Fitness TesC 
will be conducted during the months of November, December and January. These two tests may 
be combined and taken as one test. with the National Fitness Test (three~ mile walk with 45 
pound pack in 45 minutes) substituting for the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test (two P-j mile 
walk with 25 pound pack in 30 minutes). 

( 6) If a candidate for hire is required to take the FFS Initial Fitness Test, or an 
employee is currentl y scheduled to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test after January 3 I '1 

and before September I >l, the candidate or employee wi ll take these tests as scheduled, and will 
take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test the upcoming November, December or January (this 

For the State For· the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Dnte Date 



Florida State Fire SerYice Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 13 

Fiscal Year 10 15-16 
January 26, 20 IS 

Page 4 of4 

means two tests in 12 months). When the test is completed in November, December or January, 
the employee will be synchronized for future November, December or January testing. 

(7) If a candidate tor hire is required to take the FFS Initial Fitness Tt!sf. after 
August 31 ' 1 and before ovember I 51

, the candidate will take the test as scheduled. and be 
required to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test in No ember, December or January of 
the following year (this means more than 12 months between tests). (Example: candidate takes 
the FFS Initial Fitness Test on October 15. 2006. and will be required to take the FFS employee 
Annual Fitness Test in November or December of 2007 or January of 2008.) When the test is 
completed in November, December or January, the employee will be synchronized for future 
November. December or January testing. 

(8) If an employee is scheduled to take the FFS employee Annual Fitlless Test 
after August 31 ~1 and before November 1 ~1 , the employee wil l wait until November. December 
or January to take the FFS employee Annual Fitn('ss Test (this means more than 12 months 
between tests). When the test is completed in November. December or January, the employee 
will be synchronized for future November. December or January testing. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael fattimore Tommv Price 
' tate's Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 21, 2015 

Pagelof4 

Article 23 
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERT IME 

SECTION 1- Hours of Work and Overtime 

(A) The normal work period for eaeh full-tlme employees, except as noted below, 
shall be 40 hours consisting of five~ eight.: fS1 hour days, or four t41 ten.: (+{ft hour, days, or a 
28:day, 160:hour period. The nom1al work period for Department of Children and Families~ 
employees shall remain on be a 28:day, 192:hour period, consisting of 24 liours on-duty and 48 
hours off-duty. The nonnal work period for Department of Military Affairs' employees shall be 
a 28-day, 212-hour period. 

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees: however, the state will 
make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the 
workday and consecutive clays in the workweek. 

(C) Work beyond the nonnal workweek shall be administered in accordance with the 
provisions of Rule oOL-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

(D) Management retains the right to approve time off for its employees. However. the 
state will make a good faith effort whenever practicaL to allow employees to use compensatory 
accrued leave credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee's specific 
request shall not be gricvable under the provisions of Article 6 of this Agreement. 

(E) The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of 
favoritism. Where an ernployee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned on the 
basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the grievance procedure under Article 6 
up to Step 2 of the procedure. 

SECTION 2- Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules 

(A) When regular vvork schedules are changed. employees· nonnal work scbedult:s. 
showing each employee·s shift. workdays, and hours, will be posted no less than 14 calendar 
days in advance, and will reflect at least a two P-t workweek schedule; however, the state will 
make a good faith effort to reflect a one H-) month schedule. ln the event an employee·s shift. 
workdays. or hours are changed whi le the employee is on approved leave, the agency will notify 
the employee of the change at hi s home. With prior written notification of at least three f.B 
workdays to the employee's immediate supervisor. employees may agree to exchange days or 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Matlimore Tommy Price 
State' s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 

Fiscal Year2015-l6 
January 22, 2015 

Page 1 of4 

shi fts on a temporary basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or 
shifts. the employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved. 

(B ) Where practical, shifts. shift transfers, and regular days off shall be scheduled 
with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and employee preference. The state and 
the FSFSA understand that there may be times when the needs of the agency will not pennit such 
scheduling; however. when an employee·s shift and/or regular days off are changed. the agency 
will make a good fai th effort to keep the employee on the new shift or regular days off tor a 
minimum of l2 months unless otherwise requested by the employee. 

(C) When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shin and the employee·s regular 
shift assignment is being changed. the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a 
minimum of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the 
new shift assigrunent. 

(D) Where pract ical, vacation and holiday leave shall be scheduled in advance of such 
leave. Time off for vacat ions and holidays. when the holiday is a regularly scheduled workday 
for the employee, will be scheduled wi th due regard for the needs of the agency, seniori ty, and 
employee preference. In implementing this provision, nothing shall preclude an agency from 
making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as determined by the 
agency. or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during the holidays. 

(E) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at 
each agency and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are 
established. Scheduling structures shall mean the normal work period as set forth in Section 
I (A) of this article. 

SECTION 3- Rest Periods 

(A) No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period 
during each fou r t4-) hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at 
the middle of the work shift. However. it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty 
assignment that requires coverage for a full eight hour shift, which would not pem1it the 
employee to actually leave his post. ln those cases. it is recognized thnt the employee can .. rest" 
whi le the employee physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
St-ate· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief Negotiator 

Date Dare 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA )/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 

Fiscal Y em· 2015- 16 
January 22, 20 15 

Page 3 of4 

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused rest peri ods, nor shall rest periods be 
authori zed for covering an employee's late arriva l on duty or early departure from duty. 

SECTION 4 - Work Day 

(A) The state will make a good faith effort not to require an employee to split a 
workday into two or more seh,'lnents without the agreement of the employee and the employer. 

(B) Where employees aJe required to work extra hours during an approved extended 
work period, the state will make a good faith effort to onset such extm hours in eight t8t hour 
inctements, provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period. 

SECTION 5 - Special Compensatory Leave 

(A) Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave 
credits may be earned only in the following instances: 

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as 
defined in section I I 0.117, Florida Statutes, or for work perfonned during a work period that 
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 

(2) By an employee in the career service for work perfonned in the 
employee·s assigned office, facility. or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of 
the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July I, 20 12 

An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 
balances. 

(C) Special Compensatory Leave Eamed On or After July I, 20 12 

( 1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)( I), on or atter July I , 20 12, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier. shall be forfeited. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State"s Chief Labor Negotiator President and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 13 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 22,2015 

Page4 of4 

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A )(1). on or after July I , 1012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is credited shall be fotfeited. 

(3) Each agency shall schedule employees eaming pecial compensatory leave 
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July I, 1012, to be used 
within the time limits pecified in subsections I and 2. However, if scheduling such leave within 
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed 
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections I 
and 2 for up to an add itional 180 calendar days. Extensions will not be allowed for any other 
reason. 

(4) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave 
credits earned on or atter July I , 1012. 

(0) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests t<.)r use of approved leave. 
other than administrative leave, shall first be ~harged to any special compensatory leave credits 
the employee has accrued. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and Chief egoriator 

Date Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association ( FSFSA)/Fi re Service Unit 
State Proposal- Atiicle 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15-1 6 
January 26, 2015 

Page I of2 

Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION I - General Pay Provisions 

(A) Pay sl=lall be i:B: accordance witl'l the Fiscal Year 201'1 3015 General 
Appropriatio11s Act. 

(B) fnoreases to base rate of pay and salary addi tives shall be in accordance with state 
la\v and the Fiscal Year 10 14 201 5 General Appropriations Act. 

Agencies· authoritv to provide increases to employees' base rate of pav and salarv 
addi tives from available agency ftmds shall be io accordance with this Agreement, state law, and 
the Fiscal Year 201 5-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availabi lit) of funds and at the 1\gen~.:y Head·s discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee·s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facil ity or area 
closed due to emergency conditions ti·om another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECT ION 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the opt ion of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December in the form of a ca ·h payout subject to. and in accordance 
with, section 11 0.119(7), Florida Statutes. 

SECTJON 4 - Performance Pay 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General 
Appropriat ion Act. and from existing agency resources, each agency is authorized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee·s exemplary perlormance. as evidenced b. a performance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35. Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 5 - Savings Sharing Prognm 

For the tate For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State·s Chief Lflbor Negotiator President nnd Chief Negotiator 

D<He Date 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fisca l Year 20 15-16 
January 26. 20 I 5 

Page 2 of2 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to secti on 1 I 0.1245( I). Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 6 - Discretionary Raises 

ln accordance with the authorjty provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Heacl· s discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant competiti ve pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staffing issues. 

8ECTlO~J" 7 Pay 8ubjeet te General ApproJJriatieos Aet 

In the event the 2014 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above specified pay increases and payments. the State and the Union -agree that such 
increases aHd payments shall be admiflistered iA accordal'lCe with the provisions of the f'iscal 
Year 20 14 ?0 15 General Appropriations Act~ and any otheHelevant statutes. 

For the State For the FSFSA 

Michael Mattimore Tommy Price 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator President and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal - Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 22, 20 15 

Page I of I 

Article 26 
VACANT 

For the FSFSA 

Tom my Price 
President and CbjefNegotiator 

Date 





SECTION 1 - Insurance Benefits 

Flolida State Fire Service Assoc iation 
FSFSA Proposal - Atiicle 13 

October 13th, 20 l4 

ArticJe 13 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 

(A) Tbe state agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act at1ecting the plan or its operation. 

(8) Upon retirement bargaining unit members retirement monthlv premiums for family 
health and/or single coverage hea lth insurance will be adjusted based on their monthly FRS pension 
payments. Single and/ or Family premiums for health coverage will not exceed established premium 
rates or 40% ofthe total pension payments to the retiree. 

State Unio n ------ ------
Date Date ------ ------



SECTJON 4 - Work Day 
(A) Statw Quo 

Article 23 

Fl01ida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal- Article 23 

October 13 111,2014 

HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

(B l Employees will not be required to work excess hours above the scheduled work day, 
except in the event of emergency response incidents. without prior platmed written approval ti·om the 
immediate supervisor. 

(C) Any hours members are required to work over the scheduled work day hours for non
emergency response duties shall be deemed approved overtime by the supervjsor. 

{0) Anv hours work perfotmed on scheduled days off shall be deemed pre-approved 
ove1time hours, except in the event these hours do not exceed contracted hours due to employee 
leave usage. 

(E) Emergency response incident is defined as any incident that threatens public health, 
sa fety, and welfare that requires immediate attention by responders. 

State Union ------ ------
Date Date ------ ------



Florida State Fire Service Assoc1ation 
FSFSA Proposal -Article 25 

October 13th, 2014 

Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION I - General Wage Increase fot· Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
(A) Based on funding in the Fisca l Year 2015-2016 General Appropriations Act all 

employees in the unit shall receive a general wage increase in the amount specified by the legislature. 
(B) FSFSA request a competitive pay analysis to be completed by the agencies for all 

cun·ent position classifications covered under this agreement with like positions employed w ithi n 
the state, counties, and cities. Results of these studies shall be provided to the Speaker of the 
House and Senate President annually in the event of an impasse over Article 25 wages. 

SECT ION 2 Status Ouo w;r!r Fiscal '\!Car changes 
SECTION 3 Status Ouo H'ith Fiscal vear clrcmges 
SECTION 4 Status Ouo 1rillr Fiscal vear clwnges 
SECTION 5 Status Ouo ll'ith Fiscal vl.!m· changes 

SECTION 6 - Special Pa" Issues 
To reduce increasing new employee turnover and agency training expenses to new employees 

urut members shall receive a competitive pay adjusnnenr of $ 1500 to each employee's June 30. 2015 
base rate of pay. 

SECTION 7- Hazard/ Ph\'sical Hardship Out)' pav additive 
(A) When hazardous situations or physical hardships exist bargaining unit members will 

l'eceive an additional hourly pay adj ustment of no less than 10% of hourly base rate per hour when 
perform ing such duties. Hazardous duty is defined as duty performed under circuntstances which 
could result jn serious injury or death. Duty involving a physical hardship is duty that may not in 
itself be hazardous. but could causes extreme physical discomfort or distress and is not 
adequately alleviated by protective or mechanical devices or procedures in place. 

SECTION 8 - Competitin Area Differential (CAD) 
(A) Due to high tumover rate and to competitive market salaties for similar job duties. 

the FSFSA requests funding for critical competitive area differentiaJ in those areas agencies have 
identified high turnover and retention deficiencies. 

(B) FSFSA request existing competitive area differentials be reviewed and increased 
accordingly to adjust for competitive ··tike·· positions. 

State Union ----- - --- - --
Date Date ------ ------



SECTION 9 - Shift Differential 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal - Article 25 

October 13th, 20 14 

Article 25 
WAGES (Continued) 

(A) Bargaining unit members will receive a shift differential of 5% of their base salary 
pay per hour for evening shift work in excess of the normal work clay. 

(B) Bargaining unit members will receive a shift ditrerential of I 0% of their base salary 
pay per hour tor midnight shift work in excess of the normal work day. 

(C) Evening shjft hours are defined as those hours fi·om ( 1800) 6 PM to (2400) 
Midnight. Midnight shift hours are defined as those hours from (0001) midnight to (0600) 6AM. 

(0) Shift differentials will not apply to those employees nonnallv scheduled evening and 
midnight hours. Shift changes will be in accordance to Article 23 Section 2(8 ). 

SECTION 10 - Trainer pay additive 
(A) Bargaining unit members assigned duties to provide on the job or classroom training 

to co-workers shall receive a 10% of salary pay additive provided the training is part of an 
agency approved required training program and that such duties are not part of the customarily 
assigned duties of the position classification. 

State ------ Union ______ . 
Date Date --- - - - ------



Article 26 
PROMOTIONS 

SECTION I - Promotional step plan Svstem 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal- Article 26 

October 13th, 2014 

(A) All Agencies employing unit personnel wi ll establ ish a promotional step system 
tor each classification consisting of a minimum of ( 4) tour promotional step opportunities for said 
positions. 

(B) Proniotional steps requirements will be based on but not limited to: time in service. 
training Ct:J1ifications, performance e.valuations, and emplovee qualitications. 

(C) Promotional steps shall be atl'ainable, achievable. and clearly defined steps on what 
employee requirements are needed to promote within the organization. 

(0 ) This systems intent is to increase employee morale. motivation, and 0ommitment to 
improvement in the workplace. 

(E) Promotional steps shall be based on completion of requirements for promotions and shal l 
not be limited to position availability or funding. Agencies will utilize ex isting pav bands and pay 
grades position ftmcling to implement this system. 

State Union ----- - ---- - -
Date Date ------ -------



Roberts, Patty 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Patty, 

smokeymarine@gmail.com on behalf of Tommy Price <President@IAFFLocaiS20.com> 
Monday, October 13, 2014 1:17PM 
Roberts, Patty; Tommy Price 
2015 FSFSA Init ial Contract proposals 
2015article13proposaiFSFSA.docx; 2015article25eproposaiFSFSA.docx; 
201Sarticle23proposaiFSFSA.docx; 2015article26proposaiFSFSA.docx 

Attached please find our initial contract proposals for the up~'Oming session for the Florida State Fire Service 
Association IAFF Local S-20. We would like to get these in before any Governors budgets are drafted in hopes 
our issues might be included. 

Article 13: We propose to limit the total cost of retiree health insurance to be a maximum percentage of an FRS 
members pension payments. We currently have people retiring drawing less in monthly pension than the totaJ 
cost for family coverage after retirement 

Article 23 : Basica11y we are asking for agencies supervisors to stick to our scheduled work hours and if we 
need to work more than the normal scheduled shift then either properly plan for it in accordance with our 
contract or limit excess hours i.n a workday to emergency response. People should not have to come in on 
scheduled days off unless their in an emergency or it has been planned in advance for issues like training. If 
supervisors do not adhere to this then the members should be compensated for accommodating the needs of the 
state. 

Article 25: FSFSA is asking for a competitive wage analysis be completed for like positions. We have 
firefighters literally making less than half of other starting fi refighters in the state. This bas caused high 
turnover ir. many areas of the state. FSFSA is asking for a $ 1500 pay increase to our members. We have some 
of if not the lowest paid state employees in the nation and tnis issue needs addressed. Monies spent annually by 
agencies to train replacements far exceeds the $1500 raises we are asking for to retain existing 
employees. Hazardous duty pay for members placing themselves in dangerous situations often times with 
limited or no protective measures in place for their safety. CAD request are for agencies requesting CAD in 
those high turnover areas and to review existing CADS that have not kept up with area cost of livings. Most of 
our membership is in an 8 hour workday scheduled from !:! to 5. lf and when these employees are required to 
work evening or around the clock work FSFSA request shift differential pays to oflSet expenses usually 
inquired by the employee for these shifts. Many of our members are responsible for training their coworkers 
and the public by teaching classes, on the job training, course delivery, working on taskbooks, etc. as these 
duties are not part of our nonnal duties FSFSA request when these employees perform these duties and/or 
classified as a trainer they be compensated for it. 

Article 26: ~EW) Step pay plans. Morale in the field is at an all time low with turnover of new employees 
increasing across the state. FSFSA proposes a step promotion~l system for members to "move up" to a higher 
level. Agencies could use existing salary monies, incentives, etc. to accommodate this without the need for 
additional funding from legjs lators. Weekends off, oncall distribution, modified work schedules, etc are all type 
things that could be utilized to differentiate positions within the "steps" if salary increases are not an 
option. Each FSFSA agency rep has suggested plans for implementation that can be worked with by both 
parties to accomplish the end goal, improve morale and retention. 

Thanks! I am sure there will be questions. Please contact me if you need clarification or more information. 



Roberts. Patty 

:rom: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Patty, 

Tommy Price <smokeymarine@gmail.com> 
Friday, January 23, 2015 9:43 AM 
Roberts, Patty 
Re: Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Bargaining Unil State 
Proposals · January 22, 2015 

I called you and left a message before I had seen these. 

At this time the u nion, negotiating in good faith, agrees to the status quo proposals sent out on 12/ 18/14; 

Article 1, 2, 3, 4, I 0, 11, 14, l 5, 16, 17, 19, 21, 22, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33 

Furthermore we can agree to the initial state proposals on Articles 5, 8, 12, 18, 24, and 34. 

Am r to assume the state is not willing to add or bargain any of the language we requested counter proposed for 
Articles 6, 7, and 9 after the state proposed them? 

States proposal Article 6 we Jgree with everything but a::;k all grievances, including disciplinary, go to a step 3 
for DMS review. As stated changing this we feel can save the state monies possibly resolvi ng issues prior to 
going to arbitration and do not sec A aegative impact to t11e state or our members. 

Stales proposal A rticle 7 MOS and MOR's are not disciplinary action and should not be in our disciplinary 
anicle so we asked for word ing change or removal. Everything else we can agrt!e to but would lik~ to see that 
change. 

States propusal Attivle 9 we asked for an additional way fo r employees to be prioritized for unanttc1pated 
Y:-t\."~Ull J'llhtll<)n:, thm 11pcn :Jfound the state oflike positions once advertised. They should not be limited 
hc\:Ju~..: {" .m .thscncc toL l lom1. We feel rjJl of these request ~..w be added so we can .::1g.r~c to them ~u they do 
not go to impasse. 

States proposal Article 23 and 26 we can agree to the additional language added for the DMA members. Is the 
state willing to work with us on our issues and incorporate some of our proposals into the article language 
negotiating in the collective bargaining process? 

Also our initial openers included proposed changes to Articles 13 and 25. ls the state going to collectively 
bargain on these articles or have proposals before an impasse? 

We urge the state to please incorporate some of the proposed changes to Articles 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, and 26 in 
order for our members to ratify if we can come to an agreement before impasse. In the spirit of collective 
bargaining and negotiating we have agreed to a lot and urge the state to incorporate some of our request. We 
!lfe willing to withdraw some of our initial proposals, if need be, if the state can work with us on some of the 
.ssues negotiating to avoid a long list going to impasse. 

Thank you, 



Tommy Price 

Presient 

FSFSA S-20, 

2 





The Florida State Fire ServiceAssociation- CBU 11 Wage Proposals 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Union/Issue Estimated Cost Comments 

Article 13, Section 1: Provides upon retirement 
bargaining unit members retirement monthly 
premiums for farnily health and/or single coverage 
health insurance will be adjusted based on their 

Indeterminate 
monthly FRS pension payments. Single and/ or 
Family premiums for health coverage will not 
exceed established premium rates or 40% of the 
total pension payments to the retiree. 

Article 23, Section 4: Provides all employees in 
the unit shall have any hours members are required 
to work over the scheduled work day hours for non- Indeterminate 
emergency response duties shall be deemed 
approved overtime by the supervisor. 

Article 25, Section 1: Provides all employees in 
In FY 13-14 a $1.000/$1,4000 raise was provided to all state the unit shall receive a general wage increase in the Indeterminate 
employees based on their current base rate. 

amount specified by the Legislature. 
Article 25, Section 6: Provides all employees in In FY 13-14 a $1 ,000/$1,4000 raise was provided to all state 
the unit shall receive a competetive pay adjustment 

$985,150 
employees based on their current base rate. AS 1.500 salary 

of $1 ,500 to each employees June 30. 2015 base increase was calculated for the CBU. LAS/PBS was the source used 
rate. for the calculation. Costing prepared by OPB 
Article 25, Section 7: When hazardous situations 
or physical hardships exist, bargaining unit 
members will receive an additional hourly pay Indeterminate 
adjustment of no less than 10% of hourly base ra te 
per hour when performing such duties 

Article 25, Section 8: Competitive area differential 
in those areas agencies have identified high Indeterminate 
turnover and reten tion deficiencies. 

Article 25, Section 9: Establishes shift differentials 
for unit members of the Florida State Fire Service 
Association by providing 5% of their base salary pay 
per hour for evening shift work in excess of the 

Indeterminate 
normal work day or 10% of their base salary pay per 
hour for midnight shift work in excess of the normal 
work day. (Evening shift=6pm-12am) (Midnight 
shift= 12am-6am) 

Article 25, Section 10: Bargaining unit members 
assigned duties to provide on the job or classroom 
training to co-workers shall receive a 1 O% of salary 
pay additive provided the training is part of an Indeterminate 
agency approved required training program and that 
such duties are not part of the customarily assigned 
duties of the position classification. 

Article 26, Section 1: Provides agencies employing 
unit personnel will establish a promotional step 
system for each classification consisting of a 
minimum of ( 4) four promotional step opportunities 

Indeterminate 
based on but not limited to; time in service, training 
certifications, performance evaluations. and 
employee qualifications. 

Page 1 ol1 





Article 
I - Recognition 

2 - Gender Reference 

3 - Vacant 

4 - No Discrimination 

5 - Representation Rights 
Progosed title change to: 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit- State Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rt1c es at mpasse: ' ' ' ' ' ' 
A . I 1 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State ProQosal of December 18. 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27,2015. 
State ProQosal of December 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27,2015. 
State Progosal of December 18, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27,2015. 
State Progosal ofDecember 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27,20 15. 
State ProQosal of December 18, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Section 4 - Quarterly report of signed state proposal 

Representation Rights and employee infonnation - home January27,2015. 
FSFSA Activities address, DOB, etc.- which may 

contain employee information exempt 
from public access under section 
11 9.071(4), F.S. but not designated as 
confidential, is provided for the sole 
and exclusive use of the union in 
can·ying out its role as certified 
bargaining agent (eliminates need for 
separate MOA addressing such 
records); state's policy is to protect 
employee data exempt from public 
access under 119.071(4), F.S. 

Pagel of22 



Article 
5 - Representation Rights 
(continued) 

6 - Grievance Procedure 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = C/(}!•;ed 

Articles at lmpw;se: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

Section 9 - Consultations held during 
regular work hours of a participant 
are treated as time worked. 

Section I 0 - Clarifies that leave fo r 
negoti ations is administraHve leave. 

Section 11 - Moves personal leave 
use for attending union activ ities 
from Article 18 - Leaves of Absence; 
when requests fo r annual or 
compensatory leave, or leave witho ut 
pay for the purpose of attend ing 
FSFSA conventions, conferences, and 
meetings cannot be granted, the 
supervisor shall provide an 
explanation fo r such denial in writing. 

State Proposal of January 22. 2015: 
Section I - Use business days for 
calculation o f .!:,'Tievancc time limits. 

Section 2 - Use "grievant'' to identi fy 
employee as defined in Section I (B). 

Section 3 -
• moves reference to presenting 

concerns through informal 

Union Proposal (via email) of 
January 23, 20 15: 

Section 3 - proposes that all 
gri evances, including d iscipl inary, are 
reviewed at Step 3 (OMS). 

Page 2 of22 

State proposal is the same as 
was proposed in FY 2014-15 
negotiations that was 
tentatively agreed to by the 
parties but not rat ified, with the 
exception of the witness list to 
be fil ed within 15 days of the 
arbitration hearing and 
c larifying language for 
grievance mediation extensions. 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of .January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Y car 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rite e.\' at mpttsse: 
' ' ' ' ' ' 

A . I I 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

discussions from procedures 
fur Step I to genern l 
procedures; 

• gtievance meetings . 
mediations. and arbitrations 
held dUJing regular work 
hours of a grievant. a 
representat ive of the grievant, 
or required witnesses. are 
treated as time 'vvorkcd; the 
state will not pay the expenses 
of any participants attendi ng 
such meetings on behalf of the 
unton: 

• the patties may, by written 
agreement, submit a grievance 
to mediation after it hns been 
submitted to arbitration but 
before the arbih·ation hearing: 
'vvhen the parties agree to 
mediate a grievance. the 
scheduled date for the 
arbitration henring may be 
extended by mutual 
agreement beyond f·i ve 
months; 

• arbitration hearings shall be 
scheduled as soon as feasible 
but not more than five months 

Page 3 o f 22 



Article 
6- Gri evance Procedure 
(continued) 

Florida State Fire Ser vice Association 
Fire Ser vice Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Cm·rent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Ba rgaining Negotiations as of January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Y car 20 IS- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- AU Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Sltatled = Closet/ 

rflc es at mpasse: . I • I ' 
, A . I I 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
following the receipt of the 
request fo rm; 

• at least fifteen days before the 
scheduled date of the 
arbitrat ion hearing, the parti es • 
shall file with the arbitrator. 
and provide to each other, a 
li st of witnesses to be ca ll ed ut 
the hearing, except rebuttal 
witnesses. and a brief 
statement of the materi al facts 
about which each witness will 
testify: a party may file a 
written request with the 
arb itrator, with a concurrent 
copy to the other party. fo r an 
exception to the tiling ti me 
limi ts fo r good cause; if such 
exception is granted, the other 
party may request that the 
hearing be rescheduled if 
necessary fo r the party to 
respond to the late til ed 
witness info rmation; 

• where there is a threshold 
issue regarding arbitrability 
raised by either party. an 
expedited arbitration hearing 
shall be conducted to address 

Page 4 of21 



Ar·ticle 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
S tatus of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of Janua ry 27, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

,. tc e.\' a mpasse: , 
' . . ' 

.), A r· I tl 6 7 9 13 23 2 - 26 
State Proposa l Un ion Proposal Comments 

only the arbitrability issue; 
fees and expenses of the 
expedited arbitration shall be 
shared equally by the patties. 
If the arbitrator determines 
that the issue is arbitrable. 
another arbitTator shall be 
chosen to conduct u heari ng 
on the substantive issues; 

• arbitrator' s decis ion is to be 
detcnnined by applying a 
preponderance of the evidence 
standard; 

• w hen a continuance is granted 
to the union to reschedule an 
arbitration hearing over the 
objection of the agency, the 
agency is not respons ib le for 
back pay for a period between 
the original arbitration hearing 
date or the end o f the five 
month period, whichever is 
later, and the rescheduled 
date; 

• transcripts of arbitration 
hearings are add ressed, 
including allocation of costs 
associated with l.!OUit repo11er 
appearance and transcribing 

Page 5 of22 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

7 - Disciplinary Action 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27,2015 

Fiscal Y car 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Ne~otiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Sfladed = Clo .... ·ed 

Article.~ at Impasse: 6. 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

and copying transcript: 
• ro le of the DMS Arbitration 

Coordinator is darified. 

State Proposal of December 18. 2014: 
(A) An employee who has permanent 
s tatus in his current pos ition may be 
di sc iplined on ly for cause: dc·fincs 
cause as provided in section II 0 .22.7, 
F.S., and Rule 60L-36.0U5. F.A.C. 

(B) Provides option of co ll ective 
bargaining grievance o r appeal to 
PERC for a reduction in base pay. 
demotion. invo luntary transfer o f 
more than 50 miles by highway, 
suspt.msion, or d ismissal. 

(E ) Memoranda of Record and 
Memoranda of Supervis ion (letters of 
counseling) are not discipline and are 
not grievable. 

(F) Oral reprimands arc no t gri evable 
(s tatus quo language ); an oral 
reprimand will not be considered in 
detcnnining discipline, provided the 
employee is not di sciplined tor the 
same or a s imilar oftensc during the 

Union Proposal (via email) of 
January 23. 20 15: 

(E) proposes re ferences to 
Memoranda of Record and 
Memoranda of S upervision be s truck 
from this article s ince letters of 
counseling are not discipline. 

Page 6 of 22 

State proposal is the same as 
was proposed in FY 20 14- 15 
negotiations that was 
tentati vely agreed to by the 
parties but not ratifi ed. 



Article 
7 - Disciplinary Action 
(conti nued) 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit- Sta te Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agreem ent Expires June 30, 2015 
S tatus of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of J a nua ry 27.2015 

Fisca l Year 2015- 16 S uccesso r Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rtlc e . .,. at mpasse: 
' ' t ' t -'· A . I I 6 7 9 13 23 2- 26 

State Proposal Union P1·oposal Comments 
ucceeding 12 months; written 

reprimands may be grieved by 
employees with perm anent status in 
their curTent position and arc final 
and binding at Step 1 (status quo 
language); a written reprimand will 
not be considered in determining 
discipline, prov ided the employee is 
not di sciplined for the same or a 
similar o ffense during the succeeding 
18 months, and the written reprimand 
was not fo r a major offense w hich 
could have resulted in the employee's 
dismissa l. 

(H ) The state may have special 
compensatory leave equal to the 
length of a disciplinary suspens ion 
deducted from an employee· s leave 
ba lance in li eu ofthe employee 
serving the suspension. taking into 
consideration the preference of the 
employee. T he employee will 
continue to report fo r duty fo r the 
durati on of the suspensio n. and the 
employee' s personnel fil e w ill re fl ect 
a di sciplinary suspens ion regardless 
of whether the employee serves the 
suspens io n or has leave deducted. 

Page 7 of22 



Article 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Current O ne-Year Agr eement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of J anuary 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Clo . ..,·ed 

Articles at Impasse: 6, 7, 9, I 3, 23, 25, 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

8 - Workforce Reductions State Proposal ofDecember 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state proposal 
January27, 2015. 

9 - Voluntary 
Reassignment, Transfer, 
Change in Duty Station 
and Promotions 
Proposed title change to: 
Reassignment, Lateral 
Action, Transfer, Change 
in Duty Station. and 
Promotion 

Section I - Adds " lateral actions'" 
(moving to a different position in the 
same agency, same occupation, same 
broadband level, same maximum 
salary, and with substantially the 
same duties and responsibilities) as 
option in addition to reassignment 
and demotion for employee to request 
in lieu of layoff. 

Section 2 - An employee who has 
attained permanent status in his 
cutTent position and accepts a 
voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff, 
and is subsequently promoted to the 
same class/same agency, shall be 
promoted with pennanent status; adds 
timeframe to apply only within one 
year following demotion. 
State Proposal of January 22, 20 15: 
Section I - Amends definition of 
"reassignment" and adds "lateral 
actions": clarifies status in each type 
of action. 

Union Proposal (via email) of 
January ?3, 20 15: 

Section 2 - proposes an additional 
way for bargaining unit employees to 
be given priority consideration tor 
unanticipated vacant positions that 
open around the state once adverti sed; 

Page 8 of22 

State proposal is the same as 
was proposed in FY 2014- 15 
negotiations that was 
tentatively agreed to by the 
parties but not ratified. 



Article 
9 - Voluntary 
Reassignment, Transfer, 
Change in Duty Station 
and Promotions 
Proposed title change to: 
Reassignment, Lateral 
Action, Transfer, Change 
in Duty Station , and 
Promotion (continued) 

I 0 - Occupation 
Profi les/Rules 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27,2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles ill lmpas ... ·e: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

Section 5 -Clarifies relocation 
allowance- provides one workday 
wi th pay and reimbursement for 
travel ti·om old to new res idence 
when an employee is reassigned and 
required by agency policy to relocate 
his residence. 

State Proposal ofDecember 18, ?014: 
Status quo 

employees should not be given 
priority consideration only when a 
request form is filed in advance of a 
vacancy occurring. 

Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state proposal 
January 27,2015. 

II - Classification Review State Proposal of December 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state proposal 
January 27, 2015. 

12 - Personnel Records 

Substance status quo 

State Proposal of December 18, 20 14: 
(A) Information in an employee's 
official personnel file may be 
maintained in electronic as well as 
paper fonn. 

(B) If a derogatory document is 
placed in the employee's ofticial 
personnel file, the employee will have 
the right to respond to any such 
document and the employee's 

Page 9 of22 

Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state proposal 
January 27, 2015. 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 
(continued) 

Florida Sta te Fire Service Association 
Fire Ser vice Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotia tions as of J anuar y 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc es at mpasse: ' ' ' ' ' ' 
A . I 1 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 

Sta te Proposal Union Proposal C omments 
response will be attached to the file 
copy. 

(D) If a document has been 
determined to be invalid, such 
document shall be placed in an 
envelope, together with a letter of 
explanation. The outside of the 
envelope and all pages of the 
document shall be marked "VOID", 
and retained in the employee ' s 
personnel file. In the case of 
electronic records, a Personnel Action 
Request (PAR) that has been 
detem1ined to be invalid shall have a 
note added to the PAR fonn 
indicating that the action is ·'VOID". 

(E) Information in an employee' s 
official personnel file is public record 
pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, unless specifically exempted 
by state or federal law (such as 
protected health infonnation and 
social security numbers), and as such, 
must be provided to anyone desiring 
inspection or requesting copies in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Public Records Law. 

Page I 0 of22 



Article 
13 - Health and Welfare 

14 - State Vehicles and 
Vessels 

15 - Probationary Status 

16 - Vacant 

I 7 - Allowances and 
Reimbursements 

18 - Leaves of Absence 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27, 201 5 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = C/o.\·ed 

rttc es at mpasse: t ' ' ' ' ' 
A . I I 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State Progosal of January ?6, 2015: Union ProQosal of October 13, 2014: 
Section I - proposes the benefits and Section I (B) - Upon retirement Costing Estimate: 
the employee share of premiums for bargaining unit members· retirement Indeterminate 
the State Employees Group Health monthly premiums for fami ly health 
Self-Insurance Plan shall remain and/or single coverage health 
unchanged for fiscal Year 20 15-2016. insurance will be adj usted based on 

their monthly FRS pension payments. 
Single and/or family premiums for 
health coverage will not exceed 
established premium rates or 40% of 
the total pension payments to the 
retiree. 

State ProQosal of December 18, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27,2015. 
State Progosal ofDecember 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo s igned state proposal 

January27, 20 15. 
State ProJ2osal of December 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 18, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27,2015. 
State Progosal of December 18, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Section 2- Moves FSFSA Activities signed state proposal 
to Article 5. January 27, 2015. 

Page II of22 



Article 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit- State Personnel System 

C ur·rent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc es at mpasse: 
' . ' ' ' ' 

A . I l 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

19 - Outside Employment State Progosal ofDecember 18, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Substance status quo signed state proposal 

January 27, 20 l 5. 
20 - Training and State Pro12osal of December 18. 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Education Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27, 2015. 
2 1 - Committees State ProQosal of December 18, 20 l4: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state proposa l 
January 27, 2015. 

22 - Personal Property- State Pro12osal of December 18.2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Replacement and/or Substance status quo signed state proposal 
Reimbursement January 27, 2015. 
23 - Hours of Work and State Progosal of January 22. 20 I 5: Union ProQOSal of October 13. 2014: 
Overtime Section I (A)- provides the normal 

work period for bargaining unit 
employees shall be 40 hours 
consisting offive 8-hour days or four 
I 0-hour days except for the 
Department ofChildren and Fami lies 
(28-day, 192-hour period, 24 hours 
on-duty. 48 hours off-duty), and 
Department of Military Affair (28-
day, 2 12-hour period). 

Section 4 - Work Day 
(B) Proposes employees will not be 
required to work excess hours above 
the scheduled work day, except in the 
event of emergency response 

Page 12 of22 



Flo.-ida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Current O ne-Year Agreement Expires June 30,20 15 
Status of CoiJcctive Bargaining Negotiations as of J anuary 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - A U Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Clo.\·ed 

Article 
23 - Hours of Work and 
Overtime (continued) 

24 - On-Call Assignment, 
Call-Back and Residency 

A rticles at Impasse: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
State ProposHI Union Proposal Comments 

State Proposal of January 23,2015: 
Section 2(A) - proposes when 
approved as provided herein , an 
employee who is required to be on-

incidents, without prior planned 
written approval from the immediate 
supervisor. 

(C) Proposes any hours members arc 
required to work over the scheduled 
work clay hours for non-emergen~..:y 

response duties shall be deemed 
approved overtime by the supervisor. 

(0 ) Proposes any work performed on 
scheduled days off sbal! be deemed 
pre-approved overiime hours. except 
in the event these hours do not exceed 
contracted hours due to employee 
leave usage. 

(E) Proposes emergency response 
incident is defined as any incident 
that threatens public health, safet y, 
and welfare that requires immediate 
attention by responders. 

Page 13 of22 

Costing Estimate: 
Indetenninate 

Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state proposal 
January 27, 2015. 



Article 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit- State Personnel System 

Current O ne-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

I' IC e.\· a mpasse: , , , ' , , At' I tl 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

24 - On-Call Assignment, call shall be paid an on-call additive 
Call-Back and Residency in an amount of $ 1.00 per hour for 
(continued) the hour(s) such employee is required 

to be on-call pursuant to Rule 60L-
32.0012(2)(b), F.A.C. 
Section 2(8 )- proposes an employee 
who is required to be on-call on a 
Saturday, Sunday, or holiday as listed 
in section 110.117(1), F.S., shall be 
paid an on-call additive in an amount 
per hour equal to one-fourth of the 
statewide hourly minimum for the 
employee's paygrade for the hour(s) 
such employee is required to be on-
call pursuant to Rule 60L-
32.0012(2)(b), F.A.C. 

Section 4 - Florida Forest Service 
employees will reside within a radius 
of30 statute miles of their pennanent 
assigned headquarters; single engine 
and multi-engine reciprocal aircraft 
pilots/fire, and firefighter rotorcraft 
pilots hired afterJuly 1, 20 12, will 
reside within a radius of30 statute 
miles of the permanent location of 
their assigned aircraft. 

Page 14 of22 



Article 
25 - Wages 

Florida State Fire Ser vice Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent O ne-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargain ing Negotiations as of .January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Y car 20 I 5 - 16 S uccessor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
S/wded = Closed 

Article.,· at Impasse: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
State Proposal 

State Proposal of January 26. ?O 15 : 
Section I - General Pay Provisions 
Agencies· authority to provide 
increase to employc~s· base rate or 
pay and salary additives from 
ava ilab le agency funds sha ll be in 
accordance with this Agreement, state 
law, and the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 I o 
General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2- Deployment to a Facility 
or Area Closed due to Emergency 
In accordance wi th the authority 
provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-
20 I G Ger1'eral Appropriations Act. 
contingent on the ava ilabi lity of funds 
and at the Agency Head's di scretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant a 

Union Proposal 
Union Proposal ofOctober 13.20 14: 
Section I - General Wage Increase 
(A) Based on funding in the Fiscal 
Year 20 15-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act all employees in 
the unit shall receive a general wage 
increase in the amount specified by 
the legislature. 

(B) FSFSA requests a competitive 
pay analysis be completed by the 
agencies for all current posi tion 
classifications covered under this 
agreement , with like positions 
employed within the state, counties. 
and cities. Results of these studies 
shall be provided to the Speaker of 
the House and Senate President 
annually in the event of an impasse 
over Article 25 - Wages. 

Sections 2 - 5 status quo. with fiscal 
year changes only. 

Page l5 of 22 

Comments 

Costing Estimate: 
lndetenninate 



Article 
25 - Wages (continued) 

Florida State Fire Service Associa tion 
Fire Service Unit- State Personnel System 

C urrent O ne-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of C ollective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Yeu 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

r 1c e.\' n mpasse: . • . . • ..'), A ( I t I 6 7 9 13 23 2- 26 
Sta te Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

temporary special duties pay additive 
of up to 15 percent ofthe cmployee·s 
base rate of pay to each employee 
tcmpor:uil y deployed to a fac ility or 
area closed due to emergency 
conditions from another area of the 
stnte that is not closed. 

Section 3 - Cash Payout o f Annual 
Leave 
Permanent Career Service employees 
may be given the option of receiving 
up to 24 hours of unused annual leave 
each December in the form of a cash 
payout subject to. and in acco rdance 
with. section I I 0.2 19( 7), FloridJ 
S tatutes. 

Section 4 - Perfom1ance Pay 
In accordance with the authority 
provided in the f-iscal Year 20 IS-
20 16 General Appropriations Act, 
and from existing agency resources. 
cat:h agency is authorized to grant 
mt::rit pay increases based on the 
cmployee·s exemplary perf()rmance, 
as evidenced by a perfo rmance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to 
Rule 60L-35, Florida Admin istrati ve 

Page 16 of22 



Florida State Fire Set-vice Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bm·gaining Negotiations as of January 27, 1015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

25 - Wages (continued) Code. 

Section 5 - Savings Sharing Program 
An employee or groups of employees 
may be eligible for monetary awards 
for ideas or programs that result in a 
cost saving to the state, pursuant to 
section II 0. 1245( I), Florida Statutes. 

Section 6 - Discretionary Raises 
In accordan~.:e with the authori ty 
provided in the Fiscal Year 10 15-
10 16 General Appropriations Act , 
contingent on the availability of funds 
and at the Agency Head· s discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant 
compet itive pay adjustments to 
address retention, pay inequities, or 
other staffing issues. 

New Section 6 - Special Pay Issues 
To reduce increasing new employee 
turnover and agency training 
expenses to new employees, unit 
members shall receive a competitive 
pay adjustment of$1.500 to each 
cmployee·s June 30. 20 15 base rate 
of pay. 

New Section 7 - Hazard/ Physical 
Hardship Duty Pay Additive 
(A) When hazardous situations or 
phy ica l hardships exist. bargaining 
unit members will receive an 
additional hourly pay adjustment of 
no less than I 0% of hourl y base rate 
per hour when performing such 
duties. Hazardous duty is defined as 
duty perfonncd under circumstances 
which could result in serious injury or 

Page 17 of22 

Costing Estimate: $985.150 

Costing Estimate: 
Indeterminate 



Florida State Fire Se•·vice Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of J anuary 27, 2015 

Fiscal Yea•· 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Article.\· atlmpa~se: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

25 - Wages (continued) death. Duty involving a physical 
hardship is duty that may not in itself 
be hazardou . but could cause 
extreme physical discomfo1t or 
distress and is not adequately 
alleviated by protective or mechanical 
devices or procedures in place. 

New Section 8 - Competitive Area 
Differentia l (CAD) 
(A) Due to high turnover rate and to 
pay competitive market salaries tor 
similar job dutie , the FSFSA 
requests funding tor critical 
competitive area differential in those 
areas agencies have identified high 
turnover and retention deficiencies. 

(B) FSFSA request existing 
competi ti ve area differentials be 
reviewed and increased accordingly 
to adjust for competitive ··tike .. 
positions. 

New Section 9- Shift DifTerential 
(A) Bargaining unit membet·s will 
receive a shift differenti al of 5% of 
their base salary pay per hour tor 
evening shift work in excess of the 

Page 18 of22 

Costing Estimate: 
1 ndeterm i nate 

Costing Estimate: 
lndetem1inate 



Florida State Fire Ser vice Association 
Fire Ser vice Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of J anuary 27,20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor· Agreement Negotiations- All Ar·ticles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at lmpas.'l·e: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25,26 
Article State Proposal Union ProposaJ Comments 

25 - Wages (continued) nom1al work day. 
(B) Bargaining unit members will 
receive a sh ift differential of 10% of 
their base salary pay per hour for 
midnight shiti work in excess of the 
nom1al work day. 

(C) Evening shift hours are defined 
as those hours t1·om ( 1800) 6 PM to 
(2400) Midnight. Midnight shift 
hours are defined as those hours from 
(000 I) midnight to (0600) 6 AM. 

(D) Shift differentials will not apply 
to those employees normally 
scheduled evening and midnight 
hours. Shift changes will be in 
accordance to Artide 23, Section 
2(8). 

New Section I 0 - Trainer pay 
additive 
(A) Bargaining unit members 
assigned duties to provide on the job 
or dassroom training to co-workers 
shall receive a I 0% salary pay 
additive provided the training is part 
of an agency approved required 
training program and that such duties 

Page 19 of22 

Costing Estimate: 
lndetenninate 



Flo.-ida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of Januar·y 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A rticles at/mpu . .,·se: 6, 7, 9, 13, 23, 25, 26 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

25 - Wages (continued) are not part of the cus tomari ly 
assigm::d duties o f the position 
classification. 

26 - Vacant State Proposal of January 22, 20 15: 
Status quo 

Union Proposal o f October 13, 20 14: 
Pro posed as Promotional Step Pay 
Plan System arti cle. 
(A) All agencies employing unit 
personnl!l will establi sh a promotional 
step system tor each classification 
consisting of a minimum of (4 ) four 
promotional s tep opportunities for 
said posit ions. 

(B) Pro mo tional step requirements 
will be based on but not lim itcd to 
time in serv ice, training cettifi catio ns, 
perfo rmance eva luatio ns, and 
employee qualifi cati ons. 

(C) Promotional steps shall be 
attainable, achievable, and clearly 
defined s teps on what employee 
requirements are needed to promote 
within the organization . 

( 0 ) T his system 's intent is to 
increase employee mo rale, 

Page 20 of12 

Costing Estimate: 
[ndeterminate 



Article 
26 - Vacant (continued) 

27 - Uniforms 

28 - Vacant 

29 - Vacant 

30 - Vacant 

31 - Management Rights 

32 - Entire Agreement 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Personnel System 

Cur rent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of January 27, 20 I 5 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Cfm.;ed 

rite es at mpasse: , , , . , , , A . I 1 6 7 9 1 ~ 23 25 26 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

motivation, and commitment to 
improvement in the workplace. 

(E) Promotional steps shall be based 
on completion of requirements for 
promotions and shall not be limited to 
position availabi lity or funding. 
Agencies wil l utilize existing pay 
bands· and pay grades· position 
funding to implement this system . 

State Progosal of December 18, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27,2015. 
State Progosal ofDecember 18.2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 18, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January27, 2015. 
State Progosal ofDecember 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January27, 2015. 
State Progosal ofDecember 18,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January27, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 18,2014: Tentatively abtreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January 27, 2015. 

Page 2 1 of22 



Article 
33 - Savings Clause 

34 - Duration 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
Fire Service Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Current One-Year Agr eement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negot iations as of January 27, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rite e!i ttl mpasse: 
' ' ' 

, , ' 
A . I I 6 7 9 13 23 25 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State ProQosal of December 182 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state proposal 

January27, 20 15. 
State ProQosal of December 18 ~ 2014: Tentati vely agreed to and 
Proposes a 1-year agreement to expire signed state proposal 
June 30, 2016. January 27,2015. 

Page 22 of22 





SECTION l -General Pay Provisions 

Article 25 
WAGES 

AFSCME Fl01ida Council 79 
State Proposal - A11icle 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 26, 201 5 

Page I of I 

Agencies ' authority to provide increases to employees- base rate or pay ancl sa lary 
additives from available agency fund s shall be in accordance witJ1 this Agreement, state law, and 
the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General Appro ptiations Act. 

SECTION 2 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

[n accordance with the autho rity p rovided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the avail ability of funds and at the Agency Head 's discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to I 5 percent of 
the employee's base rate of pay to each employee temporarily dep loyed to a fac ility or area 
closed due to emergency conditions tl·om another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 3 -Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Pem1anent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December in the form of a cash payout subject to. and in accordance 
with. section I I 0.2 19(7). Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 4- Performance Pay 

In acco rdance wi th the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-16 General 
Appropriat ions Act, and from existing agency resources, each agency is auth01ized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee's exemp lary performance. as evidenced by a performance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 5 - Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or gro ups of employees may be eligib le tor monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 11 0. 1245( l ), Florida 
Statutes . 

SECTION 6- Discretiouary Raises 

In accordance with the authmity provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-16 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head ' s d iscretion. 
each agency is authori zed to grant competiti ve pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other stafti ng issues. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State ' s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Foa· A FSCME Florida Council 79 

Hector Ramos 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 





AFSCME Council 79 Union Proposal -Article 25 January 22, 2015 

Article 25 - WAGES 
SECTION 1 - General Pay Provisions 

(A) Pay sftell ~e iB aee&Fda&ee will! tile fi9eel Year 29 13 14 GeeeraJ Api"'epriatiees Aet. 

Increa.ses to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state law and the Fiscal ¥eer: 
2913 14 2015 -2016 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION l- General Wage Increase for Fiscal Year 2013-14 

(A) Effective October 1, 2015, full-time eligible employees with a ~ese ftlte efpay af$49,000 er less 
8B ~eptember 30, ~913, shall receive an annual competitive pay adjustment of12%. 

Bffeeli'le Oeteber l, 2913, full time eligible epleyees with a base :Fate efpaygNater tM& $40,090 eo 
September 39, 2013., s.hall Peeeive e aBflWtl eempet:itive JNlY a8jt189!teat ef $15099; JM18"1ided llewe\o'er, iB 
Re iBotaBee sliaii&B empleyee's base Pate efpey be iBete89M te 8B 8ftll:\lel emeuet Jess dJSB $41,400. 

(B) References to "eligible" employees refer to employees who are, at a minimum, meeting the 
required performance standards, if applicable. If an ineligible employee achieves performance standards 
subsequent to the salary increase implementation date but on or before the end of the fiscal year, the 
employee may receive an increase; however, such increase shall be effective on the date the employee 
becomes eligible but not retroactively. The competitive pay adjustment shall be pro-rated based on the 
full-time equivalency of the employee's position. 

SECTION~ SpeeW Pey he•• 

The state agf98S te implemeet P'iseel Yeat 2013 14 Speeial Pay lsstie& iYaEied ift Speeifie AJ'pref!fieliee 
19SIM: iB aeeerdaaee witfi see1:ioa 8(2)(h) efll!e FiBeel Year 2913 14 Ge&ef&l Apprepliatiens Aet 
BeeR ageaey is eathetti!ee te previee titserette&al}' eue time hap SHJB heRus aw81'89 efSli9Q,1ess 
applieHie taMes, te eligible empleyees iB ertier te reeRJit, 1etam asd NW8Al ~ty pMl8BBel &9 pm¥ided 
in see&ee 119. J ~45(2), FlaAda ~- 8a&US e'Wftftis wiY ~e pre Nteti eased ea the fuU tiate 
eEf\*WB:IeBS¥ eftfte empleyee's pesftiea aad liisiFi~uteti ifl JUDe 2914. 

SECTION (4)--3- Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-16 General Appropriations Act, and 
contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head's discretion, each agency is authorized to 
grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of the employee's base rate of pay to 
each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area closed due to emergency conditions from 
another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION (6) 4- Cub Payout of AJlllual Leave 

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours of unused 
annual leave each December in the fonn of a cash payout subject to, and m accordance with, section 
110.219{7), Florida Statutes. 
For the State For AFSCME Council 79 

Michael Mattimore Date Jeanette Wynn Date 



AFSCME Council 79 Union Proposal - Article 25 January 22, 2015 

SECTION(') S-Performance Pay 

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's exemplary performance, 
as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-351 Florida Adminlstrative 
Code. 

SECI'ION ~ 6 -SaviDp Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or programs that 
result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 11 0.1245(1 ), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 7 -Competitive Area DefereDtial 

(n accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 201 5-16 General Appropriations Act, 
contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head's discretion, each agency is authorized to 
grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention. pay inequities, or other staffing issues. 

SECflON 8-Cost of Living Adjustment 

Effective January 1, 2016, full-time eligible employees shall receive a cost of living adjustment reflecting 
the social security COLA increase or 2%, whichever is higher, to their base rate of pay. 

For the State For AFSCMB Council 79 

Michael Matti.more Date Jeanette Wynn Date 
2 





AFSCME Unit CBU 01,02J03, and 05 Proposals with Fiscal Impact 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Union/Issue Estimated Cost Comments 

Article 18 (8): Provides for unused Special 
Compensatory leave credits that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which Indeterminate 
the leave is credited shall be paid to the 
employee. 

Article 24(1 ): Provides an employee who is 
required to be on-call on a Saturday, Sunday or 
holiday as listed in section 11 0.117, Florida 

Indeterminate 
Statutes, will be compensated by payment of a fee 
in an amount equal to one-fourth of the 
employee's hourly pay. 

Article 25(1 ): Provides for a 12% increases in pay 
Calculation is based on a 12% increase on filled positions 

$237.5 M including benefits (53,888 FTE). LAS/PBS December 2014 
for all unit members 

data was the source for the calculation. 

Article 25(3): Provides an additional temporary 
special duties pay additive up to 15% of the 
employees base rate for employees required to Indeterminate 
work during a period of time in an area closed due 
to emergency conditions. 

Article 25(8):Provides effective January 1, 2016, 
full-time eligible employees shall receive a cost of Calculation is based on a 2% increase on filled positions 
living adjustment reflecting the social security $39.6 M including benefits (53,888 FTE). LAS/PBS December 2014 
COLA increase or 2%, whichever is higher, to data was the source for the calculation . 
their base rate of pay. 

Page 1 of 1 





Article 
1 - Recognition 

2- Vacant 

3 - Vacant 

4- No Discrimination 

5 - Union Activities and 
Employee Representation 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closed 
rite eat mpasse: A . I I 25 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
State Progosal ofJanuary 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/15. 
State Progosal of January 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/15. 
State Progosal ofJanuary 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27115. 
State Progosal of January 8, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of January 26, 2015: Union Progosal of January 22, 2015: Agreed to and signed state 's 
Section 2(B)(3)- A Steward, I /26/15 proposal on 1 /28/15. 
authorized by the Union to represent 
employees in one or more of the 
collective bargaining units covered by 
this contract, shall be allowed to 
represent an employee in any such 
designated collective bargaining unit 
covered by this Contract. 

Section 3(E)- Posting materials may Section 3(E) - Materials to be posted 
be sent by the Union to Shop Stewards on Union bulletin boards may be sent 
to their work sites via work email by the Union to Shop Stewards to their 
addresses for printing and posting on work sites via their work e-mail 
authorized bulletin boards. Such address. 
printing shall be done in black and 
white format only and shall be done in 
a reasonable manner to accommodate 
work unit operations. 

Page I of 15 



Article 
5 - Union Activities and 
Employee Representation 
(continued) 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and C lerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 

Shaded = Closed 
r 1c e a mpasse: A t' I t I 25 

Sta te Proposals Union Proposals 
Section 4 - Quarterl y report of Section 4(A) - Union requests for 
employee information which rnay personnel data must be made by 
contain employee information exempt President of AFSCME Counci l 79. 
fi·om public access under section 
119.071 (4), F.S. but not designated as 
confidential, is provided at no cost to 
Union President for the sole and 
exclusive use of the union in carrying 
out its role as certified bargaining agent 
(eliminates need for separate MOA); 
state's policy is to protect employee 
data exempt from public access under 
119.071(4), F.S. 

Section 6(C) - provides unjon access to 
new bargaining unit employees during 
new employee orientation process. 

Section 7(0) - Consultations held 
during regular work hours of a 
participant are treated as time worked. 

Section 8 - Moves administrative leave Section 8- Union may designate 
use for negotiations fi·om Article 18 - employees to serve as Negotiation 
Leaves of Absence; the total number of Committee, not to exceed 1 per 2,000 
employees designated by the union covered employees. 
shall not exceed one employee for each 
2,000 covered employees. 

Page 2 of 15 

C omments 



Article 
5 - Union Activities and 
Employee Representation 
(continued) 

6 - Grievance Procedure 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administra tive and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent O ne-Year Agreement Expi res June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Clo ... ;ed 
rile eat mpasse: A . I 1 25 

State Proposals Union Proposals 
Section 9 - Moves personal leave use 
for attending union activities from 
Article 18 - Leaves of Absence. 

Comments 

State Progosal of Januarx 26, 2015: Union Progosal of January 22, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state · s 
Section 2(G)- resolution of a Section 2(G) - resolution of a 1126/15 proposal on 1/28/ 15. 
grievance prior to arbitration may grievance prior to arbitration may 
establi sh precedent if stipulated in the establ ish precedent if stipulated in the 
settlement agreement and approved by settlement agreement. 
OMS. 

Section 3(G)(3)(b) Step 2: replace Section 3(G)(3) (b) - Step 2: replace 
.. may'' with .. shalr' to require meeting ·'may .. with .. shall' ' to require meeting 
of pat1ies at step 2. at step 2. 

Section 3(G)(5)- When the parties 
agree to mediate a grievance, the 
scheduled date for the arbitration 
hearing provided in section (6)(d) may 

Page 3 of 15 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Ser vices, Professional, O pera tional Services, and Administr at ive and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent O ne-Year Agreement Expires J une 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of Febr uary 3, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc e at mpasse: A . I I 25 

Sta te Proposals Union Proposals 
be extended by mutual agreement 
beyond five months. 

Section 3(G)(6)(f) - At least fifteen 
days before the scheduled date of the 
arbitration hearing, the parties shall file 
with the arbitrator, and provide to each 
other, a list ofwitnesses to be called at 
the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, 
and a brief statement of the material 
facts or matters relevant to the 
grievance about which each witness 
will testify. A party may file a written 
request with the arbitrator, with a 
concurrent copy to the other party, for 
an exception to the filing time limits for 
good cause. If such exception is 
granted, the other party may request 
that the hearing be rescheduled if 
necessary for the party to respond to 
the late filed witness information. 

New Section 5 - Exceptions: 
The Union shall have the right to bring 
a class action grievance on behalf of 
employees in its own name concerning 
disputes relating to the interpretation or 
application of this Agreement. Such 
grievance shall not include disciplinary 

Page 4 of 15 

Comments 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

7 - Discipline 

AFSCME Flor id a Council 79 
Human Services, Professiona l, O perational Ser vices, and Administrat ive and C lerical Units 

State Per sonnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bar gaining as of Feb ruary 3, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closet/ 
rttc e a mpasse: A . I t I 25 

State Proposals Union Proposals 
actions taken against any employee. 
The Union·s e lection to proceed under 
this Article shall preclude it from 
proceeding in another fo rum on the 
same issue. The class action grievance 
fo rm shall identify the specifi c group 
(i.e., employees' job class ilication(s), 
work unit(s), institution(s), etc.) 
adversely impacted by the dispute 
relating to the interpretation or 
application ofthe Agreement. Such 
grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of 
this procedure, in accordance with the 
provisions set forth herein, within 15 
days ofthe occurrence of the event 
giving ri se to the grievance. 

Comments 

State Progosal ofJanuar:i 82 20 15: Union Progosal of January 302 20 15: Agreed to and signed state ' s 
Re-propose FY 2014-15 Article: proposal on 2/3/ 15. 

Section 2- proposes employee receive 
notice of appealable disciplinary action 

j 

at least I 0 calendar days prior to the 
date the action is to be taken subject to 
section II 0.227(5)(a), F.S. 

Page 5 of 15 



Article 
7 - Discipline 
(continued) 

AFSCM E Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions - All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closed 
A . l I 25 rttc e at mpas ... ·e: 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
Section 3- Section 3 (A) - An employee who has Section 3(A) - Union proposal is 

(A) An employee who has not not attained permanent status in the contrary to statute that requires 
attained permanent status in his ca reer service system shall not have employee to have permanent status 
cutTent position shall not have access to the grievance procedure in in his current position ( 11 0.217(2), 
access to the grievance Article 6 when disciplined. F.S.). 
procedure in Article 6 when 
disciplined. 

(B) Letters of counseling or 
counseling notices are not 
discipline and are not grievable; 
however may be used at an 
administrative hearing 
involving an employee's 
discipline to demonstrate the 
employee was on notice of the 
performance deficiencies or 
conduct concerns; an employee 
may respond in writing to 
letters of counseling or 
counseling notices within 60 
calendar days of receipt; a copy 
ofthe response will be filing in 
the employee·s official 
personnel file. 

(C) Oral reptimands are not 
grievable; written reprimands 
are final and binding at Step 2; 
an employee may respond in 
writing to oral or written 

Page 6 of 15 



Article 
7 - Discipline 
(continued) 

8 - Workforce Reduction 

AFSCM E Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Opera tional Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Per sonnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Aga·eement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

r rc e at mpasse: A 1· I I 25 
State Proposals Union Proposa ls Comments 

reprimands within 60 calendar 
days of receipt; a copy of the 
response will be fi led in the 
employee· s official personnel 
fi le. 

(D) An employee with permanent (D) An employee who has attained Section 3(D)- Union proposal is 
status in his cun·ent position permanent status may grieve a contrary to statute that requires 
may grieve a reduction in base reduction in base pay, involuntary employee to have permanent status 
pay, suspension, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, in his current position 
transfer over 50 miles by suspension, demotion, or dismissal (110.227(5)(a), F.S.). 
highway, demotion, or through the Arbitration Step, without 
dismissal, through the review at Step 3, in accordance with 
Arbitration Step, without the grievance procedure in Article 6 of 
review at Step 3, in accordance this contract. In the alternative, such 
with the grievance procedure in actions may be appealed to the Public 
Article 6; in the alternati ve, Employees Relations Commission 
such actions may be appealed under the provision of section 
to PERC under the provisions I I 0.227(5) and (6) Florida Statutes. 
of section l l 0.227(5) and (6), 
F.S. 

State Progosal of January 8, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state · s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 

Page 7 of 15 



Article 
9 - Vacant 

I 0 - Vacant 

II - Classification 
Review 

12 - Personnel Records 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc e at mpasse: A . I I 25 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
State Progosal of January 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/IS. 
State Progosal of January 8, 20 IS: Agreed to and signed state · s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of Januar:t 8, 20 IS: Union Progosal of Janu!!a 30, 20 1S: Agreed to and signed state's 
Section I (A) - Provides specific proposal on 2/3/ IS. 
broadband terminology for 
classification reviews. 

Section I (B) - The written decision of 
the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or designee shall 
be fi nal and binding on all parties. 

Section 2 - State employees subject to 
work load quotas shall not have their 
quotas increased arbitrarily. In no 
event shall state employees be 
disciplined for failure to meet increased 
work load quotas for the first 6 months 
in which the new quotas are 
implemented. 

State Progosal of January 8, 20 IS: Agreed to and signed state·s 
(A) Infonnation in an employee ' s proposal on I /2 7/IS. 
official personnel file may be 
maintained in electronic as well as 
paper fonn. 

Page 8 of IS 



Ar ticle 
12 - Personnel Records 
(continued) 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Opera tional Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Per sonnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 20 I 5 

Sta tus of Collective Bargaining as of Febr uary 3, 20 IS 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions - All Articles Open for Negotia tion 

S haded = Closed 
rttc eat mpasse: A . I l 25 

State Proposals Union Proposals 
(B) Tenninology changed from 
derogatory '·material'' to "document," 
and employee "answer" to "response:' 

(D) Where the Agency Head or 
designee, the Public Employees 
Relations Commission, the courts, an 
arbih·ator, or other statutory authot;ty 
determines that a document in the 
personnel file is invalid, the document 
shall be placed in an envelope, together 
with an explanation, the outside of the 
envelope and all pages of the document 
marked "VOID", and retained in the 
employee' s personnel file as specified 
in the State of Florida General Records 
Schedule GS l-S L for State and Local 
Government Records, as promulgated 
by the Department of State. In the case 
of electronic records, a Personnel 
Action Request (PAR) that has been 
determined to be void shall have a note 
added to the PAR fotm indicating that 
the action is "YOlO". 

(E) lnformation in an employee ' s 
official personnel file is public record 
pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, unless specifically exempted 

Page 9 of 15 

Comments 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 
(continued) 

13 - Health and Safety 

14 - Performance Review 

15 - Length of Service 
Preference 
16 - Vacant 

17 - Vacant 

18 - Leaves of Absence, 
Hours of Work, Disability 
Leave 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expir es June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 20 I 5 
Fiscal Year 20 I 5-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded= Closed 
rttc eat mpasse: A . I I 25 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
by state or federal law (such as 
protected health information and social 
security numbers), and as such, must be 
provided to anyone desiring inspection 
or requesting copies in accordance with 
the provisions of the Public Records 
Law. 
State Progosal ofJanuarx 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 

State Progosal of Januarx 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/15. 
State Progosal of Januarx 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state· s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of Januarx 8, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of Januarx 8, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/15. 
State Progosal of Januarx 8, 20 15: Union Progosal of Januarx 30, 2015: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Re-propose FY 14-15 Article: proposal on 2/3/15. 

Section 2 - Deletes language that the 
Union agrees to support changes in 
Rule 60L-34, F.A.C. that may be 
required for the state to be in 
compliance with the FLSA as it is 
applied to public employees. 

Page 10 of 15 



Article 
18 - Leaves of Absence, 
Hours of Work, Disability 
Leave 
(continued) 

19 - Replacement of 
Personal Property 
20 - Training 

2 1 - Compensation for 
Temporary Special Duty 
in a Higher Position 
22 - Vacant 

23 - Vacant 

24 - On-Call Assignment 
and Call Back 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = C/o .... ·ed 

rflc e at mpasse: A . I 1 25 
State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 

Sections 5 and 6- Moves negotiations 
committee and union activities sections 
to Article 5. 

Section 8 - should an employee Costing Estimate: 
demonstrate through People First that Indeterminate 
use of Special Compensatory Leave 
was denied, such leave time shall be 
converted to annual leave instead of 
fotfeited. 

State Pro12osal of Januar~ 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27115. 
State ProQosal of January 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on I /2 711 5. 
State Pro12osal of January 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 

State ProQosal of Januar~ 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state ' s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State PrOQOSal of Januar~ 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state · s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27115. 
State Pro12osal of Januar~ 26, 2015: Union ProQosal of January 22, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state's 
Section I (C) - Revises language to Section I (C)(2) - Employees on call on 1 /26/15 proposal on I /29115. 
incorporate and reference applicable a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday will be 
ru le and statute. compensated by payment of a fee in an Costing Estimate: 

amount equal to one-fourth of the Indeterminate 
employee's hourly pay for the period 
such employee is required to be 
available. 

Page II of 15 



Article 
25 - W ages 

Af SCME f lorida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
Cur rent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of february 3, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Sluu/ed = Closed 
A rticle at Tmpas.,·e: 25 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
S ta te Proposal o f January 26. 20 15: Un ion Proposal of January 22, 20 15: 
Sectio n I - General Pay Provis ions 
Agencies · authority to provide 
increases to employees · bas~ rate of 
pay and salary additi ves fro m available 
agency funds shall be in accordance 
w ith this Agreement, s ta te law, and the 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Gencrnl 
Appro priations Act. 

Section 2- Deployment to a Facility or 
A rea Closed due to Emergency 
In accordance with the aut hority 
provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 
General Appropriatio ns Act, contingent 
on the availability of funds and at the 
Agency Head' s di sc re tion, each agency 
is authorized to grant a temporary 
special duti es pay additi ve of up to 15 
pe rcent of the employee's base rate o r 

Section I - General Pay Provis ions 
Increases to base rate of pay and salary 
addi tive shall be in accordance with 
state law and the Fisca l Year 2015-
20 16 General Appropriations Act. 

(New) Section 2 - General Wage 
Lncrcasc: Effective October I , 20 15. 
full-time eligible employees shall 
receivc an annual t:ompet itive pay 
adjustment o f 12%. 

Section 3 - Deployment to a Facility or 
Area Closed clue to Emergency 
Same as . tate' s Proposal Section 2 

Page 12 of I 5 

Un ion proposal re incorporates 
Section 2 from Fiscal Year 20 13-
14 agreement - General Wage 
Increase for Fisca l Y car 20 13- 14 

Costing Estimate: $237.5 M 



Article 
25 - Wages 
(continued) 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Sh{lded = Closet! 

rftc e at mpas.\e: A . I 1 25 
State Proposals Union Proposals 

pay to each employee temporarily 
deployed to a facility or area closed due 
to emergency conditions from another 
area of the state that is not closed. 

Section 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Section 4 - Cash Payout of Annual 
Leave Leave 
Permanent Career Service employees Same as State 's proposal Section 3 
may be given the option of receiving up 
to 24 hours of unused annual leave 
each December in the torm of a cash 
payout subject to. and in accordance 
with, section I I 0.219(7). Florida 
Statutes. 

Section 4 - Performance Pay Section 5 - Performance Pay 
In accordance with the authority Same as State's proposal Section 4 
provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-20 16 
General Appropriations Act. and !Tom 
existing agency resources, each agency 
is authorized to grant merit pay 
im:n.:ases based on the employee ·s 
exemplary perfom1ance, as evidenced 
by a pcrfonnance evaluation conducted 
pursuant to Rule 60L-35. Florida 
Administrative Code. 

Page 13 of 15 

Comments 



Article 
15 - Wages 
(continued) 

26 - Quality Service 
Through Partnership 

AFSCM E Florida Council 79 
Human Ser vices, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3. 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closed 
Article at flnpas .... ·e: 25 

State Proposals Union ProposaJs Comments 
Section 5 - Savings Sharing Program 
An employee or groups of employees 
may be el igible for monetary awards 
tor ideas or programs that result in a 
cost saving to the state, pursuant to 
section II 0.1 245( 1 ). Florida Statutes. 

Section 6 - Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority 
provided in the Fiscal Y car 1015-20 16 
General Appropriation Act. contingent 
on the ava ilabili ty of fu nds and at the 
Agency Head's di scretion. each agency 
is authorized to grant competitive pay 
adjustments to address retention. pay 
inequities. or other staffing issues. 

State Proposal of January 8. 201 5: 
Status quo 

Section 6 - Savings Sharing Program 
Same as State' s proposal Section 5 

Section 7 - Competitive Area 
Differential 
Same as Statc·s proposal Se<.:tion 6 

Section 8 - Cost of living Adjustment Costing Estimate: $39.6 M 
Effective January I , 20 16, full -ti me 
eligible employees shall receive a cost 
of living adjustment refl ecting the 
social security cost ofliving allowance 
increase or 2%, whichever is higher, to 
their base rate of pay. 

Agreed to and signed state · s 
proposal on 1/27/ 15. 

Page 14 of 15 



Article 
27 - Health Insurance 

28 - Travel Expenses 

29 - No Strike 

30- Vacant 

31 - Management Rights 

32 - Entire Agreement 

33- Savings Clause 

34 - Duration 

AFSCME Florida Council 79 
Human Services, Professional, Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units 

State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 3, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rite e at mpasse: A . I I 25 
State Proposals Union Proposals C omments 

State Progosal of January 26~ 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
The benefits and the employee share of 1/26/ 15 proposal on l/28115. 
premiums for the State Employees 
Group Health Self-Insurance Plan shall 
remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 
20 15-2016. 

State Progosal ofJanuary 8, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/15. 
State Progosal of January 8~ 20 15: Agreed to and signed state 's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of Januat:y 8, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of Januan:: 8~ 20 15: Agreed to and signed state· s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of January 8, 20 15: Agreed to and signed state· s 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/15. 
State Progosal of January 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/27/ 15. 
State Progosal of Januan:: 8, 2015: Agreed to and signed state's 
Proposes a 1-year agreement to expire 1 /26/ 15 proposal on l /28/15. 
June 30, 20 16. 

Page 15 of 15 



PBA - Special 
Agent Unit 



Article 23 

PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 (Statlts Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 15, 2014 

Page 1 of 3 

WORKOA Y, \VORKWEEK ANO OVE RT IME 

SECTION 1 - Overtime 

(A) The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours. 

(B) Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be 
recognized in accordance with Rule 60L-34, Flo1ida Admi nistrative Code; provided, however, 
that when an emergency is declared by the Govemor and funds are availab le, employees who are 
assigned to the emergency aJea described in the Governor"s Executive Order shall be subject to a 
40 hour workweek while so assigned. The state and the Association will cooperate to secure 
funds fo r the payment of overtime to unit employees in the situation descr.ibed herein. 

(C) The Association agrees to support those changes in Chapter 60L-34. Flo1ida 
Administrative Code that may be required in order tor the state to be in compliance with the Fair 
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees. 

(D) rf the agency has a plan approved in advance by the OMS, FLSA compensatory 
leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as described below: 

An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved 
extended period if mutually agreed to by the employee and superviSM, waive payment for 
overtime and have the ove11ime hours credited to FLSA compensatory leave. If such approved 
election is made, the overtime hours will be credited as FLSA compensatmy leave credits at the 
rate of one and one-half hours for each hour of ovetiime worked. An employee will on ly be 
permitted to accumulate a maximum of 80 hours of FLSA compensatory leave credits which 
may be taken in any increments if agreed to by the employee and the supervisor. If mutual 
agreement is not reached, the superv isor may, with a minimum of five workdays notice, require 
the employee to use such leave credits at any time in increments of full work days. However, all 
unused FLSA compensatory leave credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30 
shall be paid for at the employee's straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Rule 60L-
34. Florida Administrative Code. An employee who separates from the Career Service or moves 
to another state agency shall be paid for all unused FLSA compensatory leave in accordance with 
the above. 

For· the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene ··Har· Johnson 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 15, 2014 

Page 2 of.3 

SECTION 2- \ Vorkday 

(A) The agency shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more 
segments without th e mutual agreement of the employee and the employer. 

(B) Where employees are required to work extra hours during an approved extended 
work period. the stat e will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight hour 
increments. provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period. 

SECTION 3- Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer 

Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full access to the benefits. of the 
employing agency's existing s ick leave pool and sick leave transter plan. 

SECTION 4- Special Compensatory Leave 

(A) Special Co mpensatory Leave is defined as leave that is earned as a result ofhours 
worked on a holiday, extra hours worked during an established work week which contains a 
holiday. or extra hours worked w hen a faci lity is closed under emergency conditions as provided 
in Rul e 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

(B) Use of Special Compensatory Leave: 

(I) When an employee earns special compensatory leave credits. the 
employee shall have 60 calendar days in w hich to use the earned special compensatory leave 
time. 

(2) ff the employee fails to use the earn ed special compensatory leave during 
the 60 day period. the supervisor shall schedule the employee to use the leave. 

(3) An employee who has a leave balance in excess of 240 hours shall be 
required to use a minimum of \20 hours of the employee·s earned special compensatory leave 
each calendar year or the amount necessary to bring the employee's specia l compensatory leave 
balance to 240 hours, whichever is less, prior to using any annual leave credits. 

(4) An employee who begins employment at1er July I , 20 13 shall only be 
pern1itted to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave credits. 

For the State For tbc PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. Har· .Johnson 
State · s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 15, 2014 

Page 3 of3 

notwithstanding any additional hours worked on a holiday. during the established work week 
containing a holiday, or during the closure of a facility during emergency conditjons. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene ··I tal '" Johnson 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



Article 24 

PEA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal - A1ticle 24 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 26, 2015 

Page 1 of 1 

ON-CALL, CALL-BACK and COURT APPEARANCES 

SECTION I -On-Call 

On-call assignment shall be as defined in Rule 60L-32. florida Administrative Code. 
Based on the availability of funds, employees an employee who are is required to be on-call shall 
be compensated by payment of a fee paid an on-call additive in an amount of not less than one 
dollar ($1.00) per hour for each hour the hoUJ·(s) the employee is required to be available on-call 
pursuant to Rule 60L-32.0012(2)(h), F.A.C. Employees An employee who are is required to be 
on-call on a Saturday, Sunday and/or a holiday as listed in section 11 0.117il}. Florida Statutes, 
will be compensated by payment of a fee shall be paid an on-call additive in an amount per hour 
equal to one-fourth of the statewide hourlv minimum for the employee's el-a$ paygrade for eaefi 
eight hour period the hour(s) the employee is required to be a't·ailable on-call pursuant to Rule 
60L-32.0012(2)(b), F.A.C. 

SECTION 2- Call-Back 

An employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with the employee's scheduled 
hours of work shall be credited for at:tual time worked or a minimum of two hours. whichever is 
greater. 

SECTION 3- Court Appearances 

If an employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related COlllt case, not 
during the employee· s regularly assigned work hours, the employee shall be credited tor actual 
time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half hours, whichever is greater. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene '·Hal'· Johnson 
State·s Chief Labor Negot iator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



SECTION 1 - General Pay Provisions 

Article 25 
WAGES 

PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal - A1iicle 15 

Fiscal Year 201 5- 16 
January 26, 20 15 

Page I of:? 

Agencies· authority to provide increases to em ployees· base rate of pay and salary 
additi ves ti·om available agency funds shall be in accordance with this Agreement, state law. and 
the Fiscal Year 201 5-20 16 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2- Deployment to a Facility o.- Area Closed due to E mergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Y car 20 15-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the avail ability of fund s and at the di scretio n of the Agency 
Head, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additi ve of up to 15 
percent of the employee·s base rate ofpay to each employee temporari ly deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditio ns from another area of the st ate that is not closed. 

SECTION 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Permanent Career Serv ice employees may be g iven the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December in the form of a cash payout subject to. and in ac0ordance 
with, section II 0.1 19(7), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 4 - Perfo.-mance Pay 

In accordance wi th the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act, and from existing agency resources. each agency is authorized to grant metit 
pay increases based on U1e employee·s exemplary perfonnance. as evidenced by a pertonnance 
eva luation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 5 - Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees m ay be eligible for monetary awards tor ideas or 
program s that resu lt in a cost saving to the state. pursuant to section ll 0 .1245(1 ), Florida 
Statutes. 

Fo.- tbc State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. l lal" Johnson 
State 's Chief Labor Negot iator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



SECTION 6- Discretionary Raises 

PBNSpecial Agent Unit 
State Proposal - A11icle 25 

Fiscal. Year 2015-16 
January 26, 2015 

Page 2 of1 

[n accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the discretion of the Agency 
Head, each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staffing issues. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene ·'Hal .. Johnson 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel ru1d Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 





Special Agents Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 23- Houn of Work 
1-15-15 

*Article 23, Section 4, New Subsection (e): 

I (t) Special Compensatory Leave Pavment Option 

On or after July 1. 2015. contingent on the availability of funds and at the 
Agency's Head's discretion. each agency is authorized to enter into negotiations with 
PBA providing payment to an employee for special compensatory leave earned as 
provided for in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code or Section QfALoftbis Article. i.(.( Pr) 
The terms of such agreement shall be set forth in a memorandum ef agreement mutually 
agreed to by the Agency and PBA 

:P 
•other sections of Article)% remain unchanged from current language 



Special Agent& Unit 

PBA Proposal -Article 24 - Court Appurances 
1-lS-15 

• Article 24~ Sections 2 and 3: 

Section 2 - Call:-Back 

WORKING 
DRAFT 

An employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with the employee's 
scheduled work hours shall be credited for actual time worked or a minimum oftw&-four 
hours, whichever is greater. 

Section 3 - Court Appearances 

If an employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related court case, not 
during the employee's regularly assigned work hours, the employee shall be credited for 
actual time worked, or a minimum of two &ftd ooe holfthree hours, whichever is greater. 

•other sections of Article 24 remain unchanged from cUITent language 



Special Agenta Unit 

PBA Propo~al- Article 25-Wages, Section 1 and l 
1-15-15 

• Article 25 - Section 1 -Pay Provision - General: 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2()14 2Ql52015-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance 
I with state law and the Fiscal Year 2()14 2QIS2015-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Special Pay Issue: 

The state agrees to implement the Fiseal Year 2014 20lS2015-2016 Special Pay 
Issue provided i\mded iB Speeifie A~atioo l98i in aeeeFdeftee wifh seetiea 8(2)00 
eHheFiseal Yearinthe2Gl4 2QlS2015-2016 General Appropriations Act;, 

Effective July 1. 2015. each employee with less than seven years of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of ~3.0% ~ton the employee's June 30. 
2015, base rate of pay or, at a minimum, an annual $1200 increase in the employee's 
June 30. 2015 base rate of pay. whichever is greater. 

Effective July 1. 2015. each eawloyee with seven Years or more of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay a.djustment of 5.0% on the employee's June 30, 2015 base 

I rate of pay or. at a minimum. an annual $1500 increase in the employee's June 30. 2015 
base rate of pay, whichever js greater. 

I *Other sections of Article 25 remain unchanged from current language 





Police Benevolent Association (PBA) · Special Agents CBU 10 Wage Proposals 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Union/Issue 
Estimated 

Comments 
Cost 

Article 18/23: proposes that the State allow its 
three law enforcement bargaining units to pilot a 
holiday leave program for all bargaining unit 
employees receiving special compensatory leave 
on a holiday or day designated by the Governor as 
a holiday. Employees would be paid for all hours Indeterminate 
worked on a holiday in place of receiving special 
compensatory leave for working on a holiday or for 
the hours in their regularly scheduled work shift. 
The holiday pay would be in addition to the regular 
pay for working on a holiday. 

Article 24: Call back minimums set at a minimum 
of four hours. Court appearance time increased to Indeterminate 
three hours. 

Article 25: Effective July 1, 2015, each employee 
with less than/more than seven years of sworn Calculation is based on current active employees and excludes 
service shall receive a competitive pay adjustment vacancies. A 3% increase (or $1 ,200 min) for those not yet having 7 
of 3%/5% percent on the employee's June 30, $728,893 years ($173,656) and a 5% increase (or $1,500 min) for those wi th 7 or 
2015, base rate of pay or. at a minimum an annual more years ($555,237). People First was the source of data for 
$1200/$1500 increase in the employee's June 30, calculation including retirement and FICA. 
2015 base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

Article 27: Health insurance benefits and 
No Increased The Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

employee contributions would remain unchanged 
for the upcoming fiscal year. 

Cost maintains benefits at the status quo for the bargaining unit. 

Page 1 of 1 





Article 
I - Recognition 

2 - Gender Reference 

3- Vacant 

4- No Discrimination 

5 - Employee 
Representation and 
Association Activities 
6 - Grievance Procedure 

Police Benevolent Associa tion 
Specia l Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent O ne-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
S haded = Closed 

rttc es at mp(ls.,·e: 
' ' 

A . I I 23 24 25 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

State Progosal ofDecember 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
State Progosal of December 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state ' s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state 's proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 15, 2014: Union Progosal of Januaa 15, 20 15: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Withdrawn on February 3, 2015 signed state· s proposal on 

February 5, 2015. 
State Progosal of february 3, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 
Section 3(G)(5) - proposes when the signed state ' s proposal on 
pat1ies agree to mediate a grievance, the February 3, 2015. 
scheduled date for the arbitration hearing 
provided in section (6)(e) may be extended 
by mutual agreement beyond five months. 

Section 3(G)(6)(f)- proposes at least 
fifteen days before the scheduled date of 
the arbitration hearing, the parties shall tile 
with the arbitrator, and provide to each 
other, a list of witnesses to be called at the 
hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, and a 

Page I of II 



Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 23, 24, 25 
Article 

6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

State Proposal 
brief statement of the material facts about 
which each witness will testify. A party 
may fi le a written request with the 
arbitrator, with a concmTent copy to the 
other party, for an exception to the filing 
time limits for good cause. If such 
exception is granted, the other party may 
request that the hearing be rescheduled if 
necessary for the party to respond to the 
late fi led witness information. 

Section 5(B)(2)- proposes in the case of a 
class action grievance, the grievance form 
shall identify the specific group (i.e., 
employees' job classification(s), work 
unit(s), etc.) adversely impacted by the 
dispute relating to the interpretation or 
application of the Agreement. 

7 - Internal Investigations State Proposal of December 15, 2014: 
and Disciplinary Actions Status quo 

8 - Workforce Reduction State Proposal of December 15, 20 14: 
Status quo 

Page 2 of II 

Union Proposal Comments 

Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 20 15. 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state· s proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 



Article 
9 - Lateral Action, 
Transfer, Change in Duty 
Station 

I 0 - Grooming 

II - Classi fication 
Review 

Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shllded = Closed 

Articles llt Impasse: 23, 24, 25 
State Proposal 

State Proposal of January 26, 20 15: 
Section 6(A)- proposes an employee 
appointed to a position, including a 
position to which the employee has been 
promoted, must successfully complete at a 
least a one-year probationary petiod before 
attaining pennanent status in the position. 

Section 6(B) - proposes an agency's 
actions in removing or dismissing an 
employee from a probationary position to 
which the employee has been promoted 
from a position in which the employee held 
pennanent status are governed by the 
provisions of Section 11 0.2 17(3), Florida 
Statutes, and, pursuant to this statutory 
provision, are not grievable. 

State Proposal of December 15,2014: 
Status quo 

State Proposal ofDecember 15,2014: 
Provides specific broadband tcnninology 
for classification reviews. 

Page 3 of II 

Union Proposal Comments 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state' s proposal on 
February 3, 20 15. 

Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state· s proposal on 
January 19, 20 15. 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state ' s proposal on 
February 3, 2015. 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 

Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Clo .... ·ed 

Articles at lmpas.\·e: 23, 24, 25 
State Proposal 

State Proposal ofDecember 15,2014: 
(A) Information in an employee's official 
personnel file may be maintained in 
electronic as well as paper fom1. 

(B) If a derogatory document is placed in 
an employee 's official personnel 'file, the 
employee will have a right to respond to 
any such document fi led, and the 
employee's response will be attached to the 
file copy. 

(D) If a document has been determined to 
be invalid, such document shall be placed 
in an envelope, together with a letter of 
explanation. The outside of the envelope 
and all pages of the document shall be 
marked .. VOID"', and retained in the 
employee's personnel file. In the case of 
electronic records, a Personnel Action 
Request (PAR) that has been detennined to 
be invalid shall have a note added to the 
PAR form indicating that the action is 
·'VOID'·. A printed copy of an electronic 
performance evaluation determined to be 
inval id shall be marked "VOID'' and 
retained in the personnel file as described 
above. 

Page 4 of II 

Union Proposal Comments 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state· s proposal on 
February 3, 2015. 



Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rt1c es at mpus.'!l·e: ' ' 
A . I l 23 24 25 

Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
12 - Personnel Records (E) Information in an employee ' s official 
(continued) personnel fi le is public record pursuant to 

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, unless 
specifically exempted by state or federal 
law (such as protected health information 
and social security numbers), and as such, 
must be provided to anyone desiring 
inspection or requesting copies in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Public Records Law. 

13 - Safety State ProQosal of December 15.20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
14 - Performance Review State ProQOsal of Februar:t 3, 2015: Union Pro12osal of Janua1:y 15, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo Section (B) - proposes numeri cal arrest signed state's proposal on 
citations or violation quotas not be used February 3, 20 15. 
in reviewing an employee's 
performance. 

15 - Seniority State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state ' s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
16 - Employment Outside State ProQosal of December 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
State Government Status quo signed state · s proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 

Page 5 of II 



Article 
17 - Department Vehicles 

18 - Leave 

19 - Personal Property 
Replacement and/or 
Reimbursement 
20- Educational 
Assistance Plan 

21 - Compensation for 
Temporary Special Duty 
in Higher Level Position 
22- Job-Connected 
Disability 

Police Benevolent Association 
Specia l Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

Cur r ent One-Year Agr eement Expires June 30,2015 
Sta tus of Collective Bar gaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - AU Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A r· I t I 23 24 25 r tc es a mpasse: ' , 
State Prop osal Union Proposal C omments 

State Progosal of December 15~ 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state · s proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
State Progosal of January 26, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

February 3, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
State Progosal ofDecember 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state 's proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
State Progosal of December 15, ?O 14: Tentatively a1:,rreed to and 
Status quo signed state' s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
23 - Workday, Workweek State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Union Progosal of January 15. 20 15: 
and Overtime Status quo Section 6, New Subsection (C) - Costing Estimate: 

proposes on or after July I, 20 15, lndcterm inate 
contingent on the availability of funds 
and at the agency head's di scretion. 
each agency is authorized to enter into 
negotiations with the PBA providing 
payment to an employee for special 
compensatory leave earned as provided 
for in Rule 60L-34, F.A.C. , or Section 

Page 6 of II 



Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expit·es June 30, 20 IS 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Ar ticles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Article 
23 - Workday, Workweek 
and Overtime (continued) 

24- On-Call, Ca ll- Back, 
and Court Appearances 

Articles at Impasse: 23, 24, 25 
State Proposal 

State Proposal of January 26, 1015: 
Sedion I - an employee who is required to 
be o n-call shall be paid an o n-call add iti ve 
in an amount of$1.00 per hour for the 
hour(s) the employee is required to be on
call pursuant to Rul e 60L-32.0012(2)(b), 
F.A.C. An employee who is required to be 
on-ca ll on a Saturday. Sunday. and/or a 
holiday as listed in section II 0.117( 1 ), 
F.S., will be paid an on-call addi ti ve in •Ul 

amount per hour equal to one-qumier of the 
statewide hourly minimum for the 
employee's paygrade for the hour( s) the 
employee is required to be o n-call pursuant 
to Rule 60L-32.00 12(2)(b). F.A.C. 

U oion Proposal 
4(A) of this article. The terms of such 
agreement shall be set fo1ih in a 
memorandum mutually a1:,rreed to by the 
agency and the PBA. 

Union Proposal of January 15,20 15: 

Section 2- proposes a call-back 
minimum of four hours (consistent with 
the Florida Highway Patrol and Law 
Enforcement units). 

Page 7 of II 

Comments 

Costing Estimate: 
Indeterminate 

Current contract provides 
for actual time worked or 
a minimum oftwo hours. 



Article 
24 - On-Cull , Call-Back. 
and Court Appearances 
(continued) 

25 - Wages 

Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 201 5 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Ne~otiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A rticles at Impasse: 23, 24, 25 
State Proposal 

State Proposal of January 26, 2015: 
Section I - General Pay Provis ions 
Agencies· authority to provide increases to 

employees· base rate of pa) and salary 
additives from available agency funds shall 
be in accordance with this Agreement, state 
law, and the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 
General Appropriations A<.:t. 

Section 2 - Deployment to a Facility or 
Area Closed due to Emergency 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 

Union Proposal 
Section 3 - proposes if an employee is 
subpoenaed to appear as a witness in n 
job-related court case. not during the 
employee· s regularly assigned work 
hours, the employee shall be credi ted 
for actual time worked. or a minimum 
of three hours, whichever is greater. 

Union Proposal of January 15, 20 15: 
Section 2 - proposes effective July l , 
2015. each employee with less than 7 
years of swom service shall receive a 
competitive pay adjustment of 3% on 
the employee's June 30. 2015 base rate 
of pay, or a minimum annual increase of 
$ 1,200 in the employee's June 30. 20 15 
base rnte of pay, whichever is greater: 
each employee with 7 years or more of 
sworn service shall receive a 
competiti ve pay adjustment of 5% or a 
minjmum annual increase ofS I ,500, 

Appropriations Act, contingent on the whichever is greater. 
avai labi lity of funds and at the Agency 
Head ' s discretion, each agency is 
authorized to grant a temporary special 
dt~ties pay add itive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee's base rate of pay to each 
employee temporarily deployed to a facility 

Page 8 of I I 

Comments 
Costing Estimate: 
Indeterminate 

Cun·ent contract provides 
for actual time worked or 
a minimum of two and a 
half hours. 

Costing Estimate: 
$728,893 



Article 
15 - Wages (continued) 

Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

Cun-ent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

. rflc es at mpasse: ' , , 4 . I l 23 24 25 
State Proposal Union Proposal 

or area closed due to emerg~.:ncy conditions 
from another area of the stale that is not 
closed. 

Section 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
Permanent Career Service employees may 
be given the option ofre0eiving up to 24 
hours of unused annual leave each 
Dec~.:mber in the form of a cash payout 
subject to, and in accordance with. section 
I I 0.2 19(7). F.S. 

Section 4 - Performance Pay 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Year 2015-20 16 General 
Appropri ati ons Act. and from ex isting 
agency resources. each agency is 
authorized to grant merit pay increases 
based on the employee's exemplary 
perfo rmance. as evidenced by a 
performance evaluation conducted pursuant 
to Rule 60L-35, F.A.C. 

Section 5 - Savings Sharing Program 
An employee or g roups of employees may 
be cl igible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the 
s tate, pursuant to section I I 0.1245( I). F.S. 

Page 9 of II 

Comments 



Article 
25 - Wages (continued) 

26 - Equipment and 
Service A wards 

27 - Insurance Benefits 

28 - Travel Expenses 

29 - Drug Testing 

Police Benevolent Association 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agr eement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Ba rgaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agr·eement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

rite es at mpasse: 
' ' 

A . I I 23 24 25 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

Section 6 - Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the 
availability of funds and at the Agency 
Head's discretion. each agency is 
authorized to grant competitive pay 
adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staffing issues. 

State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State Progosal of January 26. 2015: Union Progosal ofJanuary 15. 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 
Section 1 - The benefits and the employee Section I - proposes no change to the signed state· s proposal on 
share of premiums for the State Employees health insurance benefits and employee February 3, 2015. 
Group Health Self-Insurance Plan shall contribution rates for Fiscal Year 2015-
remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 20 15- 20 16. 
2016. 

State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
State Progosal ofDecember 15.20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state' s proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 

Page I 0 of II 



Ar ticle 
30 - No Strike 

3 1 - State Personnel 
System Rules 

32 - Management Rights 

33 - Entire Agreement 

34 - Savings Clause 

35 - Duration 

Police Benevolent Associa tion 
Special Agent Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,20 15 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
S luuled = Clo .... ·ed 

rttc es at mpasse: ' ' 
.) A . I I 23 24 2-

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State Progosal ofDecember 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
State Pro12osal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
State ProQosal of December 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
State ProQosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively a1:,rreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State ProQosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Proposes l-year agreement to expire on signed state's proposal on 
June 30,2016. February 3, 20 15. 

Page I I of I I 



PBA - Law 
Enforcement Unit 



PBA/ Law Enforcemynt Un it 
State Proposal- Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 26, 2015 

Page I of5 

Article 18 
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY 

The Parties specifically agree that the attenclam.:e and leave provisions as contained in 
Chapter 60L-34 of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage and payment of 
sick and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment shall apply to all 
employees. The state shall not compel an employee to involuntarily use annual leave in 
circumstances where the employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave. This provision 
shall not apply in instances of qualified family medical leave. 

SECTION 1- ·workday 

(A) Agencies shall not requ ire an employee to split a workday into two or more 
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer. 

(B) Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule, the state has 
the ability to adjust the employees schedule as long as it occurs within the same work petiod and 
provided the employee receives notice of the adjusbnent prior to the commencement of the 
employee ' s adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period. or 24 hours' notice for a 80-hour work 
period or 36 hours· notice for a 160-hour work pe1iod. The state will make a good faith etJort to 
offset such extra how·s it1 eight hour increments. 

SECTION 2 - Non-Required Work Time 

Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state. If records of voluntary 
time are kept by the state or its agencies, they shall not be used to adversely affect performance 
reviews or promotions. 

SECTION 3- Work Schedule 

(A) Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts 
will be posted no less than 14 calendar days in advance and wi ll reflect at least a two workweek 
schedule; however, the ~tate will make a good faith effort to reflect a one month schedule. 

(B ) In the event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section may 
be void. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. Hal .. Johnson 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



PBA/Law Entorcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5-16 
January 26, 2015 

Page 2 of 5 

(C) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at 
each agency and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are 
established. 

SECTION 4- Overtime 

(A) The nonnal workweek tor each full-time employee shall be 40 how·s. 

(B) Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be 
recognized in accordance with Chapter 60L-34. Florida Administrative Code; provided, 
however, that when an emergency is declared by the Govemor and funds are available, 
employees who are assigned to the emergency area described in the Governor's Executive Order 
shall be subject to a 40 hour workweek while so assigned. The state and the PBA will cooperate 
to secure funds tor the payment of overtime to employees in the situation desctibecl herein. The 
state shall make a reasonable effott to equalize distribution of overtime opportunities. 

(C) The PBA agrees to suppott those changes in Chapter 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code that may be required in order tor the state to be in compliance with the Fair 
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees, which the state agrees to comply with. 

SECTION S - FLSA Compensatory Leave 

(A) If an agency has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management 
Services, FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as described 
below: 

(B) An employee who is tilling an included position may waive payment tor overtihle 
a11d elect to have the overtime hours credited to '·FLSA compensatory leave'". Such election wil l 
apply until changed again, and only to workdays starting on the day of the change and in which 
hours worked in the work period exceed the contracted hours. Overtime hours that the employee 
elects to have credited as "'FLSA compensatory leave" will accrue at tbe rate of one and one-half 
hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will only be permitted to accumulate a 
maximum of 80 hours of ··FLSA compensatory leave .. credits which may be taken in any 
increments at the ernployee·s discretion provided the fLSA compensatory leave Is taken by June 
30 or December 3 I of each year. The employee·s request to utilize FLSA compensatory leave 
shall be granted so long: as granting the request would not result in ··undue disruption:· If the 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. Har· Johnson 
State's Chier Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Atiicle 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 15- 16 
January 26, 201 5 

Page 3 of 5 

FLSA compensatory leave is not utilized by the employee by June 30 or December 3 1 of each 
year. a ll unused " FLSA compensatory leave·· credits at the close of business o n December 31 
and June 30 shall be paid for at the employee·s straight lime regular hourly rate in accordance 
with Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, as amended . An employee who separates 
from the Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be pa id for all unused "'FLSA 
compensatory leave·· in accordance with the above. 

(C) The pmties agree that a ll law enforcement recruits shall be treated in the manner 
described below wi th regard to FLSA compensatory leave: 

( I ) Law enforcement recrui ts undergoing training to attain Law Enforcement 
Certification. or agency-spec ific o rientalion, will be exempt from the 80 hour cap on the eaming 
of FLSA compensatoty leave credits and mandato ry June 30 and December 31 payment 
req uirements duri ng the time they attend an academy or education institution. 

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation 
tJ·om the academy or educational institution for the purpose of relocating to their new 
assignment. Such leave n1ust be authorized by the recruit ' s agency. Rec ruits must use the 
accrued FLSA c<,1111 pensatory leave credi ts befure us ing regular annual leave. 

(3 ) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within the 
next s ix-month cycle. or paid tor at the end of that cycle, as presentl y provided fo r in C hapter 
60L-34. Florida Ad ministrati ve Code, and Article l 8. Section 5( 8 ) of the Agreement. 

SECTlON 6- Special Compensatory Leave 

(A) Special Compensatory Leave is defined as leave that is earned as provided in Rule 
60L-34. Florida Administrative Code. for hours worked on a holiday, extra hours worked during 
an established work week which contains a holiday. o r extra hours worked \-Vhen the employee· s 
assigned o ffi ce, facility. or regio n is closed pursuant to an Executive O rder of the Governor or 
any other disaster o r emergency condition. 

(B) Use of Special Compensatory Leave: 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimo re Gene .. Hal .. Johnson 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiato r 

Date Date 



PBA/ Law Ent\.)rcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26, 2015 

Page 4 of5 

( 1) When an employee earns special compensatory leave credits, the 
employee shall have 60 calendar clays in which to use the earned special compensatory leave 
time. 

(2) I f the employee fails to use the earned special compensatory leave during 
the 60 day period. the supervisor shall schedule the employee to use the leave. 

(3) An employee who has a leave balance in excess of 240 hours shall be 
required to use a minimum of 120 hours of the employee's earned special compensatory leave 
each calendar year or the amount necessary to bring the employee· s special compensatory leave 
balance to 240 hours, whichever ts less, prior to using any annual leave credits. 

(4) An employee who begins employment after July L 2013 shall only be 
permitted to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave credits, 
notwithstanding any additional hours worked on a holiday, during the established work week 
containing a holiday, or dw·ing the closure of the employee's assigned office, fac ility, or region 
pursuant to an Executive Order of the Govemor or any other disaster o r emergency condition. 

SECTION 7- Sick Leave Pool and Sick Lea,,e Transfer 

Ench agency shall set up and administer a sick leave pool and s ick leave transfer plan for 
employees if there is sufficient employee participation to render the pool and sick leave transter 
plan administratively feasible. Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full access 
to the benet1ts. of the employing agency"s existing sick leave pool and sick leave trans ier plan. 

SECTION 8- Section 440.15(11), Florida Statutes- Full-Pay Status 

(A) An employee who sustains a job-connected disability and meets the eligibi lity 
requirements. as provided for in section 440.15( 11 ), Florida Statutes, may be can·ied in full-pay 
status. 

(B) Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be 
subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene ··Hal .. Johnson 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



PBA/Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26, 2015 

Page 5 of5 

SECTION 9- Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code- Disability Leave with Pay 

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which is not covered by Section 8 
above, is eligible for disabi lity leave with pay under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code. The Agency Head or designee shall not unreasonably refuse to submit a 
request to carry an employee in full -pay status under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Fl01ida 
Administrative Code. provided, however, the Secretary of tJ1e Department of Management 
Services or designee shall have the right to determine whether or not an employee should be 
CaJTied in full -pay status for more than 26 weeks. An employee shall not be required to use 
accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be canied in full-pay status under 
Chapter 60L-34. Florida Administrative Code. However, no employee shall be carried in full-pay 
status until he has utilized I 00 hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, compensatory 
leave or leave without pay. 

SECTION 10 - Alternate Duty 

(A) W11ere an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the 
State Personnel System as a result of an injw·y in the line of duty. and is tempoi·mily Llnable to 
perform his nonnal work duties, the Agency Head or designee shall give clue consideration to 
any request by the employee to be temporarily assigned substi tute duties within the employee·s 
medical restrictions. This shall have no effect on the agency"s ability to make a dirferent 
assi!:,'11tnent based upon current medical opinion. 

(B) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Agency Head or designee shall 
be tinal and binding on all parties. 

For. the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. Hal" Johnson 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



SECTION I - General Pay Provisions 

Article 25 
WAGES 

PBA/Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal- Article 25 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5-16 
January 26, 10 15 

Page 1 of2 

Agencies· authority to provide increases to employees· base rate of pay and salary 
additives ti·om available agency funds shall be in accordance with this Agreement. state Jaw, and 
the Fiscal Year 10 15-20 16 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 3- Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds a11d at the Agency Head·s discret ion, 
each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee's base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area 
closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option ofreceiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December. in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with, section 11 0.219( 7), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 4 - Performance Pay 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act and ti·om existing agency resources, each agem;y is authori zed to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee·s exemplary performance. as ev idenced by a performance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 5 - Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards tor ideas or 
programs that result in n cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 11 0.1245( I), Florida 
Statutes. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene ··r Jar· .Jo hnson 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



SECTION 6- Discretiona•·y Raises 

PBA/Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 26, 20 I 5 

Page2 of2 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head·s discretion. 
eat:h agency is authorized to gran t competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staffing issues. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene --Har· Johnson 
State·s ChiefLaborNegotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 





Law Enforcement Omcers Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 18-Boars of,Vork 
1-15-15 

*Article 18,. Section 6, New Subsection (c) 

(c) Special Compensatory Leave Payment Option 

WORKING 
DRAFT 

On or After July 1. 2015. contingent on the availability of funds and at the 
Agency's Head's discreti()tl,_ each agency is authorized to enter into negotiations with 
PBA providing payment to an eiJlPloyee for §pecial compensatory leave earned as 
provided for in Rule 60L-34. Florida Administrative Code or Section 6(A) of this Article. 
The terms of such agreement shall be set forth in a memorandum of a~ mutually 
agreed to by the Agency and PBA. 

•Other sections of Article 18 remain unchanged from current language 



Law Enforcement Ofticen Unit 

PBA Proposal-.Article 25-Wages, Section 1 and l 
1-15-15 

*Article 25 - Section 1 -Pay Provision- General: 

WORKING 
DRAFT 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2014 20152015-2016 
General Appropriations Act 

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance 
I with state law and the Fiscal Year 2CH 4 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Special Pay Issue: 

The state agrees to implement the Fisea:l Ye&f 2014 20152015-2016 Special Pay 
Issue provided fimeed iB Speeifie t\fJpt'eprietioft 1981 ia aeeertltlflee Ylith seetion 8(2)(8) 
of tlle Fiseel Yearin the 2014 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act;_ 

Effective July 1, 201 5. each employee with less than seven years of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of ~3.0% peNeftt on the employee,s June 30, 
2015, base rate of pay or, at a minimum. an .annual $1200 increase in the employee's 
June 30.2015 base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

Effective July 1. 2015, each employee with seven years or more of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adiustment otS.O% Qn the employee's June 30,2015 base 
rate of pay or. at a minimum, an annual $1500 increase in the employee's June 30, 2015 
base rate of pay. whichever is greater. 

I •Other sections of Article 25 remain unchanged from current language 





Police Benevolent Association (PBA) • Law enforcement Unit CBU 06 Economic Proposals 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Union/Issue 
Estimated 

Comments 
Cost 

Article 18/23: proposes that the State allow its 
three law enforcement bargaining units to pilot a 
holiday leave program for all bargaini~ unit 
employees receiving special compensatory leave 
on a holiday or day designated by the Governor as 
a holiday. Employees would be paid for all hours Indeterminate 
worked on a holiday in place of receiving special 
compensatory leave for working on a holiday or for 
the hours in their regularly scheduled work shift. 
The holiday pay would be in addition to the regular 
pay for working on a holfday. 

Article 24: Call back minimums set at a minimum 
of four hours. Court appearance time increased to Indeterminate 
three hours. 

Article 25: Effective July 1, 2015, each employee 
with less than/more than seven years of sworn Calculation is based on current active employees and excludes 
service shall receive a competitive pay adjustment vacancies. A 3% increase (or $1 ,200 min) for those not yet having 7 
of 3%/5% percent on the employee's June 30, $2.6M years ($1 ,045,657) and a 5% increase (or $1,500 min) for those with 7 
2015. base rate of pay or. at a minimum an annual or more years ($1 ,515,593). People First was the source of data for 
$1200/$1500 increase in the employee's June 30, calculation including retirement and FICA. 
2015 base rate of pay. whichever is greater. 

Article 27: Health insurance benefits and 
No Increased The Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

employee contributions would remain unchanged 
for the upcoming fiscal vear. 

Cost maintains benefits at the status quo for the bargaining unit. 

Page 1 of 1 





Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargain ing as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rflc es at mpasse: 
' 

A . I I 18 25 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal C omments 

I - Recognition State ProQosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
2 - Gender Reference State ProQosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state's proposal on 
January 19,2015. 

3 - Vacant State ProQosal of December 15,20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state' s proposal on 

January 19,20 15. 
4 - No Discrimination State PrOQOsal ofDecember 15,20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

5 - Employee State ProQosal of December I 5, 20 I 4: Union ProQosal of January 15, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 
Representation and PBA Status quo Withdrawn on February 3, 2015 signed state's proposal on 
Activities February 5, 20 15. 
6 - Grievance Procedure State ProQosal of February 3, 20 15: Tentatively agreed to and 

Section 3(G)(4) - proposes when the signed state's proposal on 
parties agree to mediate a grievance, the February 5, 2015. 
scheduled date for the arbitration hearing 
provided in section (5)(d) may be 
extended by mutual agreement beyond 
five months. 

Section 3(G)(5)(c) - proposes at least 
fifteen days before the scheduled date of 
the arbitration hearing, the parties shall 
fi le with the arbitrator, and provide to 
each other, a list of witnesses to be called 

Page I of I I 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

rile es at mpasse: ' 
A . I I 18 25 

Ar ticle State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
6 - Grievance Procedure at the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, 
(continued) and a brief statement of the material facts 

about which each witness will testifY. A 
party may file a written request with the 
arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the 
other party, for an exception to the fi ling 
time limits for good cause. If such 
exception is granted, the other party may 
request that the hearing be rescheduled if 
necessary for the party to respond to the 
late filed witness information. 

Section 5(B)(2)- proposes in the case of 
a class action grievance, the grievance 
f01m shall identify the specific group (i.e., 
employees' job classification(s). work 
unit(s), etc.) adversely impacted by the 
dispute relating to the interpretation or 
appl ication of the Agreement. 

7 - Internal Investigations State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state 's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
8 - Workforce Reduction State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state ' s proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

Page 2 of I I 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded= Closed 

Article 
9 - Reassignment, Lateral 
Action, Transfer, Change in 
Duty Station and 
Promotion 

Articles at Impasse: 18, 25 
State Proposal 

State Proposal of January 26, 2015: 
Section 1 O(A)- proposes an employee 
appointed to a position, including a 
position to which the employee has been 
promoted, must successfully complete at a 
least a one-year probationary period 
before attaining pennanent status in the 
position. 

Section 1 O(B) - proposes an agency' s 
actions in removing or dismissing an 
employee from a probationary position to 
which the employee has been promoted 
from a position in which the employee 
held permanent status are governed by the 
provisions of Section I I 0.2 17(3), Florida 
Statutes, and, pursuant to this statutory 
provision, are not grievable. 

I 0 - Disciplinary Action State Proposal of December 15, 2014: 
Status quo 

I I - Classification Review State Proposal of December 15, 2014: 
(B)- provides specific broadband 
terminology for classification reviews. 

Page 3 of II 

Union Proposal Comments 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
February 5, 2015. 

Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 20 15. 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
February 5, 2015. 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 

Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at lmpflsse: 18, 25 
State Proposal 

State Proposal ofDecember 15, 2014: 
(A) Information in an employee's official 
personnel file may be maintained in 
electronic as well as paper form. 

(B) If a derogatory document is placed in 
an employee's official personnel file , the 
employee will have a right to respond to 
any such document filed, and the 
employee's response will be attached to 
the file copy. 

(D) If a disciplinary action is not 
sustained, or is unfounded, or is otherwise 
determined to otherwise be invalid, or 
when an employee is exonerated of a 
charge brought in a disciplinary action, 
the record copy of such action shall be 
placed in an envelope, together with a 
letter of explanation, the outside of the 
envelope and all pages of the document 
shal l be marked ·'VOID'', and retained in 
the employee 's personnel file. In the case 
of electronic records, a Personnel Action 
Request (PAR) that has been determined 
to be invalid shall have a note added to 
the PAR form indicating that the action is 
·'VOID''. 

Page 4 of II 

Union Proposal Comments 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
February 5, 20 15. 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

I' IC €.\ · {I mpa .... ·se: 
' A t' I t I 18 25 

Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
12 - Personnel Records (E) Information in an employee·s official 
(continued) personnel file is public record pursuant to 

Chapter 11 9, Florida Statutes, unless 
specifically exempted by state or federal 
law (such as protected health informat ion 
and social security numbers), and as such, 
must be provided to anyone desiring 
inspection or requesting copies in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Public Records Law. 

13- Safety State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state' s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
14 - Performance Review State ProQosal of February 3, 20 15: Union ProQosal of January 15, 20 15: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo Section 1 (C) - proposes numerical signed state· s proposal on 
arrest citations or violation quotas not February 5, 2015. 
be used in reviewing an employee·s 
performance. 

15 - Seniority State ProQosal of December 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state·s proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
16 - Employment Outside State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
State Government Status quo signed state ' s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
17 - Grooming Standards State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state's proposal on 
. 

January 19, 20 15 . 

Page 5 of I I 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agr eement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of C ollective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rile es ttl mpasse: ' 
A . I I 18 25 

Ar ticle State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
18 - Hours of Work, Leave State Progosal of January 26, 2015: Union Progosal of January 15. 2015: 
and Job-Connected Status quo Section 6, New Subsection (C)- Costing Estimate: 
Dis:::~bility proposes on or after July I, 2015, Indeterminate 

contingent on the availability of funds 
and at the agency head 's discretion. 
each agency is authorized to enter into 
negotiations with the PBA providing 
payment to an employee for specia l 
compensatory leave earned as provided 
for in Rule 60L-34, F.A.C., or Section 
6(A) of this article. The terms of such 
agreement shall be set forth in a 
memorandum mutually agreed to by the 
agency and the PBA. 

19 -Personal Property - State Progosal ofDecember 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Replacement and/or Status quo signed state's proposal on 
Reimbursement January 19,2015. 
20 - Training and State Progosal of December 15. 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Education Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
2 1 - Compensation for State Progosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Temporary Special Duty in Status quo signed state's proposal on 
Higher Level Position Janua r}' 19,201 5. 
22 - Vacant State Progosal of December 15, 20 14 : Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

Page 6 of II 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,20 15 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Article 
23 -Equipment 

24 - On-Call Assignment
Call-Back - Court 
Appearance 

Articles at Impasse: 18, 25 
State Proposal Union Proposal 

State Proposal ofDecember 15,2014: 
Status quo 

State Proposal ofJanuary 26, 20 15 : Union Proposal of January 15, 2015: 
Section 2- strikes in its entirety provision 
requiring an agency to request approval 
from OMS for on-call pay (this was 
delegated to the agencies in 20 12). 

Section 2(A)- an employee who is 
required to be on-call shall be paid an on
call additive in an amount of $ 1.00 per 
hour for the hour(s) the employee is 
required to be on-call pursuant to Rule 
60L-32.0012(2)(b), F.A.C. 

Section 2(8 )- an employee who is 
required to be on-call on a Saturday, 
Sunday, and/or a holiday as li sted in 
section 11 0. 11 7( I), F.S., will be paid an 
on-call additive in an amount per hour 
equal to one-quarter of the statewide 
hourl y minimum for the employee's 
paygrade for the hour(s) the employee is 
required to be on-call pursuant to Rule 
60L-32.0012(2)(b), F.A.C. 

Page 7 of II 

Comments 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
January 19,20 15. 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
February 5, 20 15. 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Article 
24 - On-Call Assignment 
Ca ll -Back- Court 
Appearance (continued) 

25 - Wages 

A rticles at lmprtsse: I 8, 2 5 
State Proposal 

State Proposal of January 26,20 15: 
Section I - General Pay Provisions 
Agencies· authority to provide increases 
to employees· base rate or pay and salary 
additives from available agency funds 
shall be in accordance with this 
Agreement, state law, and the Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Deployment to a Facility or 
Area Closed due to Emergency 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the 
avai lability of funds and at the Agency 
I lead ' s discretion. each agency is 
authorized to grant a temporary special 
duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee's base rate of pay to each 

Union Proposal 
Section 5 - proposes if an employee is 
subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a 
job-related court case, no t during the 
employee's regular assigned shift, the 
employee shall be credited for actual 
time worked, or a minimum of three 
hours, whichever is greater. 

Union Proposal of January 15,2015: 
Section 2 - proposes effective Jul y I. 
2015, each employee with less than 7 
years of sworn service shall receive a 
competiti ve pay adjustment of3% on 
the employee ' s June 30,20 15 base rate 
of pay. o r a minimum annual increase of 
$ 1.200 in the employee's June 30,20 15 
base rate of pay, whichever is greater; 
each employee with 7 years or more of 
sworn service shall receive a 
competitive pay adj ustment o f 5% or a 
minimum annual increase of$1 ,500, 
whichever is greater. 

Page 8 of II 

Comments 
Current contract provides 
for actual time worked or 
a minimum oftwo and a 
half hours. 

Costing Estimate: $2.6 
million 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expir·es June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of Februat·y 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Sltaded = C/o.•ied -

Articles at Impasse: 18, 25 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal 

2.) - Wages (continued) employee temporaril y deployed to a 
faci lity or area closed d ue to emergency 
conditio ns from another a rea of the state 
that is not closed. 

Section 3 - Cash Payout o f Annual Leave 
Perman ent Ca1·eer Service employees JTl::ty 
be given the o ption of receivi ng up to 24 
hours of unused annual leave each 
December in the form of a cash payout 
subject to, and in accordance wi th , section 
II 0.2 19(7), F.S. 

Section 4 - Perfonnance Pay 
In accordance w ith the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 General 
A ppro priations Act, and from exi ting 
agency resources, each agency is 
authorized to grant merit pay increase 
based on the emp loyee's exemplary 
pe1iormance. as evidenced by a 
perfom1ance evaluatio n conducted 
pursuant to Rule 60 L-35, F.A.C. 

Section 5- Sav ings Sharing Program 
An employee or gro ups o f employees may 
be eli gible for monetary awards for ideas 
o r programs that result in a cost sav ing to 

Page 9 of II 

Comments 



Police Benevolent Association 
Law Enforcement Unit - State Personnel System 

Cur rent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc es at mpasse: t A . I l 18 25 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

25 - Wages (continued) the state, pursuant to section I I 0.1245(1 ), 
F.S. 

Section 6 - Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, t:ontingent on the 
avai lab ility of funds and at the Agency 
Head's discretion, each agency is 
autho1i zed to grant competitive pay 
adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staffi ng issues. 

26 - Unifom1s and State ProQosal of December 15,2014: Tentati vely agreed to and 
Accessori es Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
27 - Insurance Benefits State ProQosal of Januar:t 26,2015: Union ProQosal of Januar:t 15, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 

Section I - The benefits and the employee Section 1 - proposes no change to the signed state· s proposal on 
share of premiums for the State health insurance benefits and employee February 5, 20 15. 
Employees Group Health Self-Insurance contribution rates for Fiscal Year 2015-
Plan shall remain unchanged fo r Fiscal 2016. 
Year 2015-2016. 

28 - Travel Expenses State ProQosal of December L5, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 

Page 10 of II 



Article 
29- Drug Testing 

30 - No Strike 

31 - State Personnel 
System Rules 

Police Benevolent Associa tion 
Law Enforcement Uni t - State Per sonnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = C/m;ed 

rite es at mpasse: ' 
A . I I 18 25 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state ' s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State Progosal ofDecember 15,20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
32 - Management Rights State Progosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

33 - Entire Agreement State Progosal of December 15, 201 4: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

January 19, 201 5. 
34 - Savings Clause State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state· s proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

35 - Duration State Progosal ofDecember 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Proposes 1-year agreement to expire on signed state's proposal on 
June 30,20 16. February 5, 2015. 

36 - Awards State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state 's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 

Page I I of I I 



PBA - Florida 
Highway Patrol Unit 



PBA/Fl01ida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5-16 
January 26, 2015 

Pagelof5 

Article 18 
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY 

The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 
Chapter 60L-34 of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accruaL usage and payment of 
sick ami annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment, shall apply to all 
employees. The state shal l not compel an employee to involuntari ly use ru1nual leave in 
circumstances where the employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave. This provision 
shall not apply in instances of qualified family medical leave. 

SECTION I - Workday, Work Period 

(A) The DHSMV shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more 
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer. 

(B) Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule, the state has 
the ability to adjust the employee· s schedule as long as it occurs within the srune work period 
and provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment plior to the commencement of the 
emp.loyee·s adjusted shirt for a 40-hour work period, or 24 hours· notice for a SO-hour work 
period or 36 hours· notice for a 160-hour work period. The state will make a good faith effo1t to 
offset such extra hours in eight hour increments. 

(C) The work period for employees shall be 40. 80 or 160 hours. as detem1ined by the 
Executive Director of the DHSMV. 

SECTION 2 - Non-Required Work Time 

Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state. If records of voluntary 
time are kept by the state or the DHSMV. they shall not be used to adversely affect peJ-fonm1nce 
reviews or promotions. 

SECTION 3- Work Schedule 

(A) Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts 
wi ll be posted no less than I 4 calendar days in advance and will reflect at least a two workweek 
schedule; however. the state will make a good faith etlort to reflect a one month schedule. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene ··Hal .. Johnson 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



PBA/Florida Highway PatTol Unit 
State Proposal - Atiicle 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Y ear 2015- 16 
January 26, 20 15 

Page 2 of 5 

( B) In the event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section may 
be v<.1 id. 

(C) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures current ly in place at 
the DHSMY and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are 
established. 

SECTION 4- Overtime 

(A) The work period for each fu11-time employee shall be 40, 80 or 160 hours, as 
detem1ined by the agency. 

(B) Work beyond the employee·s regular work period shall be recognized in 
accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code: provided, however. that when an 
emergency is declared by the Govemor and funds are avai lable, employees who are assigned to 
the emergency area described in the GovernoT· s Executive Order sha ll be st1bject to a 40 hour 
workweek whi le so assigned. The state and the PBA will cooperate to secure funds for the 
payment of overtime to employees in the s ituation described herein . The state shall make a 
reasonable effort to equalize distribution of overtime opporiuni ties. 

(C) The PBA agrees to support those changes in Chapter 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code that may be required in order fo r the state to be in compliance with the Fai r 
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees, which the state agrees to compl y with. 

SECTION 5- FLSA Compensatory Leave 

(A) lf the DHSMV has a plan approved in advance by the Depmiment of 
Management Services. FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be granted~ administered and used 
as described below: 

(B) An employee who is filling an included position may waive payment tor overtime 
and elect to have the overtime hours credited to ··FLSA compensatory leave:· Such e lection will 
apply until changed again, and only to workdays starting on the clay ofthe change and in w hich 
ho urs worked in the work period exceed the contracted hours. Overtime hours that the employee 
elects to have credited as ··FLSA compensatory leave .. will accrue at the rate of one and one-hal f 
hours for each hour of ovettime worked. An employee wi ll only be perm itted to accumulate a 
maximum oJ 80 hours of ·'FLSA compensatory leave .. credits wh ich may be taken in any 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. Har· Johnson 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



PBA/Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 201 5-16 
January 26, 20 15 

Page 3 of5 

increments at the employee's discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June 
30 or December 31 of each year. The employee·s request to utilize FLSA compensatory leave 
shall be granted so long as granting the request would not result in ··undue disruption." If the 
FLSA compensatory leave is not util ized by the employee by June 30 or December 31 of each 
year. all unused ··FLSA compensatory leave .. credits ar the close of business on December 31 
and June 30 shall be paid for at the employee ' s straight time regular hourly rate in accordance 
with Chapter 60L-34. Florida Administrative Code. as amended. An employee who separates 
!Tom the Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all unused .. FLSA 
cornpensatory leave" in accordance with the above. 

(C) The parties agree that aU Florida Highway Patrol recruits shall be treated in the 
manner described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave: 

( 1) Florida Highway Patrol recruits undergoing tnlllling to attain Law 
Enforcement Certil'ication, or agency-specific orientation, will be exempt from the 80 hour cap 
on the earn ing of FLSA compensatory leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 
payment requirements during the time they attend an academy or education institution. 

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation 
fl"om the academy or educational institution for the purpose of relocating to their new 
assignment. Such leave must be authorized by the recruit' s agency. Recruits must use the 
accrued FLSA compensatory leave credits before using regular annual leave. 

(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within the 
nex t six-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as presently provided for in Chapter 
60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, and Article 18, Section S(B) of the Agreement. 

SECTION 6- Special Compensatory Leave 

(A) Special Compensatory Leave is defined as leave that is earned as provided in Rule 
60L-34, Florida AdrT'tinistrative Code, for hours worked on a holiday, exh·a hours worked during 
an established work week which contains a holiday. or extra hours worked when the employee's 
assigned office. facility, or region is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Govemor or 
any other disaster or emergency condition. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene "Hal'' Johnson 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



(B) Use of Special Compensatory Leave: 

PBA/Fiorida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5-16 
January 26.2015 

Page 4 of5 

( 1) When an employee earns special compensatoty leave credits, the 
employee shall have 60 calendar days in which to use the earned special compensatory leave 
time. 

(2) rf the employee fails to use the earn ed special compensatory leave during 
the 60 day period, the supervisor shall schedul e the employee to use the leave. 

(3) An employee who has a leave balance in excess of 240 ho urs shall be 
required to use a minimum of 110 hours of the employee·s earned special compensatory leave 
each calendar year or the amount necessary to bring the employee·s special compensatory leave 
balance to 240 hours, whichever is less, prior to us ing any annual leave credits. 

(4) An employee who begins employment after July 1, 20 13 shall only be 
pennitted to accumulate a max imum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave cred its, 
notw ithstanding any additional hours worked on a hol iday, eluting the established work week 
containing a ho liday. or during the closure pf the employee's assigned oftlce. facility, or region 
pursuant to an Executi ve Order of the Governor or any other disaster or emergency conditi on . 

SECTION 7 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer 

The DHSMV shall set up and administer a s ick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan for 
employees if there is suftlcient employee parti cipation to render the pool and sick leave transfer 
plan admini stratively feasible. Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full access 
to the benefits. of the DHS MV' s existing s ick leave pool and s ick lt!ave transfer plan. 

SECTION 8- Section 440.15(11), Florida Statutes- FuJI-Pay Status 

(A) An employee who sustains a j ob-connected disability and meets the e ligibility 
requirements, as provided tor in section 440.15( 11 ). Florida Statutes, may be carried in full-pay 
status. 

(B) Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be 
subject to the Grievance Procedure of thi s Agreement. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. l-Iar· Jo hnson 
Sta te 's Chief Labor Negot iator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



PB N Fiorida Highway Patrol Unit 
Sta te Proposal - Article 18 (Stat11s Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26, 201 5 

Page 5 o f 5 

SECTION 9- Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code - Disability Leave with Pay 

A n employee who sustains a job-connected disab ility which is not covered b y Section 8 
above, is eligible for d isability leave with pay under the provis ions o f Chapter 60L-34, Flo rida 
Administrati ve Code. The Agency Head or designee shall not unreasonably refuse to submit a 
request to carry an employee in full-pay status under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Florida 
Administrat ive Code, prov ided, however, the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Serv ices or designee shall have the ti ght to determine whether or not an employee should be 
carried in full-pay starus for more than 26 weeks. A n employee shall not be required to use 
accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be carri ed in full-pay status· under 
Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrati ve Code. However, no employee shall be carried in full 
pay st atus until he has uti I ized I 00 ho urs of accumulated s ick leave. annual leave. compensatory 
leave or leave w ithout pay. 

SECTION 10 - Alternate Duty 

(A) Where an employee is eligible to r disability leave with pay under Rules of the 
State Personnel System as a result of an injury in the line o f duty, and is temporaril y unab le to 
perfo nn his norm al wo rk duties, the Agency Head or designee shall give due cons ideration to 
any request by the employee to be temporaril y ass igned substitute d uties w ithin the employce·s 
medical restrictions. This sha ll have no etlec t on the agency' s ability to make a di ffe rent 
assignment based upon cun·ent medical opinion . 

(B ) A complaint concerning th is Section may be grieved in accordance w ith Article 6 
of th is Agreement up to and inc luding Step 2. The decis ion o f the Agency Head or designee 
shall be final and binding on all parties. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. Hal .. Johnson 
State 's Chie f Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chid'Negoti ator 

Date Date 



SECTION 1 -General Pay Provisions 

Article 25 
WAGES 

PBA/Fiorida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal -Article 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
Januaty 26.2015 

Page I of2 

Agencies' authority to provide increases to employees' base rate of pay and salary 
additives from <lVailable agency funds shall be in accordar'lce with this Agreement, state law, and 
the fi scal Year 2015-20 16 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

fn accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 GeneraJ 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the agency head's discretion, 
each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee 's base rate of pay to each employee temporaril y deployed to a facility or area 
closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 3- Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Pem1anent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to. a11d in 
accordance with. section 11 0.219(7). Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 4- Performance Pay 

In a~.:cordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act and from existing agency resources. each agency !s authorized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee· s exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 5- Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or gi·oups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a c-ost saving to the state, pursuant to section I I 0.1245( I), Flotida 
Statutes. 

Fot· the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. Hal .. Johnson 
State"s Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and ChiefNegotiator 

Date Date 



SECTION 6- Discretiona•·y Raises 

PBA/Fiorida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year2015-16 
January 26, 2015 

Page 2 of2 

In accordance with the autholity provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the agency head·s discretion. 
each agency is autho1ized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other stafting issues. 

For the State For the PBA 

Michael Mattimore Gene .. 1-lal'' Johnson 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator General Counsel and Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 





Florida Htgbway Patrol Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 18-Houn of Work 
1~15~15 

*Article 18, Section 6, New Subsection (~ 

(C) Special Compensatory Leave Payment Option 

WORKING 
DRAFT 

On or after July 1. 2015. contingent on the availability of funds and at the 
Agency's Head's discretion, each agency is authorized to enter into negotiations with 
PBA providing payment to an employee for special compensatory leave earned as 
provided for in Rule 60L-34. Florida Administrative Code or Section 6(A) of this Article. 
The terms of such agreement shall be set forth in a memorandum ef ~mmt mutually 
agreed to by the Agency and PBA 

•other sections of Article 18 remain wtchanged from current language 

) 



Florida Highway Patrol Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 25- Wages_, Section 1 and 2 
1-15-lS 

• Article 25 - Section 1 -Pay Provision - General: 

WORKING 
DRA:FT 

(A) Pay shaJI be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2()14 2()152015-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance 
I with state law and the Fiscal Year 2()14 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Special Pay Issue: 

1 The state agrees to fu:tptement the Fiseel Ye&£ 2()14 2()152015-2016 Special Pay 

I Issue provided ftmEled iR Speeifie Apprepriatiea 1981 in eeeefd&Bee with seeties 8(2)(tl) 
efthe Fiseel Yearin the 2()14 2()152015-2016 General Appropriations Act~ 

Effective July l. 2015. each employee with less than seven years of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of ~3.0% pefeeftt on the employee's June 30. 
2015. base rate of pay or, at a minimum. an annual $1200 increase in the employee's 
June 30. 2015 base rate of PAY· whichever is greater. 

Effective July 1. 2015. each employee with seven years or more of sworn service 
sha11 receive a competitive pay adjustment of5.0% on the employee's June 30,2015 base 
rate of pay or. at a minimum. an annual $1500 increase in the employee's June 30. 2015 
base rate of pay. whichever is greater. 

I •Other sections of Article 25 remain unchanged from current language 

< 





Police Benevolent Association (PBA) • Florida Highway Patrol CBU 12 Economic Proposals 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Union/Issue 
Estimated 

Comments 
Cost 

Article 18/23: proposes that the State allow its 
three law enforcement bargainjng units to pilot a 
holiday leave program for all bargaining unit 
employees receiving special compensatory leave 
on a holiday or day designated by the Governor as 
a holiday. Employees would be paid for all hours Indeterminate 
worked on a holiday in place of receiving special 
compens-atory leave for working on a holiday or for 
the hours in their regularly scheduled work shift. 
The holiday pay would be in addition to the regular 
pay for working on a holiday. 

Article 24: Call back minimums set at a minimum 
of four hours. Court appearance time increased to Indeterminate 
three hours. 

Article 25: Effective July 1, 2015, each employee 
with less than/more than seven years of sworn Calculation is based on current active employees and excludes 
service shall receive a competitive pay adjustment vacancies. A 3% increase (or $1,200 min) for those not yet having 7 
of 3%/5% percent on the employee's June 30, $4 M years ($1 ,243,807) and a 5% increase (or $1 ,500 min) for those with 7 
2015, base rate of pay or. at a minimum an annual or more years ($2.706,339). People First was the source of data for 
$1200/$1500 increase in the employee's June 30, calculation including retirement and FICA. 
2015 base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

Article 27: Health insurance benefits and No Increased The Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
employee contributions would remain unchanged 
for the upcoming fiscal year. 

Cost maintains benefits at the starus quo for the bargaining unit. 

Page 1 of 1 





Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Un it - State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

r tc es at mpasse: ' A r· I I 18 25 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

I - Recognition State Pro2osal ofDecember 152 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
2 - Gender Reference State Progosal ofDecember 15,20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state 's proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

3 - Vacant State Progosal ofDecember 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
4 - No Discrimination State Progosal of December 15. 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

5 - Employee State Progosal of December 15. ?0 14: Union Progosal of Janu~ 15, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 
Representation and PBA Status quo Withdrawn on February 3, 2015 signed state's proposal on 
Activities February 5, 20 15. 
6 - Grievance Procedure State Progosal ofFebruarx 3, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 

Section 3(G)(4)- proposes when the signed state's proposal on 
parties agree to mediate a grievance, the February 3, 20 15. 
scheduled date for the arbitration hearing 
provided in section (5)(d) may be extended 
by mutual agreement beyond five months. 

Section 3(G)(5)(c) - proposes at least 
fifteen days before the scheduled date of 
the arbitration hearing, the parties shall file 
with the arbitrator, and provide to each 
other, a list of witnesses to be called at the 
hearing, except rebuttal witnesses, and a 

Page I of II 



Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Ar ticles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Clo.,·ed 

Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

7 - Internal Investigations 

8 - Workforce Reduction 

9 - Reassignment, Lateral 
Action, Transfer, Change 
in Duty Station and 
Promotion 

Articles at Impasse: 18, 25 
State Proposal 

btief statement of the material facts about 
which each witness wi ll testify. A party 
may tile a written request with the 
arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the 
other party, for an exception to the fi ling 
time limits for good cause. If such 
exception is granted, the other party may 
request that the heating be rescheduled if 
necessary for the pa11y to respond to the 
late filed witness information. 

Section 5(B)(2) - proposes in the case of a 
class action grievance, the grievance form 
shall identify the specific group (i.e., 
employees' job classification(s), work 
unit(s), etc.) adversely impacted by the 
dispute relating to the interpretation or 
application of the Agreement. 
State Proposal ofDecember 15,2014: 
Status quo 

State Proposal ofDecember 15, 2014: 
Status quo 

State Proposal of January 26, 2015: 
Section l O(A) - proposes an employee 
appointed to a position, including a 
position to which the employee has been 

Page 2 of II 

Union Proposal Comments 

Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state· s proposal on 
January 19, 20 15. 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 
Tentatively agreed to and 
signed state· s proposal on 
February 3, 20 15. 



Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patr ol Unit - State Personnel System 
C urrent O ne-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 

Status of Collective Barga ining as of February 5, 20 IS 
Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Art icles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Clo.,·ed 
rflc es at mpas.,·e: , A . I I 18 25 

Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
9 - Reassignment, Lateral promoted, must successfully complete at a 
Action, Transfer, Change least a one-year probationary period before 
in Duty Station and attain ing permanent status in the position. 
Promotion (continued) 

Section 1 O(B) - proposes an agency's 
actions in removing or dismissing an 
employee from a probationary position to 
which the employee has been promoted 
from a position in which the employee held 
permanent status are governed by the 
provisions of Section II 0.217(3 ), Florida 
Statutes, and, pursuant to this statutory 
provision, are not grievable. 

I 0 - Disciplinary Action State Progosal of December 1 5 ~ 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state · s proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
II - Classification State Progosal of December 15~ 201 4: Tentatively agreed to and 
Review (B) - provides specific broadband signed state· s proposal on 

tem1i nology for classification reviews. February 3, 2015. 

12 - Personnel Records State Progosal of December 1 5~ 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
(A) Infonnation in an employee's offic ial signed state ' s proposal on 
personnel file may be maintained in February 3, 2015. 
electronic as well as paper form. 

(B) If a derogatory document is placed in 
an employee' s official personnel fi le, the 

Page 3 of I I 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 
(continued) 

Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 18, 25 
State Proposal 

employee will have a right to respond to 
any such document fi led, and the 
employee's response will be attached to the 
file copy. 

(D) If a disciplinary action is not 
sustained, or is unfounded, or is otherwise 
detem1ined to otherwise be invalid, or 
when an employee is exonerated of a 
charge brought in a disciplinary action, the 
record copy of such action shall be placed 
in an envelope, together with a letter of 
explanation, the outside of the envelope 
and all pages of the document shall be 
marked --vOID'·. and retained in the 
employee's personnel file. ln the case of 
electronic records, a Personnel Action 
Request (PAR) that has been detennined to 
be void shall have a note added to the PAR 
fonn indicating that the action is ·'VOID'·. 

(E) Information in an employee·s onicial 
personnel file is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 11 9, Florida Statutes, unless 
specifically exempted by state or federal 
law (such as protected health information 
and social security numbers), and as such, 
must be provided to anyone desiring 

Page 4 of II 

Union Proposal Comments 



Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closet/ 
rttc .es at mpasse: ' 

A . I I 18 25 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

12 - Personnel Records inspection or requesting copies in 
(continued) accordance with the provisions ofthe 

Public Records Law. 

13 - Safety State ProQosal ofDecember 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
14 - Performance Review State PrOQOSal of FebruarJ:: 3, 2015: Union ProQosal of JanuarJ:: 15, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo Section I (C)- proposes numerical signed state's proposal on 
arrest citations or violation quotas not February 3, 20 15. 
be used in reviewing an employee's 
performance. 

15 - Seniority State ProQosal of December 15, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
16 - Employment Outside State ProQosal of December 15,20 14 : Tentatively agreed to and 
State Government Status quo signed state· s proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
17 - Grooming Standards State Progosa1 of December 15, ?O 14: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state· s proposal on 
January 19,2015. 

18 - Hours ofWork, State ProQosal of JanuarJ:: 26, 2015: Union ProQosal of JanuarJ:: 15, 20 15: 
Leave and Job-Connected Status quo Section 6, New Subsection (C) - Costing Estimate: 
Disability proposes on or after July I , 20 15, Indeterminate 

contingent on the availability of funds 
and at the agency head·s disc retion, 
each agency is authorized to enter into 

Page 5 of II 



Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Y car Agreement Expires June 30, 20 IS 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 
Fisca l Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closed 
rile es a mpasse: ' 

A . I t l 18 25 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

18 - Hours of Work, negotiations with the PBA providing 
Leave and Job-Connected payment to an employee for special 
Disability (continued) compensatory leave earned as provided 

tor in Rule 60L-34, F.A.C., or Section 
6(A) of this article. The terms of such 
agreemen t shall be set fo1ih in a 
memorandum mutuall y agreed to by the 
agency and the PBA. 

19 - Personal Property - State .ProQosal of December 1 5~ 2014: Tentati vely agreed to and 
Replacement and/or Status quo signed state's proposal on 
Reimbursement January 19,20 15. 
20 - Training and State Progosal of December 15~ 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Education Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
2 1 - Compensation for State Progosal of December 15~ 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Temporary Special Duty in Status quo signed state's proposal on 
Higher Level Position January 19, 2015. 
22 - Vacant State Progosal of December 15~ 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state's proposal on 
January 19, 2015. 

23- Equipment State Progosal ofDecember 1 5~ 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
24 - On-Call Assignment State Progosal of January 26~ 20 15: Union ProQosal of January 1 5~ 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 
-Call-Back - Court Section 2 - strikes in its entirety provision signed state's proposal on 
Appearance requiring an agency to request approval February 3, 20 15. 

Page 6 of II 



Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 20 I 5 
Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closed 

Article 
24- On-Call Assignment 
-Call-Back - Court 
Appearance (continued) 

Articles at Impasse: 18, 25 
State Proposal 

from DMS for on-call pay (this was 
delegated to the agencies in 20 12). 

Section 2(A)- an employee who is 
required to be on-call shall be paid an on
call additive in an amount of$1.00 per 
hour for the hom·(s) the employee is 
required to be on-call pursuant to Rule 
60L-32.00 l2(2)(b), F.A.C. 

Section 2(8) - an employee who is 
required to be on-call on a Saturday, 
Sunday, and/or a holiday as listed in 
section 11 0. 117(1 ), F.S., will be paid an 
on-call additive in an amount per hour 
equal to one-quarter of the statewide hourly 
minimum for the employee·s paygrade for 
the hour(s) the employee is required to be 
on-call pursuant to Rule 60L-
32.0012(2)(b), F.A.C. 

Union Proposal 

Section 5- proposes if an employee is 
subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a 
job-related court case, not during the 
employee's regular assigned shift, the 
employee shall be credited for actual 
time worked, or a minimum of three 
hours, whichever is greater. 

Page 7 of II 

Comments 

Current contract provides 
for actual time worked or 
minimum of two and half 
hours. 



Article 
15 - Wages 

Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 

Fiscal Y car 2015- 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closet! 

Articles at Impasse: 18, 25 
State Proposal 

State Proposal of January ?6. 10 15: 
Section l -General Pay Provisions 
Agencies· authority to provide increases to 
cmpk)yees· base rate of pay and sa lary 
additives tl·om available agency funds shall 
be in accordance with this Agreement. state 
law, and the Fiscal Y car 2015-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Deployment to a Fac ility or 
Area Closed due to Emergency 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Y car 20 15-2016 General 

Union Prop_osal 
Union Proposal of January 15. 20 15: 
Section 2 - proposes effective July I , 
20 15. each employee with k s than 7 
years of sworn service shall receive a 
competitive pay adjustment of 3% on 
the employee·s June 30.2015 base rate 
of pay. or a minimum annual increase of 
$ 1.200 in the employee's .I une 30. 20 15 
base rate of pay. whichever is greater; 
each employee with 7 years or more of 
sworn service shall receive a 
competi tive pay adjustment of 5% or a 
minimum annual increase of$ 1.500, 

Appropriations Act. cont ingent on the whichever is greater. 
availabil ity of funds and at the Agency 
llcad·s discretion. each agency is 
authorized to grant a temporary special 
duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee· s base rate of pay to each 
employee temporaril y deployed to a faci lity 
or area closed due to emergency condi tions 
from another area of the state that is not 
closed. 

Section 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
Permanent Career Service employees may 
be given the option of receiving up to 24 
hours of unused annual leave each 

Page 8 of II 

Comments 

Costing Estimate: 
~4 million 



Article 

Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 
Fiscal Year 20 IS - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Shaded = Closed 
A rticle.'!o· at Impasse: 18, 2 5 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
25 - Wages (continued) December in the form of a cash payout 

subject to, and in accordance with. section 
I I 0.219(7). F.S. 

Section 4- Perto m1ance Pay 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriat ions Act. und from existing 
agency resources. each agency is 
authorized to grant merit pay increases 
based on the employee's e:-;cmplary 
pcrfom1ancc, as evidenct:d by a 
performance evaluation conducted pursuant 
to Rule 60L-35, F.A.C. 

Sedion 5 - Savings Sharing Program 
An employee or groups of employees may 
be eligib le to r monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the 
tate, pursuant to section I I 0. 1245( I ). F.S. 

Section 6- Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Y car 20 15-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the 
availability of funds und at the Agency 
Heud·s di scretion. each agency is 
authori zed to grant competitive pay 

Page 9 of II 

Comments 



Police Benevolent Association 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles O pen for Negotia tion 
Shaded = C/m;ed 

rttc es at mpas . ..,·e: ' 
A . I I 18 25 

Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
25 - Wages (continued) adjustments to address retention, pay 

inequities, or other staffing issues. 

26 - Unifonns and State Prouosal ofDecember 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Accessories Status quo signed state ' s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
27 - Insurance Benefits State Prouosal of January 26,2015: Union Progosal of Janua1:y 15, 2015: Tentatively agreed to and 

Section I - The benefits and the employee Section I - proposes no change to the signed state ' s proposal on 
share of premiums for the State Employees heal th insurance benefits and employee February 3, 20 15. 
Group Health Self-Insurance Plan shall contribution rates for Fiscal Year 20 15-
remain unchanged for Fiscal Year 201 5- 2016. 
20 16. 

28- Travel Expenses State Prouosal ofDecember 15.2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state' s proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
29 - Drug Testing State Progosal ofDecember 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state' s proposal on 
January 19, 20 15. 

30 - No Strike State Progosal of December 15,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state · s proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
31 - State Personnel State ProQosal ofDecember 15.20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
System Rules Status quo signed state ·s proposal on 

January 19, 20 15. 
32 - Management Rights State ProQosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 

Status quo signed state· s proposal on 
January L 9, 20 15. 

Page 10 of II 



Article 
33 - Entire Agreement 

34 - Savings Clause . 

35 - Duration 

36 - Awards 

Police Benevolent Assoc iation 
Florida Highway Patrol Unit - State Personnel System 
Current One-Y car Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 

Status of Collective Bargaining as of February 5, 2015 
Fiscal Year 2015 - 16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions- All Articles Open for Negotiation 

Sluuletl = Closed 
rttc e ..... at mpttsse: • A . I I 18 25 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State ProQosal ofDecember 15,20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19,2015. 
State ProQosal ofDecember 15,20 14: Tentatively af,JTeed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 
State Progosal of December 15, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Proposes 1-year agreement to expire on signed state's proposal on 
June 30, 2016. February 3, 20 15. 
State ProQosal ofDecember 15,20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo signed state's proposal on 

January 19, 2015. 

Page II of II 



Teamsters Local 
Union No. 2011 



For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Article 3 
VACANT 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 I I 
State Proposal - A1ticle 3 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 1 of 1 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horslen 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Article 4 

Teamsters Local Union No. 201 I 
State Proposal - Article 4 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 201 5-16 
January 23. 2015 

Page l of 1 

NO DISCRIM INATION 

SECTION I - Non-Discrimination Policy - State-Federal Law 

(A) The state and the Union shall not d iscriminate against any employee for any 
reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law. 

(8 ) The Union shall have the ri ght to consult on issues of unlawful di scrimination 
with the Step I Management Representative and/or designee(s), up through the Step 2 
Management Representati ve and/or designee(s), to the Depa11ment of Management Services. 

(C) A ny claim of unlawfu l discrimination by an employee against the s tate, its 
officials or representatives, except fo r grievances related to Union membership, shall onl y be 
subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by r'Liles and regulati ons hav ing the force 
and effect o f law. 

(D ) The Union agrees to support the state ' s cunent affirmati ve act ion programs and 
etfo11s to compl y with the Americans with Disabili ties Act. 

SECTION 2- Non-Discrimination Policy - Union Membership 

Nei ther the state nor the Union shall interfere with the ri ght of employees covered by this 
Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and neither the state nor 
the Unio n shall discr iminate against an employee because of membersh ip o r non-membershi p in 
any employee organization. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Ho ll y Van Hors ten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Article 5 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 ll 
State Proposal- Article 5 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
D ecember 16, 2014 

Page 1 of6 

UNION ACTIVITIES AND EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION 

SECTION 1- Definitions 

(A) The term ··employee·· as used in this Agreement. shall mean an employee 
included in the bargaining unit represented by the Union. 

(B) The tenn .. G1ievance Representative ... as used in this Agreement, shall mean an 
employee designated by the President of the Union to investigate grievances at the Oral Step and 
to represent a gJievant at the Oral Step and Step I meetings on grievances which have been 
properly filed under Article 6 of this Agreement, when the Union has been selected as the 
employee·s representative. 

(C) The term "Training Academies .. as used in this A1iicle. shall mean any location 
where training is conducted to meet initial ce1tification requirements. 

SECTION 2- Designation of Employee Representatives 

(A) The President of the Union shal l furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of 
Union Business Agents. The state wi ll not recognize any person as a Business Agent whose 
name does not appear on the list. 

(B) The Union shall select a reasonable number of employees to be Union Stewards. 
The Union shall fumish the state the name, ofiicial class title, name of employing agency, and 
specific work location of each employee designated to act as a Union Steward . The state shall 
not recognize an employee as an authorized Union Steward unti l such infot111ation has been 
received from the Union. 

(C) Union Business Agents and Stewards may represent employees as Grievance 
Representatives. 

SECTION 3- Bulletin Boards 

(A) Wher-e requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish in state-contr-olled facilities 
to which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 4 'x4 · for Union-purchased bulletin 
boards of an equal size. Such bulletin boards will be placed at a state facility in an area normally 
accessible to, and frequented by, ctnployees. Once a location has been estab li shed, it shall not be 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s ChiefLabor Negotiator 

Date 

Fot· the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 5 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December I 6, 20 14 

Page 2 of6 

moved without notice. Where the Union cutTently maintains bulletin boards or bulletin board 
space, that practice shall continue. 

(B) The use of Union bulletin board space is limited to the following notices: 

( 1) Recreational and social atTairs of the Union 

(2) Union meetings 

(3) Union elections 

(4) Rep011s ofUnion committees 

(5) Union benefit programs 

(6) Current Union Agreement 

(7) Train ing and educational opportunities 

(S) Decisions reached through consultation meetings, as approved by the 
Depm1ment of Management Services 

(9) Notices of wage increases for covered employees 

(C) Materials posted on these bulletin boards shall nol contain anything, which 
violates or has the effect of violating any Jaw, rule. or regulation. nor sha ll any posted material 
contain anything reflecting adversely on the state or any of its ofticers or employees. 

(D) Postings must be elated and bear the signature of an authorized Union 
represcntati ve. 

(E) A violation of these proviSIOns by a Unioo Business Agent, Steward, or an 

authorized representative shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board privileges for that 
representative by the Department of Management Services. 

SECTION 4 - Information 

(A) Upon request of the Union on no more than on a quarterly basis, the state will 
provide it with personnel data fi·om the state personnel database (Peoplt: First). These data will 
in<.:lude employees· names. home addresses. work locations. classification titles. and other data 
elements as identified by the Union that are not confidenti al under state law. This infonnation 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 10 II 
State Proposal - Article 5 

Fiscal Year2015-16 
December 16, 20 14 

Page 3 of6 

wiU be prepared on the basis of the latest infcm11ation available in the database at the time of the 
request. 

(B) It is the state's policy to protect employee data exempt from public access under 
the provisions of Florida Statute 119.071 ( 4) t1·om inadvertent or improper disclosure. Such data 
include home addresses, telephone numbers, seei-al security nun1bers, and dates of birth. The 
Union agrees, therefore, that these exempt data are provided for the sole and exclusive use of the 
Union in carrying out its role as cettifiecl bargaining agent. This information may not be relayed, 
sold, or transfetTed to a third party and may not be used by an entity or individual for any 
purpose other than Union business. 

(C) Upon request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide accredited 
representatives information. documents. or other public records for the investigation of an 
employee· s grievance. 

SECTJON 5 - Occupation Pt·ofiles and Rules 

(A) The state will maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the 
occupation profiles and the Rules ofthe State Personnel System. 

(B) In instances where the state detennines that a .revision to an occupation profile or 
occupational level for positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Depmtment of 
Management Services shall notify the Union in writing of the proposed changes. This procedul'e 
shall not constitute a waiver of the Union's right to bargain over such matters in accordance with 
Chapter 447. Patt Ir, Florida Statutes and applicable law. The Union shall noti fy the Department 
of Management Services, in writing within ten calendar days of its receipt of written notification 
from the Department, of its comments conceming the proposed changes, or of its desire to 
discuss the proposed chnnge(s). Failure of the Union to notify the Depat1ment of Management 
Services within this specified petiod shall constitute a waiver of the right to discuss the 
change(s) . 

SECTION 6- RepreseJJtatin Access 

(A) The state agrees that accredited representatives of the Union shall have -access to 
the premises of the state which are available to the public. 

(B) If any area of the state's premises is restricted to the public, permission must be 

For the State For the Teamsters 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Hol ly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal -Article 5 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 16, 2014 

Page 4 of6 

requested to enter such areas and such permission wi ll not be unreasonably denied. Such access 
shall be during the regular working hours of the employee and shall be to investigate an 
employee's grievance. 

SECTION 7 - New Employee Orientation and T raining Academies 

The Union will be permitted a IS-minute presentation to address new employees at 
orientation and training academies. The Union may issue each new recruit a copy of the current 
Security Services Agreement, discuss the provisions of the Agreement, and programs available 
through the Union. A presentation may be made only once per academy class. The Union 
President or designee will be notified 14 days in advance of new employee training whenever 
practicable. 

SECTION 8- Consultation 

(A) In order to provide a means for continuing communication between the pariies 
and upon request of the President of the Union, the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Services and/or his designated representative(s) and not more than three representatives of the 
Union shall make a good faith effort to meet and consu lt quarterly. Such meetings shal l be held 
at a time and place designated by tile Department of Management Services. 

(B) Upon request by the designated Union Staff Representative, the Agency Head 
and/or designee(s) and the Staff Representative. with not more than three Union representatives 
from the agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and consu lt quarterly. Such meetings 
shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the Agency Head or his designee after 
consulting with the Union Staff Representative. 

(C) Upon request by the designated Union Statf Representative. the Step I 
Management Representative and/or designee(s) and the designated Union Staff Representative, 
wi th not more than two Union r-epresentatives from the agency, shall make a good taith effort to 
meet and consu lt. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the Step l 
Management Representative after consulting with the Union Staff Representative. A copy of all 
requests shall be served on both the agency aJ1Cl the Union at their principal offices. 

(D ) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consider:ation to the 
availability and work location of al l parties. lf a consultation meeting is held or requires 
reasonable travel time during the regular work hours of any participant, such hours shall be 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 I l 
State Proposal - A1iicle 5 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 16, 2014 

Page 5 of6 

deemed time worked. Attendance at a consultation meeting outside of a participant's regular 
work hours shall not be deemed time worked. 

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 
administration of this Agreement and agency activities affecting employees. It is understood that 
these meetings shall not be used tor the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for 
negotiation purposes. The parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to 
discuss no later than seven calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date. 

(F) An agency shall prepare a w1itten response to issues raised during a consultation 
meeting within 30 days after the date of the meeting. 

SECTION 9- Negotiations 

1A} The Union agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with state 
representatives designated tor that purpose by the Governor. as Chief Executive Officer. Whi le 
negotiating meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee. the state and the Union may agree to 
meet elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the state. 
There shall be no negotiation by the Union at any other level of state government. 

(8) The Union may designate certain employees within this unit to serve as its 
Negotiation Comm ittee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend 
negotiating sessions with the state. An employee serving on the Negotiation Committee shall 
also be granted a maximwn of eight hours administrative leave to attend a negotiation 
preparatory meeting to be held the calendar day immediately preceding each scheduled 
negotiation session, provided that the negotiation preparatory meeting is held on what would 
othe1wise be the employee's normal workday. No employee shall be credited with more than the 
number of hours in the employee's regular workday tor anv day the emplovee is in negotiations. 
The total number of hours. including the hours spent in negotiation preparatory meetings, paid all 
employees on the Union·s Negotiation Committee shall not exceed 1000 hours. The ti me in 
attendance at such preparatory meetings and negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours 
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or ove1time. The agency shall not 
reimburse the employee for h·avel. meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with 
attendance at preparatory meetings or negotiating sessions. 

(C) No more than two employees shall be selected from the same work unit at any 

For the State For the Teamsters 

Michael Matt imore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 ll 
State Proposal - Article 5 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
December 16. 20 14 

Page 6 of6 

one time, nor shall tl1e selection of any employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit. 

SECTION 10- Union Activities 

Employees shall have the right to request leave without pay. annual, or compensatory 
leave for the pumose of attending Union conventions, conferences. and meetings. When such 
requests cannot be granted, tl1e supervisor shall provide such denial in wtiting. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Un ion No. 2011 
State Proposal- Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 23, 20 15 

Page 1 of 12 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

lt is the policy of the state and Union to encourage informal discussions between 
supervisors and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view 
to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the fonnal gtievance procedure prescribed 
hy this A11icle. 

SECTION 1- Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) ··Grievance·· shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, tiled on 
the appropriate tom1 as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 

(B) --Grievant'" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same 
grievance. In the case of a group of employees one employee shall be designated by the brroup to 
ad as spokesperson and to be respohsible for processing the grievance. 

(C) .. Days" shall mean business days ... Business days .. refers to the ordinary business 
hours, i.e .. 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the 
recipient is located. ftJrlhermore, "business days·· do not include any day observed as a holiday 
pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list 
furni shed to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a 
suspension of grievance processing as agreed in writing by the parties ... Business days·· also do 
not include a day(s) on which the otlices of DMS or any agency employing bargaining unit 
members are closed under an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise tor an emergency 
condition or disaster under the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0071 (3 )(e). 

SECTJON 2 -Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If a grievant or the Union has a grievance which may be processed under this 
Article aJld which may also be appealed to the Public Employees Relations Commission, the 
grievant or the Union shall indicate at the time the grievance is teduced to writing which 
procedure is to be used and such decision shall be binding on the grievant or the Union. In the 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
Statc·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal -Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
Januaty 23. 20 15 

Page2 of 12 

case of any duplicate fi ling, the action first tiled will be the one processed. 

(B) A grievant who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at the Oral 
Step or initial \-Vritten step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be 
represented by the Un ion. If the grievant is represented by the Un ion, a11y decision agreed to by 
the state and Union shall be binding on the grievant. 

(C) Where Union representation is requested by a grievant. the grievant's 
representative shall be selected from the list of Union Grievance Representatives or Union 
Business Agents which has been provided to the state by the Union. When an employee has been 
appropriately designated to serve as a Grievance Representative and the state has been notified in 
accordance with Article 5, Section 2 (B). the Grievance Representative shall be ~mthorized to 
investigate grievances and represent grievants in accordance with this Article. subject to the 
following limitations: 

( I ) A Grievance Representati ve will not he allowed time off with pay to 
investigate his own grievance. 

(2) Time spent by a Grievance Representative in investigating a grievance 
shall be the minimum amount of time necessary to peli'orm the specific investigation involved. 

(a) If a grievant selects a Grievance Representative to represent him in 
a grievance which has been properly filed in a~.:cordance with this Article. the Grie,·ance 
Representative may be allowed a reasonable am ount of aiUlUal or compensatory leave to 
investigate the grievance. Such annual or compensatory leave shall be subject to prior approval 
by the Grievance Representati ve's immediate supervisor: however, approval of such leave will 
not be withheld if the Grievance Representative can be allowed sucb time off without interfering 
w ith, or unduly hampering the operations of the unit to which the Gtievance Representative is 
regu larl y assigned. The Grievance Representative' s immediate supervisor will notify the 
grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Grievance Representative time off to investigate the 
gnevance. 

(b) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere 
with state operations. 

(c) The Grievance Representative must be selected ti·om Grievance 

For the State For the Teamsters 

Michael Mattimorc 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Dale Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 23,2015 

Page 3 of 12 

Representatives within the same work unit as the gtievanfs work unit. If no Grievance 
Representative is located in the grievant's work unit, the Grievance Representative must be 
selected from the work unit located closest to the gticvanfs ,;..rork location. fn no case shall a 
Grievance Representative who is on duty be allowed to travel more than 50 miles from his 
official work location in order to investigate a grievance. Such n·avel limitation shall not apply 
when the Grievance Representative is not on duty. 

(d) A G1ievance Representative selected to represent a gri evant as 
provided in this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step I grievance meeting. 

(D) The grievant and the grievant's representative. if any, shall be notified of the Step 
meeting. Further, all communication conceming written grievances or their resolution shall be 

in writing, wi th a copy sent to the grievant and the gri evant's representative. 

(E) If the grievant is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance 
shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Union shaH be given reasonable 
oppo1iunity to be present at any meeting called for the reso lution o f the grievance. and 
processing of the grievance will be in accordance with the procedures established in this 
Agreement. The Union shall not be bound by the decis ion of any grievance in which the grievant 
chose not to be represented by the Union. 

(F) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writi ng at Step 3 
arbitration shall not establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases. 

SECTION 3 - Procedures 

(A) Employee grievances tiled in accordance with thi s Article are to be presented and 
handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances. 
Grievances may be filed and responded to by facsimile. electronic mail, mai l, or personal 
delivery. 

(8) After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. 

(C) There ::;hall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures 
contained herein by reason ofsuch pariicipation. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Un ion No. 201l 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
Januaty 23, 2015 

Page 4 of 12 

(D) If a grievance meeting, mediation, o r arbitration hearing is held or req uires 
reasonable travel time during the regu lar work hours of a grievant, a representative of the 
grievant, or any required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at 
grievance meetings. mediation. or arbitration hearings outs ide of a participant' s regular work 
hours shall not be deetned time worked. The state will oot pay the expenses of any pru1icipants 
attending such meetings on behalf of the union. 

(E) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the fo llowing manner, and no 
indiv idual may respond to a g~ievance at more than one written step. 

( I ) Oral Discussion 

(a) An employee hav ing a gtievance may, within I 5 days following 
the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. initiate the grievance by presenting it 
orall y to the Oral Step representative or by filing a w ritten grievance at Step 1. The Oral Step 
representative shall make every effort to resolve the g~ievancc at the Oral Step, including 
meet ing to discuss the grievance if such meeting is requested by the grievant or the gri evant's 
representati ve if a meeting is deemed necessary by the Oral Step representati ve. The Oral Step 
representative shall communicate a dec ision to the gri evant and the grievant' s representa tive. if 
any, within I 0 days following the date the grievance is received at the Oral Step. 

(b) Failure to communicate the decis ion wi thin the specitled time limit 
shal1 permit the gri evant, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(c) The number of days indicated at this step shall be cons idered as the 
maximum , and every eft<.1rt w ill be made to ex pedite the process. However. the time limits 
s pecifi ed in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific ins tance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both s ides. 

(d) The Oral Step represen tati ve fo r correctional institu tions shall be 
the Chief C<..) JTectional Officer or designee. The Oral Step representative for community 
corrections shall be the Circuit Admini strator, or designee. The Oral Step representati ve fo r 
employees in the institutional security specialist series shall be the Security Chief or designee. 

(2) Step I 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s Chief Labor Negoti ator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holl y Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Atiicle 6 

Fiscal Y ear 2015-16 
January 23, 20 15 

Page 5 of 12 

(a) If the gtievant elects to utilize tbe oral d iscussion step and the 
grievance is not resolved, the gri evant or the designated gri evance representative may submit it 
in w riting to the Step I m anagement representati ve w ithin I 0 days to llowing the receipt of the 
oral step decis ion. lfthe grievant e lects notto utili ze the oral di scussion provision o f this section 
he may file a written grievance at Step I. prov ided such w ritten gtievance is fil ed within 15 days 
fo llowing the occunence of the event g iving rise to the gri evance. In filing a grievance at Step I, 
the grievant or the designated grievance representative shall submit to the Step I Management 
Representa ti ve a grievance fom1 as contained in Appendi x B, setting forth speciticall y the 
c<.m~pl ete facts on w hich the gri evance is based , the specific provision or provisions o f the 
Agreement a ll egedl y violated. and the re lief requested. All written documents to be cons idered 
by the Step l Management Representati ve shall be submitted with the grievance form ; however, 
if addi tional written documentati on is obtained after the grievance is fi led. such documentation 
may be presented at the Step l meeting . 

(b) The Step Management Representati ve or des ignated 
t"epresentati vc shall meet to discuss the gti evance and shall communicate a decision in. writing to 
the grievant and the grievant's representa tive, if any. within 15 days fo llo·wing the date the 
grievance is received at Step 1. 

(c) Failure to communicate the de~.;is i on within the specified time limit 
shall permit the grievant, o r the U nion where appro priate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days ind icated at thi s step shall be cons idered as the 
maximum, and evety eff01i will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specifi ed in any step of this procedure may be extended in Wli ting in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided thel"e is agreement by both s ides. 

{3) Step 2 

(a ) lf the gn evance is not resolved at Step I , the grievant or the 
grievant 's representative may submit it in writing to the Agency I lead or des ignated 
representati ve w ithin I 0 days after receipt o f the dec ision at Step I. The grievance shall include a 
copy of the grievance to nn submitted at Step I and a copy of the Step l response, together with 
all written documents in support of the grievance. When the grievance is e ligible for initi ati on at 
Step 2. the grievance fo rm must contain the same info rmation as a grievance filed at Step I 
above. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotia tor 

Dme 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal -Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 
January 23, 20 15 

Page 6 o f 12 

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the 
gri evant and/o r the grievant 's representati ve to di scuss the grievance. lfthe gr ievance is initiated 
at Step 2. the patties sha ll meet to discuss the grievance. The Agency Head or designated 
representative shall communicate a dec ision in writing to the gri evant and the grievanfs 
representat ive, if an y, within 15 days fo llowing receipt of the w1itten gti evance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the speci fied time limit 
shall pem1it the grievant. or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d ) The number of days indicated a t this step shall be considered as the 
max imum , and every effo rt w ill be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides . 

(4) Step 3- Contract Language Disputes 

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation ot· application of thi s 
Agreement, oth er than a grievance a ll eging that a di scip linary action (reduction in base pay. 
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspensio n, or dismissal) was 
taken w ithout cause. is not resolved at Step 2, the designated Union representa tive, or the 
grievant o r his representative, if not represented by the Union, may appeal the gri evance, in 
writing. to the Dep~uiment of Management Serv ices within 15 days after receipt of the decis ion 
at Step 2. The gtievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps I and 2, 
together w ith all wri tten responses and doctu11 ents in supp01t of the grievance. T he Department 
of Management Services shall di scuss the grievance with the Union representative, o r the 
gri evant or representative if not represented by the Unio n. When the grievance is e lig ible for 
initiation at Step J. the grievance form must contain the same infonnation as the grievance filed 
at Step I above. 

(b) The Departlnent of Management Services shall communicate a 
decis ion in writing to the grievant and hi s representati ve w ithin 15 days fo llowing receipt of the 
written grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 
shall pennit the grievant or the Union where appropriate, to p roceed to the next step. 

For tlte State 

Michael Mattimore 
State· s Chief Labor Negoti ator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holl y Van Horsten 
Chief Negoti ato r 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 7 of 12 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum. and every cffot1 will be made to expedite the process. Ho-..vever. the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(5) Grievance Mediation 

The pm1ies may, by wtitten agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to 
be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been 
submitted to arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a 
grievance, the scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (6)(d) below may be 
extended by mutual agreement beyond five months. Either party may withdraw from the 
mediation process with wtitten notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation. 

(6) Arbitration 

(a) If a grievance alleging that a distiplinary action (reduction in base 
pay. demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dism issal) 
was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the President of the Union or a designated 
member of his staff may appeal tbe grievance to arbitTation on a Request for Arbitration Form as 
contained in Appendix C within l 0 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract 
language dispute as described in (4) above is not resolved at Step 3, the Pres ident of the Union or 
a designated member of his staff may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for 
Arbitration Fom1 as contained in Appendix C of this Agreement within I 0 days following receipt 
of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial step, the Union refused to represent the 6.-rievant because 
he was not a dues-paying member of the Union. the gtievant may appeal the grievance to 
arbitration. 

(b) The parties may, by agt·eement m writing, submit related 
grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator. 

(c) The arbitrator shaJI be one person from a panel of tivc arbitrators, 
selected by the state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or cases submitted. The 
Department of Management Services' Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration 
hearing with the state and the Union representatives and the arbitrator listed next on the panel in 
rotation, and shal l coordinate the arbin·ation heating time. date, and location. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Locnl Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
.January 23, 20 15 

Page 8 of 12 

(d) Arbi tration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible but not 
more than five months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration Form. If the arbitrator 
initially selected is not available to schedule within th is period, the Arbitration. Coordinator shall 
contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who can schedule 
within the prescribed period. A party may request of the arbitrator, with notice to the other pariy 
and the Arbitration Coordinator. an extension of time/continuance based on documented unusual 
and compel ling circumstances. The Arbitration Coot·dinator shall schedule arbitration hearings at 
times and locations agreed to by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of 
evidence. location of witnesses, existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors. If 
agreement cannot be reached, the arbitration hearing shall be held in the City ofTallahassee. 

(e) At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration 
hearing, the parties shall tile with the arbitrator, and provide to each other. a list of witnesses to 
be called at the hearing, except rebuttal w1tnesses, and a brief statement of the material facts or 
matters relevant to the grievance about which each witness will testify. A party may file a 
written request with the arbitrator, with a concurrent copy to the other party, to r an exception to 
the tiling time limits for good cause. If such exception is granted, the other party may request 
that the bearing be rescheduled if necessary for the party to respond to tl1e late filed 'vvitness 
information. 

(e!) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbi trability, including 
timeliness. of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing sh_all be 
conducted to address only the arbitrabi lity issue. In such cases, the parties shall choose nn 
arbitrator from the panel of arbitrators (see (6)(c) above), who is avail able to schedule a hearing 
and render a decis ion wi thin 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen tor this limited purpose. The 
hearing on this issue shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the 
issue within five business days of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon 
the agreement of the parties and the arbitrator. The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay 
the tees and expenses of the expedited arbitration . If the arbitrator determines that the issue is 
arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen from the part ies · regular arbitration panel in 
accordance with the provisions of (6){c) of this Atticle to conduct a hearing on the substantive 
issue(s). 

(!"g) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
thi s Agreement, shall be fi nal and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the 

For the State 

Michael Mattimt)re 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For tht> Teamsters 

Holl y Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 23,2015 

Page 9 of 12 

employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by 
the following provisions and limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 22 days 
from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever 1s later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, shall be 
detem1ined by applying a preponderance of the evidence standard, and shall set forth the 
arb itrator's opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any 
other issue, and the arb itrator shall refi·ain fi·om issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion 
not essential to the determination of the issues submitted. 

4. The arb itrator shall limit the decision strictly to the 
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. 

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make 
any decisions: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, 
subtracting from. or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or 
of applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and etfect oflaw: or 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, 
duties, and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties, and responsibilities 
have been abridged. delegated, or modified by. the expressed provisions of this Agreement; or 

c. Which has the effect of resnicting the discretion of 
an Agency Head as otherwise granted by Jaw or the Rules of the State Personnel System unless 
such authority is modified by this Agreement; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or 
poli~;y unless such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the Rules ofthe State Personnel 
System, or this Agreement. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 201 1 
State Proposal - A1iicle 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 23. 2015 

Page 10ofl2 

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the 
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards. 

a. An award for back pay shall not exceed the amount 
of pay the gtievant would otherwise have eamed at his regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by 
the amount of wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance 
benefits during the back pay period, shall not include punitive damages, and shall not be 
retroactive to a date earlier than 15 clays prior to the date the grievance was inltially filed. 

b. If the Union is granted a continuance to reschedule 
an arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be responsible for 
back pay for the period between the original hearing date or the end of the five month period 
described in (6)(d), above, and the rescheduled date. 

(g h) The fees and expenses of the arb itrator shall be borne solely by the 
patiy who fails to prevail in the hearing~ however, each patiy shall be responsible for 
compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives. attomeys and witnesses. 
Should the arbitrator fashion an award in such a maJmer that the grievance is sustained in part 
and denied in part, the state and Union will evenly split the arbitrator"s fee and expenses. The 
arbitrator shall submit his fee statement to the Arbitration Coordinator for processmg tn 

accordance '"'ith the arbitrator's contract. 

(hi) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the 
proceedings. Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the repo1ter. If either 
patty orders a transcript of the proceedings, the party shall pay for the cost of the transcript and 
provide a photocopy to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript 
to the other party upon written request and payment of copying expenses($. I 5 per page). 

(i j) The Union will not be responsible tor costs of an arbitration to 
-vvhich it was not a party. 

SECTlON 4- Time Limits 

(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance with in the time limits specified shall be 
deemed a waiver of the grievance. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
States Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - At1icle 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 11 of 12 

(B) Failure at any step of thi s procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specified time limit shall pem1it the employee. or the Union where appropriate. to 
proceed to the next step. A Step 1 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Union by the 
written, agreed-to deadline does not alter the time limits tor appealing a grievance to the next 
step. 

(C) Claims of either an untimely tiling or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 

SECTION 5- Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to 
permit the Union or an employee to process a grievance: ( 1) on behalf of any employee without 
his consent, or (2) when the subject of such (employee"s) grievance is, at the same time, the 
subject of an administrativ~ action, an appeal before a govemmental board or agency. or a court 
proceeding. 

(B) All grievances wil l be presented at the Oral Step or Step 1, with the following 
exceptions: 

(I) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step I 
Management Representative. the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance form as set fo rth in Step I within 15 days following the occutTence of the 
event giving ri se to the grievance. 

(2) The Union shal l have the right to bring a dass action grievance on behalf 
of employees in its own name conceming disputes relating to the inteqxetation or appl ication of 
this Agreement. Such gTievance shal l not include disciplinary actions taken against any 
employee. The Union's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding 
in another forum on the same issue. The class action grievance form shal l list tl~e el'flplo;·ees 
identify the specific group (i.e., employees' job classification(s), work unjt(s), institution(s). etc.) 
adversely impacted by the dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement. 
Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions 
set forth herein, within 15 days of the occun·encc of the event giving rise to the gri evance. 

(C) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his CUITent position and 

For the State For the Teamsters 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 23, 2015 

Pagel2ofl2 

therefore may be disciplined without a showing of cause, may onl y file non-discipli ne 
grievances. Non discipline grievances filed by probationary employees are final and binding at 
Step 3 unless the processing of such grievances is further limited by specific provisions of this 
Agreement. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Article 7 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 I I 
State Proposal - Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 20 15 

Page 1 of7 

DISCIPLINE AND DISCH ARGE 

SECTION I - Diseiplinary Aetien Discipline of Permanent Status Employees 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may be 
disciplined only for cause as provided in section II 0.227, Florida Statutes. Reductions in base 
pay, demotions, involuntary transfers of more than 50 miles by highway, suspensions, and 
dismissals may be effected by the state at any time against any employee. Demotion will not be 
used as a fonn of disciplinary action for employees in the classes of Correctional Officer, 
Correctional Probation Officer, Correctional Probation Officer-lnstitution. or lnstitutional 
Security Specialist J. 

ill Such actions against employees with permanent status in their current 
position for disciplinaty reasons sfl.a:lf may be grievable grieved at Step 2 and processed through 
the Arbitration Step, in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6 of this Agreement, 
if the employee alleges that the action was not for just cause. However, any reduction in base 
pay required by the Rules of the State Pe1·sonnel System shall not be grievable. Demotion 'I<Yill 
not be used as a form of disciplinary action fur employees in the classes of Con-ectional Officer, 
CotTectional Probation Officer, Correctional Probation Officer Institution, or Institutional 
Security Specialist I. Discipliaary actions shall be subject to tfie grievance procedure as follows: 

( l) The state may issue Memoranda of Record; Memoranda of Counseling, or 
Supervisory Counseling Memoranda, which are documentatioR of minor vlork deficiencies or 
conduct concems that are maintaia:ed by a supervisor in a working file. Such doctlf11ents ru·e not 
discipl ine, are not grievable, and shall not become pru1 ofthe employee's official personnel file: 
however, such documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an 
ernployee 's di.scipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice. of the performance 
deficiencies or conduct ooneems. 

(2) An employee '"''ho has not attained pennanent status in his cu1nnt position 
may only file non discipl ine grievances. Written reprimands may be g1ieved by employees with 
pem1anent status in their current position up to Step 3: the decision at that level shall be final and 
binding. 

(B) As an alternative to the grievance procedure, A~n employee with permanent status 
111 his current position may file an appeal of a redudion in base pay. demotion. involuntary 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 I I 
State Proposal - Atiicle 7 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 2 of7 

transfer of over 50 miles by highway, suspension, in¥oluntary transfer of o¥er 50 miles by 
high'lvay, demotion, or dismissal with the Public Employees Relations Commission (PERC) 
within 21 calendar days after the date of receipt of notice of such action from the agency, by 
personal delivery or by certified mail , retum receipt requested. under the provisions of section 
110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes. In the alterna-tive, a complaint by an employee .. -..·itll 
permanent status iB his cutTent position concemi11g a reduetioB: i11 base pay, suspension, 
involuntary transfer ofo¥er 50 miles by highway, demotion, or dismissal may be gtieved at Step 
2 and processed thro"Hgh the Arbitration Step, in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in 
Article 6 of this l\greement. 

(C) Where a disciplinary action may be appealed to the Public Employees Relations 
Commission PERC and is also grievable under thi s Agreement, the employee shall indicate at 
the time the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and such decision 
shall be binding on the employee. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action tlrst filed will be 
the one processed. 

(D) For disciplinary suspensions. the tollowing shal l apply: 
(I) If the agency issues a disciplinary suspension to an employee and the 

employee tiles an appeal to the Public Employees Relations Commission (PERC.) in the required 
21 calendar days from the date the employee receives the letter, or files a collective bargaining 
grievance within the time limits set forth in Article 6 of this Agreement, the agency shall have 
the option to stay the suspension for up to 90 calendar clays pending a Recommended or Final 
Order by PERC or a decision/award from an arbitrator. lfthe agency stays the suspension , and 
PERC has not issued a Recommended or Final Order. or an arbitrator has not rendered a 
decision/award by the end of the period tor which the suspension was stayed, the agency may 
proceed with the disciplinary suspension. 

(2) The agency may have special compensatory leave equal to the length of a 
disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee's leave balance in lieu of the employee 
serving the suspension. In making such detennination, the agency shall take into consideration 
the preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted. If the 
employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave. annual leave may be deducted. If 
there is not sut1icient special compensatory or annua l leave. the remainder of the period will be 
leave without pay. Employees ti·om whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty. 
The employee's personnel Jile will retlect a disciplinai·y suspension regardless of whether the 
employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 ll 
State Proposal - Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 3 of7 

SECTJON 2 - Discipline of Probationary Employees 

Pursuant to Section II 0.217(2), Florida Statutes, an employee who bas not attained 
permanent status in his current position serves at the pleasure of the agency head in a 
probationary status and may be disrnissed at the discretion of the agency head or desibrnee. 
Pursuant to Section II 0.227(1}. Florida Statutes, an agency may discipline or dismiss a 
probationary employee without a showing of cause. 

SECTION 3- Counseling 

An agency may issue Memoranda of Record, Memoranda of Counseling. or Supervisory 
Counseling Memoranda which are documentation of minor work deficiencies or conduct 
concerns that are maintained by a supervisor in a working tile. Such documents are not 
discipline. are not grievable. and shall not become part of the emplovee 's official personnel file: 
however, such documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an 
employee's discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance 
deficiencies or conduct concerns. 

SECTION 2- ~- Interrogation during Internal Investiga tions 

In the course of any intcmal investigation, the interrogation methods employed will be 
consistent with sections 111.531 and section 112.533. Florida Statutes. 

(A) Definitions 

For the purpose of thi s section the tollowing definitions of terms as used 111 section 
112.531. Florida Statutes, shall apply: 

(I) ·· Interrogation·· refers to a disciplinary investigation meeting with respect 
to an incident or complaint between a member of management or supervision, including an 
investigator, nnd an employee covered by this Agreement in which the infonnation to be 
obtained at the investigation meeting will be the basi tor the deci s ion as to whether to suspend 
or dismiss the employee. It does not include counseling sess io ns, or investigations. which may 
result in lesser fom1s of disciplinary action or meetings at which the employee is solely being 
advi sed of intended disciplinary action, and offered an opportunity to explain why he should not 

For the State 

Michael Mattimorc 
S tate ·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For tbe Tea msters 

Holly Van Horstcn 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



be disciplined. 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State PTOposal- Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January23, 2015 

Page4 of7 

(2) ··complainants .. reters to the complaining or charging party rel ative to an 
incident, complaint, or reason. 

(B) Procedures 

Whenever an employee covered by this Agreement is under investigation and subject to 
interrogation by members of his agency for any reason, which could lead to disciplinary action, 
suspension. demotion, or dismissal, such interrogation shall be conducted under the following 
conditions: 

( l) The interrogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour. prefembly at a 
time when the employee is on duty, w1less the se1iousness of the investigation is of such a degree 
that immediate action is required. 

(2) The inte iTogation shall take place either at the office of the eommand of 
the investigating officer or correctional unit in which the incident allegedly occulTed, as 
designated by the investigating officer or agency. 

(3) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the rank. name, 
and command of the ot1icer in charge of the investigation, the interrogating officer, and all 
persons present during the interrogation. All questions directed to the officer w1der interrogation 
shall be asked by and through one intetTogator at any one time. 

(4) The employee under investigation shall be infonned of the nature of the 
investigation prior to any inten·ogation. and he shall be informed of tbe name of all 
complainants. 

(5) lntcll'ogating sessions shall be for reasonable periods and shall be timed to 
allow for such personal necessities and rest periods as are reasonably necessary for both the 
employee and the representative. 

(6) The employee under interrogation shall not be subjected to offensive 
language or be threatened with transfer. dismissal, or disciplinary action . No promise or reward 
shall be made as an inducement to answer any questions. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Unio n No. 20 ll 
State Proposal - Ariicle 7 

Fiscal Year 201 5-1 6 
January 23, 2015 

Page5of7 

(7) The fom1 al intetTogation of an employee, including all recess periods, 
shall be recorded, and there shall be no un recorded questions o r statements. U pon the request of 
the interrogated offi cer. a copy of any such recording of the interrogation session must be made 
available to the interTogated o fticer no later than 7'1. hours, excluding ho lidays and weekends, 
following said interrogation. 

(8) If the employee under inten ogation is under arrest, or is likely to be placed 
under arrest as a result of the interrogation, he shall be completely info rmed of all his rights prior 
to the commencement of the interrogation. 

(9) At the request of any employee under investigation, he shall have the ri ght 
to be represented by counsel or any other representati ve of his <.:hoice. who shall be p resent at all 
times during such interTogation whenever the intenogati on relates to the officer 's continued 
fitness fo r correcti onal serv ice. 

( I 0) W here the agency detennines that a complaint is unsupported by the fac ts 
or is otherwise without met·i t, or determines that the facts arc insuf fi cient to charge or otherwise 
discipline the employee under investigation, such conclusion w ill be so noted as part o f the 
investigative record. Written documents rela tive to the investigation are subj ect to the provisions 
of At1ide 12, Personnel Records. 

( 1 I ) Where the employee is the subject of the investigation, the employee shall 
be provided the opport unity to rev iew all written statements made by the complainant and 
witnesses immediately prior to the beginning of the investigati on interview. 

(C) Unless required b y statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a po lygraph 
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of hi s response during an investigation of 
a complaint or a ll egation. I f an employee is o ftered an opportunity to submit to a polygraph test, 
the employee's refusal will not be refen ed to in any fin al action taken by the agency. 

(0 ) Alleged violations of the investigative ri ghts provided for in thi s section by an 
employee o r the Union shall be investigated by the agency. The agency shall provide the 
employee and the Union w ith an explanati on concerning the alleged violation and con ecti ve 
action taken, if any. 

For· the State 

Michael Mattimore 
S tate · s Chief Labor Negoti ator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negoti ator 

Date 



Tean1sters Local Union No. 20 I I 
State Proposal - Ariicle 7 

Fiscal Year 1015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 6 of7 

(E) The state will make a good faith effort to complete all internal investigations 
within 60 calendar days from the date the investigation is assigned to the investigator. Except in 
the case of a criminal investigation , the employee shall be noti tied in writing of any investigation 
that exceeds 120 calendar clays. The employee under investigation shall be advised of the results 
of the investigation at its conclusion. 

(F) The provisions of this section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6. up to 
Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure; the decision at that step shall be tina! and binding. 

(G) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the work 
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties 
pending completion of the investigation. the employee shall be placed on administrative leave in 
accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. In cases where an employee has 
been reassigned by the Department of Corrections pending the outcome of an investigation and 
the charges or allegations against the employee are not sustained, the reassigned employee shall 
be offered the option to return to the original work location and. if requested, the previously held 
shift and days off as soon as they become available. As an exception, the Department may retain 
the employee in the reassigned work location if it determines that infonnation has been produced 
in the course of its investigation of the charges that evidences a substantial likelihood of 
interference with the operations of the work unit if the employee is returned to the original work 
location. 

SECTION 3 ~-Employee Copy 

Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary entries placed in his official 
personnel fi le and shall be permitted to respond thereto, and a copy of the employee's response 
shall be placed in the employee's personnel file, 

SECTION 4!!- Notice 

Notice of reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by 
highway, suspension, or dismissal affecti ng an em ployee who has satisfactorily completed at 
least a one-year probationary period in his cutTent position shal l be in accordance with section 
II 0.227(5), Flotida Statutes. 

SECTJON S 1- Representation 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State' s ChiefLabor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 7 

Fiscal Year 20 15-1 6 
January 23.2015 

Page 7 of7 

Where union representation is requested by an employee during an investigation by the 
agency Inspector General's Offi ce. or during a predetermination conference. a union steward will 
be allowed a reasonable amount of accrued leave. other than sick leave, to attend such meetings. 
subject to prior approval by the stevva rd · s immediate supervisor. Such leave will be approved if 
the steward can be allowed leave without interfering with , or unduly hampering, the operations 
of the unit to which the steward is regularly assigned. Where an employee is represented by a 
Union Representati ve in a predetermination conference, the Union Representative shall be 
noti fied ofthe disposition of the predetermination conference. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 8 

Fiscal Y car 2015- 16 
December 16, 2014 

Page 1 of4 

A rticle 8 
WORKFORCE REDUCTION 

SECTION 1- Layoffs 

(A) When employees are to be laid off as defined in the Florida Statutes. the state 
shall implement such layoff in the following manner: 

(I) The competiti ve area tor the bargaining unit shall be statewide unless the 
Department and Union agree otherwise. 

(2) LayotT shall be by class or occupational level within the Security Services 
Bargaining Unit. 

(3) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position 
may be laid off without applying the provision for retention rights. 

(4) No employee with pennanent status in his current position shall be laid off 
whi le an employee who does not hold pennanent status in his current position is serving in that 
class or level unless the permanent employee does not elect to exercise his retention rights or 
does not meet the selective competition criteria. 

( 5) All employees who have permanent status in their cunent positions shall 
be ranked on a layoff li st for the affected class or level based on the total retention points derived 
as follows: 

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one point for 
each month of continuolls service in a Career Service position. 

I. An employee who resigJ1S from one Career Service position 
to accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in 
service. 

1. An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed 
within one year from the date of the layoff shall not be considered to have a break in service. 

3. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s ChierLabor Negotiator 

Date 

Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negot iator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal -Article 8 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 16, 2014 

Page 2 of4 

Senior Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service 
unless the employee· s break in service is more than 31 calendar days. Only time spent in the 
Career Service is counted in calcul ating retention points. 

(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting 
performance standards or work expectations defined for the position shall be based on the five 
years immediately prior to the agency's establ ished cutoff date. Five points shall be deducted for 
each month an employee has a rating below performance expectations. 

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points. Employees 
eligib le for veterans· preference pm·suant to section 295.07( I )(a) or (b). Florida Statutes, shall 
have ten percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to section 
295.07(1 )(c) or (d), Florida Statu tes, shall have five percent added. 

(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at the top of 
the list, and the employee with the lowest retention points is placed at the bottom of the list. 

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom 
of the li st. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled 
in the same manner until the total number of filled positions in the class to be abo lished is 
complete. 

(9) Should two o r more employees have the same combined total of retention 
points. the order of layoff shall be detem1ined by giving preference for retention in the following 
sequence; 

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected class. 

(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career 
Service. 

(c) The employee who is entitled to veterans· preference pursuant to 
section 295.07( l ), Florida Statutes. 

( 1 0) An employee who has pem1anent status in his current position and is to be 
laid off shall be given at least 14 calendar days' notice of such layoff or two weeks· pay, or a 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Unio n No. 201 1 
State Proposal - A11icle 8 

Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 
December 16,2014 

Page 3 of4 

combinati on of days of notice and pay. A ny payment -vvil l be made a t t he em ployee ' s current 
hourl y base rate o f pay. The not ice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the employee b y 
certitied mail , return receipt requested. Within seven calendar clays after receiving the notice of 
layoff, the em ployee shall have t he right to request, in writing, a demotion or lateral action, 
rt:!assignment, or dem otion wi thin the compet itive area in lieu of layoff to a position in a class 
within the barga ining uni t in w hich the employee held perm anent status, or to a position in a 
class at the level of or below the class in the bargaining unit in w hich the employee held 
perm anent status. 

( II ) An employee's request for demotion or late ral action, reassignment. or 
demotio n shall be granted unless it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a 
greater total of re tention points . 

( 12) An employee adversely affected as a result of another employee havi ng a 
greater number of retention points shall have the same right of lateral action, reassignment or 
demo tion under the same p rocedure as provided in this secti on. 

( 13) lf an employee requests a demotioA: or lateral action , reassignment, or 
demotion in lieu of layoff. the same fonnula and criteria fo r establ ishing retenti on po ints fo r that 
class shall be used as prescribed in this section. 

(B ) If there is to be a layoff of employees. the state shall take all reasonable s teps to 
p lace any adversely affe<.:tecl employees in existi ng vacancies for which they are qualified . 

(C) If work perfonned by employees in th is unit is to be perfom1 ed b y non-state 
employees, the state agrees to encourage t he employing entity to consider any adversely affected 
uni t employees for emp loyment in its organi zation if the s tate has been unab le to p lace the 
em ployees in other positions within the State Personnel System . 

SECTION 2 - Job Security 

The state shall make a reasonable effort to notify the Union at least 30 days in advance of 
classes w ithin the bargaining unit that will be involved in a layoff. and of the scheduled closing 
of a correctional fac ility or specific unit thereof. Prior to the actual layoff or scheduled cl<.)sing, 
the state will meet w ith the Un io n to discuss the effect of the layoff o n the employees in volved . 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State · s Chief Labor Negotia tor 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Ho lly Van Horsten 
Chief Negoti ator 

Date 



SECTION 3 - Recall 

Teamsters Local Union No. 1011 
State Proposal - Article 8 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
Decemb.er 16, 2014 

Page 4 of 4 

When a vacancy occurs, or a new position is established, laid off employees shall be 
recalled in the f()llowing manner: 

(A) For one year following layoft: when a position is to be filled or a hew position is 
established in the same agency and in the same class within the affected competitive area, a laid 
off employee with the highest number of retention points shall be offered reemployment; 
subsequent offers shall be made in the order of an employee's total retention points. 
Reemployment of such employees shall be with permanent status in their position. An employee 
who refuses such offer of reemployment shall forfeit any 1ights to subsequent placement offers 
as provided in this subsection. 

(B) An employee who has attained pennanent status in his cun·ent pos1t1on and 
accepts a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff and is subsequently promoted within one year 
following demotion to a position in the same class in the same agency from which the employee 
was demoted in lieu of layoff, shall be promoted with pem1anent status in the position. 

SECTION 4 - Grievabilitv 

tGt Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered a disciplinary action, and in 
the event an employee elects to appeal grieve the action taken, such appeal gtievance must be 
based upon whether the layoff was in accordance with the provisions of this Aliicle. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State· s Chief Labor NegotiatOr 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Article 9 

Teamsters Local Union No. 201 I 
State Proposal - Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23.2015 

Page 1 of5 

LATERAL ACTION, REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION 

Employees who have attained permanent status in their current position and who meet all 
eligibility requirements shall have the opportunity to request lateral action, reassignment, 
transfer, or change in duty station to vacant positions within their respective agencies in 
accordance with the provisions of this Article. 

SECTION 1- Definitions as used in tltis Article: 

(A) ··Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official 
headquarters. 

(B) "Change in duty station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 
located within 50 miles, by highway, of his cutTent duty station. 

(C) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, 
skills, and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of 
difficulty or responsibilities. and qualification requirements of the work. to warrant the same 
treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel transactions. 

(0) "Lateral action'' shall mean the movi ng of an employee to another position in the 
same agency that is in the same occupation. same broadband level with the same maximum 
salary. and has substantially the same duties and responsibilities. 

Upon a lateral action appointment, the employee shaU retain the status they held 
in their previous position. If probationary, time spent in the previous position shall count toward 
completion of the requiTed probationary period for the new position. 

(0) '"Reassignment" shall mean moving aR empl:oye,e from a poslttOR in one 
broadband level to a differeRt -position in the same broadband level or oo a ditl'erent broadband 
levell1aving the same maJtimum salary. 

(E) "Reassignment" shall mean moving an employee: 

(1) to a position in the same broadband level and same maximum salary but 

For the State For the Teamsters 

Michael Mattimore 
State' s ChiefLabor Negotiator 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date Date 



with different duties: 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal -Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 2 of5 

(2) to a position in the same broadband level and same max1mum salary, 
regardless of the duties, but to a different agency; or 

(3) to a position in a different broadband level having the san1e maximum 
salary. 

Upon a reassignment appointment, the employee shall be given probationary 
status. If the reassignment appointment is in conjunction with a legislatively mandated transfer 
of the position, the employee retains the status held in the position ur1less the legislature directs 
otherwise. 

(e f) ·'Transfer" shall mean moving an employee from one geographic area of the state 
to a different geographic location in excess of 50 miles. by highway. from the employee's 
cun·ent duty station. 

(F) "Agency needs" are those actions taken by an agency in order to meet its mission 
of protecting the public, providing a safe and humane environment for staff and offenders, 
working in partnership with the community to provide programs and services to offenders, and 
supervising offenders at a level of security commensurate with the danger they present. 

(G) "Major institution" shall mean the main facility under the control of one warden 
or administrator, and will include fhe annexes, work camps, release centers, and other 
satellite/sister facilities under the authority of that main facility. 

SECTLON 2- Procedures 

(A) An employee who has attained petmanent status in his cutTent position may apply 
for a Lateral action, reassignment, transfer, o r change in duty station on a Request for 
Reassignment. Transfer, or Change in Duty Station Form (supplied by the agency) the 
approptiate Request Fonn. Such requests shall indicate county(ies), institution(s), and/or other 
work location(s) or shift(s) to which the employee would like to be reassigned. An employee 
may only request lateral action, reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station from one major 
institution to another major institution in his agency. A State of Florida Employment Application 
Form must be completed and sent with the Request Form. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - A1iicle 9 

Fiscal Year 2015- L 6 
JanuaJy 23, 2015 

Page 3 of5 

(B) An employee may submit a Request Form at any time; however. all such requests 
shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. Requests can be filed in May to become effective 
on June l. 

(C) AIL Request Fonns shall be submitted to the Agency Head or designee who shall 
be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such request to the manager(s) or supervisor(s) who 
have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to which the employee has 
requested reassignment. 

{D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the manager or supervisor having 
hiring authority tor that vacancy shall give first consideration to employees who have submitted 
a Request Form; provided, however, that employees whose request is not submitted by the first 
clay of the month shall not be considered tor vacancies which occur during that month. 

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a vacancy with the employee who has the 
greatest length of service in the broadband level and who has a Request Fom1 on file for the 
vacancy. The parties agree. however, that other factors, such as employees' work history and 
agency needs. will be taken into consideration in making the decision as to ~vvhether the employee 
wit111he greatest length of service in the broadband level will be placed in the vacant posi tion. 

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband level is not 
selected for the vacant position, all employees who have greater length of service in the 
broadband level than the employee selected shall be notified in writing of the agency' s decision. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned appointed pursuant to a rRequest filed 
under this Article, all other pending rRequests for reassigrunent ti·om that employee shall be 
canceled. No other request for reassigmneAt may be tiled by the employee under this Article for 
a period of 12 months following the employee's reassigflment appoinhnent. (f an employee 
declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a rRequest filed under this Article, the employee·s 
request shall be canceled and the employee ts will not be eligible to res·ubmit that request for a 
period of 12 months from the date the employee declined the offer of reassignment. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State ·s Chief Labor Negot iator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Un ion No. 20 I I 
State Proposal - Article 9 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 23, 20 15 

Page 4 of5 

SECTJON 3 - Involuntary Lateral Action, Reassignment, Transfer, or Change in Duty 
Station 

(A) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agent.:y, at 
its discretion, ti·om effecting the invo luntary lateral action, reassignment, trans fer, or change in 
duty stati on of an employee accordjng to the needs of the agency; however, the agency will m ake 
a good faith efto rt to take such acti ons only when agency needs dictate. The agency will take 
into consideratio n the needs and circumstances of the employee prior to taking such actio n. 

(B) ln those instances where the Department of Concctions detem1ines that an 
excessive cascload at a probation offtce requires the reassignm ent lateral action of an officer, the 
Department will consider requests from vo lunteers. employee seniority. and the needs of the 
agency in making such reassignment. 

SECTION 4 - Notice 

A n employee shall be given a minimum of 14 calendar days' noti ce ptior to the agency 
effecti ng any lateral action, reassignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer. 
the agency will make a good faith effort to give a minimum of 30 calendar days· notice. The 
parties agree, however, that these notice requirements shall not be requ ired during an emergency 
or other ex traordi nary condition . 

SECTl ON 5 - Relocation Allowance 

An employee who is reassigned. transf(m ed, or receives a latera] action and is required by 
agency policy to relocate his res idence shall be granted t ime off with pay for one workday for 
this p urpose. In additi on, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on 
the most direct route. No employee will be credited with more than the number of hours in the 
employee' s regular workday and such time shall not be counted as ho urs worked for the purpose 
of computing compensatory time or overtime. 

SECTION 6 - Grievability 

The provisi<ms of thi s Article shall not be subject to the gri evance procedures of Arti cle 6 
of thi s Agreement; however, an employee complaint concerning improper application of the 
provisio ns of Section 2(D) and (E), Section 3, atH:I Section 4, and Section 5 may be grieved in 
accordance with Article 6, up to and including Step 3 ofthe grievance procedure. In cons idering 
such complaints. weight shall be g iven to the specific procedures to llowed and decisions made, 

For the State 

M ichael Mattim<..1re 
State·s C hief Labor Negoti ator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holl y Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



along with the needs of the agency. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - Article 9 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 23,2015 

Page 5 of 5 

For the Teamsters 

Holl y Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Article 10 
PROMOTIONS 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - Article I 0 

Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 
January 23, 20 15 

Page I of 4 

(A) The state and the Union agree that promotions should be used to provide career 
mobility within the State Personnel System and should be based on the relative merit and fitness 
of applicants. 

(B) Toward the goals of selecting the most qualified applicant for each promotional 
vacancy, the pruties agree that the provisions of this Article, along with all provisions of the 
Rules of the State Personnel System, will be followed when making such appointments . 

SECTION 1 - Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) .. Broadband level .. shall mean al l postttons sufficiently similar in knowledge. 
sk ill s. ru1d abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of 
difticulty or responsibi lities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same 
treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel transactions. 

(8) .. Promotion .. shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of 
responsibility. 

(C) ·'Demotion·· shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadba11d 
level having a lower maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility. 

SECTION 2 - Procedures 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply 
ft)r a promotion by submitting a Request tor Promotion Form furnished by the agency in which 
the promotional position is located, to be considered tor promotional vacancies. Such requests 
shall indicate the class(es)/broadband level(s), county( ies), institution(s), and/or other work 
locations to which the employee would like to be promoted. A State of Florida Employment 
Application Form must be completed and sent with the employee's request for promotion. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimorc 
State's ChiefLabor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 I 1 
State Proposal - Article I 0 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 2 of4 

(B) An employee may submit a request for promotion at any time; however. all such 
requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. 

(C) When an employee has been promoted pursuant to a request tiled under this 
Article all other pending requests for promotion from that employee shall be canceled. No other 
requests for promotion may be f il ed by that employee under this Article tor a period of 12 
months fo llowing the employee's promotion. 

SECTION 3- Method of Filling Vacancies 

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, &F----by lateral action, or 
reassignment as defined in Article 9 of this Agreement, employees who have applied for 
promotion in accordance with Section 2 of this Article shall be given first consideration for 
promotional vacancies in accordance with the agencies· standard selection process. 

(B) Each employee who applies in accordance with Section 1 of this Article wHI be 
notified in writing by the appointing authority when the position has been filled. 

(C) The standard selection process tor filling institutional security specialist 
promotional vacancies covered by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the tenn ofthis 
Agreement. The standard selection process tor filling Correctional Ofticer and CoiTcctional 
Probation Officer promotional vacancies shall be as provided for in Oeprutment of CoJTections 
Procedure Number 208.005 (Appendix D). 

SECTION 4- Sta tus 

(A) An employee appointed to a position, including a position to which the employee 
has been promoted, must suc~.:essfuJiy complete at least a one-year probationary period, before 
attaining permanent status in the position. An employee who has not attained pennanent status 
in his current position serves at the pleasure of the agency head and may be dismissed at the 
discretion of the agency head. and shall attain permanent status in that position upon successful 
completion of the designated probationary period. 

(B) An agencv's actions in removing or dismissing an employee from a probationary 
position to which the employee has been promoted fi·om a position in which the employee held 
permanent status are governed by the provisions of Section ll 0.217(3), Florida Statutes. and, 
pursuru1t to this statutory provision, are not n:rievable. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamster s 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Dare 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article I 0 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23. 2015 

Page 3 of4 

(B) An employee serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received 
aJl internal agency promotion may be removed from tl=lat promotional position at aay time during 
the probationary period. If his former position, or a comparable position, is vacant, the employee 
is to be placed in such position. If such a position is not avai I able, before dismissal, the agency 
shall make a reasonable effort to retain the employee iH another vacant position. This process 
does not apply to tenninations for cause nor does it create a right to blimp an employee from an 
occupied position. 

(l) lf the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable 
posttlon, such demotion shall be with permanent status provided the employee previously 
attained penn anent status in the agency in the Jower position. 

(2) The employee's salary \Viii be reduced in accordance with the agency's 
pay upon demotion polio~ 

(3) Such demotion shall not be grievable ltllder the contractual grievance 
procedure. 

(4) Such demotion shall not preclude the agency frOifl: seeking to discipline 
the employee fur just cause based upon specific acts of miseonffit.et.:. 

SECTION 5- Relocation Allowance 

An employee who is promoted and required by agency policy to relocate his residence 
shall be granted time off with pay for one workday for this purpose. In addition , the employee 
shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will 
he credited with more than the number of hours in the employee·s regular workday and such 
time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or 
overtime. 

SECTION 6- Gricvability 

(A) The provisions ofthis A1iicle may be grieved in accordance with Article 6. up to 
and including Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure. which decision shall be final and binding. 

(B) lfthe Step 3 authority in the Department of Management Services determines that 

For the State For the Teamsters 

Michael Ma.ttimore 
State 's ChiefLnbor Negotiator 

Date 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 1 0 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23,2015 

Page 4 of4 

the standard selection process vvas not followed in filling a promotional vacancy, he shall have 
the authority, among other remedies, to order that the promotion be rescinded and direct that the 
promotion be conducted in accordance with the standard selection process. 

For the State 

Michael Mattirnore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 ll 
State Proposal - Article L L (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year2015-16 
December L 6, 20 14 

Page 1 of 1 

Article 11 
CLASSIFICATION REVIE"V 

(A) When an employee alleges that he is being regularly required to perform duties 
which are not induded in the position description of his position, and the employee alleges that 
the duties assigned are not included in the offieial Career Service class specification occupation 
profile to which the position is allocated, the employee may request in writing that the Agency 
Head review the duties assigned to the employee· s position. The Agency Head or designee shall 
review the duties as requested. The employee will receive a copy of the written decision within 
60 days of the request. If the decision is that the dut1es assigned are sufticient to justify 
reclassifying the position, either the position will be reclassified or the duties in question will be 
removed. Shortage of tlmds shall not be used as the basis for refusing to reclassify a position 
atter a review has been completed. 

(B ) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without 
representation, may request in writing a review by the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or designee. The review will be in accordance with Chapter I I 0, Florida 
Statutes. The wtitten decision of the Secretmy of the Department of Management Services or 
designee shall be final and binding on all parties. 

(C) The written decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management Services 
or designee as to the classification of the position shall be final af!d binding on all parties. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

Teamsters Local Union No. 201 1 
State Proposal- Article 12 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 16, 2014 

Page 1 ofl 

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee, which shall be 
maintained by the employing agency. Info rmation in an employee' s ofticial personnel tile may 
be maintained in electronic as well as paper fotm, and shall only refer to matters ~oncerning 
(affecting) the employee's job or related to his state en-,ployment. 

(8) If~ derogatory material document is placed in an employee' s ofticial personnel 
file, a copy will be sent to the employee. The employee will have the right to answer respond to 
any such material document tiled, and the ans'.ver emplovee·s response will be attached to the 
tile copy. 

(C) An employee will have the right to review his official personnel file and any 
duplicate personnel files at reasonable times under the supervision of the designated records 
custodian. or may request a copy of his tile which wi ll be provided at no cost to the employee so 
long as such request is made no more frequently than every 12 months. 

(D) Where the Ag~ncy Head or designee, the Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the courts. an arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a document in 
the personnel file has been placed in the employee's personnel tile iH eFror or is otherwise 
invalid, such document shall be placed in an envelope together with a letter of explanation. The 
outside of the envelope and all pages of the document shall be sealed, stamped "NOT VALID'' 
marked '·VOID.'. and retained in the employee's personnel 1ile as specified in the Stale of 
Florida General Records SchedLLie GS 1-S L for State and Local Government Records, as 
promulgated by the Department of State. ln the case of electronic records, a Personnel Action 
Request (PAR) that has been determined to be invalid shall have a note added to the PAR torm 
indicating that the action was inyalid is "VOID". 

(E) Information in an emplovee ' s official personnel tile is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 119. Fl01ida Statutes, unless specifically exempted by state or federal law (such as 
protected health inf01mation and social secw·ity numbers), and as such. must be provided to 
anyone desiring inspection or requesting copies in accordance with the provisions of the Public 
Records Law. 

For the State 

Michael Matti111ore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
ChiefNegotiator 

Date 



SECTION 1- Safety Committee 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 1 I 
State Proposal - Article l3 (Substance- Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 
January 23,2015 

Page 1 of3 

Article 13 
SAFETY 

(A) It sha ll be the policy of the state to make every reasonab le eftort to provide 
employees a safe and healthy working environment. 

(8 ) Where management has created a safety commi ttee in a state-controlled facility. 
the employees shall select at least one person at the faci lity to serve oo such committee. 

(C) Where management has not established a safety committee both the state and 
Union sha ll work toward the establi shment of one in each state-controlled facility. 

SECTION 2- Employee Safety 

(A) An employee who becomes aware of a work-related accident shal l immediately 
notify the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred. 

(B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists in the work 
area, the empl.oyee shall immediately rcpott the condition to the supervisor. The supervisor shall 
investigate the report and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate. 

SECTION 3- Grievability 

Complaints wh ich arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be 
grievable, but only up to Step 3 of the grievance procedure of the Agreement. 

SECTION 4 - Communicable Diseases 

(A) [n institutions, centers, and units in which inmates and/o r patients with A IDS or 
other communicable diseases are isolated due to their condition. employees entering such areas 
shall have such protective wear and equipment made available to them as is made avai lable to 
health care employees working in that a rea. 

(B) Employees shall not be required to handle, examine, or test materials from the 
human body of inmates, offenders, or clients under their supervision ex(;ept in accordance with 
the rules and regulations of the agency regarding the handling and testing of such materials. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negot iator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 13 (Substance- Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 20 15 

Page 2 of3 

(C) The agencies shall make available to employees a procedure to screen for 
tubctculosis (PPD SKI N TEST). Altemati vely. the emp loyee may at his own cost, have such test 
perfotmed by a private physician and provide the reslllts of the test to the agency. 

SECTION 5- Correctional Probation Officer Safety 

Con-ectional probation officers, upon the approval of their immediate supervisor, shall be 
provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproof vest, a hand-held radio. or a cellular 
telephone. An officer who is cert ifi ed to catTy a firearm. and chooses to carry, may be authorized 
to catTY hi s department approved weapon while on duty. When caiTyi ng inside the probation and 
parole of ri ce the firearm shall. at all times. be concealed on the officer's person or secured in the 
ofticial of1ice lock-box immediately upon entering the probation and parole office. 

The parties acknowledge tl'lat the Department of COiTCctions has included s ignificant 
additional resources for radie communications system replacement and staffiflg, as well as 
funding of recurring costs fbr soft body armor, in its Fiscal Year 2 013 14 Legislative Budget 
Request. 

SECTION 6- Personal Weapons 

(A) The Department o f Correcti ons may, upon written request, provide weapons 
lockers to employees who are also employed o uts ide the Depa11ment as an aux ili ary police 
offi cer o r deputy and are required to can y these weapons to perfom1 their duties. 

(B) The Department of Conectio ns authorizes employees to can y o ne handgun to 
work in private vehicles and park such vehicles o n the department grounds provided the handgun 
is secured in the vehicle and maintained in a standard handgun lockbox in acco rdance w ith the 
fo ll9wing: 

(I) Only one handgun per vehicle/per lockbox. 

(2) The handgun must be stored in a lockbox that is designed to hold a 
handgun and can be locked; an empty ammunition box or metal coin box, or a g love 
compartment are not lockboxes for this pllllJOSe, 

(3) The doors and windows o f the. vehicle must lock if the lockbox is kept in 
the cab of the vehicle. If the cab of the vehicle can be accessed from the trunk. the trunk must 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State ' s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Ho ll y Van Horsten 
Chief egoti ator 

Date 



lock. The trunk must be locked at all times. 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 I I 
State Proposal - Artic le 13 (S ubstance- Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23,20 15 

Page 3 of3 

(4) The lockbox cannot be placed in a metal toolbox on a truck. 

(5) For conve1iibles, the lockbox must be placed in the trunk. If the vehicle is 
a Jeep or sim il ar vehicle, with no top and no trunk, the officer cannot cat-ry a handgun. 

(C) Only the ammunition necessary to load the handgtm to capacity will be allowed in 
the lockbox. It is the otricer's choice whether the handgun is loaded or the ammunition is 
separate, but both must be in the lockbox and locked. 

(D) At no time w ill the employee leave the vehicle unlocked while the handgun is in 
the vehicle and parked on state grounds. 

For the State 

M icbael Matti more 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Dare 



SECTION J Leaves 

Article 18 
L EAVES OF ABSENCE 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 ll 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 
December 16,2014 

Page I of I 

The pa1iies specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 
Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage, and payment of sick 
and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment shall apply to all employees. 

SECTION 2 Negetiotiaa Cemmittee 

(A) Tl=te Unjon may designate certain employeeo within this unit to serve as its 
Negotiation Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend 
negotiating sessions \v:ith the state. An employee serving on the Negotiation Committee skall 
also be granted a n'iaximunl of eight hours administrative leave to attend a n.egotiation 
preparatory meeting to be held the calendar day immediately preceding each scheduled 
negotiation session, provided that the negotiation preparatory meeting is held oa- what weald 
othenvise be the employee's normal w:orkday. No employee shall be credited '.vith more tJ1an the 
number of hours in the employee 's Iegular workday for any day the employee is in negotiations. 
The total RtJmbet= ef hours, including the hours spent in negotiation preparatory meeti.ngs, paid all 
employees on the Union 's Negotiation Committee shall not exceed I 000 hours. The time in 
attendance at such preparatory meetings and negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours 
worked for the purpose of comp1:1ting compensatory time or overtime. The agency shall not 
reimbmse the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with 
attendance at preparatory meetings or negotiating sessions. 

(B) No more than two employees shall be selected from the same ·.vork t:mit at any 
one time, nor shall tlle selection of any employee unduly hamper the operations ofthe work unit. 

SECTION 3 Union Aetivities 

Employees skall have the rigkt to request leave without pay, ann1:1al, or compensatory 
leave for the purpose of attending Union conventions, conferences, and meetings. When such 
requests cannot be gianted, the supervisor shall provide such denial in writing. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Article 24 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - Article 24 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23 , 2015 

Page I of2 

ON-CA LL ASSIGNMENT AND CALL-BACK 

SECTION l - Oo-CaJI 

··on-calr· assignment shall be as defined in Rule 60L~32. Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 2- O n-Call He Additive 

(A) When approved as provided herein, an employee who is required to be on-call 
shall be compensated by payment of a fee paid an on-call additive in an amount of one dollar 
($1 .00) per hour for each hour the hour(s) such employee is required to be on-ca11 pursuant to 
Rule 60L-32.00J ?(l)(b). F.A.C. If an on call period is less than one hour, the time while on call 
will be rounded to the nearest 1/4 hour and the employee 'Nill be paid twenty five cents ($0.25) 
for each 1/4 hOLw of on call assignment. 

(8) An en1ployee who is required to be on-call on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday as 
listed in section 11 0.117ill Florida Statutes, will be compensated by payment of a fee shall be 
paid an on-call additive in an amount per hour equal to one-fourth of the statewide hourly 
minimum for the employee's clas-s paygrade or at the rate specified in the above paragraph, 
'Nhiehever is greater, fo r each eigl'lt hour period the hour(s) such employee is required to be 
available on-call pursuant to Rule 60L-3'>.0012(2)(b). F.A.C. 

SECTION 3- Call-Back 

(A) When an employee who has been placed on-call in accordance with Section l 
above, is called back to the 'rVork location to pertonn assigned duties, the employee shall be 
credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of two hours whichever is greater. If the officer in 
charge determines the officer is no longer needed, the officer will be given the option ofleaving 
or working up to three hours. The rate of compensation shall be in accordance with the Rules of 
the State Personnel System. 

(B) For employees assigned GPS (Global Positioning System) monitoring duties, time 
spent waiting from an initial call of a GPS violation until the GPS violation has been cleared will 
be considered time worked, up to a maximum of 15 minutes for each separate incident. While the 
statewide average to clear a call is 12 minutes, occasionaJiy a call may take longer than 15 
minutes to clear. Should this situation occur. the employee may request through their chain of 
command that the additional waiting time be considered time worked. Such requests shall be 
considered on a case-by-case basis. This wait time wi ll be counted toward any overtime 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Dare 



Team sters Local Union No. 20 ll 
State Proposal - Article 24 

Fiscal Year 20 15-1 6 
January 13. 20 15 

Page 2 of 2 
cal culation. DUJing the term of the contract the parties agree to meet and discuss GPS monitoring 
duti es if the Union has any concerns with the program. 

For the State 

M ichael Mattimore 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Fo1· tbe Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negoti ator 

Date 



SECTION 1 -General Pay Provisions 

Article 25 
WAGES 

Teamsters Local Union No. 201 I 
State Proposal- Article 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15-1 6 
January 26, 2015 

Page I of4 

Agencies· authority to provide increases to employees· base rate of pay and salary 
additive. from available agency funds shall be in accordance with this Agreement, state law. and 
the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2 - Other Pay Provisions - Department of Corrections 

The following provis ions shaH apply to all appo intments of Dcpa1tment of Corrections· 
employees to positions allocated to classifications or broadband levels listed in Appendix A of 
the Agreement. regardless o f whether the appointee is a newly-hired employee or currently 
employed in another class series or occupational level in the State Personnel System. The pay 
grades and rates of pay shall be dctennined in acct)rdance with the Schedule of Salary Ranges of 
the Career Service Pay Plan. An employee receiving an original. promotion, reassignment. 
transfer, or demotion appointment shall have a base rate of pay equal to an amount within the 
pay range, subject to the following: 

(A) Initial Appointment 

The following hall apply to all employees who are appointed to a position ·with 
probationary statu 

(I) Persons appointed to a position prior to being certified by the Criminal 
.Justice Standards and Training Commission will he employed at a biweekly base rate of pay at 
the established trainee rate 10% below the minimum for the class ur broadband level to which 
the appointment is made. 

(1) Upon being ce11ificd by the Criminal Justice Standards and Trai ning 
Commission, the employee shall be placed at the minimum of the appropriate pay !,TJ.·ade for the 
dass or broadband le cl to "vhich appointed, effective the date of certification. Appointments 
above the minimum may be approved by the Agency Head or designee. 

(3) Persons holding a current Certificate of Completion tor basic recruit 
training issued by the Criminal .Justice Standards and Training Commission at the time o f 

For the State 

Michael Mattimorc 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26. 20 15 

Page 2 of4 

appointment will have their biweekly base rate of pay established at the minimum of the pay 
grade for the class or broadband level to wh ich the appointment is made. 

( 4) The probationary period shall be I 2 months for any employee appointed to 
a position with probationary status. 

(5) Time spent as a trainee prior to receiving a Certification of Completion 
shall not be counted toward completion of the probationary period. 

(B) Pay upon Promotion Appointment 

When promoted the employee shall receive a minimum of five percent (5%) above the 
employee's base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband leveL contingent upon funds being 
available, or to the minimum of the higher pay grade. whichever is greater at the time of 
promotion. As an exception. when the employee is demoted and subsequently promoted back to 
the former classification or broadband leve l. or to a classitication assigned to the same 
broadband level in the Security Services Unit, within the succeeding 12 months, the employee 
shall receive the same rate of pay upon promotion as was received immediately prior to 
demotion. The Agency Head may, at his discretion. grant the employee up to an additional five 
percent (5%) at the time of promotion. In no case shall the employee be paid below the minimum 
tor the class ot broadband level. 

(C) Pay upon Demotion Appointment 

When demoted the employee's b iweekly base rate of pay in the lower dass or broadband 
level shall be detennined in accordance with the following: 

( 1) lf the employee is demoted before sati sfactorily completing the 
probationary period fonhe cutTent position and attaining permanent status, the employee's base 
rate of pay in the lower class/broadband level shall be detennined in the same manner as an 
initial appointment. 

(2) If the employee attained . permanent status in a bargaining unit position 
prior to promotion, and is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary period for 
the higher c lass/broadband level , the employee's base rate of pay shall be reduced to the amount 
the employee was being paid when promoted. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For thr Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
ChiefNegotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26,2015 

Page 3 of4 

(3) Jfthe employee is demoted after satisfactorily completing the probationary 
period for the higher class/broadband level. the employee·s base rate of pay shall be reduced to 
the amount the employee was being paid when promoted. The employee's pay in the lower pay 
grade shall be at the discretion of the Agency Head or designee. Normally. the employee's base 
rate of pay will be reduced to the same amount the employee was paid when promoted. 
However, in no case shall the employee's base rate of pay in the lower class/broadband level 
exceed the employee· s base rate of pay in the higher class/broadband level, nor shall the 
employee be placed at an amount within the lower pay grade which is Jess than the employee 
was being paid at the time of the promotion. 

SECTION 3- Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head's discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee's base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area 
closed due to emergency conditions fi·om another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiv ing up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance 
with, section II 0.219(7), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 5- Performance Pay 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, and from existing agency resources. each agency is authorized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee·s exemplary performance. as evidenceJ by a perfonnance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 6- Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible tot· monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state. pursuant to section 11 0.1245( I), Florida 
Statutes. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Hol ly Van Horsten 
C hief Negotiator 

Date 



SECTION 7- Discretionary Rnises 

Teamsters Local Union No. 10 ll 
State Proposal - A rticle 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 26,2015 

Page 4 of 4 

In accordance with the authority p rovided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 Genera l 
Appropriat ions Act. contingent o n the avail abili ty of funds and at the Agen~y Head·s di scretion. 
each agency is authori zed to grant competitive pay adj ustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staffing issues. 

For the State 

Michael Matt imore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
State Proposal - Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 13, 10 15 

Page I of2 

Article 26 
UNIFORM AND INSIGNIA 

SECTION I -Uniform and Insignia for Correctional Officers and Institutional Security 
Specialists 

Correctional officers and institutional security specialists. where applicable, shall receive 
a standard issue of uniforms and uniform accessories. The tate shall provide uniforms for its 
female correctional officers and institutional security specialists in the appropriate sizes. 
designed and ~ut tor females. 

SECTION 2 - Uniform Maintenance Allowance for Correctional Officers and Institutional 
Security Specialists 

The state will provide unit conectional ofticcrs and inst itutional security specialists who 
are turnished and required to wear a unifom1, a maintenance allowance in the amount of $250.00 
annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by 
the agency wi thout cost to the employee: in addition, such correctional offi cers and institutional 
security specialists shall receive a shoe allowance in the amount of$75.00 annually. 

SECTION 3 - Badges 

(A) Conectional officers and con ectional probation oftl cers shall be issued badges 
accord ing to the following specifications: 

(I) Badges issued to conectional officers below the rank of lieutenant shall be 
sih·er metal. black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers· 
uniforms inn manner consistent with department policy and procedures. 

(2) Badges issued to correctional officers at the rank of lieutenant and above 
shall be gold metal. black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges sJ1all be worn on the 
nrtict.:rs' uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures. 

(3) Badges issued to correctional probation offi cers shall be police size. These 
badges shall be catTied in badge cases and in accordance with department procedure. 

(B) Con ectional officers are only authorized to wear issued badges with the 
correctional officer class ··A·· or ··c· uniform. and only while pertonning official duties, or while 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State·s Chicr Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holl y Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 



Teamsters Local Union No. 20 11 
State Proposal - Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 23, 2015 

Page 2 of2 

in unitorm and traveling to or returning from their offi cia[ duty station . 

(C) The use of an issued badge as a credential for pet·sonal purposes is prohibited. 

(D) Issued badges are considered state property and, except tor retirement under 
specific conditions or death in the line of duty, are to be retllrned upon an employee's 
termination. of employment with the department or removal from a position in the Security 
Services Unit. Only badges, which are issued by the department, shall be used to conduct 
officially desi ~;,rn ated duties. Employees shall be responsible fo r reimbursing the department for 
any issued badge which is lost. 

(E) Correctional officers and corTectional probation officers who retire from the 
department under honorable conditions fi·om the Florida Retirement System, including 
retirement under medical di sability, shall be authotized to retain tl1 eir issued badge. 

(F) The badge of a correctional officer or a corTectional probation ofticer who ts 
killed in the line of duty shall be presented to the employee·s next of ki n. 

(G) Upon request, correctional officers and correctional probation officers "vho are 
promoted or transferred to other positions may retain their badge i f they are in good standing 
with the department and pay the cost of the badge. 

SECTION 4- Class .. A" Uniforms 

Employees shall no t be required to wear Class "A'" unitom1s while on hospital duty. 

For the State 

Michael Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

For the Teamsters 

Holly Van Horsten 
Chief Negotiator 

Date 





Article 3 
DUES DEDUCTION 

Teamsters Local201 l 
Proposal - Article 3 
November 21,2014 

(A) During the term of this Agreement, the state, by and through its respective 
agencies, agrees to deduct Union membership dues and uniform assessments, if any, in an 
amount established by the Union and certified in writing by the President of the Union, or his 
designee to the state, from the pay of those employees in the bargaining units who individually 
make such request on a written check-off authorization form provided by the Union (Appendix 
B). Such deduction will be made by the agency when other payroll deductions are made and wiJJ 
begin with the pay for the first full pay period following receipt of the authorization by the 
agency. 

(B) The Union shall advise the state of any uniform assessment of increase in dues in 
writing at least thirty (30) days prior to its effective date. 

(C) This Article applies only to the deduction of membership dues and uniform 
assessments, if any. and shall not apply to the collection of any fines, penalties, or special 
assessments 

CD) Employee organization dues deduction will be provided for the certified 
bargaining agent only. 

SECTION 2 -Remittance 

Deductions of dues and uniform assessments, if any, shall be remitted exclusively to the 
President of the Teamsters Local 2011 or his designee. by the respective agencies on either a 
biweekly or monthly cycle along with a list containing names, social security numbers. agency 
division, district, institution, and amount deducted, of the employees for whom the remittance is 
made. 

SECTION 3 - Insufficient Pay for Deduction 

In the event an employee's salary is earnings within any pay period. after deductions for 
withholding social security. retirement. and insurance. are not sufficient to cover dues and any 
uniform assessments, it will be the responsibility of the Union to collect its dues and uniform 
assessments for that pay period directly from the employee. 

SECTION 4- Termination of Deduction 

Deductions for Union dues and/or uniform assessments shall continue until either: (1) 
revoked by the employee providing the state and the Union with thirty (30) days written notice 
that be is teiminating the prior check-off authorization; (2) revoked pursuant to Section 447.507. 
Florida Statutes; (3) the termination of employment; or (4) the transfer, promotion. or demotion 
of the employee out of this bargaining unit. If these deductions are continued when any of the 
above sitUations occur. the Union shall, upon notice of the error. reimburse the employee for the 
deduction that were improperly withheld. 

1 



SECTION 5 -Identification 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 3 
November 21,2014 

The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold the State of Florida. its officers. officials, 
agents. and employees. harmless against any claim. demand. suit, or Liability (monetary or 
otherv:ise) and for all legal costs arising from any action taken or not taken by the state. its 
.officials, agents and employees in complying with this Article. The Union shall promptly refimd 
to the state any funds received in accordance with this Article, which are in excess of the amount 
of dues and/or uniform assessments. which the state or its agencies have agreed to deduct. 

SECTION 6-Processing the Dues Check-off Authorization Form 

{A) The Dues Check-off Authorization Form (Appendix B) supplied by the Union 
shall: .(l) be in strict conformance with Appendix B; (2) be the only form used by bargaining unit 
employees who wish to initiate dues deduction; (3) contain all the information required for 
processing prior to submission to the state. 

(B) Changes in the Dues Check-off Authorization Forms required by (A) above will 
not affect deductions authorized by forms that the parties have previously agreed to. 

(C) Forms that are: (1) incorrectly filled out or do not contain all the information 
necessary for payroll processing. (2) postdated. or C3) submitted to the state more than sixty (60) 
days following the date of the employee's signature will be returned to the Union. 

2 



Article4 
NO DISCRIMINATION 

SECTION 1 -Non-Discrimination Policy - State--Federal Law 

Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal- Article 4 
November 21 , 2014 

{A) The state and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any reason 
prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law. 

(B) The Uaiea sMJI have H:le rigft.t te eenBult en issues ef"NB!a·;,rRtl Elisel"i:mHuttian wilft 1fte 
6~13 1 M8R8ge.ftle&t Represeetetive aeeler deeigaee(s), -.~ IB'et:tgh the S~ 2 Managemeat 
Represeatatl'l'e Bftdlar desigsee(s), te the Dep&RHt81lt ef Mfmegemeet Ser.·ises. 

(GID Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the state, its officials or 
representatives, except for grievances related to Union membership, shall only be subject to the 
method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect of 
law. 

(BQ The Union agrees to support the state's current affirmative action programs and efforts to 
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - Union Membenhip 

Neither the state nor 1he Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this 

Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and neither the state nor 

the Union shall discriminate against an employee because of membership or non-membership in 
any employee organization. 



Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal - Article 6 
December 16, 2014 

It is the policy of the state and Union to encourage informal discussions between supervisors 
and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view to reaching an 
understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee and the state, 
without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this Article. 

SECTION 1 -Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on the 
appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 

(B) "Grievant" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same grievance. 
In the case of a group of employees one employee shall be designated by the group to act as 
spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean business days. "Business days" refers to the ordinary business hours, 
i.e., 8:00a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the recipient is 
located. Furthermore, "business days" do not include any day observed as a holiday pursuant to 
section ll 0.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list furnished to the 
state in writing, as ofthe effective date ofthis Agreement, or day during a suspension of grievance 
processing as agreed in writing by the parties. "Business days" also do not include a day(s) on which 
the offices ofDMS or any agency employing bargaining unit members are closed under an Executive 
Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency condition or disaster under the provisions of 
Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(e). 

SECTION 2- Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) lf a grievant or the Union has a grievance which may be processed under this Article and 
which may also be appealed to the Public Employees Relations Commission, the grievant or the 
Union shall indicate at the time the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and 
such decision shall be binding on the grievant or the Union. In the case of any duplicate filing, the 
action first filed will be the one processed. 

(B) A grievant who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at the Oral Step or 
initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be represented by 
the Union. Ifthe grievant is represented by the Union, any decision agreed to by the state and Union 
shall be binding on the grievant. 

(C) Where Union representation is requested by a grievant, the grievant's representative shall 
be selected from the list of Union Grievance Representatives or Union Business Agents which has 
been provided to the state by the Union. When an employee has been appropriately designated to 
serve as a Grievance Representative and the state has been notified in accordance with Article 5, 



Teamsters Local 20 1 I 
ProposaL- Article 6 
December 16, 2014 

Section 2 (B), the Grievance Representative shall be authorized to investigate grievances and 
represent grievants in accordance with this Article, subject to the following limitations: 

(1) A Grievance Representative will not be allowed time off with pay to investigate 
his O\.\n grievance. 

(2) Time spent by a Grievance Representative in investigating a grievance shall b~ 
the minimmn amount of time necessary to perform the specific investigation involved. 

(a) If a grievant selects a Grievance Representative to represent him in a 
grievance which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Grievance 
Representative may be allowed a reasonable amount of annual or compensatory leave to investigate 
the grievance. Such annual or compensatory leave shall be subject to prior approval by the Grievance 
Representative's immediate supervisor; however, approval of such leave will not be withheld ifthe 
Grievance Representative can be allowed such time off without interfering with, or unduly 
hampering the operations of the unit to which the Grievance Representative is regularly assigned . 
The Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor will notify the grievant's supervjsor prior to 
allowing the Grievance Representative time off to investigate the grievance. 

(b) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere with state 
operations. 

(c) The Grievance Representative must be selected from Grievance 
Representatives within the same work unit a.q the grievant's wo!'k unit. If no Grievance 
Representative is located in the grievant's work unit, the Grievance Representative must be selected 
from the work unit located closest to the grievant's work location. In no case shall a Grievance 
Representative who is on duty be allowed to travel more than 50 miles from his official work 
locaticn in order to investigate a grievance. Such travel limitation shall not apply when the Grievance 
Repr~sentative is not on duty. 

(d) A Grievance Representative selected to represent a grievant as provided in 
this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting. 

(D) The grievant and the grievant's representative, if any, shall be notified of the Step 1 
meeting. Further, all communication concerning written griev!lnces or their resolution shall be in 
writing, with a copy sent to the grievant and the grievant's representative. 

(E) If the grievant is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance shalf be 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Union shall be given reasonable opportunity to be 
present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance, and processing of the grievance will 
be in accordance with the procedures established in this Agreement. The Union shall not be bound by 
the decision of any grievance in which the grievant chose not to be represented by the Union. 

(F) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing ~t Step 3 shall not 
establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases. 

SECTION 3 -Procedures 
2 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal-Article 6 
December 16, 2014 

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and handled 
pmmptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances. Grievances 
may be filed and responded to by facsimi le, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery 

(B) After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. 

(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures contained 
herein by reason of such participation. 

(D) Tf a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbitration hearing is held or requires reasonable 
travel time during the regular work hours of a grievant, a representative of the grievant, or any 
required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at grievance meetings, 
mediation, or arbitra6on hearings outside of a participant's regular work hours shall not be deemed 
time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of any participants attending such meetings on 
behalf of the union. 

(E) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no individual 
may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(l) Oral Discussion 

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 15 days following the 
occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, initiate the grievance by presenting it orally to 
the Oral Step representative or by filing a written grievance at Step l. The OraJ Step representative 
shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the Oral Step, including meeting to discuss the 
gric,ance if such meeting is requested by the grievant or the grievant's representative if a meeting is 
deemed necessary by the Oral Step representative. The Oral Step representative shall communicate a 
decision to the grievant and the grievant's representative, if any, within 10 days following the date 
the grievance is received at the Oral Step. 

(b) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit shall 
permit the grievant, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(c) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified 
in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as long as necessary 
provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(d) The OraJ Step representative for correctional institutions shall be the Chief 
Correctional Officer or designee. The Oral Step representative for community corrections shall be the 
Circuit Administrator. or designee. The Oral Step representative for employees in the institutional 
security specialist series shall be the Security Chief or designee. 

(:!)Step I 

(a) If the grievant elects to utilize the oral discussion step and the grievance is 
not resolved, the grievant or the designated grievance representative may submit it in W(iting to the 
Step 1 management representative within I 0 days following the receipt of the oral step decision. If 

3 



Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal - Article 6 
December 16, 2014 

the grievant elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of this section he may fi le a written 
grievance at Step 1, provided such written grievance is filed within 15 days following the occurrence 
of the event giving rise to the grievance. In fil ing a grievance at Step I, the grievant or the designated 
grievance representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance form as 
contained in Appendix. B, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is 
based, the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief 
requested. All written documents to be considered by the Step l Management Representative shall be 
submitted with the grievance form; however, if additional written documentation is obtained after the 
grie·.~ance is filed, such documentation may be presented at the Step 1 meeting. 

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designated representative shall 
mee! to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the 
grie,·ant's representative, if any, within 15 days following the date the grievance is received at Step 
I. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit shall 
permit the grievant, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified 
in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as long as necessary 
provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(3) Step 2 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step I, the grievant or the grievant's 
representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or designated representative within 10 
days after receipt of the decision at Step l. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance fonn 
subrr.itted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step l response, together with all written documents in support 
of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the grievance form must 
contain the same information as a giievance filed at Step 1 above. 

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the 
grievant and/or the grievant's representative to discuss the grievance. lfthe grievance is initiated at 
Step l, the parties shall meet to discuss the grievance. The Agency Head or designated representative 
shall communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant's representative, if any, 
within 15 days following receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Failure to commtmicate the deci~ion within the specified time limit 
shall p~rmit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The nwnber of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement b) both sid\!s. 

(4) Step 3- Contract Language Disputes 

• .. 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal- Article 6 
December 16,2014 

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this 
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay, 
dem.Jtion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was 
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the designated Union representative, or the grievant or 
his r:presentative, if not represented by the Union, may appeal the grievance, in writing, to the 
Department of Management Services within 15 days after receipt ofthe decision at Step 2. The 
grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all 
written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The Department of Management 
Services shall discuss the grievance with the Union representative, or the grievant or representative if 
not represented by the Union. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance 
form must contain the same information as the grievance filed at Step 1 above. 

(b) The Department of Management Servjces shall communicate a decision in 
writing to the grievant and his representative within 15 days following receipt of the written 
grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision wjthin the specified time limit shall 
pennit the grievant, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified 
in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as long as necessary 
provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(5) Grievance Mediation 

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be 
conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it bas been submitted to 
arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the 
time limits to file for, or process, an arbitration are automatically extended for the period 
necessary to conclude the mediation process. Either party may withdraw from the mediation 
process with written notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation. 

(6) Arbitration 

(a) If a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay, demotion, 
involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was taken without 
cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the President of the Union or a designated member of his staff may 
appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration Form as contained in Appendix C 
within 10 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. (fa contract language dispute as described in 
(4) abo.ve is not resolved at Step 3, the President of the Union or a designated member of his staff 
may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration Form as contained in Appendix 
C of this Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial step, 
the Union refused to represent the grievant because he was not a dues-paying member of the Union, 
the grievant may appeal the grievance to arbitration. 

(b) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related grievances for hearing 
before the same arbitrator. 

s 



Teamsters Local201 1 
Proposal- Article 6 
December 16,2014 

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of five arbitrators, selected by the 
state and ·the Union to serve in rotation for any case or cases submitted. The Department of 
Mamgement Services' Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration hearing with the state 
and the Union representatives and the arbitrator listed next on the panel in rotation, and shall 
coordinate the arbitration hearing time, date, and location. 

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible but not more than five 
months following the receipt of the Request fo r Arbitration Form. If the arbitrator initially selected is 
not available to schedule within this period, the Arbitration Coordinator shall contact succeeding 
arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who can schedule within the prescribed period. 
A party may request of the arbitrator, with notice to the other party and the Arbitration Coordinator, 
an e>:tension of time/continuance based on documented unusual and compeUing circumstances. The 
Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule arbitration hearings at times and locations agreed to by the 
parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses, existence of 
appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors. If agreement cannot be reached, the arbitration 
hearing shall be held in the City of Tallahassee. 

(e) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a 
grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted t.o address only 
the arbitrability issue. In such cases, the partiea shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of 
arbitrators (see (6)(c) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision within 1 S 
days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose. The hearing on this issue shall be limited 
to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five business days of the 
hearing. The hearing shall be conduct.ed by telephone upon the agreement of the parties and the 
arbitrator. The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and expenses of the expedited 
arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue i~ arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen 
from the parties' regular arbitration panel in accordance with the provisions of ( 6)( c) of this Article 
to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s). 

(f) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and, 
provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement, shall 
be final and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the employees in the bargaining unit. 
1n co!lsidering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following provisions and 
limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 22 days from the date of 
the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing;-5A&U-be determines by 
applyiAg a prepoadeNRee efthe eor,•iEieRee steruiafd, and shall set forth the arbitrator's opinion and 
conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other issue, and the 
arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the 
deter.nination of the issues submitted. 

6 



Teamsters Local201 l 
Proposal - Article 6 
December 16,2014 

4, The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the application and 
interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement 

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decisions: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting from, or 
modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of applicable law or rules 
or regulations having the force and effect of law; or 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, duties, and 
responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and regulations having 
the forc·e and effect of law, except as such powers, duties, and responsibilities have been abridged, 
deleg~ted, or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement; or 

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an Agency 
Head as otherWise granted by law or the Rules of the State Personnel System unless such authority is 
modified by this Agreement; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or policy unless 
such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the Rules of the State Personnel System, or this 
Agreement. 

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the grievant(s); however, 
the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards. 

a. An award for back pay shall not exceed the amount of pay the 
grievant would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by the amount of 
wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance benefits during the 
back pay pedod, shall not include punitive damages, and shall not be retroactive to a date earlier than 
15 days prior to the date the grievance was initially filed. 

b. lf the lJR:ieA is gt=aated a eeRtiAtumee te FeseaedYie aR arbitration 
hearmg ever the ebjeetien efthe agtmey, the ageaey will net be respeasible fer beek p~· fer the 
period between the original heerifl;g date er ~ eftd of the five tBORtl<\ peJ"ieEI deseribed ia (6)(d), 
abo¥o, &Ad tRe' resooedwed date. 

(g) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the party who fails 
to pre~·ail in the hearing; however,.each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the 
expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. Should the arbitrator fashion an award 
in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part and denied in part, the state and Union will 
evenly split the arbitrator's fee and expenses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee statement to the 
Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator's contract. 

(h) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the proceedings. Such party 
is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter. lfeil-her pafty Ol'ders a tf&ftseript eftfte 
preeeediAgs, the party shall pay fer the east of the t:m:Rseript aRd provide a plloteeopy to tile 
&fbit:rai'er. Tbe pafty shall also provide a pl1etooof9Y ofl-he mmseritJt le U:le ather party l:lpon '<Witten 
re"iYest &A a paytBeAt of eef)yiRg eM:penses ($.1 S pel' page). A party ordering a transcript shall be 

7 



Teamsters Loca1 2011 
Proposal-Article 6 
December 16,2014 

responsible for the cost of said transcript. If one or both parties order a transcript. both parties shall 
split the cost of providing a cogy of the transcript for the arbitrator. 

(i) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which it was not a 

part). 

SECTION 4 - Time Limits 

(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall be deemed a 
waiver of the grievance. 

(B) Failure at any step of this procedl.lre to communicate the decision on a grievance within 
the specified time limit shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the 
next step. A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Union by the written, agreed-to 
deadJine does not alter the time limits for appealing a grievance to the next step. 

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 

SECTION S - Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit the 
Union or an employee to process a grievance: (1) on behalf of any employee without his consent, or 
(2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is, at the same time, the subject of an 
administrative action, an appeal before a governmental board or agency, or a court proceeding. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the Oral Step or Step 1, with the following exceptions: 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step l 
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance fonn as set forth io Step 1 within 15 days following the occurrence of the 
everifgiving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The Union shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of 
employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation·or application of this 
Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against any employee. The 
Union's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding in another forum on 
the same issue. The eless aetieR gtievaAee shall list the employees aa·tersely impaeted by the disp\:fte 
relatiHg te the iflterpretatioR or applieatioa ofthe Agreemeat. Such grievance shall be initiated at 
Swp 2 of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions set forth herein, within 15 days ofthe 
occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

(C) An employee who has oot attained permaoent status in his Gl:lfl'tmt positioR may only file 
flOn EliseipliAe grie>taAees. }>10ft eiseipli:Ae grie>t&R68S fileEI by preeatieaary 8fftfJloyees ete final and 
bindiAg at Step 3 uRiess the pFOeessiRg ef st~ell grie'laRees is ft.tliher limited by speeifie pFO'+'isioRs of 
tRis Agreemeot. 

8 



Article 7 

DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

SECTION 1 - Disciplinary Action 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal- Article ·7 
November 21,2014 

(A) An employee who bas either: I) attained permanent status in his current position,;_m: 

2) is serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received an internal agency 

promotion, may be disciplined only for cause as provided in section 110.227, Florida Statutes. 

Reductions in base pay, demotions, involuntary transfers efmer:e tfiae .SQ miles by highw~, 

suspensions, and dismissals may be effected by the state at any time against any employee. Such 

actions against employees with permanent status in their current position and employees serving 

a probationary period in a position to which they have received an internal agency promotion. for 

disciplinary reasons .. shaU be grievable in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6, 

if the employee aUeges that the action was not for just cause. However, any reduction in base pay 

required by the Rules of the State Personnel System shall not be grievable. Demotion wiJI not be 

used as a fonn of disciplinary action for employees in the classes of Correctional Officer, 

Correctional Probation Officer, Correctional Probation Officer~ Institution, or Institutional 

Security Specialist I. Disciplinary actions shall be subject to the grievance procedure as follows: 

( 1) The state may issue Memoranda of Record, Memoranda of Counseling, or 

Supervisory Counseling Memoranda, which are documentation of minor work · 

deficiencies or conduct concerns that are maintained by a supervisor in a working file, for 

a period of time not to exceed one year from the date of issuance. Such docwnents are not 

discipline. are not grievable, and shall not become part of the employee's official 

personneJ file; hewe¥er, st:teh OOe\lmetttetien may he ttSed by tAe elate at BB 
ooFRirtistretive heariflg iRvoh•iAg B:A emplayee' s diseiplifle te eeA'teAstrate tl:te emJlleyee 
was ea aetiee ef the perfefmBBGe ae:iieieaeies or eeoot:tet eeAeerRB. In Community 

Corrections, only the circuit administrator has the authority to issue Memoranda of 

Record. Memoranda of Counseling, and/or Supervisory Counseling Memoranda. 

(2) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status in 

their current position, and by employees serving a probationary period in a position to 

which they have received an internal agency promotion, up to Step ; l; the decision at 

that level shall be final and binding. 

(a) Since a written reprimand is not subject to arbitration, pursuant to 

the terms of this Article. it is only valid for a period of one-year after the 

date it is issued to an employee. and it is automatically invalid one-year 

and a day after its issuance. 



Teamsters Loca12011 
Proposal- Article 7 
November 21, 2014 

(b) Although the written reprimand is automatically invalid one-year 

and a day after its issuance, by operation of this Article, an employee may 

request. in writing to the custodian of his personnel file, that the written 

reprimand be placed in an envelope in his personnel file. The envelope 
shall be sealed, stamped "NOT VALID.'' and retained in the employee's 
personnel file as specified in the State of Florida General Records 
Schedule GS 1-SL for State and Local Government Records. as 

promulgat~ by the Department of State. ln the event that the written 
reprimand .has been maintained as an electronic document. a note shall be 

added to the electronic document indicating that the written reprimand is 
invalid. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed so as to undermine 

the automatic invalidity of the written reprimand one-year and a day after 
its issuance. A written reprimand is. by operation of this Article. 
automatically invalid one~year and a day after its issuance, and it is not 
necessary for an employee to request that the written reprimand be placed 

in an envelope and stamped "NOT VALID," for it to be invalid. 

(c) After a written reprimand becomes invalid, it shall not be used by 
the state as part of progressive discipline. nor shall it be used by the state 

in any subsequent discipline of the employee and/or disciplinary 

proceeding including but not limited administrative hearings. mediation. 
and arbitration. 

(3) For all types of discipline besides written reprimands. the discipline shall 

remain valid for a period of time not to exceed five years after the date of issuance. The 
discipline is automatically invalid five-years and a day after the date it was issued. and it 
shall not be used by the state as part of progressive discipline. nor shall it be used by the 

state in any subsequent discipline of the employee and/or disciplinary proceeding 
including but not limited administrative hearings, mediation. and arbitration. 

( 4) The state may not charge an employee with more than one violation of 

aoolicable rules of conduct. administrative code. policies, procedures. guidelines, 
directives and/or statutes for an employee's conduct (whether action or inaction) in 
regard to singular occurrence and/or transaction. The disciplinary authority must charge 
the employee with only one violation. and if the employee's alleged conduct could 

potentially violate more than one statute. rule, policy, procedure and/or directive, the 
disciplinary authority must charge the employee with the violation that most specifically 

concerns the conduct at issue. It is within the disciplinary authorit): ' s discretion to 
determine which violation most specifically concerns the conduct at issue. 

2 



Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal- Article 7 
November 21 , 2014 

(B) A complaint by an employee who is serving a probationary period in a position to 
which he has received an internal agency promotion concerning a reduction in base pay, 
suspension. involuntary transfer, demotion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step 2 and processed 
through the Arbitration Step, in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in Article 6 of this 
Agreement An employee with permanent status in his current position may file an appeal of a 
reduction in base pay, suspension, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion, 
or dismissal with the Public Employees Relations Commission C"PERC'1 ) within 21 calendar 
days after the date of receipt of notice of such action from the agency, by personal delivery or by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, under the provisions of section l l 0.227(5) and (6), 
Florida Statutes. ln the alternative, a complaint by an employee with permanent status in his 
current position concerning a reduction in base pay, suspension, involuntary transfer of over 50 
miles by highway, demotion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step 2 and processed through the 
Arbitration Step, in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

(C) Where a disciplinary action may be appealed to PERC t1ie Ptthlie Empleyees 
Relatieas Cemmissiea and is also grievable under this Agreement, the employee shall indicate at 
the time the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and such decisjon 
shall be binding on the employee. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be 
the one processed. 

(D) For disciplinary suspensions, the following shall apply: 

(1) lfthe agency issues a disciplinary suspension to an employee and the 
employee files an appeal to PERC the Pablte employees Relat:ieas GeffJ:£9isaieB (P~RC) 
in the required 21 calendar days from the date the employee receives the letter, or files a 
collective bargaining grievance within the time linrits set forth in Article 6 of this 
Agreement, the agency shall have the option to stay the suspension for up to 90 calendar 
days pending a Recommended or Final Order by PERC, or a decision/award from an 
arbitrator. If the Department of Corrections agency stays the suspension, and PERC has 
not issued a Recommended or Final Order, or an arbitrator has not rendered a 
decision/award by the end of the period for which the suspension was stayed, the agency 
may proceed with the disciplinary suspension. 

(2) ln lieu of serving a disciplinary suspension, an egeAey employee, at his sole 
,and exclusive discretion. may elect to have special compensatory leave equal to the 
length of a disciplinary suspension deducted from his empleyee 's leave balance in lieu of 
the empleyee serving the suspension. l:a :H:utkiRg sueh eeletlBiaafi~, the ageaey shall take 
iftto eessieeF&ttoR tfte prefereBee of the employee as te serviftg t:fte suspeasiea or having 
leeve EleEbteted. If the employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, 
annual leave may be deducted. lfthere is not sufficient special compensatory or annual 
leave, the remainder of the period will be leave without pay. Employees from whom 

3 



Teamsters Local 20 ll 
Proposal - Article 7 
November21, 2014 

leave is deducted will continue to report for duty. The employee's personnel file will 
reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the employee serves the 
suspension or has leave deducted. 

SECTION 2- Interrogation during Internal Investigations 

In the course of any internal investigation, the interrogation methods employed will be 
consistent with sections 112.532 and section l l2.533, Florida Statutes. 

(A) Definitions 

For the purpose of this section the following definitions of terms as used in section 
112.532, Florida Statutes, shall apply: 

(1) ''Interrogation" refers to a disciplinary investigation meeting with respect to an 
incident or complaint between a member of management or supervision, including an 
investigator, and an employee covered by this Agreement in which the information to be 
obtained at the investigation meeting will be the basis for the decision as to whether to 
suspend or dismiss the employee. It does not include counseling sessions, or 
investigations, which may result in lesser forms of disciplinary action or meetings at 
which the employee is solely being advised of intended disciplinary action, and offered 
an opporturuty to explain why he should not be disciplined. 

(2) "Complainants,. refers to the complaining or charging party relative to an 
incident, complaint, or reason. 

(B) Procedures 

Whenever an employee covered by this Agreement is under investigation and subject to 
interrogation by members of his agency for any reason, which could lead to disciplinary action, 
suspension, demotion, or dismissal, such interrogation shaH be conducted under the following 
conditions: 

( l) The interrogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, preferably at a time 
when the employee is on duty, unless the seriousness of the investigation is of such a 
degree that immediate action is required. 

(2) Th.e interrogation shall take place either at the office of the command of the 
investigating officer or correctional unit in which the incident allegedly occurred, as 
designated by the investigating officer or agency. 

(3) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the rank. name, and 
command of the officer in charge of the investigation, the interrogating officer, and all 

4 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 7 
November 21,2014 

persons present during the interrogation. All questions directed to the officer under 
interrogation shall be asked by anri through one interrogator at any one time. 

( 4) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the nature of the 
investigation prior to any interrogation, and he shall be infonned of the name of aU 
complainants. 

(5) Interrogating sessions shall be for reasonable periods and shall be timed to 
allow for such personal necessities and re..<;t periods as are reasonably necessary for both 
the employee and the representative. 

(6) The employee under interrogation shall not be subjected to offensive l.anguage 
or be threatened with transfer, dismissal, or disciplinary action. No promise or reward 
shall be made as an inducement to answer any questions. 

(7) The fonnal interrogation of an employee, including all recess periods, shall be 
recorded, and there shall be no unrecorded questions or statements. Upon the request of 
the interrogated officer, a copy of any such recording of the interrogation session must be 
made available to the interrogated officer no later than 72 hours, excluding holidays and 
weekends, following said interrogation. 

(8) If the employee under interrogation is under arrest, or is likely to be placed 
under arrest as a result of the interroga~on, be shall be completely informed of aU his 
rights prior to the commencement of the interrogation. 

(9) At the request of any employee under investigation, he shall have the right to 
be represented by counsel or any other representative of his choice, who shal1 be present 
at all times during such interrogation whenever the interrogation t•elates to the officer's 
continued fitness for correctional service. 

(1 0) Where the agency detennines that a complaint is unsupported by the facts or 
is otherwise without merit, or determines that the facts are insufficient to charge or 
otherwise discipline the employee under investigation, such conclusion will be so noted 
as part of the investigative record. Written documents relative to the investigation are 
subject to the provisions of Article 12, Personnel Records. 

(11) Where the employee is the subject of the investigation, the employee shall be 
provided the opportunity to review all written statements made by the complainant and 
witnesses immediately prior to the beginning of the investigation interview. 

(C) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph 
te3t or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his response during an investigation of 

s 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal- Article 7 
November 21, 2014 

a complaint or allegation. If an employee is offered an opportunity to submit to a polygraph test, 

the employee's refusal will not be referred to in any f1I18..1 action taken by the agency. 

(D) Alleged violations of the investigative rights provided for in thjs section by an 

employee or the Union shall be investigated by the agency. The agency shall provide the 
employee and the Union with an explanation concerning the alleged violation and corrective 

a:tion taken, if any. 

(E) The state will make a good faith effort to complete all internal investigations within 

60 caiendar days from the date the investigation is assigned to the investigator. Except in the 
case of a criminal investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing of any investigation 

that exceeds 120 calendar days. The employee under investigation shall be advised oftbe results 

of the investigation at its conclusion. 

(F) The provisions of this section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to Step 

3 of the Grievance Procedure; the decision at that step shall be final and binding. 

(G) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the work 

l0cation is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties 
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave in 

accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. In cases where an employee has 
been reassigned by the Department of Corrections pending the outcome of an investigation and 
the charges or allegations against the employee are not sustained, the reassigned employee shall 

be offered the option to return to the original work location and, if requested, the previously held 
shift and days off as soon as they become available. As an exception, the Department may retain 
the employee in the reassigned work location if it determines that information has been produced 

in the course of its investigation of the charges that evidences a substantial likelihood of 
interference with the operations of the work unit if the employee is returned to the original work 

location. 

SECTION 3 - Employee Copy 

Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary entries placed in his official 

personnel ftle and shall be permitted to respond thereto, and a copy of the employee's response 
shall be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

SECTION 4 - Notice 

Notice ofreduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by 
highway, suspension, or dismissal affecting an employee who has satisfactorily completed at 

least a one-year probationary period in his ~urrent position shall be in accordance with section 
11 0.227(5), Florida Statutes. An employee who is serving a probationary period in a position to 

6 



Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal - Article 7 
November 21,2014 

which he has received an internal agency promotion shall receive written notice of a reduction in 
base pav. demotion. involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or 

dismissal at least 10 days prior to the date such action is to be taken. Subsequent to such notice. 

and prior to the date the action is to be taken, the affected employee shall be given an 

opportunity to appear before the agency or official taking the action to answer orally and in 
writing the charges against him or her. The notice to the employee required by this paragraph 

may be delivered to the employee personally or may be sent by certified mail with return receipt 

requested. 

SECTION 5- Representation 

Where union representation is requested by an employee during an investigation by the 

agency Inspector General's Office, o r during a predetermination conference, a union steward will 

be allowed a reasonable amount of accrued leave, other than sick leave, to attend such meetings, 

subject to prior approval by the steward's immediate supervisor. Such leave will be approved if 

the steward can be allowed leave without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations 

of the unit to which the steward is regularly assigned. Where an employee is represented by a 

Gnion Representative in a predetermination conference, the Union Representative shall be 

notified of the disposition of the predetermination conference. 

7 



Artic!eS 
-Nor _K FORCE REDUCTfOl·i 

SECTION . -Layoffs 

Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal - Article 8 
December 16, 2014 

(.:\) When employees are to be laid otr as d-.lfined in the Florida Statutl.!s, the state shall 
implement such layoff in the fo llowing manner: 

(1) The competitive area for the bargaining unit shall be statewide unless the 
Department and Union agree othen"ise. 

(2) Layoff shall be by class or occupational level within the Security Services 
Bargaining Unit. 

(3) An employee who has not attained permanent status in h is current position 
may be laid off without applying the provision for retention rights. 

(4) No employee \-\ith permanent status in his current position shaU be laid off 
while an employee who does not hold permane;nt status in his cwTent pusition is serving in that 
class or level unless the permanent employee does not elect to exercise his retention rights or 
does not meet the selective competition criteria. 

(5) A ll employees who have permanent status in their current positions shall be 
ranked on a layoff Jist for the affected class or level based on the total retention points deri\ed as 
follows: 

(a) Length of service: retention points shall be based on on~ point for each 
month of continuous service in a Career Sen. ice position. 

1. An employee who resigns from one Career Service position to 
accept employment iu another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in 
Service. 

2. An employee who has been l~id off and is reemployed within 
one }ear from the date of the layoff shall not be considered to have a break in service. 

3. Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or 
Senior Management Service and back to Career Setvice does not constitute a break in service 
unless the employee's break in service! is more than 31 calendar days. Only tim~ spent in the 
Career Service is counted in calculating retention points. 

(b) Rl.!tention points deducted for performance not meeting performance 
standards or work expectations ddined tor the position shall be based on the five years 
imm~diate ly prior to the agency's established cutoff date. Five points shall be deducted for each 
month an ~mployt.:c bas a rating beiO\"' performance o,;xpectations. 

(6) The layoff list shaH be prepared by totaling retention points. Fmployees 
eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to s~ction 295.07(1)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, shall 



Teamsters Local 20ll 
Proposal - Article 8 
December 16,2014 

have ten percent add~d to their total retl!ntion points, and those eligible pursuant to section 
295.07(1)(c) or (d), F lorida Statutes, shall have five perc~nt added . 

(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at the top of the 
list, t~nd the employee with the loY. "est retention points is placed at the bottom of the list. 

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom of 
the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled in 
the ~arne manner until the total number of filled positions in the class to be abolisheJ is 
complete. 

(9) Should two or more employl!es have th~ same combined total of retention 
poims, the order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference for retention in the following 
sequ.!nce: 

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected class. 

(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career 
Service. 

(c) The employee who is entitled to veterans' preference pursuant to 
section 295.07(1 ), Florida Statutes. 

(tO) An employee who has pennanent status in his current position and is to be 
laid ·Jff shall be given at least 14 calendar days notice of such layoff or two weeks' pay, or a 
combination of days of notice and pay. Ally pa)'mcnt will be made at the employee's current 
hour.y base rate of pay. The notice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the employee by 
certified mail, return receipt requested. Within seven calendar days after receiving the notice of 
layotf, the employee shall have the right to request, in writing, a d~motion or reassignment 
within the comp~titive area in lieu of layoff to a position in a class within the bargaining unit in 
whicn the employee held permanent status, or to a position in a class at the level of or below thl! 
class in the bargaining unit in which the employee held permanent status. 

( 11) An employee's request for demotion or reassignment shall be granted unless 
it wculd cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points. 

( 12) An employee adverseJy afTected as a r~!':ult of another employee having a 
greater number of retention points shall ha\oe the same right of reassignment or dl;!motion under 
the same. procedure as provided in this section. 

( 13) lf an employe~ requests· a demotion or reassignment in lieu of layoff, the 
same fonnula and criteria for establishing retention points for that class shall be used as 
prescribed in this section. 

(B) If there is to be a layoff of employees, tlte state shall take all reasonable steps to place 
any adversely affe.ct~d employ..!es in existing vacancies for which they are qualified. 

2 



Teamsters Local 201 1 
Proposal - Article 8 
December 16, 2014 

(C) If work performed by employees in this unit is to be performed by non-state 
employees; the state agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider any adversely affected 
unit employees for employment in its organization if the state has been unable to place the 
employees in other positions within the State Personnel Systtm. 

SECTION 2- Job Securit} 

~~~ te oetify the Union at least 3Q aays in advaneo-ef 
~~ithffi the eargaiB:i:Ag l:lflit that v.ill be invel•;ed: in a layoff. ana ef tfie S<.~ 
ef-EH:on:eetional faeility er SJ)ceifie Nnit thereof. Prier te the aett~al layoff er seheal:l!ce elesiag, 
thc-smte-WHHB(let-witk the Uftioa te eiSCtiSS the effeet oHhe lay offea the employees inYeh•ee. 

(A) In no event shall any bargaining unit employee who customarily performs the work 

in question be laid off as a direct and immediate result of the work being performed by any 

outside contractor on premises of any major institution or probation and parole office. 

(B) If the state sells, leases, transfers or assigns any of its functions. the state shall 
inform the purchaser, lessee or successor of the exact terms of this Agreement and shall make the 
sale, lease, transfer or assignment conditional on the successor assuming all the conditions and 
obligations of this agreement, including but not limited to the retention of all employees. Any 
sale, lease. transfer or assignment shall include a provision requiring the successor to be bound 
by all the provisions of this agreement until its next expiration date, at which time the successor 
organization will recognize and negotiate with this union and no other employee organization. 

SE CTION 3 - Recall 

When a vacancy occurs, or a new position is established, laid off employees shall be 
recalied in the foJiowing manner: 

(A) For one y\!al' following layoff, when a position is to be filled or a new position is 
establish~d in the same agency and in the same class within the affected competitive area, a laid 
off employee with the highest number of retention points shall be offered reemployment; 
subsequent offers shall be made in the ordl!r of an employee's total retention points. 
Reemployment of such employees shall be ~ith permanent status in their position. An employee 
who refuses such offer of reemployment shall forfeit any rights to subsequent placement offers 
as pr·:>vided in this subsection. 

(B) An employee who accepts a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff and is subsequently 
proreotcd to a position in the same class :.0 the same agency, from which the employee was 
demoted in lieu of layoff, shaJI be promoted with permanent status in the position. 

(C) Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered a disciplinary action, and in the 
even! an employee elects to appeal the action taken, such appeal must be based upon whether the 
layoff was in accordance with the prO\isions of this Article. 

3 



.\rticle 9 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 9 
December 16, 2014 

REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE li i DUTY STATION 

Employees who have attained pennanent status in their current position and who meet all 
eligibility requirements shall have the opportunity to request r~assignment, transfer, or change:: in 
duty st~tion to vacant positions v-.ithin thdr respective agencies in accordance with the 
provisions of this Article. 

SECTION 1 - Definitions as used in this Article: 

(A) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is d~signated as an employee's official 
headquarters. 

· (B} "Change in duty station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 
located within 50 miles .• by highway, of his current duty station. 

(C) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sutliciently similar in knowledge, skills, 
and :\bilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of difficulty or 
responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same treatment as to 

title, pa) band, and other personnel transactions. 
(D) "R..:!a..~ignmcnt" shall mean moving an employe..! from a position in one broadband 

level to a different position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband level having 
the same maximum salary. 

(E) "Transfer'' shall mean moving an employee from one geographic area of the state to a 
different geographic location in excess of 50 miles, by highway, from the employee's current 
duty station. 

(F) "Agency needs" are those actions takl!n by an agency in order to meet its mission of 
prot~cting the public, providing a safe and humane environment for staff and offenders. working 
in partn~rship with the community to provide programs and services to offenders, and 
supervising otfendl.!rs at a level of security commensurate with the danger they prl.!sc:mt. 

(G) "Major institution" shall mean in the Department of Corrections, the main faciHly 
under the control of one warden, and -will include the annexes, vvork camps, release centers, and 
other satellite/sister facilities under the authority of that main facility warden. 

SECTiON 2 -Procedures 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply for a 
reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station on a Request for Reassignment, Transfer, or Change 
in Duty Station Form (supplied by the agency). Such requests shall indicate county(ies), 
instit:Jtion(s), and/or other work location(s) or shift(s) to which the employee would like to be 
reassigned. AR emple~ee may eel~ req1::1est reassigrtmeRt, traRsfer, er ehftftge in dwty statiEm from eRe 
major iffiltitutioR to aAother major iAstitutiefl ifl his ageRo~.A Ste.:~e ef¥1el'ida-iRlph~)tme~· 
*t'plieatieJ'l :Ven~ muit be completed aRd sefrt with Che lt:equcst Y8HRo 

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Fonn at any time~ however, all 
such requests shall expire on May 31 of \!ach calendar )ear. Requests can be filed in May to 
b~co:ne effl.!ctive on June 1. 

(C) All Request for Rcassignm\!nt Forms shall be submitted to the Agency Head or 



Teamsters Local201 1 
Proposal - Article 9 
December 16, 2014 

d~signee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such request to the manag~:r(s) or 
sup~rvisor(s) who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to 
which the employee has requested reassignment. 

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the manager or supervisor having 
hirir.g authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to employees who have submitted 
a Request for Reassignment Form; provided~ however, that employees whose request for 
reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancks 
which occur during that month. 

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a vacancy \\ith the employl!e who has the 
greatest length of service in the broadband level and who has a Request for Reassignment Form 
on file for the vacancy. The parties agree, however, that other factors, such as employees' \\Ork 
history and agency needs, will be taken into consideration in making the decision as to wh.rth~>r 
the employ..=e with the greatest length of service in the broadband level will be placed in thl! 
vacant position. 

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband level is not 
selected for the vacant position, all employ~es wbo have greater length of service in the 
broa::lband level than the employee selected shall be notified in writing of the agency's decision. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a request filed under this Article, 
all o~her pending requests for reassignment from that employee shall be canceled. No other 
request for reassignment may he filed by the employee under this Article for a period of 12 
monilis following th\! employee's reassignment. If an emplo)'ee" declines an offer of 
reassignment pursuant to a request filed under this Article, the employee's request shall bt: 
cancekd and the emplo}ee is not eHgible to resubmit that request for a peri.od of 12 month.c; from 
the date the employee d\!c1ined the offer of reassignment. 

SECTION 3 - Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer, or Change in Duty Station 

. (A) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its 
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station of an 
employee according to the needs of the agency~; however, the agency will make a good faith 
effort to take such action only when dictated by the needs of the agency. and in each case, will 
take into consideration the needs and circumstances of the employee prior to taking such action. 
For the Department of Corrections Article 23. Section 2(B)(2)a of this Agreement applies. 

(B) In those instances where the Department of Corrections determines that an excessive 
case load at a probation office requires the reassignment of an officer, tee Department will 
censider re')uests frem 'Vohmteers, emple"t'ee seRierity, and the eeeds efthe lli:tmey iR making 
suehreassignmem. such reassignment shall first be made on a volunteer basis. and next, on the 
basis of seniority with the least senior officer subject to reassignment. 

SECTION 4- Notice 

An employee shall be gh·en a minimum of 14 calendar days notice prior to the agl!ncy 
effecting any reassignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer, the agency will 
make a good faith effort to give a minimum of 30 calendar days notice. The parties agn::t!, 
however, that these notice requirements shall not be required during an emergenc} or other 
extraordinary condition. 



SECTION 5 -Reioc&tion AUowance 

Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal - Article 9 
December 16, 2014 

An employee who is reassigned and required by agency policy to relocate his residence 
shall be granted time off with pay for one (I) workday for this purpose. In addition, the employee 
shall be granti!d travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will 
be crcdit\!d with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular wo~kday and such time 
shall not be counted as hours \-Vorked for th\! purpose of computing compensatory time or 
overjme. 

SECTION 6 Griwabil:ity 

The f1FO¥isions of this Artiele shall Bet be s~:~bjeet to the grievanee flfOeeEil:lfes of Artiele 6 
of this Agreemeat; howe"+'ef, an emJ3Ioyee eomfllaiat eoaeemi:ag improper applieatioa of the 
Fiseal Year 2012 13 Teamsters See\:lrity Serviees umt Sueeessor Agreemeat 
f1rovisiofts of SeetioB 2(B), Seetioa 3, aad Seetioa 4 may be grie:r,reEI iR aeeo:Fdaaee with Artiele 6, 
ttp-to--an<!-ineluemg Step 3 of the grie>.·aaee proeedl:lfe. Ia eoasideriftg 5\ieh eemplaiats, weight 
sbft:ll be givea to the speeifie proeeehu=es fellewecl ea deeisiOBS HMlEie, along with the aeeEis of 
tile ageaey. 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 11 -Status Quo 

November 21,2014 

A:1icle 11 

CLASSIFICATION REVIE-W 

(A) When an employl!e alleges that he is being regularly required to p\!rfom1 dutil.!s 
which are not included in the position description of his position, and the cmployl!e aUeg~s that 
the duties assigned are not included in the official Career Service class specification to which the 
position is allocated, the employee may request in writing that the Agency Head review the 
duties assigned to the ~mployee's position. The :\.gency Head or designee shall review the duti~s 
as requested. The employee will receive a copy of the written d.!cision wiLhin 60 days of the 
request. Ifthe decision is U1at the duties assigned are sufficient to justify reclassifying the 
position, either the position will be reclassified or the duties in question will b~ removed. 
Sho11f1ge of funds shall not be used as the basis for refusing to reclassify a position after a review 
has been completed. 

(B) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without 
representation, may request in writing a rcvjew by the Secretary of the Department of 
M"anegement Services or designee. The review will be in accordance with Chapter 110, Florida 
Statutes. 

(C) ·1 'he v. ri tten decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management ServiCo.!::, 
or d~sigtiel.! as to the classification ofth~ position shall be final and biniling on all parties. 



SECTION 1 - Pe!·sonnel F iles 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal Article 12- Status Quo 

November 21, 2014 

Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

(A) There shaJl be only one official personnel file for ~.:ach employee, which shall b~ 
maintained by the employing agency. Infonnation jn an employee's official persormcl fi le shall 
only refer to matters concemjng (affecting) the employee's job or related to his state 
employment. 

(B) If derogatory material js placed in an employee's official personnel tile, a copy 
will &e sent to the .-:mployee. The employee \\-ill have the right to answer any such material filed, 
and 1he answer wilJ be attached to the file copy. 

(C) :\n employee will have the right to review his official personnel file and any 
duplicate personnel fiJes at reasonable times under the supervision of the designated records 
custodian, or rna} request a copy of his file v.hich will be provided at no cost to the employee so 
long as such request is mad\! no more frequently than every 12 months. 

(D) Where the Agency Head or designc.::, the Public Employees Relations 
Coromission the courts, an arbitrator , or other statutory authonty detcmu nl!s that a docwn~nt has 
bc\.!n placed in the employee's p\!rsonnel file in error or is otherwise invalid, such document shall 
be placed in an envdope together with a letter of explanation. The envelope shal l be sealed, 
stamp~ "NOT VALID", and retained in the employee's p\!rsonne1 fil~ as specified in the Stat.! of 
Florida General Records ScheduJe GS 1-SL for State and LocaJ Gf)vemment Records, as 
promulgated by the Department of State. In the case of electronic records, a Personnel Action 
Request (PAR) that has been det~rmined to be invalid shaJl have a note added to th~ P:\R form 
indicating that the action was invalid. 



SECTION 1 -Safety Committee 

Article 13 
SAFETY 

Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal - Article 13 

November 21, 2014 

(A) Jt shall be the policy of the state to make every reasonable effort to provide 

employees a safe and healthy working environment. 

(B) Where management has created a safety committee in a state-controlled facility, the 

employees shall select at least one person at the facility to serve on such committee. 

(C) Where management has not established a safety committee both the state and Union 
shall work toward the establishment of one in each state-controlled facility. 

SECTION 2 - Employee Safety 

(A) An employee who becomes aware of a work-related accident shall immediately 
notify the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred. 

(B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists ~ the work area, 
the employee shall immediately report the condition to the supervisor. The supervisor shall 
investigate the report and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate. 

(C) The state expressly agrees to abide by the terms of Chapter 287. Part II. Florida 

Statutes and Chapter 60B-l. Florida Administrative Code, with regard state-owned vehicles. 

(D) The Department of Corrections agrees to abide by the terms ofProcedme Number 
604.20 1, including Specific Procedures 604.201 (1 )(c), under "Procurement of Vehicles," 

604.201(4), "Use and Control of Vehicles." and 604.201(5), "General, Emergency, Major 

Repairs. and Preventative and Essential Maintenance." which are fully incorporated herein by 
reference. 

(E) Maintaining adequate security staffing levels is critically important to the safety of 
officers working in the Department's correctional institutions and satellites. Under no 

circumstances will any shift. defined for use in this Paragraph as an employee's regular daily 
work period. begin below Level I staffing or be allowed to go below this level except in rare 

cases of extreme emergency. 

l . The Union has the right to raise and discuss issues of security staffmg levels 
and/or the applicable region's (or regions' ) current DC6-292, but only with regard 

to impact of staffing leve1s on emoloyee safety. 



Teamsters Local 201 1 
Proposal- Article 13 
November 21, 2014 

2. No employee in the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement shall be 

retaliated against or disciplined for reporting a concern about the adequacy of 
security staffing levels and his institution. 

(F) The parties acknowledge and agree that all safety equipment, including but not 
limited to bulletproof vests and radios, provided to the bargaining unit members by the state must 
be properly maintained and in good working order. 

SECTION 3 - Grievability 

Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be 
grievable, but onlyup to Step 3 of the grievance procedure of the Agreement with the exception 
of complaints arising under the application or interpretation of Section 2(C)-m of this Article. 
Those complaints which arise in regard to the application or internretation of Section 2(C)-(F) of 
this Article shall be subject to the entirety of the grievance and arbitration procedure in Article 6 
of this Agreement. 

SECTION 4 - Communicable Diseases 

(A) In institutions, centers, and units in which inmates and/or patients· with AIDS or other 
communicable diseases are isolated due to their condition, employees entering such areas shall 
have such protective wear and equipment made available to them as is made available to health 
care employees working in that area. 

(B) Employees shall not be required to handle, examine, or test materials from tbe human 
body of inmates, offenders, or clients under their supervision except in accordance with the rules 
and regulations of the agency regarding the handling and testing of such materials. 

(C) The agencies shall make available to employees a procedure to screen for 
tuberculosis (PPD SKIN TEST). Alternatively, the employee may at his own cost, have such test 
performed by a private physician and provide the results of the test to the agency. 

SECTION 5 - Cor:rectional Probation Officer Safety 

Correctional probation officers, t~peB the 8f'f't'8¥el eftheir immediate 8lt:J"et'¥tser, shall be 
provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproof vest; and a hand-held radio-; and/or a 
cellular telephone. 

L As a nonnal function of his position. a correctional probation officer may be 
required to engage in field supervision and investigation in a geographic area that lacks 
adequate cellular telephone reception to enable the officer to call for back-up and/or 
·'911" in the event of a threat to his physical safety. Accordingly. if a probationer and/or 
parolee resides in an geographical area that lacks adequate cellular telephone reception, 

2 



Teamsters Loca120ll 
Proposal- Article 13 

November 21, 2014 

any officer responsible for said probationer's and/or parolee's supervision will be 
permitted, upon reauest to his immediate sypervisor, to carry a hand-held radio in 
addition to a cellular telephone in perfonning field ·supervision and investigation of said 
probationer and/or parolee. 

LAn officer who is certified to carry a fueann, and chooses to carry, may be 
authorized to carry a firearm his department approved weapon while on duty. When 
carrying inside the probation and parole office the firearm shall, at all times, be concealed 
on the officer's person or secured in the official office lock-box immediately upon 
entering the probation and parole office. 
T9e ~8:Fties aelmewletige that the Depal'eBeBt ef CeR'eetiees has iaehuieti eigttitieaat 

aEIElitieft!il fe59tiftle8 fer F&die eemHNlftieatieOB system F8plaeemeBt ana staffing, 6B 'Nell 6B 

fuHEiiag ef Fee~EriBg eesls fer seft beey 8Fffler, ia its Fiseal Yeftf 2G 1 3 14 Legislative Builget 
ReEJuest. 

SECTION 6 - Personal Weapons 

(A) The Department of Corrections may, upon written request, provide weapons lockers 
to employees who are also employed outside the Department as an auxiliary police officer or 
deputy and are required to carry these weapons to perform their duties. 

(B) The Department of Correctiom authorizes employees to carry one handgun to work 
in private vehicles and park such vehicles on the department grounds provided the handgun is 
secured in the vehicle and maintained in a standard handgun lockbox in accordance with the 
toll owing: 

(I) Only one handgun per vehicle/per lockbox. 
(2) The handgun must be stored in a lockbox that is designed to hold a handgun 

and can be locked; an empty ammunition box or metal coin box, or a glove compartment 
are not lockboxes for this purpose. 

(3) The doors and windows of the vehicle must lock if the lockbox is kept in the 
cab of the vehicle. If the cab ofthe vehicle can be accessed from the trunk, the trunk must 
lock. The trunk must be locked at all times. 

(4) The lockbox cannot be placed in a metal toolbox on a truck. 
(5) For convertibles, the lockbox must be placed in the trunk. If the vehicle is a 

Jeep or similar vehicle, with no top and no trunk, the officer cannot carry a handgun. 

(C) Only the ammunition necessary to load the handgun to capacity will be allowed in the 
lockbox. It is the officer's choice whether the handgun ~s loaded or the ammunition is separate, 
but both must be in the lockbox and lockeri. 

(D) At no time will the employee leave the vehicle unlocked while the handgun is in the 

vehicle and parked on state grounds. 

3 



SECTION !-Leaves 

Article 18 
LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 18 

December 16, 2014 

(A} The parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 
Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage, and payment of sick 
and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment shall apply to all employees. 

(B) Employees shall not be required to use special compensatory leave prior to the use of 
annual leave and/or regular compensatory leave. Employees shall not be reguired to use special 
compensatory leave, or any other type of leave besides aan\lBlleave,' for activities conducted 
pursuant to Section 2 below. cut~~r~•-!>r,..a.-h~-e 

SECTION 2 -Negotiation Committee 

(A) 1he Union may designate certain employees within this unit to sef'\le as its Negotiation 
Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend n~gotiating sessions 
with the state. An employee serving on the Negotiation Committee shall also be granted a mwdmum 
of eight (8) hours administrative leave to attend a negotiation preparatory meeting to be held the 
caler~dar day immediately preceding each scheduled negotiation session, provided that the 
negotiation preparatory meeting is held on what would otherwise be the employee's normal workday. 
No employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular 
workday for any day the employee is in negotiations. The total number of hours, including the hours 
spent in negotiation preparatory meetings, p:tid all employees on the Union' s Negotiation Committee 
~hall not exceed one thousand (1 000) hours. The time in attendance at such preparatory m0etings and 
nego!.iating sessions shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing 
compensatory time or overtime. The agency shall not reimburse the employee for travd, meals, 
lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with att~ndance at preparatory meetings or 
negmiating sessions . 

. (B) No more than two (2) employees ~hall be selected from the same work unit at any one 
time, nor shall the selection of any employee unduly ham~r the operations of the work unit. 

SECTION 3 -Union Activities 

Employees shaH have the right to request leave without pay, annual, or compensatory leave 
for the purpose of attending Union conventions, conferences, and ml!etings. When such requests 
cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provid~ such denial in writing. 



Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION 1 - Geaeral Pay Previsiens Parity of Pay 

Teamsters Local201 l 
Proposal- Article 25 

November 21,2014 

(A) Pay shall be iB aeeordaaee viith the F~eal Yeer 20 14 2015 General AJ:lp~priatiens 
Aet;-.Pursuant to Florida Statute § 944.023, the Department of Corrections ("DOC") shall 
develop a comprehensive correctional master plan. As indicated by§ 944.023(2), F.S., the 
master plan shall project the needs for the state correctional system for the coming 5-year nedod 
and shall be updated annually and submitted to the Governor's office and the Legislature at the 
same. time the department submits its legislative budget request as provided in chapter 216. 

(1) Section 944.023(4)(g), F.S. requires the DOC to include in the comprehensive 
correctional master plan, a plan reflecting parity of pay or comparable economic benefits 
for correctional officers with that oflaw enforcement officers in this state, and an 
assessment of projected impacts on turnover rates within the department 

(2) The DOC hereby agrees to comply with its obligations under§ 944.023(4)(&), 
F.S. If the Department of Corrections fails to meet its obligations under § 944.023(4)(g), 
F.S., the Union may bypass the Oral Discussion. Step 1, and Step 2 of the grievance 
Pr-ocess and file a grievance directly at Step 3 under Anicle 6, Section 3ffi)(4) ofthis 
Agreement. If the grievance is not reso]Yed at Step 3. the Union shall have the ability to 
proceed to Grievance Mediation and/or Arbitration pursuant to Article 6, Section 3(E)(5) 
and ( 6) of this Agreement. 

(B) lnereases te eese rate efpay and salary additi¥es saall ae in aeeerdaftee with state law 
and the fiscal Year 2014 2015 GenemJ Appffipri&tions Aet. In Fiscal Year 2013-2014. FDLE 
certified officers in this bargaining unit did not receive an increase to their base rate of pay, 
whereas'FDLE certified officers outside ofthis bargaining unit with less than 5 total combined 
years of state service received a wage increase of3% and those with 5 or more years total 
combined years of state service received a 5% wage increase. In the interest of achieving greater 
pari tv of pay, reducing attrition. and retaining quality personnel. all officers in this bargaining 
unit with less than 5 total combined years of state service in one or more of the classifications 
listed in Appendix A of this Agreement shall receive a pay adjustment of3 .0 percent on each 

.emplovee's June 30. 2015 base rate of pay. effective July 1, 2015. All officers in this bargaining 
unit with 5 or more years total combined years of state service in any one or more of the 
classifications listed in Appendix A of this Agreement of state service shall receive a pay 
adjustment of 5.0 percent on each employee's June 30,2015 base rate ofpay, effective July 1. 
2015. 

(C) Again. in Fiscal Year 2014-2015. FDLE certified officers in this bargaining unit did 
not receive a wage increase to their base rate of pay. whereas FDLE certified officers outside of 
this bargaining unit received an unqualified 5% wage increase to their base rate of pay. In the 
interest of achieving greater parity of pay. reducing attdtion, and retaining quality personnel, all 
officers in this bargaining unit shall receive a pay adiustment of 5.0 percent on each employee's 
July 1, 2015 'base rate .ofpay, effective July 2, 2015. 



SECTION 2- Other Pay Provisions -Department of Corrections 

Teamsters Local 201 1 
Proposal - Article 25 

November 21, 20 14 

The following provisions shall apply to all appointments of Department of Corrections' 
employees to positions allocated to classifications or broadband leveLs listed in Appendix A of 
the Agreement, regardless of whether the appointee is a newly-hired employee or currently 
employed m·another class series or occupational level in the State Personnel System. The pay 
grades and rates of pay shall be determined in accordance with the Schedule of Salary Ranges of 
the Career Service Pay Plan. An employee receiving an original, promotion, reassignment, 
transfer, or demotion appointment shall have a base rate of pay equal to an amount within the 
pay range, subject to the following: 

(A) Initial Appointment 

The following shall apply to all employees who are appointed to a position with 
probationary status: 

(l) Persons appointed to a position prior to being certified by the Criminal Justice 
Standards and Training Commission will be employed at a biweekly base rate of pay at 
the established trajnee rate 10% below the minimum for the class or broadband level to 
which the appointment is made. 

(2) Upon being certified by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training 
Commission, the employee shall be placed at the minimum of the.appropriate pay grade 
for the class or broadband level to whjch appointed, effective the date of certification. 
Appointments above the minimum may be approved by the Agency Head or designee. 

(3) Persons holding a current Certificate of Completion for basic recruit training 
issued by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission at the time of 
appoinunent will have their biweekly base rate of pay established at the minimum ofthe 
pay grade for the class or broadband level to which the appointment is made. 

(4) The probationary period shall be 12 months for any employee appointed to a 
position with probationary status. 

(5) Time spent as a trainee prior to receiving a Certification of Completion shall 
not be counted toward completion of the probationary period. 

(B) Pay upon Promotion Appointment 

When promoted the employee shall receive a minimum of five percent (5%) above the 
employee's base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband level, contingent upon funds being 
available, or to the minimum of the hlgher pay grade, whichever is greater at the time of 

2 



Teamsters Local2011 
Proposal - Article 25 

November 21,2014 

promotion. As an exception, when the employee is demoted and subsequently promoted pack to 

the former classification or broadband level, or to a classification assigned to the same 
broadband level in the Security Services Unit, within the succeeding 12 months, the employee 
shall receive the same rate of pay upon promotion as was received immediately prior to 
demotion. The Agency Head may, at his dis:retion, grant the employee up to an additional five 

percent (5%) at the time of promotion. In no case shall the employee be paid below the minimum 
for the class or broadband level. 

C) Pay upon Demotion Appointment 

When demoted the employee's biweekly base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband 
level shall be determined in accordance with the following: 

(1) If the employee is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary 
period for the current position and attaining pennanent status, the employee's base rate of 
pay in the lower class/broadband level shall be determined in the same manner as an 
initial appointment. 

(2) If the employee attained permanent status in a bargaining unit position prior to 
promotion, and is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary period for 
the higher class/broadband level, the employee's base rate of pay sha11 be reduced to the 
amount the employee was being paid when promoted. 

(3) If the employee is demoted after satisfactorily completing the probationary 
period for the higher class/broadband level, the employee's base rate of pay shall be 
reduced to the amount the employee was being paid when promoted. The employee's pay 
in the lower pay grade shall be at the discretion of the Agency Head or designee. 
Normally, the employee's base rate of pay will be reduced to the same amount the 
employee was paid when promoted. However, in no case shall the employee's base rate 
of pay in the lower class/broadband level exceed the employee's base rate of pay in the 
higher class/broadband Level, nor shall the employee be placed at an amount within the 
lower pay grade which is less than the employee was being paid at the time of the 
promotion. 

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

Th aeeerelanee witR tfle eathority pFO'itaeel ia seolioa 8(5)(k) oft'lte FiseeJ Yell£ 2014 2015 
General Apprepriatieae Aet, oContingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head's 
discretion, each agency is authori2ed to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee's base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

3 



SECTION 4- Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Teamsters Local201 1 
Proposal- Article 25 

November 21 , 2014 

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 

of unused annual leave each December in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance 

with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 5 -Performance Pay 

In aeeoreaaee with the al:ltherity pro·lidee in sestion 8(5)0) of the Fiseal Year 2014 15 
General Appropriations Aet, aruiftem existing ageae'' resoarees, eEach agency is authorized to 

grant merit pay increases based on the employee's exemplary performance, as evidenced by a 
performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Adminjstrative Code. 

SECTION 6- Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups ofemployees may be eligible for monetary awards for· ideas or 

programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 

Statutes. 

SECTION 7 -Discretionary Raises 

Contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head's discretion, each agency 

is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities, or other 

staffing issues. 

4 



Article 26 

Ut-ITFO~ AND IN SIGNIA 

Teamsters Local20ll 
Proposal - Article 26 

December 16, 2014 

SECT! ON ! - Uniform and Insignia for Correctional Officers and l nstitutioual Security 
Specialists 

Correctional officers and institutional security specialists, "'here applicable, shall recl!ive ') 
standard issue of uniforms and unifonn accessories. The state shall provide unifornls for its female 
corrxtional officers and institutional sc..curity specialists in the appropriate Sizes, d~signcd and cut 
for femaks. 

SECTION 2 - Unifo• m Maintena~ce Allowance for Correctional Officers and lnstitt~t ior.d 

Sc~u:-ity Specialists 

The state will provide unit correctional officers and institutional security specialists who -.re 
furnished and required to wear a uniform, a maintenance al lowanc~ in the amount of $250.00 
annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by the 
agtmcy without cost to the employee; in addition, such corrl!ctional offic~rs and institutional security 
specialists shall receive a shoe allowanC\; in the amount of $75.00 annually. 

SECTION 3 - Badges 

(A) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers shall be issued badgl!s according 
to the fo llowing specifications: 

(1) Badges issued to correctional officers below the rank of lieutenant shall ~silver 
metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers' 
uniforms in a mannJr consistent with department policy and procedures. 

(2) Badges issued to correctional officers at the rank oflieutcnant and abov~ shall b.; 
gold metal, black letter ing and pre-numbered. Thes\! badges shaU be worn on the officers' 
uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedLlres. 

(3) Badges issued to correctional probation officers shall be police size. These badges 
shall be carried in badge casos and in accordance with department procedure. 

(B) Correctional officers are only authorized to wear issued badges v.ith the correctional 
offic¢r class ''A" or "C'' uniform, and only while performing official duties, or whjlc in uniform and 
travding to or returning from dtcir official duty station. 

(C) fhe usc of an issued badge as a credential for personal purposes is prohibited. 

(D) Issut:d badges are considered state property and, exceptfor retirement under specific 
conditions ur death in the line of duty, are to be returned upon an employee's termination of 
empl0yment with the department or removal from a position in the Securit)' Services Unit. Only 
badg~s. which are issued by the department, shall be ust!d to conduct officially designated duties. 
Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the department for any issued badge which is lost. 

(E) Correctional officers and corn!ctional probation officers who retire from the department 



Teamsters Local 201 I 
Proposal - Article 26 

December 16, 2014 

under honorable conditions from the Florida Retil.'ement System, inc luding retirement under medical 
disability, shall be authorized to retain their issued badge. 

(F) Th.e badge of a correctional officer or a correctional probation officer who is ki lied in the 
line of duty shall be presented to the ~mploye~'s next of kin. 

(0) Upon request, correctiona l officers and correctional probation officers who are promoted 
or transferred to other positions may retain their badge if they are in good standing with the 
departm-ent and pay the cost of the badge. 

SECTION 4- Class "A" Uniforms 

Employees shall not be required to wear Class "A" unifonns while on hospital duty. 

SECTION 5- Lunchbox Allowance 

The state acknowledges that bargaining unit employees working in mal or institutions are now 

being required to carry their lunch to the institution in a clear lunch box in an effort to protect against 

contraband entering the institution. The state also acknowledges that acquiring a lunchbox and/or 

replacing a broken lunchbox ls an additional cost to the employees. In an effort to offset this cost, 
employees shall be permitted to replace any broken lunch box at the canteen at no cost to the officer, 

or in the alternative; officers shall be permitted to purchase a commer-cially-available clear lunchbox:. 

2 





Teamsters- Security Services Bargaining Unit- (08) 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 

Union/Issue 
Estimated 

Comments 
Cost 

Article 13(2)(E): Provides for maintaining 
adequate security staffing levels- Under no 
circumstances will any shift, (defined as an Indeterminate 
employee's regular daily work period) begin below 
Levell staffing or be allowed to go below this level 
except in rare cases of extreme emergency. 

Article 13(2){F): All safety equipment, including but 
not limited to bulletproof vests and radios. provided 

Indeterminate 
to the bargaining unit members by the state must 
be properly maintained and in good working order. 

Article 13{5): Correctional probation officers shall 
be provided with the following safety equipment: 

Indeterminate 
bulletproof vest; and a hand-held radio, and/or a 
cellular telephone. 

Article 25(1)(8): Provides members of the 
bargaining unit shall receive wage increases at the A 3%/5% increase was calculated for fil led positions in the CBU. 
same percentage level of those offered to other 

$34.8 M People first was the source used for the calculation. Costing prepared 
"Law enforcement employees". 3% for those 

by OPB includes Retirement and FICA. 
employed up to 5 years. and 5% for those with 5 or 
more years of service. 

Article 25 (1)(C): Provides all 
officers in this bargaining unit shall receive a pay 

$38.4M 
Calculation is based on filled positions including benefits (17.41 1 ). 

adjustment of 5.0 percent on each employee's LAS/PBS December 2014 data was the source for the calculation. 
July 1, 2015 base rate of pay, effective July 2, 2015. 

Page 1 of 1 





Article 
1 - Recognition 

2 - Gender Reference 

3 - Vacant 

4 - No Discrimination 

5 -Union Activities and 
Employee Representation 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = C/m;ed 

Articles at lmpw·•.,·e: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, J(), II , 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union ProposaJ Comments 
State Prouosal of December 16, 2014: Union ProQosal ofNovernber 21.2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo s igned state proposal o n 

January 23, 2015. 
State Prouosal ofDecember 16,2014: Union Pro12osal of November 21, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 20 15. 
State Proposal of Januar~ 23, 20 15: Union Proposal of November 21, 2014: Section 447.303, F.S., 
Status quo (vacant) Proposes the restoratio n of a Dues provides for the deduction 

Deduction article and contract lang uage of union dues. therefore the 
s imilar to that which was included in the dues deductio n m1iclc was 
Security Services agreement until it was vacated. 
eliminated in Fiscal Year 201 1-12. 

State PrOQOSal of January 23, 20 15: Union Proposal of November 21, 20 14: 
Status quo Section I - proposes striking language 

providing tor consultation on issut.:s o f 
unlawful di scrimination. 

State ProQosal of December 16, 2014: Union ProQosal of December 16. 20 14: 
Section 9 - moves lang uage regarding Verbally proposed status quo - no written 
co ll ecti ve bargaining negotia tions propo at oflcred. 
from Article 18- Leaves of Absence 
to Article 5. 

Section I 0 - moves language 
regardin g union activities ti·om Article 
18 - Leaves of Absence to Article 5. 

Page I of26 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10. I/, 12, 13. 18, 24. 25. 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State Progosal of January 13, 2015: Union Progosal ofDecember 16, ?014: 
Section 2(F)- proposes the resolution 
of a gri evance prior to its appea l to 
arbitration sha ll not estab lish a 
precedent binding on either the state 
or the union in other cases. 

Section 3(E)(5)- proposes when the Section J(E)(S) - proposes when the Current contract language 
parties agree to mediate a grievance. parti es agree to mediate a grievance, the provides that the pnrties 
the tive-month scheduling deadline time limits to tile for, or process, an may. by written agreement. 
for the arbitrntion hearing provided in arbitration arc automatically extended for submit a grievance to 
section (6)(d) may be extended by the period necessary to conclude the mediation after it has been 
mutual agreement. mediation process. submitted to arbitration but 

before the arbitration 
hearing. 

Section 3(E)(6)(e)- at least tifteen 
days before the scheduled date of the 
arbitration hearing, the parties shall 
file with the ::.~rbitrator. and provide to 
each other, a list of witnesses to be 
called at the hearing, except rebuttal 
witnesses. and a brief statement of the 
material facts about which each 
witness will testify. A party may tile 
a written request with the arbitrator, 
with a concurrent copy to the other 
party, for an exception to the tiling 

Page 2 of26 



Article 
6- Grievance Prot;edure 
(continued) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 1011 
Security Se•·vices Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
S haded = Closed 

A1ticles at Impasse: 3, 4. 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11. 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal 
time limits for good cause. If such 
exception is granted, the other p:1rty 
may request that the hearing be 
rescheduled if necessary forth~: party 
to respond to the late ti.l ed witness 
infonnation. 

Union Proposal 

Sect ion 3(E)(6)(t)2.- st ri kes cu1Tent 
language that provides the arbitrator's 
decision shall be determined by applying 
a preponderance of the evidence standard. 
Section 3(E)(6)(t)6.b. - strikes CUITent 
language that provides if the union is 
granted a continuance to reschedule an 
arbitration hearing over the objection of 
the agency, the agency will not be 
responsible fo r back pay for the period 
between the origina l hearing date, or the 
end of the fi ve month period, and the 
rescheduled date. 

Section 3(E)(6)(h)- proposes a pmiy 
ordering a transcript shall be responsible 
fo r the cost of the transcript. If one or 
both parties order a transcript, the parties 
shall sp lit the cost of providing a copy of 
the transcript for the arbit rator. 

Page 3 of26 

Comments 

Current contract language 
provides if either party 
order <:1 transcript of the 
proceedings, the party shall 
pay tor the cost of the 
transcript and provide a 
photocopy to the arbi trator: 
and shall al so provide a 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(continued) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Services Unit- State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bar·gainiug as of Januaa·y 30,2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at lmpa.,·se: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, ](), II, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
photocopy of the transcript 
to the other pnrty upon 
written request and receipt 
of copying expenses ($. 15 
per page). 

Section 5(8)(2) - proposes that a class Section 5(8)(2) - strikes cum!nt language 
action grievance form shall identify which provides a class action grievance 
the spcci fie group (i.e .. employees· shall list the employees adversely 
j ob classification(s). work unit(s ). impacted by the di spute. 
ins titution(s). etc.) adversely impacted 
by the dispute. 

Section 5(C) - proposes an employee Section 5(C) - strikes current language Union maintains that a 
who has not attained permanent status which provides an employee who has not promoted employee serving 
in hi s current position. and therefore attained permanent status in his current a probationary period for 
may be disciplined without a showing position may only tile non-discipline the promoted pos ition 
of cause, may only file no n-discipline grievance ; non-d iscipline grievances should be granted the same 
grievances unless the processing o f filed by probationary employees are tina! rights as an employee who 
such g rievances is fUJ1her limited by and binding at Step 3 unless further has attained pl!rmanent 
speci fie provisions of thi s agreement. limited by the agTeement. s tatus in his current 

position. A promoted 
employee is not smnc as a 
new employee to the state 
serving his first 
probationary period. 

Page 4 of26 



Article 
7 - Discipline nnd 
Discharge.; 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Sea·vices Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of Januuy 30.2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A rticles at biiJUts.'l·e: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, II , 12, 13, 18. 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal 
State Proposal of January 23. 2015: 
Section 1- Retitled as Disciplint! of 
Permanent Status Employees 
Section I (A)- moves provision that 
demotion wi II not be used a form of 
disciplinary action tor Correctional 
Officers, Correct ional Probation 
Otlicers, Con·ectional Probation 
Officer-Institution, and Institutional 
Secwity Specialist I to Section 1 (A). 

Section I(A)( l ) - moves the provision 
providing for the grievability of 
reductions in base pay. demotions, 
involuntary transfers of more than 50 
miles by high.,.vay, suspensions, and 
dismissals at Step 1 of the collective 
bargaining grievance process and 
processed through the Arbitration Step 
ti·om Section I (B) to Section I (A)( I ). 

Section l(B) - provides as an 
alternative to the grievance procedure, 
an employee may appeal a reduction 
in base pay, demotion, involuntary 
transfer of over 50 miles by highway. 
suspension, or dismissal to the Public 
Employees Relations Commission 

Union Proposal 
Union Proposal of November 71. 70 I 4 : 
Section I (A) - proposes that an employee 
serving a probationary period in a 
position to which he has received an 
internal agency promotion may be 
discip lined only for cause. Proposes such 
probationary employees·mny grieve 
reductions in base pay, demotions, 
involuntary transfers (not restricted to 
those of more than 50 miles), 
suspensions. and disrn issals in accordance 
with the grievance procedure in Article 6. 

Page 5 of26 

Comments 

S~ction II 0.217. F.S. , 
provides that an employee 
who has attained permanent 
sta tus in his <.:urrent position 
may be disciplined only for 
cause. Current contract 
language and statute 
provide for gricvnbility of 
di scipline only tor 
employees with pennanent 
status in their ~UITent 
position. The union 
proposes a return to rights 
provided to employees who 
previously attained 
·'permanent status in the 
career ... crvicc systen1 ... 
which was changed by 
Service First legislation in 
100 I . requiring permanent 
status in the employee's 
cwn:nt position. 



Article 
7 - Dis<.:ipline and 
Discharge (continued) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 ll 
Security Ser vices Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent T wo-Year Agreement Expi res June 30, 2015 
Status of Collec ti ve Bargaining as of J anuar y 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles atlmpttsse: 3, 4. 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 1 I, 12, 13. 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
(PERC), under the provisions of 
Section II 0.2.27(5) and (6), F.S. 

Proposes New Section 2 - Disc ipline 
of Probationary Employees 
Pursuant to Section I I 0.217(2), F.S., 
an employee who bas not attained 
permanent status in his current 
position serves at the pleasure of the 
agency head in a probationary status 
and may be di smissed at the discretion 
of the agency head or designee. 
Pursuant to Section 11 0.227( 1 ), F.S. , 
an agency may discipline or di smiss a 
probationary employee without a 
showing of cau c. 

Proposes New Section 3 - Counseling Section I (A)( I) - proposes Memoranda 
Moves contract language regarding of Record , Memoranda of Counseling, or 
the issuance of counseling Supervisory Counseling Memoranda 
(Memoranda or Record, Memoranda expi re a tlcr one year from the date of 
ofCounscling. Supervisory issuance, and onl y the Circuit DOC management 
Counseling Memoranda) from Section Administrator in Community Conections maintains onl y the Circuit 
I (A) to the new Section 3. has authority to issue such counseling Administrator h:1s sucb 

memoranda. authority. 

Page 6 of26 



Article 
7- Discipline and 
Discharge (continued) 

Teamster s Local Union No. 2011 
Security Services Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expia·es June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closeil 

A rticles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,10, I 1, 12, 13, 18. 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
Section I (A)(2) - proposes grievability of Currenl contract language 
written reprimands tor employees serving prov ides that wri tten 
a probationary period in a position to reprimands may be gTieved 
which they have received an internal by employees who have 
agency promotion up to Step 2; proposes attained permanent status in 
that a written reprimand is automaticall y their current position to 
inva lid one year and a day after its Step 3. 
issuance: and shal I not be used for the 
purpose of progressive discipline. nor 
shal l it be used in any subsequent 
discipline and/or disciplinary proceeding. 

Section I(A)(3) - propusesfor 
suspensions. the discipline shaJI remain 
, ·alid for a period not to exceed ti vc years 
nttcr the date of issuance, is automatically 
invalid tivc years and a day after it was 
issued , and shall not be used for the 
purpose of progressive discipline, nor 
shall it be used in any subsequent 
di scipline and/or disciplinary proceeding. 

Section I (A)(4) - proposes an employee 
may not be charged with more than one 
violation of applicable ru les of conduct, 
administrative code, po licies, procedures. 
guidelines, directives, and/or statutes in 
regard to a single occutTenee of employee 

Page 7 of26 



Article 
7- Discipline and 
Discharge (continued ) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 J 1 
Security Se•·viccs Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
S haded = Clo . ..,·ed 

Articles ttl Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 1 I, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
conduct. 

Section 1 ( 8 ) - proposes an employee who 
is serving a probationary period in a 
position to which he has received an 
internal agency pro motion conceming a 
reducti on in base pay, suspens ion, 
involuntary transfer, d emoti on, or 
dismissal may grieve such actio ns at Step 
2 and processed through the arbitratio n 
step . 

Section I (D) - proposes in lieu of serYing C urrent contract language 
a disciplinary suspens ion, an employee provides that the agency 
rnay elect to h ave special compensatory may deduct special 
leave equal to the length of the compensatory leave credits 
dis~.:iplinary suspensio n deducted from hi s in lieu of the employee 
leave balance in li eu of serving the serving the suspens ion, 
suspens ion . takin g into cons ideration 

the preference of the 
employee as to serving the 
suspension or having leave 
deducted. 

Section 4 - proposes an employee who is Current contract language 
serving a probatio nary period in a and statute provide for 
position to which he has received an notice and a 
internal agency promotion who is subject predetenn inati on 

Page 8 o f 26 



Article 
7 - Discipline and 
Discharge (continued) 

8 - Workforce Reduction 

Teamste1·s Local Union No. 2011 
Security Sea·vices Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of Januaa·y 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded= Closet! 

Articles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, II, I2, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
to a reduction in base pay, demotion. conference only for 
involuntary transfer, suspension, or employees who are 
dismissal , sha ll receive notice at least I 0 germanent in their current 
days prior to the date such action is to be gosition. 
taken. and provided an opportunity to 
appear betore the agency or official taking 
the adion to answer the charges against 
him (predetennination conference). 

State Proposal of December 16.20 14: Union Progosal ofDecember 16,2014: 
Section I (I 0-13)- adds lateral action 
as option for employee to request in 
lieu of layoff 

Section 2 - strikes current contract 
language in its entirety. 

New Section 2(A)- proposes that an 
employee who customari ly performs 
work shall not be laid off as a direct and 
immediate result of the work being 
performed by an outside contractor on the 
premises of any major institution or 
probation or parole office. 

New Section 2(B) - proposes ifthe state 
sell s, leases, transfers or assigns any of its 
functions, the sale, lease, transfer or 
assignment shall be conditional upon and 

Page 9 of26 



Article 
8 - Workforce Reduction 
(continued) 

9 - Reassignment. 
Transfer, Change in Duty 
Station 
Proposed title change to: 
Lateral Action, 
Reassignment. Transfer. 
Change in Duty Station 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 11 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Two-Yeaa- Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Sta tus of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Yea t· 20 15-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles m Impasse: 3. 4, 5. 6, 7. 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State ProposaJ 

Sed ion 3( B) - provides an employee 
who ha attained pcnm1nent status in 
his curTcnt position and accepts a 
vo luntary demotion in lieu of layoft: 
and is subsequentl y promoted withi n 
one year following demotion to a 
pos ition in the same class in the same 
agency from which demoted, shall be 
promoted with permanent status. 

State Proposal of Janumy 23. 1015: 
Sections I (D) and (E)- adds lateral 
action to definitions; amends 
ddinition of reassignment to compor1 
to Rule 60L-33. F.A.C. 

St.:ctions 2-5 - adds references to 
laternl action throughout article. 

Union Proposal 
require tlu: successor to be bound by the 
provisions o f this collective bargaining 
agreement until it expiration date. at 
which time the successor will recogni ze 
and negotiate with the Teamsters and no 
other employee organi zation. 

Union Proposal of December 16. 2014: 

Section 2( A) - strikes current language 
that provides requests tor reass ignment. 
transkr, or change in duty station may 
only be made from one major institution 

Page 10of26 

Comments 



Article 
9- Reassignment. 
Transfer. Change in Duty 
Station 
Progoscd title change to: 
Lateral Action, 
Reassignment, Tr::msfer. 
Change in Duty Station 
(conti nued) 

Teamsters Local Unio n No. 2011 
Securi ty Ser vices Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Two-Year Agreem ent Expires June 30,20 15 
Status of Collective Bargajning as of January 30, 2015 

Fiscal Yea•· 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closet/ 

Articles at lmpusse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, II, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
to another major institution in the 
employee·s current agency. Strikes the 
requirement for an employee to submit a 
State of Florida Employment Application 
Form with the request. 

Section 3(A) - proposes nothing in Section 3(A) - proposes the restoration of 
this Agreement shall be construed to prior contract language that provides an 
prevent an agency, at its discretion, agency will make a good taith effori to 
from effecting the involuntary lateral involuntarily reassign, transfer, or change 
action, reassibrrunent. transfer, or the duty station of an employee when 
change in duty station of an employee dictated by the needs of the agency, and 
according to the needs of the agency: io each ca e. wi II tJke int<.) consideration 
however, the agency wi ll make a good the needs and t:i rcumstances o f the 
taith effort to take such actions on I y employee prior to taking such action. For Note: There is no Article 
when agency needs dictate. The the Department of Con·ections, Article 13, 23. Section 2(B){2)a in the 
agency will take into consideration the Section 2(8)(2)a of this Agreement Fiscal Year 2014-15 or 
needs and ci rcumstances of the applies. 20 13-14 Agreements. 
employee prior to taking such action. 

Section 3(8) - proposes the restoration of Current contract language 
prior contract language requiring in provides in such cases the 
instances where the Department of Department of Corrections 
Corrections determines that an excessive will consider n::quests from 
cascload at a probation office requires the volunteers. employee 
reassignment of an oftict:r, the seniority, and the needs of 
reassignment shall fi rst be made on a the agency in making such 
,·olunteer basis, and then on the basis of reassignment. 

Page II of26 



A1·ticle 
9 - Rca ·signment, 
Transfer, Change in Duty 
Station 
Progoseu title change to: 
Lateral Action, 
Reassignment, Transfer, 
Change in Duty Station 
(continued) 

I 0 - Promoti ons 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Ser vices Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Ba•·gaining as of .January 30, 2015 

Fiscal Yea r 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at/mpa.,·.\'e: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7. 8, 9. 10. I I. 12, 13, 18, 24, 25,26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
seniority wi th the least senior officer 
subject to reassignment. 

Section 6 - proposes grievability of St!ction 6 - strikes sect ion in its entirety: Current contract language 
Sections 2( D) and (E), Section 3. providing for the gri evability of this limits the grievabil ity to 
Scdinn 4. and Section 5 to Step 3. article to arbitration. Step 3 for Section 2( E), 

Section 3 and Section 4; 
remaining contract language 
in this article not subject to 
the grievance procedure. 

State Progosa l of Januar:t: 23, 2015: No Union Proposal Offered 
Section 3 - adds consideration of a 
latera l action in add ition to demotion 
and reass ignment prior to tilling a 
vacancy by promotion: strikes 
Department of C orn:ctions' 
promotional procedure as an appendi x 
to the agreement. 

Section 4 - amends procedure lor 
pro moted employee who fails to meet 
established perfom1ancc standards 
during probationary period pursuant to 
section 110.217(3). F.S. 

Page 12 o f 26 



Article 
I I - Classi ti cation 
Review 

12 - Personnel Records 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Securi ty Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of Janua•·y 30, 2015 

Fiscal Y car 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, /0, 1/, 12. 13, 18. 24. 25. 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
State ProQosal of December 16, 20 14: Union ProQosal of November 21. 20 14: 
Provides specific broadband Status quo 
terminology for classificat ion reviews. 

State PrOQOSal of December 16,20 14: Union ProQosal of November 21, 10 14: 
(A ) Information in an employee's Status quo 
ofti<.:ial personnel ti le may be 
maintained in electronic as well as 
paper form. 

( B) If a derogatory document is 
placed in an employee's onicia l 
personnel file, the employee will have 
a right to respond to any such 
document fi led. and the employee's 
response will be attached to the ti le 
copy. 

( 0 ) If a document has been 
determined to be invalid. such 
document shall be placed in an 
envelope, together with a lett er of 
explanation. The outside of the 
envelope and all pages of the 
document shall be marked ·'VOID ... 
and retained in the employee· s 
personnel til e. In the case of 
cl ectroni~ records, a Personnel Action 

Page I 3 of 26 

Comments 



Artide 
12 - Personnel Records 
(continued) 

13 - Safety 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 ll 
Securi ty Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collcr tive Bargaining as of J anua ry 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A rticles at lmpas.,·e: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, ](}, 11, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
Request (PAR) that has been 
determined to be invalid shall have a 
note added to the PAR form indicating 
that the action is ··VOl o··. 

(E) Information in an employee's 
ofncinl personnel file is public record 
pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes. unless specitically exempted 
by tate or federal law (such as 
protected health information and 
social security numbers), and as such, 
must be provided to anyone desiring 
inspection or requesting copies in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Public Records Law. 

State Progosal of Januat:y 13. 20 15: Union Progosal ofNovember 21,2014: 
Status quo Section 2(C) and (D) - proposes the tate 

agrees to abide by tenns of Chapter 287, 
Part 11, F.S., Chapter 608-1 , F.A.C., and 
DOC Procedure 604.20 I regard ing state-
owned vehicles. 

Section 2(E) - proposes under no Costing Estimate: 
circumstances wi ll any shift begin below Indeterminate 
Level I starting or be allowed to go below 

Page 14 of26 



A•·ticle 
13 - Safety (continued) 

Teamsters Loc:-tl Union No. 20 11 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Yea•· Agreement Expires Ju11e 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
S /wded = Closed 

Articles at lmpas .... ·e: 3, .J, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union ProposaJ Comments 
this level except in rare cases of extreme 
emergency; provides unio n right to raise 
and discuss issues of security staffing 
levels, but o nl y w ith regard to impact of 
sta-Ring levels on employee safety; no 
employee ~hall be retaliated against or 
disciplined for reporting a concem about 
the adequacy of security staffing I evcls at 
his institution. 

Secti on 2(F) - proposes all safety Costing Estimate: 
eq uipment provided to the employees lndctenninate 
must be properly maintained and in good 
worki ng order. 

Section 3 -provisions of this article may 
be grieved up to Step 3 with the exception 
of Section 2(C)-(F), which may be 
grieved to arbitration. 

Section 5 - Correctional Probation Costing Estimate: 
Officers shall be provided bulletproof lndetenn i nate 
vest, and a hand-held radio, and/or a 
cellular telephone. 

Page 15 of16 



Article 
14 - Pertonnance 
Evaluations 

15 - Seniority 

16 - Drug Testing 

17 - Death In-Line-Of-
Duty Bcnef1ts 

18 - Leaves of Absence 

T eamsters Local Union No. 20 l l 
Security Ser vices Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Ba rgaining as of J anua ry 30, 2015 

f iscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = C/m;ed 

A rtic/es at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, I 1, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State Progosal of January 23,20 15: Union Progosal of December 16, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Section (D) - strikes in its entirety Section (D) - strikes in its entirety signed state proposal on 
cutTent language that provides the use January 23,2015. 
of counseling shall not preclude an 
agency from seeking to discipline an 
employee for cause based upon a 
speci fie violation of a conduct 
standard. 

State Progosal ofDecember 16,2014: Union Progosal of November 2 1, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 20 15. 
State ProgosaJ of December 16, 20 14: Union Progosal of November 21, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 20 15. 
State Progosal of December 16, 2014: Union Progosal of November 2 1, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January23. 20 15. 
State Progosal of December 16, 20 14: Union Progosal of December 16. 2014: 

Section I - proposes employees shall not 
be required to use special compensatory 
leave prior to the use of annual and/or 
regular compensatory leave. Employees 
shall not be required to use special 
compensatory leave, or any type of leave 
other than administrative leave for union 
negotiations as provided in Section 2. 

Page 16 of26 



Article 
18- Leaves of Absence 
(continued) 

L9 - Replacement of 
Personal Property 

20 - Training 

2 L- Compensation for 
Temporary Special Duty 
in Higher Level Position 
22- Job-Connected 
Disability 

23 - Hours of 
Work/Overtime 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 II 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 20 I 5 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at lmpa:.;se: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, II, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
Strikes Sections 2 and 3 regarding 
co llective bargaining negotiations and 
union activ ities; moves sections to 
Article 5 - Union Activities and 
Employee Representation. 
State ProQosal ofDecember 16,20 14: Union ProQosal of November 2 1, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 2015. 

State PrOQOSal of December 16, 20 14: Union ProQosal of November 21. 2014: Tentati vely agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 2015. 
State ProQosal ofDecember 16,2014: Union ProQosal ofNovember 21.2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 20 15. 
State Progosal of December 16, 2014: Union Pro 12osal of November 21, 20 14: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 20 15. 
State PrOQOSal of January 30, 20 15: Tentatively agreed to and 
Section 6(A)(2) -special signed state proposal on 
compensatory leave credits may be January 30, 20 15. 
earned for work perfonned in the 
employee·s assigned office, fac ility, 
or region which is closed pursuant to 
an Executive Order of the Governor or 
any other disaster or emergency 
condition in accordance with Rule 
60L-34.007 1, F.A.C. 

Page 17 of26 



Article 
23- Hours of 
Work/Overtime 
(continued) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 20 11 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Two-Year Agr eement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-1 6 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
S luuletl = Clo .... ·ed 

Articles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
Section 6(8)- proposes general 
provisions for using special 
compensatory leave credits in 
accordance with Rule 60L-34.0044, 
F.A.C. 
(I) - Employee Leave Requests - an 
employee shall be required to use 
available special compensatory leave 
credits prior to the agency approving 
regular compensatory leave credits, or 
annual leave credits, unless such 
annual leave credi ts are being 
substituted for an employee·s unpaid 
individual medial leave granted in 
accordance vvith FMLA, or fami ly 
medical leave or parental leave 
!,'Tanted in accordance with section 
II 0.221, F.S. , the FMLA, or both. 

(2) - Compelled Use of Special 
Compensatory Leave Credits - an 
employee may be required to reduce 
special compensatory leave credit 
balances. 

Section 6(C) - Special Compensatory 
Leave Credits Earned During the 
November 1, 2014 through October 

Page 18 of26 

Comments 



Article 
23 - Hours of 
Work/Ove11ime 
(continued) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Y car Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = C/m;ed 

A rticles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, II , 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
31, 2015 .. Pay As You Go'· Pilot -
S12ecial Com12ensatory Leave Credits 
Earned on or after November I, 20 14 
through A12ril 30, 2015, and on or 
after May 1 , 2015 through October 3 1, 
20 15 - special compensatory leave 
credits that remain unused at the end 
of each extension period (October 27, 
20 15 and April 28, 2016, respectively) 
shall be paid. 

Section 6(0 ) - S12ecial Com12ensatory 
Leave Earned on or after November I, 
2015 
( l) - special compensatory leave 
credits earned by an employee for 
work performed on a holiday or for 
work performed during a work period 
that includes a holiday on or after 
November 1, 2015, which are not used 
each year by the April 30 or October 
3 1 that immediately succeeds the 
work period in which the leave is 
credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier, shall be paid. 

(2) - special compensatory leave 
credits earned by an employee for 

Page 19 of26 

Comments 



Article 
23- Hours of 
Work/Overtime 
(continued) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Cur rent Two-Year Agreement Expires J une 30, 20 IS 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 30, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 20IS-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, IO, II, 12, 13, I8, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
work petformed in the employee' s 
assigned office, facility, or region 
which is closed pursuant to an 
Executive Order of the Governor or 
any other disaster or emergency 
condition on or after November l , 
20 15, which are not used within 120 
calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is 
credited shall be paid. 

(3)- each agency shall schedule 
employees earning special 
compensatory leave credits in a 
manner that allows all such leave 
credits earned on or after November 1, 
2015, to be used within the time limits 
specified in subsections (D)( 1) and 
(0)(2). However, if scheduling such 
leave within the time limits would 
prevent the agency from meeting 
minimum staffing requirements 
needed to ensure public safety, the 
special compensatory leave remaining 
at the end of each time limit shall be 
paid. 

Page 20 of26 

Comments 



Article 
24 - On-Call Assignment 
and Ca ii- Batk 

25 - Wages 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Securi ty Services Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,20 15 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A rticles ut lmpas.,·e: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
State Progosal of January 23. 20 15: No State ProQosal OtTered 
Section 2(A)- proposes when 
approved as provided herein, an 
employee who is required to be on-
cnll sha ll be paid an on-call additi ve in 
an amo unt o f $ 1.00 per hour for the 
hour(s ) such employee is required to 
be on-call pursuant to Rule 60L-
32.00 12(2}(b), F.A.C. 

Section 2(8 ) - proposes an employee 
who is required to be on-cal l on a 
Saturday, Sunday, or ho liday as listed 
in secti on II 0.117( I), F.S .. shall be 
paid an on-call additi ve in an amount 
per hour equal to one-fourth ofthc 
statewide hourl y minimurn for the 
employee 's paygrade forth~: hour( s) 
such employee is required to be on-
cal l pursuant to Rul e 60L-
32.0011(2)(b). F.A.C. 

State Proposal of January 26, 20 15: Union Proposal of November? 1. 20 14: 
Sectio n I - General Pay Prov isions Sectio n I (A) - proposes the DOC develop 
Agencies· authority to provide a comprehens ive correctional master plan 
increases to employees' base rate of pursuant to section 944.023, F.S .. to 
pay and sa lary additi ves from include a plan reflecting patity of pay or 

Page 2 1 of26 

Comments 



Article 
15 - Wages (continued ) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Ser vices Unit- State Personnel System 

C urrent Two-Year Agreement Expires J nne 30, 20 IS 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J a nuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 S uccessor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded= Closed 

A rticles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, II, 72, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Un ion Proposal Comments 
avail able agency funds shall be in comparable economic benefi ts for 
accordance with this Agreement , state correctional offi cers with that of law 
law, and the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 entorcement o fti ccrs in the state. 
General Appropriations Act. 

Section l(B) - pro poses a 3% pay Costing Estimate: $34 .8M 
adjustment fo r employees with less than 
five years of state serv ice in pos itions 
included in the barga ining unit, and a 5% 
pay adj ustment fo r employees with fi ve or 
more years o f state serv ice in po itions 
included in the bargaining unit. effecti ve 
July I, 20 15 . 

Section I (C) - proposes an additional 5%, Costing Estimate : $38.4M 
pay adjus tment to all bargaining unit 
employees, e ffecti ve Jul y 2. 20 I 5. 

Section 1 - Other Pay Pro is ion -

Dcpar1ment of Corrections 
Status quo 

Sectio n 3 - Deploym ent to a Facility 
o r Area Closed due to Emergency 
In accordance 'vvith the authority 
prov ided in the Fisca l Year 20 15-20 16 
General Appro pria tions Act. 
cont ingent on the avail ab il ity o f funds 

Page 22 of26 



Article 
25 - Wages (continued) 

. 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Ser vices Unit - State Personnel System 

Current T wo-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotia tions - AU Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at impasse: 3, 4. 5, 6. 7, 8. 9. 10, 11, 12, 13, 18. 24. 25, 26 

State P1·oposaJ Union Proposal 
and at the Agency I lead· s discret ion. 
each agency is auth01i zed to grant a 
temporary special duties pay add itive 
of up to 15 percent of the employee's 
base rate of pay to each employee 
temporari ly deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency 
conditions ti·om another area of th~ 
state that is not closed. 

Section 4 - Cash Payout of Annual 
Leave 
Permanent Career Ser ice employees 
may be given the option of receiving 
up to 24 hours of unused annual leave 
each December in the form of a cash 
payout subject to, and in accordance 
with, section II 0.2 19(7), Florida 
Statutes. 

Section 5 - Petionnance Pay 
In accordance with the authority 
provided in the Fiscal Year 201 5-20 16 
General Appropriations Act, and from 
ex isting agency resources, each 
agency is authorized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employec·s 
exemplary pertom1ance, as evidenced 

Page 23 of26 

Comments 



Article 
25 - Wages (continued) 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Services Unit - State Personnel System 

C un-ent Two-Yea r Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Baa·gaining as of January 30, 20 15 

Fisca l Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A rtic/es at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7. 8. 9, 10, II, 12, 13, 18, 24. 2 5, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposa l 
by a perfonnance evaluation 
conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, 
Florida Administrative Code. 

Section 6- Savings Sharing Program 
An employee or groups of employees 
may be eligible for monetary awards 
for ideas or pi·ograms that result in a 
cost saving to the state, pursuant to 
section ll 0.1 245( I), Florida Statutes. 

Section 7 - Discretionary Ruises 
In accordance with the authority 
provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
General Appropri ations Act, 
contingent on the availability of funds 
and at the Agency Head's di scretion, 
each agency is authorized to grant 
competitive pay adjustments to 
address retention, pay inequities, or 
other staffing issues. 

Page 24 of26 

Comments 



ArticJe 
26 - Uni form and 
Ins ignia 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Senices Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Two-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Successor Negotiations - AU Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 3. 41 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13. 18. 24. 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State Proposa l o f Januar:r 23. 20 15: Union Progosal of December 16. JO 14: The Department of 
Status quo New Secti on 5 - Lunchbox Allowance Correcti ons currentl y 

Proposes employees shall be pennitted to provides a clear lunchbox at 
replace a broken lunchbox at the canteen no cost to the employee. 
at no cost to the officer, or in the Replacement of broken o r 
altemati ve. officers shall be pennitted to lost lunchboxes are 
purchase a commercially-avail able clear avail able to r purchase from 
lunch box. the canteen at a cost o f 

$3.00; alternati ve clear 
lunch bags are $ 11.00 -
$ 13.00. Higher quality 
clear lunch bags are 
available commercially for 
$ 1 0.00 - $20.00. The 
union· s representati ve ti·om 
the Department o f Children 
and Families maintains the 
cost of d ear lunch bags is 
onl y $5.00 fo r hi s agency. 
The state ' s position is that 
the issue of lunchboxes 
should be handled at the 
agency level and not in the 
Unifo rm and Insignia a rticle 
of the collecti ve bargaining 
agreement. 

Page 25 of26 



Ar ticle 
27 - Insurance Benefits 

28 - Travel Expenses 

29 - No Strike 

30 - Vacant 

3 1 - Management Rights 

32 - Entire Agreement 

33 -Savings Clause 

34 - Duration 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 
Security Ser vices Uni t - State Per sonnel System 

Current T wo-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bar gaining as of J anuary 30, 2015 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 Successor Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiat ion 
Shaded= Closed 

A rticles at Impasse: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, /0, 11, 12, 13, 18, 24, 25, 26 

State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
State ProQosal of December 16. 20 14: Union ProQosal of December 16, 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Verbally proposed status quo- no written signed state proposal on 

proposal oftered. January 23, 20 15. 
State ProQosal of December 16, 20 I 4: Union ProQosal of December 16,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Verbally proposed status quo - no written signed state proposal on 

proposal offered. January 23, 20 I 5. 
State ProQosal of December 16, 20 14 : Union ProQosal ofNovember 21,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Status quo signed state proposal on 

January 23, 2015. 
State ProQosal of December 16, 2014: Union ProQosal ofDecember 16,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Verbally proposed status quo - no written signed state proposal on 

proposal offered. January 23, 20 15. 
State ProQosal of December 16. 2014: Union ProQosal of December 16,2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Verbally proposed status quo - no written signed state proposal on 

proposal offered. January 23, 20 15. 
State ProQosal of December 16,2014: Union ProQosal of December 16. 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Verbally proposed status quo - no wtitten signed state proposal on 

proposal offered. January 23, 20 I 5. 
State ProQosal of December 16,2014: Union ProQosal of December 16. 2014: Tentatively agreed to and 
Status quo Verbally proposed status quo - no wtitten signed state proposal on 

proposal offered. January 23, 2015. 

State ProQosal of December 16, 20 14: 
Proposes 1-year agreement to expire 
June 30, 2016. 

Page 26 of26 



FNA- Professional 
Health Care Unit 



For the State 

Mike Mattimore 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator 

Date 

Article 3 
VACANT 

FNA I ProfessionaJ Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 3 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 15 - 2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page I of 1 

For the FNA 

Don Slesnick 
Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date 



Article 5 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 15 - 20 16 
December 12, 20 14 

Pagel of6 

EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND ASSOCIATION ACTIVITI ES 

SECTION I - Definitions 

The tcnn ··employee·· as used in this Agreement, shall mean an emp loyee included in the 
bargaining unit represented by the Florida Nurses Association (Association). 

All references in this Agreement to employees of the female gender are used for 
convenience onl y anJ shall be construed to include both female and male employees. 

SECTION 2 - Representation 

(A) Where Association representation is requested by the employee, the Association 
Grievance Representative or Statl Representative shall be a person designated in writing by the 
Association. 

( l) An employee designated as an Association Grievance Representative is 
authori zed by the Association to investigate grievances and to represent grievants at meet ings on 
grievances which have been properly tiled under Atticle 6 of this Agreement, when the 
Association has been selected as the employee's representative. 

(2) The Association shall fum ish to the state, and keep up to date, a list of a ll 
employees and Assotiation Staff Representati ves authorized to act as Association Grievance 
Representatives. The s tate vvill not recognize any Grievance or Staff Representati ve whose name 
does not appear on the appropriate list. 

(8) The Association shall tbrnish to the state the name, official class title, name of 
employi ng agency. and specific work location of each employee who has been des ignated as an 
Association Grievance Representati ve. The sta te shall not recognize an employee as an 
authorized Grievance Representative until such information has been received from the 
Association. If a dispute ati ses as to whether an employee has been properly certified as a 
Grievance Representative, management shall contact the Department of Management Services to 
verify cetiification. 

F'o•· the State For the fNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
Stale ·s Chief Labor Negotiator Negot iator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Uni t 
State Proposal- Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 15 - 2016 
December 12, 20 14 

Page 2 of6 

(C) When an employee has been appropriately des ignated to serve as a Grievance 
Representat ive in accordance with Paragraph (A) and the state has been notified in accordance 
with Paragraph (B). the Grievance Representative shal l be authori zed to investigate gri evances 
and represent gdevants in accordance with Art icle 6, subject to the following limitations: 

( 1) A Grievance Representative will not be allowed time off with pay to 
investigate the employee· s own grievance. 

(1) Time spent by a Grievance Representative in investigating a grievance 
shall be the minimum amount of time necessary to perform the specific investigation involved. 

(3) A Grievance Representati ve must be selected fi·om those Grievance 
Representatives within the same work unit as the gri evant"s. If no Gtievance Representative is 
located in the gri evant's work unit. the Grievance Representative must be selected from the work 
unit which is located closest to the grievanfs work location, subject to the limitations prescribed 
in Article 6. 

(D) Where Association representation is not requested by the employee, an 
Assoc iation Grievance Representative shall be notified of and be given an opportunity to be 
present at any meeting held concerning the gri evance. 

SECTION 3 - Communication 

(A) The state w ill make a good faith effori, through the Oftice of the Secretary of the 
Department of Management Services. to foster the establishment of improved communications 
between agency management and Health Care Professionals, both in and out of the bargaining 
unit. 

(B) All statements involving the interpretation of the State Personnel System Rules 
will be sent to the Assoc iation. 

SECTION 4 - Consultation 

(A) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative. the Secretary of 
the Department of Management Services or designee shall make a good f-a ith effort to meet and 

l'or the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiatm'. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year2015 -2016 
December 12, 2014 

Page 3 of6 

consult on a quarterly basis with three Association representatives. Such meetings shall be held 
at a time and place designated by the Department of Management Services. 

(B) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, but not more 
often than once in each calendar month, the agency head or designee shall meet and consult with 
not more than four Association representatives from the agency and the Association Staff 
Representative. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place designated by the agency head. 

(C) The designated Association Staff Representative or, with the prior approval of the 
Staff Representative. the Association Gtievance Representative may request a consultation 
meeting with the Step 1 management representative. Where the request is made by the 
Association Grievance Representative, it will not be made to the immediate supervisor of the 
representative. Not more than once in each calendar month. the Step 1 management 
representative shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult with the Association Staff 
Representative or the Association Grievance Representative from the agency. Such meetings 
shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the Step l management representative. 

(D) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consideration to the 
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires 
reasonable travel time duting the regular work hours of any patticipant, such hours shall be 
deemed time worked. Attendance at a consultation meeting outside of a participanrs regular 
work hours shall not be deemed time worked. 

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 
administration of this Agreement and any Protessional Health Care acti\·ity which affects 
employees, and no such meeting shall be used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances 
or for negotiation purposes. No later than seven calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting 
date, the parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to discuss. Where the 
Association Grievance Representative has requested the meeting, a copy of the agenda shall also 
be furnished to the Association Staff Representative for review ptior to the meeting. 

(F) Decisions reached through consultation meetings shall be reduced to writing and a 
copy shall be furnished to the Chief Negotiator and the Association Staff Representati ve. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slcsnick 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
December 12, 2014 

Page 4 of6 

SECTlON 5- Bulletin Boards 

(A) Where requested in writing, the state agrees to fumish in a state-contmlled facility 
to which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 20'' x 30 .. for Association purchased 
bulletin boards. 

(B) The Association bulletin boards shall be used only for the tollowing notices: 

( 1) recreational and social atTairs of the Association. 

(1) Association meetings, 

(3) Association elections. 

(4) reports of Association committees, 

(5) Association benefit programs, 

( 6) cuJTent Association Agreement, 

(7) training and educational oppo1iunities. and 

(8) other materials pertaining to the weJfare of Association members. 

(C) Notices posted o n these bulletin boards shall not contain anything reflecting 
adversely on the state. or its officers or employees, nor shall posted mate1ial violate or have the 
effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation. 

(D) Notices submitted to r posting must be dated and bear the signature of the 
Association's authorized representative. 

(E) A violation of these provisions by an Association Staff Representative shall be a 
basis for removal ofbulletin board privileges by the Secretary of the Departmen t of Management 
Services or designee. 

For· the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
Stare's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



SECTION 6- Employee Lists 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
December 12, 2014 

Page 5 of6 

(A) Upon request of the Association, the state wi ll provide it with personnel data from the 
state personnel database (People First). These data wil l include employees· names. home 
addresses. work locations. classification titles, and other data elements as identified by the 
Association that are not confidential under state law. This infonnation wi ll be prepared on the 
basis of the latest informat ion available In the database at the time of the request. 

(B) lt is the state's policy to protect employee data exempt from public access under the 
provisions of Florida Statute 1 19.07 1 ( 4) from inadvertent or improper di sclosure. Such data 
include home addresses, telephone numbers, social securit y numbers. and elates of bitth. The 
Association agrees, therefore, that these exempt data are provided for the sole and exclusive use 
of the Association in carrying out its role as cetti'fi.ed bargaining agent. This infmmation may not 
be relayed. sold, or transfened to a third patty and may not be used by an entity or individual for 
any purpose other than Association business. 

SECTION 7 - Occupational Profiles and Rules Provided 

The state will provide the Association with ac-cess to the occupational proti les and the 
Rules of the State Personnel System on the Department of Management Services· website. 

SECTION 8- Negotiations 

(A) The Association a!:,•rees that all co llective bargaining is to be conducted with state 
representatives designated tor that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. While 
negotiating meetings shall nonnally be held in Tallahassee. the state and the Association may 
agree to meet elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the 
state. There shall be no negotiation by the Association at other levels of state govemment. 

(B) The Association may designate employees to serve on its Negotiation Committee, 
and such employees wi ll be granted administrative leave to attend negotiating sessions with the 
state. No employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee· s 
regular workday for a day the employee is in negotiations. The total number of hours of 
administrative leave provided to employees on the Negotiation Committee shall not exceed 250 
hours. The time in attendance at negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours worked fo r 
the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. The agency shall not reimburse 

For the State Fot· the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State·s Chief Labo r Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



F A I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5 - 20 I 6 
December I 2. 2014 

Page 6 of6 

employees for travel, meals, lodging. or an expense incurred in connect ion with attendance at 
negotiating sessions. 

No more than one employee shall be selected from the same work unit at a time, nor shall 
the selection of an employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit. 

SECTION 9- Employee Assistance Programs 

The state and the Association encourage and support the creation of Employee Assistance 
Programs and utili zation of the programs by employees whose personal problems are affecting 
their job performance. 

For the State For theFNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Associ:ttion 

Date Date 



fNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 201 5 - 201 6 
January 26, 1015 

Page I of 10 

At·ticle 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

It is the policy of the state and Association to encourage infom1al discussions between 
supervisors and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view 
to reaching an understanding, which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the form al grievance procedure prescribed 
by this Article. 

SECT ION I - Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) --Grievance .. shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application otthe 
specific provisions of this Agreement. except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on 
the appropriate fo rm as contained in Appendi x B of the Agreement. 

(B) ··Grievant'" shall mean an employee or group of employees having the same 
grievance. rn the case of a group of employees, one employee shall be designated by the group to 
act as spokesperson and be responsible for processing the glievance. 

(C) ''Days· · shall mean business days. --Business days·· refers to the ordinary business 
hours, i. e .. 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. in the time zone in which the 
recipient is located. Furthermore. ··business days .. do not include any day observed as a holiday 
pursuant to section 11 0.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list 
furni shed to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement. or day during a 
suspension of grievance processing as agreed in writing by the parities. --Business days·· also do 
not include a clay(s) on which the offi ces of OMS or any agency employi ng bargaining unit 
members arc closed under an Executive Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency 
condition or di saster under the provisions of Rule 60L-34.007 1 (3)(e). 

SECT ION 2- Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If a g~i evant or the Association has a grievance which may be processed under 
this Article and which may also be appealed to the Publ ic Employees Relations Commission, the 
grievant or the Association shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and the election 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesn ick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 2 of 10 

shall be binding on the gTievant or the Association. In the case of a duplicate tiling, the act ion 
first filed will be the one processed. 

(B ) A grievant who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or 
other initi.al written step if auth<)ri zed by the provisions of this Article) whether the grievant is 
represented by the Association. When a grievant has elected Association representation, both the 
grievant and the Association Representative shall be notified of Step 1 meetings. Further, written 
communication concerning the grievance or its reso lution shall be sent to both the grievant and 
the Association Grievance Representative, and the decision agreed to by the state and the 
Association shall be binding on the grievant. Where Association representation is authorized as 
provided in this Agreement and is requested by a grievant) the grievant' s representative shall be 
selected from the li st of Association Grievance Representatives or Association Staff 
Representatives which has been provided to the state in accordance with Article 5 of this 
Agreement. 

( I ) If a grievant selects an Association G1ievance Representative in a 
grievance which has been properl y tiled in accordance with this A11icle, the Association 
Grievance Representative may be allowed a reasonable amount of time off with pay to 
investigate the grievance and to represent the grievant at Step 1 meetings held during regular 
work hours. Such time off with pay shall be subject to prior approval by the Association 
Grievance Representative·s immediate supervisor: however. approval of time off will not be 
withheld if the Association Grievance Representative can be allowed such time without 
interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations of the unit to which the Association 
Grievance Representative is assigned. The Association Grievance Representative·s immediate 
supervisor will notify the grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Association Grievance 
Representative time off to investigate the grievance. 

(2) Investigations wi ll be conducted in a way that does not interfere with state 
operations. 

(3 ) As indicated in A11icle 5 of this Agreement, the Association Grievance 
Representative in the same work uni t, or the work location closest to the grievant's, shall be 
selected to represent the employee. In no case shall an Association Gdevance Representative be 
allowed to travel more than 25 miles fi·om their otltcia\ work location in ot·der to investigate a 

For the State Fo1· the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
Stme · s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - A.ltide 6 

Fiscal Year2015- 2016 
January 26. 2015 

Page 3 of 10 

grievance. The Association wil l make a reasonable effort to ensure that it trains a sufficient 
number of Association Grievance Representatives in order to minimize any such travel. 

(4) An Association Grievance Representative selected to represent an 
employee as provided in this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step I 
grievance meeting. 

(5) An employee who files a grievance in accordance with this Article, or the 
designated spokesperson in a class action grievance, will be considered a required participant at 
the Step 1 gtievance meeting. Upon agreement by the agency and the Association, the grievant 
or designated spokesperson may not be required to attend the meeting. 

(C) I f the grievant is not represented by the Association. an adjustment of the 
grievance shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. FUJiher, the Association shall be 
given reasonable opportunity to be present at a meeting called for the resolution of such 
grievance. A grievant using this procedure in the processing of a gtievance will be bound by the 
procedure established by the parties to the Agreement. The Association shall not be bound by the 
decis ion of a grievance or arbitration in which the grievant was not represented by the 
Association. 

SECTION 3- Procedures 

(A) Grievances filed in accordance with this Article should be presented and handled 
promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances. Nothing 
in th is procedure shall preclude an employee from presenting concerns through informal 
discussions with management representative(s). G1ievances may be filed and responded to by 
facsimile. electronic maiL maiL or personal delivery. If sent vja electrooic facsimi le, the burden 
shall be on the sending party to cont1nn the conect elech•onic facsimile number before 
tTansmission. Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during regular business hours (8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, in the time zone in which the recipient is located). 
Documents received after business hout·s shall be considered received the next business day. 

(B) There shall be no reprisals against participants in the procedures contajned herein 
by reason of such pm1icipation. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike M<1ttimore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiatot' Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 6 

Fiscal Year 20 15- 2016 
January 26. 2015 

Page 4 ofl 0 

(C) The tiling or pendency of a grievance under the provisions of this A11icle shall in 
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action 
complained oi~ subject, however. to the final disposition of the grievance. 

(0 ) The resolution of a gri evance prior to its submission in writing at 8tep 1 

arbitration shall not establish a precedent binding on either the Association or the state in other 
cases. 

(E) ff a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbi tration hearing is held or requires 
reasonable travel time during the t'egular work hours of a g1ievant, a representative of the 
grievant. or any required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at 
grievance meetings. mediation. or arbitrations outside of a participant's regular work hours shall 
not be deemed time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of pa11icipants attending such 
meetings on behalf of the Association. 

(F) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no 
individual may respond to a gri evance at more than one written step. 

( I) Step I 

(a) In filing a grievance at Step I , the grievant or her designated 
representative shall submit to the Step 1 management representative within 15 days following the 
occurTence of the event giving rise to the grievance a grievance fonn as contained in Appendix B 
of this Agreement, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, 
the specitic provision or provisions of the Agteement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. 

(b) The Step l management representative or designee shall meet to 
discuss the .brrie\·ance and shal l comrmwicate a decision in writing to the gri evant and the 
gtievanl·s representative, if any. within 10 days following the date of the meeting. 

(2) Step 1 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step I , the gri evant or the 
h'lievanf s representative may subrnit it in writing to the Agency Head or designee within l 0 days 
following receipt of the decision at Step I. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slcsnick 
State's Ch ief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Associatior1 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 5 oflO 

(b) The Agency Head or designee may meet with the grievant and/or 
designated representative to discuss the gtievance. The Agency Head or designee shall 
communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant's representative. if any. within 
15 days following receipt of the wtitten gtievance. 

(3) Step 3- Contract Language Disputes 

(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this 
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction In base pay. 
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension , or dismissal) was 
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the grievant or the grievant" s designated 
representative may submit the grievance in writing on the appropriate fom1 as contained in 
Appendix B of this Agl'eement to the Office Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of 
the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee. Florida. 
32399-0950 within 15 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall 
include a copy of the grievance fonn submitted at Steps I and 2, together with all written 
responses and documents in support of the grievance. 

(b) The Deparhnent of Management Services shall discuss the 
g1ievance with the Association representative, or the grievant or representative if not represented 
by the Association. The Secretary of the Department of Management Services shall 
commlmicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant's representative. if any, within 
15 days following receipt of the wtitten grievance. 

(4) Grievance Mediation 

The parties may, by wtitten agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be conducted 
by the FederaJ Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) ufter it has been submitted to 
arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the 
scheduled date for the arbitration hearing provided in section (5 )(b) below may be extended by 
mutual agreement beyond five months. Either party may withdraw from the mediation process 
with wtitten notice no later than five days before a scheduled mediation. 

(5) Step 4 - Arbitration 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Dmc Date 



i=NA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year ::Wl5- 2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 6 of lO 

(a) If a grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base 
pay, demotion. involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway. suspension, or dismissal) 
was taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the Association Staff Representative may 
G\ppeal the grievance in writing to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration f01m as contained in 
Appendix C of this Agreement within I 0 days fo llowing receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a 
con1Tact language dispute as described in (3 ), above, is not resolved at Step 3, the Association 
may appeal the grievance in writing to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in 
Appendix C of thi s Agreement. It~ at the initial written step, the Association declined to 
represent the grievant because she was not a member of the Association, the grievant may appeal 
the grievance to arbitration . 

(b) The parties may, by agreement in wntmg, submit related 
grievances tor hearing betore the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon 
as feasible but no more than five months following the receipt of the Request tor Arbitration 
Fom1. lf the arbitrator in itially selected is not available to schedule within this period, the 
Arbitration Coordinator shall contact succeeding arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is 
identified 'vVho can schedule within the prescribed period .. A party may request of the arbjtrator, 
with notice to the other party and the ATbitration Coordinator, an extension of time/continuance 
based on documented unusual and compelling circumstances. 

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of five arbitrators, 
selected by the state and the Association to serve in rotation for any case or cases submitted. The 
Department of Managernent Services· Arbitration Coordinator schedule the arbitration bearing 
with the state and Association representatives and the arbitrator listed next on the panel in 
rotation and shall coordinate the arbitration hearing time, elate, and location. 

(d) The Arbitration Coordinator shall st:hedule arbitration hearings at 
times and locations agreed to by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of 
evidence, the location of witnesses, existence of appropriate facil iti es, and other relevant factors; 
however under nonnn l circumstances, heaiings wi 11 be held in Ta llahassee. 

(f~) At least fifteen days before the scheduled date of the arbitration 
hearing, the parties shall fil e with the arbitrator. and provide to each other, a list of witnesses to 
be called at the hearing, except rebuttal witnesses. and a brief statement of the material facts or 

For tbe State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State 's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Dare Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - A;1icle 6 

Fiscal Year 2015 - :2016 
January 26. 2015 

Page 7 of 10 

matters relevant to the grievance about which each witJ1ess will testify. A party may file a 
written request with the arbitrator. with a concunent copv to the other party, for an exception to 
the filing time limits for good cause. If such exception is granted, the other party may request 
that the hearing be rescheduled if necessary for the patty to respond to the late tiled witness 
information. 

(e!) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including 
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party. an expedited arbitration hearing shall be 
conducted to address only the arbi trabi lity issue. In such cases, the parties shall choose an 
arbitrator from the panel of arbi trators, (see (5)(c) above) who is available to schedule a hearing 
and render a decision within 15 days of an arbitrator being chosen for th is limited purpose. The 
hearing on this issue shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be requ ired to decide the 
issue within five business days of the heating. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon 
the agreement of the parties and the arbitrator. The fees and expenses of the expedited 
arbitration shall be shared equally by the parties. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is 
arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen rrom the parties· regular arbitration panel in 
accordru1cc \.vith the provisions of (5)(c) of this At1icle to conduct a hearing on the substalttive 
issue(s). 

(f'g) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
gJievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with their jurisdiction and authority under 
thi s Agreement. the decis ion shall be final and binding on the state, the Association, the 
grievant(s), and the employees. In considering a gtievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by 
the following provisions and limitations: 

l. The arbitrator shall issue the decision not later thru1 22 days 
ti·om the date of the closing ofthe hearing or the submission of briefs. whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, shall be determined 
by applying a preponderance of the evidence standard, and shall set forth the arbitrator's opinion 
and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Dnte 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal -Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 8 of 10 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other 
issues, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not 
essential to the determination of the issues submitted. 

4. The arbin·ator shaJ I limit the decision strictly to the application 
and interpretation of the speci fie provisions of this Agreement. 

5. The arbitrator is to consider the facts and circumstances related 
to the act or omission on which a disciplinary action is based, as well as the period over which 
any prior discipline of the employee has taken place, in determining the level of discipline to be 
imposed. 

6. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any 
decisions: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent \ovith, adding to, subtracting 
from, or modifying. altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement. or of 
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law. 

b. Limiting or intertering in any 'vVay with the powers. 
duties and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law. except as such powers, duties and responsibilities 
have been ab1idged. delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement. 

7. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the grie ant(s ): 
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards. 

a. An award for back pay shall not exceed the amount of 
pay the grievant would otherwise have earned at their regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by the 
amount of wages earned from other sources or monies t·eceived as reemployment assistance 
benefits during the back pay period, shall not include punitive damages. and shall not be 
retroactive to a date earlier than 15 days prior to the date the g~ievance was initially filed. 

b. lfthe Association is granted a continuance to reschedule 
an arbitration hearing over the objection of the agency, the agency will not be responsible for 

Fol" the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State· s Chi·ef Labor Neg.oliator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 9 of 10 

back pay for the period between the original hearing date or the end of the five month period 
described in (5)(b), above, whichever is later, and the rescheduled date. 

(gh) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be equally shared by 
the parties. Each party shall be responsible fo r compensating and paying the expenses of its own 
representatives, attorneys and witnesses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee and expense 
statement to the Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator's 
conn·act including state travel expense ru les and policies. 

(hi) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the 
proceedings. Such party is responsible for paying the appearance fee of the rep01ter. If either 
party orders a transcript of the proceedings. the pmty shall pay for the cost of the transcript and 
provide a photocopy to the arbitrator. The party shall also provide a photocopy of the transcript 
to the other party upon written request and payment of copying expenses ($ .1 5 per page). 

(ij) The Association will not be responsible tor costs of an arbitration 
to which it was not a party. 

SECTION 4- Time Limits 

(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits in Section 3 shall be 
deemed a waiver of the gtievance. Failure at any step of thi s procedure to submit a grievance to 
the next step within the specitied time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at 
that step. 

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specitied time limit shall pem1it the gtievant, or the Association where. appropriate, to 
proceed to the next step. 

(C) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, 
and every ef1ott should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in 
any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specjfic instance, as long as 
necessary, provided there is an agreement by both sides. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattirnore Don Slesnick 
State 's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Hea lth Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2015 -20 16 
January 26. 2015 

Page 10 of 10 

(D) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 

SECTION 5 - Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to 
pennit the Association or an employee to process a gtievance (I) in behalf of any employee 
without their consent, or (2) with respect to any matter wh ich is the subject of a grievance, an 
appeal. an admi nistrati ve action before a govemmental board or agency, or court proceeding, 
brought by an individual employee or group of employees, or by the Association. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 

( 1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the agency 
Step 1 management representati ve. the grievance shal l be initiated at Step 2 or Step 3, as 
approptiate, by submitting a grievance fonn as set forth in Step I (Appendix B) within 15 days 
following the occutTence giving rise to the grievance. 

(1) The Association shall have the right to bring a cluss action gri evance on 
behalf of employees in its own name conceming disputes relating to the interpretation or 
application of this Agreement. The grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against 
an employee. The Association's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it fi·om 
proceeding in another forum on the same issue. The class action roievance form shall identify the 
specific group (i.e .. employees ' job classitication(s). work unit(s). institution(s). etc.) adversely 
impacted by the dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement. A class 
action grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions 
set forth therein. within 15 days of the occutTence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattiruore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



rNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 1 of2 

Article 7 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in her cunent position may be 
disciplined on ly for just cause pursuant to section 110.227, Florida Statutes. 

(B) A reduction in base pay that is required by the State Personnel System Rules shall 
not be grievable. Oral reprimands shall not be gtievable. Written reprimands shall be subject to 
the g~·jevance procedure in Artide 6 if the employee has attained pennanent status in her current 
p1,1sition; the decision is final and binding at Step 2. 

(C) An employee with permanent status in her current position may file, by personal 
delivery or by certitied mail, return receipt requested, an appeal of a reduction in base pay, 
suspe11sion, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion. or dismissal with the 
Public Employees Relations Commission within 21 days following the date of receipt of notice 
of such action fi·om the agency, under the provisions of section 110.227(5) and (6), Florida 
Statutes. In the alternative, such personnel actions may be grieved through the Arbitration Step, 
\-Vithout review at Step 3. in accordance with the gtievance procedure in Article 6 of this 
Agreement. 

(D) Letters of counseling or counseling notices are documentation of minor work 
deficiencies or conduct concerns that are not discipline. and are not grievable: however such 
documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee's 
discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the perfom1ance deficiencies or conduct 
concerns. 

(E) Each agency may have special compensatory leave eqllal to the length of a 
disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee's leave balance in lieu of the employee 
serving the suspension. Jn making such determination. each agency shall take into consideration 
the preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted. If there is 
no sufficient special compensatory or annual leave. the remainder of the period will be leave 
without pay. Employees fi·om whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty and 
remain in pay status. The employee's personnel tile will rellect a disciplinary suspension 
regardless of whether the employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike M<~ttimore Don Slesnick 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator Negoti<1tor, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal -Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
January 26, 20 IS 

Page 1 of2 

(F) An employee who has not attained permanent statu in her cun·ent position shall 
not hrn·e acccs to the grievance procedure in Atticle 6 when disciplined. 

(G) Each employee shall be fumished u copy of all disci pi inary actions placed in thei r 
officia l personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto. 

(H) The state wi ll make a good faith effort to initiate disciplinary actions within 60 
days from the date of actual knowledge by the person having the authority to initiate discipline of 
the event giving rise to the disciplinary action. I f circumstances necess itate a longer period, 
except in the case o f a criminal investigation. di sciplinary actions must be initiated within 120 
days of the event giving rise to the disciplinary action. 

(I) The state is to consider the h1cts and circumstances related to the act or omission 
on which employee discipline is based. as well as the period over which any prior discipline of 
the employee has taken place, in detem1ining the level of discipline to be imposed. 

(J) An employee may request that an Association Staff Representative or Grievance 
Representative be present during any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is 
being questioned relative to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetennination 
conference in which suspension or dismissal of the employee is being considered. The purpose 
of the disciplinary investigation will be explained to the employee at the beginning of the 
meeting. 

( K) Except in extraordinaty situations, an employee who has permanent status in her 
cu tTent position shall be given notice of proposed suspension or dismissal in accordance with 
Rule 60L-36, Florid3 Administrative Code and section 11 0.227(5)(a), Florida Statutes. When the 
employee requests a conference to explain or refute the charges made against the employee, the 
conference shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Rule 60L-36, Florida 
Administrative Code. and section II 0.227(5)(a), Florida Statutes. 

(L) Each agency will make a good faith effort to have a review by an appropriate 
health care professional, licensed health care risk manager, or an appropriate intemal reviewing 
body, prior to taking disciplinary action against an employee when the medical or professional 
competence of the employee is questioned. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimorc Don Slesnick 
Stare 's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Floridn Nurses As~ociation 

Date Date 



Article 8 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 8 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
January 26. 2015 

Page I of4 

WORK FORCE REDUCTION 

SECTION 1 - Layoffs 

(A) When employees are to be laid off, the state shall implement the layoff and 
.. bumping .. rights in accordance \·vith the provisions of section 11 0.227(3)(a) and (b). Florida 
Statutes, in the following manner: 

(I) The competitive area tor the bargaining unit shall be statewide unless the 
Department and Association agree otherwise. 

(2) Layoff shall be by broadband le c l within the bargaining unit. 

(3) An employee who does not have pcm1anent status in her current position 
1nay be laid off without applying the provision for retention right . 

(4) No employee who has permanent status in her current position in the 
affected- broadband level shall be laid off while an employee is serving in that level without 
permanent status in her cunent position unless the pcm1anent employee does not elect to exercise 
her retention right or does not meet the selected competition c1i tcria. 

(5) All employees who have permanent status in their CUITent position in the 
atTectecl level shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention points derived as 
follows: 

(a) Length of service retention points shall b~ based on one point for 
each month of continuous service in a Career Service position. 

I . An employee who resigns ti·om one Career Service position 
to accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break 111 

service. 

2. An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed 
with in one year from the date of the layoff shall not be considered to have a break in service. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimorc Don Slesnick 
State·s Chief Lnbor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Datt: 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 8 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year2015- 2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 2 of4 

3. Moving ti·om Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or 
Senior Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service 
unless the employee· s break in service is more than 31 calendar days. Only time spent in the 
Career Service can be counted in calculating retention points. 

(b) Retention points deducted for an employee's performance that 
does not meet pertonnalll:e standards or work expectations defined tor the position shall be based 
on the five years immediately prior to the agency"s established cutoff date. Five points shall be 
deducted for each month an employee has a perfonnance evaluation that is below performance 
expectations. 

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points. Employees 
eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to section 295.07( I )(a) or (b), Flotida Statutes, shall 
have ten percent added to their total retention points. and those eligible pursuant to section 
295.07( I )(c) or (d). Florida Statutes, shall have five percent added. 

(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is p laced at the top of 
the list and the employee with the lowest total retention points is placed at the bottom of the list. 

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom 
of the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled 
in the same manner until the total number of tilled positions in the broadband level to be 
abolished is complete. 

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total retei1tion 
points. the order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference for retention in the following 
sequence: 

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected broadband 
level. 

(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career 
Service. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesr)ick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Associatiou 

Date Dare 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 8 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 
January 26. 2015 

Page 3 of 4 

(c ) The employee who is ent itled to veteran's preference pursuant to 
section 295.07( l ), Florida Statutes. 

(I 0) Before laying off an employee who has pe1manent status in her current 
pOSition as part of a work force reduction, an agency shall provide the employee reasonable 
notice of the intended action. Where possible, the agency shall provide at least 30 days· notice, 
and in all cases the Agency shall provide at least ten days· notice or pay or a combination of 
notice and pay. to be made at the employee·s current hourly base rate of pay . The notice of layoff 
shall be in writing and sent to the employee by ce11ified mail. return receipt requested. Within 
seven calendar days after receiving the notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to 
request, in writing, a demotion, lateral action, or reassignment within the competitive area in lieu 
of layoff to a posit ion within the bargaining unit in which the employee held pem1anent status, or 
to a position in a broadband level at or below the <..:UITent level in the bargaining unit, in which 
the employee held permanent status. 

( 11) An employee·s request for demotion, lateral action, or reassignment shall 
be granted unless it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a gteater total of 
retention points. 

( 12) An employee adversely affected as :1 result of another employee having a 
greater number of retention points shall have the same right of reassignment, lateral action. or 
demotion under the same procedures provided in this section. 

( l3) If an employee requests a demotion , lateral action. or reassignment in lieu 
of layo1l~ the same formula and crite1ia tor establishing reten6on points for that class shall be 
used as prescribed in this section. 

(B) If there is to be a layoff of employees, the state shall take all reasonable steps to 
place any adversely affected employees in existing vacancies for which they are qualified. 

(C) I f work performed by employees is to be performed by non-state employees, the 
state agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider any adversely affected employees for 
employment in its organization if the state has been unable to place the employees in other 
positions within the State Personnel System. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mnttimore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



SECTION 2 - Reemployment and Status 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 8 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 4 of4 

(A) Reemployment. For one year following layotf, when a position is to be filled or a 
new position is established in the same agency and in the same broadband level within the 
affected competitive area. the agency shall 

(1) offer reemployment to a laid off employee with the highest number of 
retention points . <1r 

(2) ofter to promote or reassign an employee who had accepted a demotion or 
vo luntary reassignments in li eu of layoff. 

An employee who refuses an offer as provided in (A)( I) or (2) shall forteit any tights to 
subsequent placement offers as provided in this subsection. 

(8) Status. Reemployment of employees as provided in (A)(l), or reassignment or 
promotion of employees as provided in (A)(2), shall be with permanent status in their position. 

SECTION 3 -Job Security 

The state shall make a reasonable effort to notifY the Association at least 30 days in 
advance of positions within the bargaining unit that will be involved in a layoff. Prjor to the 
actual layon: the state w ill meet with the Association to discuss the effect of the layoff on the 
employees involved. 

SECTION 4 - Grievahility 

Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered a disciplinary action, and in the event 
an employee elects to grieve the action taken. such gJievance must be based on whether the 
layoff was in accordance with the provisions of this at1icle. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Matlimore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



Articl(l 10 
PROMOTIONS 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 1 0 

Fiscal Year 20 15 -2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 1 of3 

The state and the Association agree that promotions shou ld be used to provide career 
mobility within the State Personnel System and should be based on the relati ve me1it and fitness 
of employees. 

Toward the goal of selecting the most qualified employee for each promotional position, 
the parties agree that the provisions of this Article, along with a ll provisions of the Rules o f the 
State Personnel System, will be followed when making such appointments. The paJ1i es will 
make a good faith effort to develop and implement standard agency <..:riteria for selecting 
employees for promotional opp011unities within a professional broadband level. 

SECTION 1 - Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) ··Broadband Lever· shall mean al l positions suffi cientl y similar in knowledge. 
skills, and abilities. and suffici entl y similar as to kind or subject matter of work. level of 
difficulty or responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same 
treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel transactions. 

(8) ··Promotion·· shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having a higher max imum salary; or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of 
respons i bi I i ty. 

(C) ' ·Demotion'· shall mean changing the classitication of an employee to a broadband 
level having a lower maximum sa lary: or the changing of the classi fication of an employee to a 
broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of respons ibility . 

SECTION 2 - Procedures 

(A) An employee -vvho has permanent status in her cunent position may request a 
promotion by submitting the appropliate Request Fonn to the agency in w hich the position is 
located. Such requests shall indi <.:ate the class(es), broadband level(s). county( ies), and/or duty 

For the State ],'or tbe FNA 

Mike Manimorc Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Atticle I 0 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5 - 2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 2 of3 

station to which the employee would like to be assigned. A State of Florida Employment 
Appli<.:ation Form must be completed and sent with the employee's Request Fonn, and the 
employee's eligibility shall be determined by use of thi s completed application. Each applicant 
wi ll be notified of her eligibility or ineligibility for the class(es), broadband level(s), county(ics), 
and or duty station applied for. 

(B) An employee may submit a Request Form at any time; however, all Requests 
shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. 

SECT( ON 3 - Method of Filling Positions 

(A) Except where a position is filled by demotion. lateral action, or by-reassignment 
as defined in Article 9 of this Agreement, employees who have requested promotion in 
accordance with Section 2 of this Article shall be given tirst consideration for promotional 
positions. Of the employees meeting the selection criteria, up to a maximum of tive will be 
interviewed. Where interviews nre done by committee. at least one committee member will be 
qualified in the particular professional discipline involved. 

(B) Each employee who requests promotion in accordance with Section 2 of this 
A1iicle will be notified in writing by the appointing authority when the position has been tilled. 
Upon request, employees will be provided with recommendations regarding areas in which they 
can improve their potential for future promotional oppo1tunities. 

(C) When an employee has been promoted pursuant to a Request filed under this 
Article, all other pending Requests for promotion from that employee shall be ca.ncelJed. No 
other Request may be filed by that employee under this Article for a petiod of 12 months 
following the employee's promotion. 

SECTION 4- Probationary Status on Promotion 

(A) An employee appointed to a position. including a position to which the employee 
has been promoted, must successfully complete at least a one-year probationary period, before 
attain ing permanent status in the position. An employee who has not attaine-d pennanent status 
in his current position serves at the pleasure of the agency head and may be dismissed at the 
discretion of the agency head. and shall attaiA: 13ennanent status in that position upon successful 
completion of the designated probationary period. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State· s Chid Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article I 0 

Fiscal Year 2015 -2016 
.January 26, 2015 

Page 3 of3 

(8) An agency's actions in removi ng or dismissing an employee from a probationary 
position to which the employee has been promoted from a position in which the employee held 
pem1anent status are govemed bv the provisions of Section ll 0.217(3 ), Florida Statutes, and, 
pursuant to this statutory provision, are not grievable. 

EB-t An employee serving a probatim-tEH·y petiod in a position to ·which she has 
received an internal agency promotion may be removed fr01n that promotional position at any 
time during the probationary period. Lfher former position, or a comparable position, is vacant, 
the employee is to be placed in sach position. If sucb a position is not available, before 
dismissaL, the agency shall make a reasonable eff01i to retain the employee iR another yacant 
positioR. This process does not apply to terminations for cause nor does it create a right to bUJnp 
an employee from an occupied position. 

tB (f the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable position, 
such demotion shall be Vltit'h permanent status, provided the employee held permanent status in 
the agency in the lower position. 

R1 The employee's salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency's pay upon 
demotion policy. 

(3) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance procedure. 

Fot: the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiat"or Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



F'NA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 12 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
December L2, 2014 

Page I of I 

Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee, which shall be 
maintained by the employing agency. Information in an employee's official personnel file may 
be maintained in electronic as well as paper fonn. lf an agency establishes an additional file. the 
employee shall have access to that file. 

(B) If aey-a derogatory material document is placed in an employee's official 
personnel tile, a copy will be sent to the employee. The employee will have the right to ansvver 
respond to any such material document filed, and her answe1::..the response will be attached to the 
file copy. 

(C) An employee wil l have the right to review her official personnel file at reasonable 
times under the supervision of the designated records custodian. 

[Q} Where the Agency Head or designee, the Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a document in 
the personnel file is invalid, the document shall be placed in an envelope, together with an 
explanation, the outside of the envelope and all pages of the document marked "VOJD''. and 
retained in the employee's persom1el file as specified in the State of Florida General Records 
Schedule OS 1-SL for State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department 
of State. In tbe case of electronic records. a Personnel Action Request (PAR) that bas been 
detenn ined to be void shall have a note added to the PAR tomJ indicating that the action is 
.. VOID''. 

@ Information in an employee's official personnel file is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, unless specifically exempted by state or federal law (such as 
protected health information and social security numbers), and as such. must be provided to 
anyone desiring inspection or requesting copies in accordance with the provisions of the Public 
Records Law. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State· s Chier Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



Article 23 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Articl e 23 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Y ear 2 0 15 - 20 16 
D ecember 12. 2014 

Page l o f 4 

HOURS OF WORK / COMPENSATORY TIM E 

SECTION J -Workweek/Compensatory Time 

(A) The workweek tor each full-t ime employee shall be 40 hours un less the employee 
is on an agency established ex tended work period. 

(8 ) Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with Ru le 
60 L-34, Florida Adn1inistrative Code. 

(C) Excluded employees who are required to work in excess of the ho urs of the 
regul ar work period or an agency establi shed ex tended work peri od w ill earn regular 
compensatory leave cred its on an hour-for-ho ur basis . In accordance with the provisio ns of Ruie 
60L-34.0043(5). Florida Adm inistrati ve Code. and an agenc y"s approved Regular Compensatory 
Leave Payment P lan, excluded employees who are directed to work hours in excess of the 
regular work period or an approved extended work period d ue to extraordinary c ircumstances 
may be paid for the excess h ours worked provided funds are available for such payment. The 
excess hours worked shall be rounded to the nearest quarter hour based on the actual time the 
employee was required to work . 

(0 ) The Association agrees to suppoti those changes in Rul e 60L-34. Flotida 
Administrative Code. that may be requil"ed in order for the state to be in compli ance w ith the Fair 
Labor Standards Act as it is appli ed to public employees. 

( E) An agency may compensate em.p loyees in included postttons to r ovetiime as 
fo llows: An employee who is fi lling an included position may waive payment for ove11ime and 
elect to have the overtime hours credited to "FLSA compensatory leave." Such electio n will 
apply unti l changed again, and only to workdays starting on the day of the change and in which 
hours worked in the work peti od exceed the contracted ho urs. Overtime hours that the employee 
elects to have credited as "FLSA compensatory Ieave 11 w ill accru e at the rate of o ne and one-ha lf 
hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will be perm itted to accumulate a 
max imum of 80 hours of "FLSA compensatory leave" credits which may be taken in any 
increments if agreed to by the em ployee and the supervisor. If agreement is not reached, the 
supervisor may. with a minimum of five workdays notice, require the employee to use such leave 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattitnore Don Slesnick 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator Negot iator, Florida Nurses Assm:iation 

Date Date 

... 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal- Article 23 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
December 12, 2014 

Page 2 of4 

credits at any time in increments of full work days. However. all unused "FLSA compensatory 
leave" credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30, or other dates approved by 
the Department of Management Services. shall be paid for at the employee's regular hourly rate 
in accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrati ve Code as amended. An employee who 
separates fi·om Career Service, moves to an excluded position, or moves to another state agency 
shall be paid for all unused "FLSA compensatory leave" in accordance with the above. 

SECTION 2 - Rest Periods 

Whenever practicable, employees' dail y work schedules will provide for a 15 minute rest 
period during each one-halfvvork shift. The rest period shall be scheduled whenever possible at 
the middle of such a one-half shift. The state, however, shall vary the scheduling of such period 
when the demands of work so require. No supervi sor shall unreasonably deny an employee a rest 
period as provided herein. 

SECTION 3- Flextime 

A full -time employee may request approval of a variable work schedule under an 
agency's family support personnel policies. If the employee requests a t'egular schedule of more 
or less than an eight hour workday, approval may be requested in accordance with the provisions 
ofRule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 4 - Work Schedule 

(A) Except in emergency s ituations, normal work schedules showing the employees' 
shifts, workdays, and hours will be posted on applicable bulletin boards no less than 1 0 calendar 
days in advance and will reflect at least a one month schedule. With the ptior approval of the 
supervisor(s) and provided there is no penalty to the state, employees may mutually ag~,ee to 
exchange days or shifts on a temporary basis. 

(B) ( l) The state wm make a good faith effort to equalize required shift rotation 
and weekend work among employees in the same functional unit whenever this can be 
accomplished without interfering with efficient operations. 

(2) When an employee's shift has been changed, the state will make a good 
faith effort to schedule the employee to be offwork for a minimum of two shifts. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mallimore Don $Iesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
December 12,2014 

Page 3 of4 

(3) Except in emergencies, employees will not be required to work more than 
tvvo different shifts in a workweek. 

(4) The state will attempt to grant at least two weekends off per month. 

SECTION 5 - Special Compensatory Leave 

(A) Eaming of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave 
credits may be earned only in the following instances: 

(I) By an employee in the career service for work perfonned on a holiday as 
defined in section II 0.117, Florida Statutes, or tor work performed duri ng a work period that 
includes a holiday. as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the 
employee·s assigned office, facility. or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of 
the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July l, 2012 

( 1) Despite the fact that previous collective bargaining agt·eements only 
permitted employees to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave 
credits. certain employees may have eamed hours prior to July I. 2012 in excess of that amount. 
Nothing in this agreement is intended to address the validity or invalidity of special 
compensatory leave credits above 240 hours earned prior to July l, 20 I 2. 

(2) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 
balances. 

(C) Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July I . 2012 

(1) Special compensatory leave credits earned. as described in subsection 
(A)( I), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 3 1 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited. whichever date occurs 
earlier. shall be forfeited. 

For the State Fortbe FNA 

Mike Maltimore Don Slesnick 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Profc sional Health Care Uni t 
State Proposal - Article 23 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 20 15- 20 l6 
December 12, 20 14 

Page 4 of4 

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned. as described in subsection 
(A)(2). on or after July I. 2012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is credited shall be for te ited. 

(3) Each agency shall schedule employees caming special compensatory leave 
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits eamed on or after July I. 20 12, to be used 
within the time limits specified in subsections I and 2. However, if scheduling such leave within 
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum starting requirements needed 
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time lin1its speciticd in subsections I 
and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days. Ex tensions will not be allowed for any other 
reason. 

(4) No agency may make a payout o f unused special compensatory leave 
credi ts eamed on or after July I, 2012. 

(D) Unless otherwise prohibi ted by law or rule. all requests for use of approved leave, 
other than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits 
the employee has accrued. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mi ke Mattin1ore Don Slesn ick 
Stntc's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions- General 

Article 25 
WAGES 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15 - 2016 
January 26,10 15 

Page I of2 

Agencies· authority to provide increases to employees· base rate or pay and salary 
additives from available agency funds shall be in accordance wi th this Agreement, state law, and 
the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2- Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

ln accordance with the authority provided in Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the agency head·s discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grnnt a temporary special duties pay addi tive cf up to 15 percent of 
the employee· s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area 
closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

S ECTION 3- Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Petmanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the fonn of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with , section II 0.219( 7), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 4 - Performance Pay 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-16 General 
Appropriations Act, and from existing agency resources, each agency is authorized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee·s exemplary performance. as evidenced by a pedormance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Adminish·ative Code. 

SECTION 5- Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or btroups of employees may be eligib le tor monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 11 0.1245( 1 ), Florida 
Statutes. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator Negot iator, Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



SECTION 6 - Discretionary Raises 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 20 15 -2016 
January 26, 2015 

Page 2 of2 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20 I 5-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the agency head's discretion, 
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities~ or other staffing issues. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labo1· Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Association 

Date Date 



FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
December 12. 2014 

Page I of l 

Article 26 
DIFFERENTIAL PAY 

(A) A shift differential in the amount of $1.00 per hour will be paid when it is the 
prevailing practice in the profession to pay shift differential and when the employee is assigned 
to a sh ift where a majority of the employee's how-s worked tall between the hours of 5:00 p.m. 
and 6:00a.m. 

(B) When justified and upon approval by the Secretary of Management Services or 
designee, subject to the avail ability offunds. a shift differential greater than $1.00 per hour may 
be paid when the critetia in (A) above are met and where the local competitive conditions justify 
a higher shift differential. 

For the State For the FNA 

Mike Mattimore Don Slesnick 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Negotiator. Florida Nurses Associatio11 

Date Date 



Fo•· the State 

Mike Mattimore 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator 

D<lte 

Article 3 1 
VACANT 

FNA I Professional Health Care Unit 
State Proposal - A11icle 31 (S tatus Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 
January 26,2015 

Page 1 of 1 

For the FNA 

Doll Slesnick 
Negotiator, Flori del Nurses Association 

Date 





Florida Nurses Association, OPEIU, Local 713 
Proposals for Professional Health Care Unit 

Collective Bargaining Agreement 2015 - 2017 
Presented December 12,2014 

Florida Nurses Association, Office & Professional Employees International Union, Local 713 ("FNA" or 
"Union'') understands that the State of Florida is continuing to be challenged by budget constraints, and, as a 
result, al l state agencies arc faced with providing required services with limited resources, including staff. 
However, we are also aware of an improving economy, a higher employment rate and an increasing revenue 
stream to the State's budget. Furthermore, we continue to hear that agencies are unable to recruit and retain 
highly skilled, professional employees at a time when the demand for services continues to increase. The 
biggest factor in the inability to hire is the low salaries that the agencies offer, compounded by the fact that state 
health care professionals' benefits are being reduced or eliminated and those same employees have had only one 
raise in 8 years. There also remain significant and growing inequities among certain classifications of 
employees. While the FNA's proposals, described below, do not achieve the competitiveness the Union 
believes is necessary, these proposals are reasonable and necessary for the agencies to continue to deliver the 
quality level of health care services that the citizens and the wards of the state deserve. Thus, FNA' s proposals 
are as follows: 

New Article 3- DUES CHECKOFF (currently vacant) 

SECTION l - Deductions 

(A) During the term of this Agreement, the State, by and through its respective agencies, 
agrees to deduct Association membership dues and uniform assessments, if any, in an amount 
established by the Assocjation and certified in writing by an accredited officers of the Association to the 
State, from the pay of those employees in the bargaining Unit who individually make such request on a 
written checkoff authorization form provided by the Association (Appendix B). Such deduction will be. 
made by the agency when other payroll deductions are made and will begin with the pay for the first full 
pay period following receipt of the authorization of the agency. 

(B) The Association shall advise the State of any uniform assessment or increase in dues in 
writing at least thirty (30) days prior to its effective date. 

(C) This Article applies only to the deduction of membership dues and unifo.tm assessments, 
if any, and shall not apply to the collection of any fines, penalties, or special assessments. 

(D) Employee organization dues deduction will be provided for the certified bargaining agent 
only. 

SECTION 2 - Remittance 

Deductions of dues and uniform assessments, if any, shall be remitted exclusively to a duly 
authorized representative as designated in writing by the Association, by the respective agencies on 
either a biweekly or monthly cycle along with a list containing names, social security numbers, agency, 
division, district, institution, and amount deducted of the employees for whom the remittance is made. 

SECTION 3 Insufficient Pay for Deduction 

In the event an employee's salary earnings within any pay period after deductions for 
withholding, Social Security, retirement, State Health Insurance, and other priority deductions are not 
sufficient to cover dues and any uniform assessments, it will be the responsibility of the Association to 
collect its dues and uniform assessments for that pay period directly from the employee. 

SECTION 4 - Termination of Deduction 



Deductions for Association dues and/or uniform assessments shall continue until either: 1) 
revoked by the employee by providing the State and the Association with thirty (30) days written notice 
that the employee is terminating the prior checkoff authorization, 2) revoked pursuant to section 
447.507, Florida Statutes, 3) the termination of employment, or 4) the transfer, promotion, or demotion 
of the employee out of this bargaining Unit. If these deductions are .not discontinued when any of the 
above situations occur, the Association shall, upon request of the employee, reimburse the employee for 
the deductions that were improperly withheld. 

SECTION 5 -lndemnification 

The Association shall indemnify, defend, and hold the State of Florida, its officers, officials, 
agents, and employees harmless against any claim, demand, suit, or liability (monetary or otherwise), 
and for all legal costs arising from any action taken or not taken by the State, its officials, agents, and 
employees in complying with this Article. The Association shall promptly refund the State any funds 
received in accordance with this Article, which are in excess of the amount of dues and/or uniform 
assessments which the State or its agencies have agreed to deduct. 

SECTION 6- Exceptions 

The State will not deduct any Association fines, penalties, or special assessments from the pay of 
any employee. 

SECTION 7 - Dues Checkoff Authorization Form 

(A) The Dues Checkoff Authorzation Form (Appendix B) supplied by the Association shall: 
(1) be in strict conformance with Appendix B; (2) be the only form used by bargaining Unit employees 
who wish to initiate dues deduction; and (3) shall contain all the information required by the Form prior 
to submission to the State. 

(B) The State will not process Dues Checkoff Authorization Forms that are: (1) incorrectly 
and/or incompletely .filled out; (2) postdated; or (3) submitted to the State more than sixty (60) days 
following the date of the employee's signature. 

Article 5- EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES 

Add a new Section 6 -Orientation. Sections following new Section 6 would be renumbered. 

(a) The state will provide each new bargaining unit employee with an informational sheet with 
information about the FNA~ along with contact information for Professional Health Care Unit 
officers and FNA staff The Association will prepare the informational sheet and provide it to the 
state for distribution. 

(b) The state will provide a roster of new hires and terminations each month which incJudes the 
employees' work email addresses. The FNA will use that roster to send new employees one 
introductory email to their work email addresses requesting information, including personal email 
addresses, for future communications. 



Add a new Section- Activities of the Bargaining Unit President 

The Bargaining Unit President shall be released from that employee's regular work assignment (for 
purposes of assisting to administer the terms and conditions of the contract) up to 20 hours per pay 
period. 

Article 7- DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent starus in her current position may be disciplined only 
for just cause pursuant to section 110.227, Florida Statutes. 

(1) .A.n oral reprimand will be considered invalid if the employee is not disciplined for the same offense 
during the succeeding twelve months. 

(2) A written reprimand will not be considered in determining progressive discipline provided 
the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding twenty four months. and the written 
reprio:;umd w~ not for a_major offense, which could have resulted in the employee's dismissal. 

(B) A reduction in base pay that is required by the State Personnel System Rules shall not be 
grievable. Ora] reprimands shall not be grievable. Written reprimands shaH be subject to the grievance 
procedure in Article 6 if the employee has attained permanent status in her current position; the decision is fmal 
and binding at Step 2. 

(C) An employee with permanent status in her current position may file, by personal delivery or by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, an appeal of a reduction in base pay, suspension, involuntary transfer of 
over 50 miles by highway, demotion, or dismissal with the Public Employees Relations Commission within 21 
days following the date of receipt of notice of such action from the agency, under the provisions of section 
11 0.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes. In the alternative, such personnel actions may be grieved through the 
Arbitration Step, without review at Step 3, in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6 of this 
Agreement. 

(D) LettefS of eoliBSeling or oo~g tiebees are doel:l:fftefttatioa of minor work defieienc~ 
eondoot eooeems that are not disoiplifte, &BEl are not gritwable; howtwer sueh doeumeatatioe may ee usee B3' the 
~ at ftfl aEimiRiStmtf¥e aeariag invohrffig ftfl employee' s diseiplffie tO demoB:Stfate the employee \~ Oft 

aotiee of the perfemumee defieieneies or eoB<iuet eeeeems. 
l..4J \ _(E) Baeh ageney may ha·.,oe spseial eornpeasatory lea'le ~ to the length of a d~eiplffiafy 

sHspensien deeueted frem BH employee's lee•,re balen.ee in lieH of the employee serving the suspensioo. In 
}. maki:fl:g stteh delerminatieB; eaeh ageney shall take iHto eoesideration the prefereeee of the employee as to 
VJ serving the suspeasiea or bavi:Bg lea¥e dedaeted. If there is eo suffieient speei:al eompefl;98:tory or ar.flual leave, 
~ the remaiBEler of t:he period '<viU be Jea¥e withe at pay. Employees from whom JeaNe is dedHeted w41l eoetimle to 

report for duty. The em,leyee's pefsoB:Bel file will retleet a djseipliaary Sl:lSJ*'nsioft regard.less of ·Nhether the 
~ employee sePt'es the S\:lspeastoa or has leaye EledHe{eEi. 

(F) An employee who has not attained permanent status in her current position shall not have access 
to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when disciplined. 

(G) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in their official 
personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto. 

(H) The state will make a good faith effort to initiate disciplinary actions within stxt:y (6'» days from 
the date of actual knowledge by the person having the authority to initiate discipline of the event giving rise to 
the disciplinary action. If circumstances necessitate a longer pedod, except in the case of a criminal 
investigation, disciplinary actions must be initiated within 120 days of the event giving rise to the disciplinary 
action. 

(I) The state is to consider the facts and circumstances related to the act or omission on which 
employee discipline is based, as well as the period over which any prior discipline of the employee has taken 
place, in determining the level of discipline to be imposed. 

(J) An employee may request that an Association Staff Representative or Grievance Representative 
be present during any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 



tillegel mi'sconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference in which suspension or dismissal 
of the employee is being considered. The purpose of the disciplinary investigation will be explained to the 
employee at the beginning of the meeting. 

(K) Except in extraordinary situations, an employee who has permanent status in her current position 
shall be given notice of proposed suspension or dismissal in accordance with Rule 60L-36, Flori~ 
Administrative Code and section l 1 0.227(5)(a), Florida Statutes. When the employee requests a conference to 
explain or refute the charges made against the employee, the conference shall be conducted in accordance with 
the provisions of Rule 60L-36, Florida Administrative Code, and section 110.227(5)(a), Florida Statutes. 
(L) Each agency will make a good faith effort to have a review by an appropriate health care professional, 
licensed health care risk manager, or an appropriate internal reviewing body, prior to taking disciplinary action 
against an employee when the medical or professional competence ofthe employee is questioned. 

Article 8- WORFORCE REDUCTION 

Add a new paragraph (D) as follows: 

Reductions in pay for reasons other than discipline (e.g., budget reductions/shortfalls or position 
eliminated) will be administered by the same procedure as "layoffs" in paragraph "(A)" above. 

Article 23 -HOURS OF WORK I COMPENSATORY TIME 

SECTION 5 - Special Compensatory Leave 

(A) Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave credits may be 
earned only in the following instances: 

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as defined in 
section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that includes a holiday, as 
provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed jn the employee's assigned 
office, faciliry, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor or any other disaster 
or emergency condition. 

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012 
(1) Despite the fact that previous collective bargaining agreements only pennitted employees 

to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave credits, certain employees may have 
earned hours prior to July 1, 2012 in excess of that amounl Nothing in this agreement is intended to address the 
validity or invalidity of special compensatory leave credits above 240 hours earned prior to July 1, 2012. 

(2) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit balances. 

(C) Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012 

(1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(J ), on or after 
July 1, 2012. which are noL used eaeb year by-the April 30 er Ooteber 31 that immediately sueeeeds within 120 
calendar davs from the end of the work period in which the leave is credited,wkfeliever date eecU:rs earlier, shall 
be forfeited. 

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(2), on or after 
July 1, 2012~ which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the work period in which the leave is 
credited shall be forfeited. 



(3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave credits in a 
manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used within the time limits 
specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, if scheduling such leave within such time limits would prevent the 
agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed to ensure public safety, the agency head may 
extend the time limits specified in subsections J and 2 for up to an additional 1 80 calendar days. Extensions 
will not be allowed for any other reason. 

(4) 
afterJuly l :G012. 

No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave credits earned on or 

(D) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, other than 
administrative leave, shall first be charged to any speciaJ compensatory leave credits the employee has accrued. 

Article 24- ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT 

Increase On-Call Pay from $1.00/hourto $3.00/hour. 

Article 25 - WAGES 

(1 ) Bargaining unit employees shall receive an across-the-board cost of living increase of 3%, effective July 
1, 2015. 

(2) The Association proposes recurring salary range adjustments for unit positions utilizing the following 
fonnulas: 

• Raise the minimum salary for RN classes to $40,000. 
• Raise the minimum saJary for ARNP and Clinical Associates classes to $70,000. 
• Raise the minimwn salary for Pbannacists to $80,000. 
• Raise the minimum salary for Senior Public Health Nutritionist, Public Health Nutritionist 

Supervisor, Senior Public Health Nutritionists Supervisor, and Nutrition Educators to $40,000. 
• Raise the minimum salary for Dentist to $100,000 and Sr. Dentist to $110,000. 
• Raise the minimum saJary for Behavioral Specialists to $40,000. 

Article 26- DIFFERENTIAL PAY 

The Association is proposing an increase in evening and night shift differentials for those employees 
who work in 24 hours facilities: 

• Shift differential of$2.00/hour for e\·ening shift 
• Shift differential of$3.00/hour for night shift 

Article 27- INSURANCE BENEFITS 

Add a new paragraph as follows: 

Health insurance benefits (and any employee contribution for those benefits) for bargaining unit 
employees shall not be altered or changed during the tenn of this Agreement. 



New ArtiCle31- PREVAILING RIGHTS (currently vacant) 

All pay and benefits provisions published in the Personnel Rules which cover employees in this 
bargaining Unit and which are not specifically provided for or modified by this Agreement shall 
continue in effect during the tenn of this Agreement. Any claim by an employee concerning the 
application of such provisions shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of tlus Agreement, but 
shall be subject to the method of review prescribed by the Personnel Rules, or other appropriate 
administrative or judicial remedy. 

Article 35 -DURATION 

Revise Paragraph (A) of Section 1 - Term as follows: 

(A) Thjs Agreement shall be effective as of the first day of July 2015, and sha11 remain in full 
force and effect through the 30111 day of June 2017 with a re-opener during the first quarter ofFY 2015 -
2016 regarding Article 25 (Wages) and up to three other articles of each party 's choosing. 

The Union reserves the right to make additional proposals, counter-proposals, 
and modified proposals. 



Issues to Discuss at State Unit Negotiations (December 2014) 

Rum::>rs of closure of Tacachale and Sunland 

Salary inequities - new, junior health care professionals being paid more than long term, experienced 

employees 

LMHC w ith licenses are paid the same as those w ithout licenses. Those who have licenses should be 

compensated more for the fact that they have a license. Master's level employee is treated the same as 

someone without a license. 

Proposed changes to pension plan? 

Increased staff for emergency preparedness (in areas including, but not limited to, epidemiology, 

nursing outreach, immunizations, etc.) 

Increased pay and/or bonuses for employees with expertise, training, and education m emergency 

preparedness. 

We have been requesting that personal email addresses for employees be included ln the membership 

rosters for years. However, we were told that the state does not maintain that information. However, 

when Don Slesnick's office made a public records request for membership rosters including personal 

email addresses, we finally received them. 

Reasoning I Justification for Proposals 

Requesting pay increase or additive for employees with expertise, training, and education in the area of 

emergency preparedness. Due to budget restraints there is limited staff to provide the infrastructure 

for emergencies (chemical and biological- Ebola, flu, SARS, MRSA, etc.) and education of employees for 

same. 

Special Camp- Departments and agencies are so short staffed that it is unreasonable to require people 

to use the special camp leave within such a short period of time (prior to April 30 and October 31). 

Therefore, we are requesting 120 calendar days for employees to use this time. 





State Health Care Professional Coliectlve Bargaining Unit - FNA (04) 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Wage Pr.oposals 

Union/Issue 
Estimated 

Comments 
Cost 

The amount was calculated by using data in the People First System 
Article 24: Increase on-call pay from $1 .00/hr to 

$496.281 
based on the number of on-call hours for Fiscal Year 2013-2014. The 

$3.00/hr estimate assumes that employees would work similar hours each fiscal 
year and at a ra te of $3.00 per hour. 

Article 25 (1 ): Effective July 1. 2015. 3% Cost of 
A 3% competitive pay adjustment for filled positions effective July 1, 

Living Increase 
$6.4m 2015. LAS/PBS was the source used for the calculation (Dec 2014). 

Costing prepared by OPB. 

The amount was calculated by using data in the People First System 
based on full time filled positions including retirement and FICA. 

Article 25 (2): Provides for salary range Registered Nurses $1 ,425,916 
adjustments for unit positions: RN classes to ARNP/Ciinical Associates $1,496.949 
$40,000; ARNP and Clinical Associates to $70,000; $6'.3m 

Pharmacists $94.898 
Pharmacists to $80,000; Nutritionists to $40,000; Nutritionists $2,420,740 
Dentists to $1 00.000~ Sr. Dentist to $110,000 and Dentist $264.709 
Behavioral Specialists to $40,000 Sr. Dentist $381,957 

Behavioral Specialists $195,130 Costing 
prepared by OPB. 

The amount calculated for this proposal is an estimate and was 
calculated by using position data from the People First System. 

Article 26: Increase the shift differential for the 
Calculations were based on the type of shift that the employee is 

evening shift from $1 .00 to $2.00 and increase the $862,576 currenUy working and assuming that employee works that shift year 

night shift differential from $1.00 to $3.00 
round (2,080 hours). Employees working rotating shifts were 
calculated by using 693 hours for the evening shift and 693 hours for 
the night shift and assumes that the employee works the same shift 
vear round. Costina was or-eoared bv OPB. 
The Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year2015-2016 has 

Article 27: Adds a paragraph that states health 
not been completed at this time. Any additional cost to the collective 

insurance benefits (and employee contributions for Indeterminate 
bargaining member will be based on recommendations for state 

benefits) shall not be altered. 
employee benefits in the Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2015-2016. State employee wage and benefit recommendations 
will be presented at a later date. 

Page 1 of 1 



-------· --------------



Florida Nurses Association ("FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Clo.'t·ed 

r tc e~ a IIIJHISSe: , , , . , ' ' ' . , A r· l tl 3 56 7 8 10 12 23 25 26 31 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

I - Reco.brnition State ProJ2osal December 12, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on l/09/ 15. 

2 - Vacant State ProJ2osal December 12, ?O 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status guo proposal on I /09/ 15. 

3 - Vacant State Proposal 1/26/ 15: Union Progosal December 12. 20 14: Section 447.303, F.S., provides 
Status quo Proposes the restoration of a Dues for the deduction of union 

Deduction article and contract language dues, therefore the dues 
similar to that wh ich was included in the deduction arti cle was vacated. 
FNA agreement until it was eliminated in 
Fiscal Ycar2011-12. 

4 - No Discrimination State ProQosal December 12, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 

5 - Employee Representation State PrOJ20sal December 12. 20 L 4: Union ProQosa l December 12. 2014: 
and Association Activities Status quo New Section - Orientation: 

(A) The state will provide each new 
bargaining unit employee with an 
informational sheet about FNA. 
along with contact information for 
Pro fessional Health Care Unit 
officers and FNA staff The 
Association will prepare the 
into rmation sheet and provide it to 
the state fo r distribution. 

(B) The state will provide a roster of 
new hires and terminations each 
month which includes employees· 
work email addresses. The FNA 

Pagel of 14 



Florida Nurses Association ("FNA") 
Professiona l Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 2015 

Fiscal Y car 2015- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations - AU Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shuded = Closed 

rftc e . ..,. at mpasse: ' ' ' • t • • . ' ' A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 10 12 23 25 26 31 
At·ticle State Proposal Union Proposal 

5 - Employee Representation wi ll use that roster to send new 
and Association Activities employees one introductory email 
(continued) to their work emai l addressc 

requesting infom1ation. including 
personal email addresses, for 
future communications. 

The Bargainjng Unit President 
shall be released from that 
em ployee's regular work 
assignment (for purposes of 
assisting to administer the terms 
and conditions of the contrnct) for 
up to 20 hours per pay period. 

Page 2 of 14 

Comments 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 

Florida Nurses Associa tion ('' FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit- State Personnel System 

Current Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Sluuled = Closed 

rile es at mpasse: 
' 

, , ' • , , - ' ' ' A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 10 12 13 25 26 3 1 
State Proposal Union Proposal 

State Progosal Januar:r :?.6. ?Q 15: 
Section 3(F)(4) - When the parties 
agree to mediate a g1ievancc. the 
scheduled date for the arbitration 
hearing provided in section (5)(b) 
below may be extended by mutual 
agreement beyond five months. 

Secti on 3(F)(5)(e) - At least fitteen 
days bett1re the scheduled date of the 
arbitration hea1ing, the parties shall 
file wi th the arbitrator, and provide to 
each other, a li st of witnes es to be 
called at the hearing. except rebuttal 
witnesses. anJ a brief statement of the 
material facts or matters relevant to 
the grievance about whid1 each 
witness will testify. A party may file a 
written request with the arbitrator. 
with a concu1Tent copy to the other 
patty. tor an exception to the filing 
time limits for good cause. If such 
exception is granted, the other party 
may request that the hearing be 
rescheduled if necessary ·for the party 
to respond to the late fil ed witness 
infonnation. 

Page 3 of 14 

Comments 



Article 
6 - Grievance Procedure 
(cont inued) 

7 - Disciplinary Action 

Florida Nurses Association ("' FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Per sonnel System 

C urrent Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open foa· Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, TO. / 2, 23, 25, 26, 31 
State Proposal Union ProposaJ 

Section 5(B)(2) - The class action 
grievance tb nn shall identify the 
specitic group (i.e .. emplo) ccs· job 
classification(s). work unit(s), 
institution(s}. etc.) adversely impacted 
by the dispute relating to the 
interpretation or application of the 
Agreement. 
State Proposal January 26,20 15: Union Proposal December 12,2014: 

Section (A)( I ) - A n oral reprimand wi ll 
be considered invalid if the employee is 
not discipl ined for the same offense 
during the succeeding 12 months. 

Section (A)(2) - A written reprimand will 
not be considered in determining 
progressive discipline provided the 
employee is not disciplined tbr the same 
offense during the succeeding 24 months, 
and the written reprimand was not for a 
major offense, which could have resulted 
in the employee's dismissal. 

Strikes section (D) which states 
counseling notices arc not di scipl ine, and 
are not gri evable, but may be used by the 
state at an administrati ve hearing 
involving the employee 's disc ipline to 

Page 4 of 14 

Comments 



Florida Nurses Association ("FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Pct·sonnel System 

C urrent Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 20 15 

Fiscal Y ca r 2015 - 2016 S uccessor Agr eement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc es at mpasse: • • • ' ' ' ' • '· ' 
A . I l 3 5 6 7 8 10 12 23 2- 26 31 

Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 
7 - Disciplinary Action demonstrate the cmployee was on notice 
(conti nued) of the pcrlormance deficiencies or 

conduct concerns. 

Section (E) - Clarifie current policy Section (E) - Union initiall y proposed 
that when an employee chooses to striking this section. however, upon 
substitute special compensatory leave discussion, then asked the state to c lari fy 
in I ieu of servi ng a suspensio n. the section (E) to make clear that employees 
employee from whom leave is who ha ve leave deducted in li eu of 
deducted will continue to report tor serving suspension may sti ll report to 
duty and remain in pay status. work and arc compensated for those hours 

worked (no double deduction of leave and 
pay). 

R- Work Force Reduct ion State Progosal 1/16/15: Union Proposal December I ?, :!0 14: 
Status quo Adds new section: ~eduction in pay tor 

reasons o ther than discipline will be 
administered by same procedure as layoffs 
described in paragraph A of the current 
Article 8. 

9 - Reassignment, Transfer, State Progosal December 12, ?O 14: Agreed to and signed state· s 
Change in Duty Station Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 
I 0 - Promotions State Progosal Januat:y 26. 2015: 

Section 4(A) - An employee 
appointed to a position , including a 
position to which the employee has 
been promoted. must successfull y 
complete at least a one-year 
probationary period before attain ing 

Page 5 of 14 



Article 
I 0 - Promotions 
(continued) 

Florida Nurses Association (''FNA") 
Professiona l Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Sta tus of Collective Barga ining Negotiations as of February 4, 20 I 5 

Fiscal Y car 2015 - 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rile es at mpa .... ·se: ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 
A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 TO 12 23 25 26 31 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
pennanent status in the position. An 
employee who has not attained 
pcm1anent status in his current 
position serves at the pleasure of the 
agency head and may be di smissed at 
the discretion of the agency head. 

Section 4(8 ) - An agency' s act ions in 
removing or dismissing an employee 
from a probationary position to which 
the employee has been promoted fi:·om 
a position in which the employee held 
permanent status arc governed by the 
provisions of Section II 0.217(3 ), 
Florida Statutes, and , pursuant to this 
statutory provis ion, arc not gri evable. 

Comments 

II - C lassification Matters State ProQosal December 12, 2014: Agreed to and s igned state's 
(A) Provides specific broadband proposal on 2/4/ 15. 
terminology for classification reviews; 
review by Agency Head. 

Page 6 of 14 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 

Florida Nurses Associa tion ("FNA ") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Sta tus of Collective Bargaining Negotia tions as of February 4, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles O pen for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

. r 1c es a mpasse: 
' 

, 
' • • . -· - , ;:,, - . 4 t' I t I 3 5 6 7 8 10 P 73 2- '6 31 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
State Progosal December J!, ?QJ4: 
(A) Information in an employee·s 
official personnel file may be 
maintained in e lectronic as well as 
paper form. 

(B) Terminology changed from 
derogatory "material" to .. document:· 
and employee ··answer·· to .. response ... 

(D) Where the Agency Head or 
designee, the Public Employees 
Relations Commission, the courts, an 
arb itrator, or other statutory authority 
determines that a document in the 
personnel file is invalid. the document 
sha ll be placed in an envelope. 
together with an explanation, the 
outside of the en vel ope and all pages 
of the document marked "VOID ... and 
retained in the employee·s personnel 
file as specified in the State of Florida 
General Records Schedule GSI -SL for 
State and Local Government Records, 
as promulgated by the Department of 
State. In the case of electronic 
records. a Personnel Action Request 
(PAR) that has been dete1mined to be 

Page 7 of 14 

Comments 



Florida Nurses Association ("FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Sht~ded = Closed 

r tc e • .,. t1 mpas.<•ie: ' ' ' . ' ' ' ' ' ' A r· I tl 3 56 7 8 10 12 23 25 26 31 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

12 - Personnel Records void shall have a note added to the 
(continued) PAR form indicating that the action is 

.. VOID··. 

(E) Information in an employee·s 
official personnel file is public record 
pursuant to Chapter I 19, Florida 
Statutes, unless specifica ll y exempted 
by state or federal Jaw (such as 
protected health information and 
social security numbers), and as such. 
must be provided to anyone desiring 
inspection or requesting copies in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Public Records Law. 

13 - Safety State ProQosal December 12. 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 

14 - Performance Planning State ProQosal December 12.2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
and Evaluation Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 
15 - Scope of Health Care State ProQosal December 1 2~ 2014: Agreed to and signed state ' s 
Professional Practice Status quo proposal on 1/09115. 
16 - Employment Outside State ProQosal December 12. 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
State Government Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 
17 - Vacant State Progosal December 12, 2014: Agreed to and signed state· s 

Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 
18 - Leave State ProQosal December 12, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 

Status quo proposal on I /09/ 15. 

Page 8 of 14 



Florida Nurses Association ("FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit- Sta te Per sonnel System 

Cu rrent Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Art icles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc es at mpa .... ·se: 
' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 10 12 23 25 26 31 
Article State Proposal Union Proposal Com ments 

19 - Replacement of Personal State ProQosal December 12, 2~14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Property Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 
20 - Training and Education State ProQosal December 12, 2014: Agreed to and signed state' s 

Status quo proposal on 1109/ 15. 
21 - Compensation for State PrOQOSal December I?, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Temporary Special Duty in Status quo proposal on 1/09/15. 
Higher Position 
22 - Disability Leave State ProQosal December 12,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 

Status quo proposal on 1/09/15. 
23- Hours of State ProQosal December 12, 2014.: Union Proposal December 12, 2014: 
Work/Compensatory Time Status quo Section (C)( I) - Special compensatory 

leave credits earned on or after July l, 
2012, which are not used within 120 
calendar da:;ts from the end of the work 
12eriod in which the leave is credited, shall 
be forfeited. 

24- On-Call Assignment State ProQosal December 12. 2014: Union ProQosal December 12, 2014: Agreed to and signed state· s 
Section 4 - clarifies work period lncrease on-call pay from $1.00/hour to proposal on 12/ 12/ 14. 
terminology. $3.00/hour. 

Costing Estimate: 
$496,281 

Page 9 of 14 



Article 
25 - Wages 

Flo rid ~• Nurses Association ( .. FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Cur·rent Agreement Expires .June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargain ing Negotiations as of February 4, 2015 

Fisca l Year 2015-2016 Successor Agr·t'ement Negotia tions - AU Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles ut lmpllsse: 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 23, 25, 26, 31 
State Proposal Union Proposal 

State Proposal of January 26. 20 15: Union Proposal December 12. 201 4: 
Section I - General Pay Provisions 
Agencies· authority to provide 
increaSI!S tO employees· base rate of" 
pay and salary additi ve from 
available agency funds shall be in 
accordance with thi s Agreement, state 
law, and the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Deployment to a Facility 
or Area Closed due to Emergency 
In accordance with the authority 
provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 
contingent on the availability of funds 
nnd at the Agency Head· s discretion, 
each agency is authorized to grant a 
temporary special duties pay additive 
of up to 15 percent of the em ployce' s 
base rate of pay to each employee 
temporaril y deployed to a fncility or 
area closed due to emergency 
conditions from another area of the 
state that is not closed. 

Section ( I ) - Bargaining unit employees 
shall rccei e an across-the-board cost of 
li ving increa c of3%, effective July I. 
20 15. 

Sect ion (2) - The Association proposes 
recurring salary range adjustments for unit 
positions utiliz ing the following formulas: 
- Raise the minimum sala1y to r RN 

classes to S40.000. 
Raise the minimum salary tor ARNP 
and Clinical Associates clns es to 
$70,000. 
Raise the minimum salary for 
Pharmacists to $80,000. 
Raise the minimum salary for Senior 
Public Health Nutritioni st, Public 
Health Nutritionist Supervisor. Senior 
Public Health Nuttitionists 
Super isory, and Nutrition Educators 
to 40,000. 
Raise the minimum sa lary fo r Dentist 
to $ 100.000 and Sr. Denti st to 
$ 11 0,000. 

- Raise the minimum salary l·o r 
Behav ioral Specialists to $40,000. 

Page 10 of 14 

Comments 

Costing Estimate: $6.4m 

Costing Estimate: $6.3m 



Article 
25 - Wages 
(continued) 

Florida Nurses Association ( .. FNA" ) 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of Februa ry 4, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-201 6 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rttc es at Ill p tl.\'.W! : ' ' ' ' ' ' • , , ' 
A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 10 12 23 25 26 31 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
Section 3- Cash Payout of Annual 
Leave 
Permanent Career Service employees 
may be given the option ofrccei ing 
up to '24 hours of unused annual leave 
each December in the form of a cash 
payout subject to, and in a...:cordance 
with, section 1 I 0.'2 19(7), Florida 
Statutes. 

Section 4 - Performance Pay 
In accordance with the authority 
provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
General Appropriations Act, and from 
ex isting agency resources, each 
agency is autho rized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee's 
exemplaty performance, as evidenced 
by a performance eva luation 
conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35. 
Florida Admi nistrative Code. 

Section 5 - Savings Sharing Program 
An employee o r groups of employees 
may be eligible f()r monetary awards 
fo r ideas or programs that res ult in a 
cost sav ing to the st:ltc, pursuant to 
section I I 0.1 '245( I), Florida Statutes. 

Page I I of 14 

Comments 



Article 
25- Wages 
(continued) 

26 - Differential Pay 

27- Insurance Benefits 

28 - Travel Expenses 

Florida Nurses Association (" FNA ") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Agr eement Expir es June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Slladed = Closed 

rile e.,. at mpasse: ' ' , t . ' 
_, 

' .), - ' A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 10 J1 23 2 - '6 31 
State Proposal Union P roposal Comments 

Section 6- Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority 
provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 
General Appropriations Act, 
contingent on the availabi lity of funds 
and at the Agency Head·s di scretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant 
competitive pay adjustments to 
address retention, pay inequities, or 
other staffing issues. 

State Progosal December 12, 20 14: Union Progosal December 12, 2014: Costing Estimate: $862,576 
Status quo Increase shift differential for those 

employees who work in 24 hour facilities 
from $ 1.00 per hour to $2.00 per hour for 
evening shi fts, and from $ 1.00 per hour to 
$3.00 per hour for night shifts. 

State Progosal of Januar:l 26, 2015: Union Progosal December 12.20 14: Agreed to and signed state·s 
The benefits and the employee share No changes during tem1 of Agreemt!nt. proposal on 2/4/1 5. 
of premiums for the State Employees 
Group Health Self-Insurance Plan Costing Estimate: 
shall remain unchanged for Fiscal Indeterminate 
Year 2015-2016. 
State Progosal December 12, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on i /09/15. 

29 - Drug-Free Workplace State Progosal December 12, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on I /09/15. 

Page 12 o f 14 



Article 
30 - No Strike 

3 1 - Vacant 

Florida Nurses Association ("FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

Current Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

rtrc es at mpasse: • , , • , , ' , ' ' A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 10 12 23 25 26 31 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

State ProQosal December 122 20 14: Agreed to and s igned state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/09/15. 
State Pro12osal 1/26/ 15: Union ProQosal December 12. 20 14: Article vacated per 20 II 
Status quo Proposes Prevai ling Rights language from Legis lative Impasse Resolutio n 

FY 20 I 0-20 II Agreement's Article 3 1: 
All pay and benefits provis ions published 
in the Personnel Rules which cover 
employees in thi s bargaining unit and 
which arc not specifically provided tor or 
modified by this Agreement shall continue 
in effect during the term of this 
Agreement. Any claim by an employee 
concerning the application of such 
provisions shall not be subject to the 
grievance procedure of thi s Agreement, 
but shall be subject to the method of 
review prescribed by the Personnel Rules, 
or other appropriate administrati ve o r 
judicial remedy. 

32 - Management Rights State ProQosal December I? . 20 14: Agreed to and s igned state's 
Status quo proposal on I /09115. 

33 - Entire Agreement State ProQosal December 122 20 14: Agreed to and s igned state's 
Status quo proposal o n 1109/ 15. 

34 - Savings Clause State ProQosal December 122 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 1/09/ 15. 

Page 13 of 14 



A•·ticle 
35 - Duration 

Florida Nurses Association ( .. FNA") 
Professional Health Care Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining Negotiations as of February 4, 20 IS 

Fiscal Year 2015 -2016 Successo•· Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open fo•· Negotiation 
Shaded = Closet/ 

rttc es at mpasse: , 
' 

, 
' ' ' ' ' ' • A . I I 3 5 6 7 8 10 12 23 25 26 31 

State Proposal Union Proposal 
State ProRosal December 1'. 2014: Union ProRosal December 11,2014: 
Proposes 1-year agreement to expire Two-year agreement with re-opener 
on June 30,2016. during tirst quarter of FY 2015-16 

regarding Article 25 (Wages) and up to 3 
other articles or each party' s choosint!. 

Page 14 of 14 

Comments 



"''"Tl 
=r'"'' -so 
_., I 

!:l. VI 
Cl 1T1 
::::S VI 

"' c 
::::s 
;::;.· 



Article 7 

FPD I SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal- Article 7 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26.2015 

Page 1 of2 

EMPLOYEE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE 

SECTION 1 - Standards of Conduct and Performance 

(A) The Selected Exempt Service, to which classes within this unit are assigned, is 
designed to provide the delivery of high quality performance in selected classifications by 
facilitati ng the state's ability to attract and retain qualified personnel in these positions. while also 
providing sufficient management fl exibility to ensure that the work force is responsive to agency 
needs. 

(B) Consistent with applicable statutes. an employee's off-the-job conduct shaH not 
result in disciplinary action unless such conduct impairs his effectiveness as an employee. 
Moreover. the state recognizes the right of a duly recognized Union Representative to express 
the views of the Union provided they are identified as Union views. 

(C) The duties and responsibilities for each Selected Exempt Service class of 
Physician and Senior Physician are assigned by the respective agencies. 

(D) Each employee shall serve at the pleasure of the Agency Head and is subject to 
suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay. demotion. transfer. or other personnel action at the 
discretion of the Agency Head. No tina! action wi ll be taken prior to a review by the Agency 
Head or designee. Upon written request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide the union 
with copies of any public records related to the adverse personnel action. All requests and all 
documents provided shall be in accmdance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. If any adverse 
action is taken because of an alleged violation of Chapter 458 or 459 of the Florida Statutes, the 
employee shall be entitled to a "peer review·· prior to the action being taken. Such "peer rev iew" 
shall be as prescribed by law, medicaJ staff by-laws. or for county Health Units in accordance 
with Section 2 of this Article. 

(E) Administrators shall not discipline employees tn the presence of other staff 
members. 

SECTION 2 - County Health Department Peer Review Procedures 

The state and FPD agree to continue to implement the provisions of the March 9. 1998 
Memorandum of Agreement regarding Peer Review within the Department of Health in the 
County Health Departments. 

For the State For the FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



SECTION 3- Performance Evaluations 

FPD I SES Physicians Unit 
State Pt'oposal- Article 7 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015- 16 
January 26,2015 

Page 2 of2 

The performance of employees shall be evaluated in accordance with Chapter 60L-35. 
Florida Admin istrative Code. 

(A) Perfonnance evaluations shall be directed to identify stren1:,rths as well as 
weaknesses. 

(B) Employees shall be evaluated at least annually on the date determined by their 
agency. 

(C) Each employee shall be informed of the criteria and procedure to be used in the 
evaluation process. 

(D) The employee shall have the right to submit a written statement to be attached to 
the written evaluation. 

(E) The employee shall be provided a copy of the evaluation at the time it is signed by 
him acknowledging receipt. 

SECTION 4- Employee Representation Right 

An employee may request a union representative be present to advise and/or assist the 
employee during any investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 
alleged misconduct of the employee. Upon the request of the employee, the purpose of the 
investigation will be explained. 

SECTION 5- State Denial of Representation 

The employer may refuse a request for a union representative during an investigatory 
interview not intended to lead to discipline of the interviewed employee. If the interview 
transitions to questions which may lead to the discipline of the interviewed employee. he may 
request union representation for the interview to continue. 

For the State For thr FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

FPD I SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal - Aliicle 12 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
December 15, 2014 

Page I of I 

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee. which shall be 
maintained by the employing agency. Information in an employee's official personnel file may 
be maintained in electronic as well as paper form. 

tB) Before aey-a derogatory material document is placed in an employee's official 
personnel file, a copy will be sent to the employee. The employee shall have ten calendar days to 
provide a wtitten response and his answer will be attached to the file copy. If the employee fails 
to respond the material document may be placed in his ofticia l personnel file by the agency. 

(C) An employee wil l have the right to review his official personnel file at reasonable 
times under the supervision of the designated records custodian. 

(D) Employees shall not be subjected to local personnel practices which are 
prohibited or in contlict with state or agency policies. 

(E) Where the Agency Head or designee, the Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, or other statutory authority detennines that a document in 
the personnel file is invalid. the document shall be placed in an envelope, together with an 
explanation, the outside of the enveJope and all pages of tbe document marked ·'VOLD'', and 
retained in the employee' s personnel file as· specified in the State of Florida General Records 
Schedule GSl-SL tor State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department 
of State. ln the case of electronic records, a Personnel Action Request (PAR) that has been 
determined to be vo id shall have a note added to the PAR fonn indicating that the action is 
"VOID''. 

(F) Information in an employee's official personnel tile is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 119. Florida Statutes, unless specifically exempted by state or federal law (such as 
protected health inf01mation and social security numbers), and as such, must be provided to 
anyone desiring inspection or requesting copies in accordance with the provisions of the Publ ic 
Records Law. 

For the State F'o1· the FPD 

Michael Mathmore Mark Neimeiser 
State ' s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



SECTION 1- Pay Provisions - General 

Article 18 
WAGES 

FPD I SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 26, 20 15 

Page I of I 

Agenc ies' authori ty to provide increases to employees' base rate of pay and salai·y 
additives from available agency fwH.IS shall be in accordance with this Agreement. state law, and 
the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Genet'al Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General 
Appropriat ions Act. contingent on the avai labili ty of funds and at the Agency Head's discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee's base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facili ty or area 
closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed, 

SECTION 3- Performance Pay 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-16 General 
Appropriations Act, and from existing agency resources, each agency is authorized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee's exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35. Fl01ida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 4- Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards fo r ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section I I 0.1245( 1 ). Flotida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 5 - Discretionat·y Raises 

In accordance with the authority provided in the fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Approptiations Act. contingent on the ava ilability of funds and at the Agency Head's discretion, 
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staftlng issues. 

For the State For the FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State ' s C hief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



Article 19 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

FPD I SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal - Article 19 

Fiscal Year 20 15-16 
January 20, 20 15 

Page 1 of l 

The state agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Set f-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affect ing the plan or its operation. Selected 
Exempt Service employees shall pay the same health insurance premiums as Career Service 
emplovees. 

For the State For the FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator Jnterim Executive Director 

Date Date 





COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

Over the past number of years there has been an erosion of benefits (3% salary tax to defray certain 

costs, new health insurance premiums and access to other benefits) . All the while, without the right to 

be able to confront discipline, discharge or other job loss without an explanation leads us to believe that 

SES workers may be subjected to violations of Law and /or subject to someone's whim. Neither of which 

is in the public interest. 

Each Unit employee shall serve at the pleasure of the agency and is subject to suspension, dismissal, 

reduction in pay, demotion. transfer or other personnel action at the discretion of the agency head for a 

period of not less than sfx months from the date of hire. Employees retained thereafter shall be subject 

to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer or other personnel action only for just 

cause. No fina l action will be taken prior to review by the agency head, or designee. Upon written 

request and receipt of payment the State shall provide the Union with copies of any public records 

related to the adverse personnel action. All requests and all documents shall be in accordance with 

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 



Retirement benefits are a form of deferred compensation. The past several years, despite by most 

accounts FRS is one of the best funded Pension systems in the country, SES Represented employees 

have seen this benefit eroded and or taxed(3% pay reduction). During the past three Contract periods 

employees have been made aware of pronouncements by the Governor and Legislators to change the 

FRS benefits and or system. Employees need to be able to plan their future and a stable retirement is 

necessary for retention. 

SES Physicians, Attorneys and Supervisors Bargaining Units 

Retirement Benefits 

Retirement benefits shall be provided in accordance with Chapter 121, Florida Statutes {2013). Any 

changes in this statute affecting these benefits shall not apply to this bargaining unit unless agreed to by 

the parties or as a result of negotiations pursuant to Article 24(0) [or equivalent provision providing 

reopeners during a multi-year agreement]. 



COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

SES Physicians, Attorneys and Non-Professional Supervisors have gone without a general wage increase 

for almost e1ght years. Further, SES employees work in jobs that have higher education, licensure, or 

experience requirements. 

General Wage Increase for FY 2015-16 .... Effective August 1, 2015 each fulltime eligible unit employee 

shall receive a minimum annual General Wage Increase for Fiscal Year 2015-16 of no less than S 2.500. 

Special Pay Issues ... Each Agency shall provide a S 600 lump sum bonus award to full time Unit 

employees, in order recruit. retain and reward employees having served at least three years in their 

current Unit classification as of November 1, 2015. Such bonus award will be paid no later than March 

1, 2016. 

Performance Pay ... Each agency is authorized to grant 2% merit pay increases based on the employee's 

outstanding performance as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted by the employee's 

anniversary date. 

The State Group Health Self-Insurance Plan, has in regard to its benefits and costs, has changed without 

any discussion or negotiation. The Union will no longer agree to a de facto waiver of its rights to 

negotiate on the benefits and costs. 



COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

Represented SES Employees enrolled in the State Group health Self-Insurance shall maintain current 

benefit levels and premium costs. Plan design, deductibles and other issues shall only be subject to 

change during the yearly enrollment period occurring October of 2015. 



w I( au:• ... ,.,. + 



- Selected Exempt Service Physicians Unit -CBU 80 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Union/Issue Estimated Cost Comments 

A provision is inserted providing that effective 
August 1. 2015 each fuiiUme eligible unit employee 

A $2.500 increase for all filled positions in CBU 80 (227) calculated 
shall receive a minimum annual General Wage $473K 
Increase for Fiscal Year 2015-16 of no Jess than$ 

using LAS/PBS Dec 2014 information (including Retirement and FICA). 

2,500. 
A provision is inserted tha t each Agency shall 
provide a $600 lump sum bonus award to full time 

A $600 lump sum bonus was calculated for filled posi tions in CBU 80. 
Unit employees, in order to recruit, retain and 

People first was the source used for the calculation, excluding 
reward employees having served at least three $66.532 

employees with less than 3 yrs of service. Costing prepared by OPB (96 
years in their current Unit classification as of 
November 1, 2015. Bonus award will be paid no 

filled positions). 

later than March 1, 2016. 

A provision is inserted that authorizes each agency 
A 2% salary increase was calculated for filled positions in CBU 80. 

to grant a 2 percent merit pay increase to 
$545,101 LAS/PBS was the source used for the calculation. Costing prepared by 

employees that have outstanding performance 
OPB, assuming all members have outstanding performance. 

based upon their performance evaluation. 

Represented SES Employees enrolled in the State 
Group health Self-Insurance shall maintain current The Governor's recommended budget for FY 2015-16 eliminates "pay-
benefit levels and premium costs. Plan design, 

$121.693 
ails" for SES classes. Calculation prepared by OPB using default 

deductibles and other issues shall only be subject to average cost for health insurance ($1 ,265) multiplied by filled positions 
change during the yearly enrollment period in People First (96). 
occurring October of 2015. 

Page 1 of 1 





Article 
1 - Recognition 

2 - Gender Reference 

3 - Vacant 

4 - No Discrimination 

5 - Employee Rights, 
Management, and Union 
Communications 
6 - Grievance Procedure 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists ("FPD") 
SES Physicians Unit- State Personnel System 

C urrent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Barga ining as of J anuary 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles (If Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/ 15. 

State Progosal December 20, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Section 4(C)(6)(d) - At least fifteen days proposal on 0 I /20/ 15. 
before the scheduled date of the arbitration 
hearing, the parties shall fi le with the 
arbitrator, and deliver to each other, a list of 
witnesses to be called at the hearing, except 
rebuttal witnesses, and a brief statement of 
the material facts about which each witness 
will testify. A party may file a written 
request with the arbitrator, with a concurrent 
copy to the other party, for an exception to 
the filing time limits for good cause. If such 
exception is granted, the other pat1y may 
request that the hearing be rescheduled if 
necessary for the par1y to respond to the late 
filed witness infonnation. 

Page I of7 



Article 
7- Employee Standards 
of Conduct and 
Perfom1ance 

8 -Termination Due to 
a Reduction in Force 
and Recall 
9 - Reassignment 

1 0 - Classi tication and 
Pay Plan 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists ("FPO") 
SES Physicians Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargain ing as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 -2016 Successor Agreement Negotia tions- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles atlmpllsse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article - Retireme/11 Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

State Pro12osal December 15. 2014: Union Pro12osal December 15, 2014: 
Status quo Each Unit employee shall serve at the 

pleasure of the agency and is subject to 
suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, 
demotion, transfer or other personnel 
action at the discretion of the agency 
head for a period of not Jess than six 
months from the date of hire. 
Employees retained thereafter shall be 
subject to suspension, di smissal, 
reduction in pay, demotion. transfer o r 
other personnel action only for just 
cause. No tinal action will be taken 
prior to review by the agency head. or 
designee. Upon written request and 
receipt of payment the State shall 
provide the Union with copies of any 
public records related to the adverse 
personnel action. All requests and all 
documents shall be in accordance with 
Chapter 1 19, Flo1ida Statutes. 

State Pro12osal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 

State Pro12osal December 151 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/15. 
State Pro12osal December 15. 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01/20/1 5. 

Page 2 of7 



Article 
11 - Classification 
Review and Professional 
Practice Scope 

12 - Personnel Records 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists (" FPD") 
SES Physicians Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at impasse: 7, 12, 18, /9, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

State Proposal December 15, 2014: 
(A) Provides specific broadband 

terminology for classification reviews. 

Agreed to and signed state's 
proposal on 12/ 15/ 14. 

State Proposal December 15, 20 14: 
(/\ ) In formation in an employec·s official 
personnel file may be maintained in 
electronic as well as paper to rm . 

(B) Terminology changed from derogatory 
" materiar· to "document. .. 

(E) Where the Agency Head or designee, the 
Public Employees Relations Commission. 
the cou t1s. an arbitrator, or other statutory 
authority determ ines that a document in the 
personnel fi le is invalid. the document shall 
be placed in an envelope, together with an 
explanation, the outside of the envelope and 
a ll pages of the document marked "VOID". 
and retained in the employee's personnel 
fi le as specified in the State of Florida 
General Records Schedule GS 1-SL fo r State 
and Local Govermnent Records, as 
promulgated by the Depattment of State. In 
the case of elech·onic records, a Personnel 
Action Request (PAR) that has been 
cletenn ined to be vo id shall have a note 

Page 3 of 7 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 
(continued) 

13 - Safety 

14 - Replacement of 
Personal Property 
15 - Drug Testing 

16 - Leaves of Absence, 
Hours of Work 
17 - Training and 
Education 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists ("FPD") 
SES Physicians Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 20 IS- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article - Retirement Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

added to the PAR form indicating that the 
action is .. VOID ... 

(F) Information in an employee's official 
personnel file is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, unless 
specifically exempted by state or federal law 
(such as protected health information and 
social security numbers}, and as such, must 
be provided to anyone desiring inspection or 
requesting copies in accordance with the 
provisions of the Public Records Law. 

State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15.2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01/20/ 15. 
State Progosa1 December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01/20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 l/20/ 15. 

Page 4 of7 



Article 
18 - Wages 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists ( .. FPD") 
SES Physicians Unit - State Personnel System 

C urrent O ne-Year Agr eement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of Janua ry 26, 2015 

Fisca l Y car 2015- 201 6 Successor Agr eement Negotiations- AJI Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Article.'i at Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefits 
State Pa·oposal Union Proposal 

State Proposa l of January 26, 2015: Union Proposal December 15. 10 14: 
Section I - General Pay Provisions General Wage Increase for FY 20 15-
Agenc ieg· authori ty l o provide increases to 20 16: Effective August I. 1015, each 
employees· base rate or pay and salary full time elig ible unit employee shall 
additives from availab le agency funds shall receive a minimum annual general wage 
be in accordance with this Agreement, state increase of no less than $2,500. 
law, and the Fiscal Year 20 t 5-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Deployment to a Facility or 
Area Closed due to Emergtm~;y 
In accordance with the authority provided in 
the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the 
availabi lity of funds and at the Agency 
llead' s discretion. each agency is authorized 
to grant a temporary ~pecial duties pay 
additi ve of up to 15 percent o f the 
employee's base rate o r pay to each 
employee temporarily deployed to a facility 
or area closed due to emergency conditions 
t-i·om another area of the state that is not 
closed. 

Secti on 3 - Performance Pay 
In accordance with the autho rity provided in 
the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act ami from ex isting 

Special Pay Issues: Each agency shall 
provide a $600 lump sum bonus award 
to full time unit employees, in o rder to 
recruit. retain. and reward employees 
having cr cd at least three years in 
their current unit classification us of 
November I , 20 15. Such bonus award 
wi ll be paid no later than Marc.:h I, 
20 16. 

Performance Pay: Each agency is 
authori zed to grant 2% merit increases 
based on the employee·s outstanding 
performance as evidenced by a 

Page 5 of7 

Comments 

Costing Estimate: $473 K 

Costing Estimate: $66,532 

Costing Estimate: $545,10 I 



Article 
18 - Wages 
(continued) 

l9 - Insurance Benefits 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists (''FPO") 
SES Physicians Unit - State Personnel System 

C un·ent One-Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015 -2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open fo•· Negotiation 
Shaded= Closed 

Articles at lmpllsse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

agency resources. each agency is authorized performance evaluation conducted by 
to grant merit pay increases based on the the employee· s anniversary date. 
employec·s exemplary performance. as 
evidenced by a perfonnance evaluation 
conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida 
Administrative Code. 

Section 4 - Savings Sharing Program 
An employee or groups of employees may 
be eligible for monetary awards tor ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the 
state, pursuant to section 11 0.1245( I), 
Florida Statutes. 

Section 5 - Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority provided in 
the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the 
availability of funds and at the Agency 
I lead's discretion. each agency is authorized 
to grant competitive pay adjustments to 
address retention. pay inequities, or other 
staffing issues. 
State Proposal January 20, 2015: Union Proposal December 15, 2014: 

' 

SES employees shall pay the same health 
insurance premiums as Career Service 
employees. 

Represented SES employees enrolled in Costing Estimate: $ 12 1,693 
the State GTOup Health Insurance shall 
maintain current benefit levels and 
pt:cmium costs. Plan design , 

Page 6of7 



Article 
19 - Insurance Benefits 
(continued) 

20 - Per Diem and 
Travel Expenses 
2 1 - Pay Plan and 
Classification of Work 
22 - Vacant 

23 - Management 
Rights 
24 - Entire Agreement 

25 - Savings Clause 

26 - Duration 

New Article -
Retirement Benefits 

Federation of Phys icians and Dentists ("FPD" ) 
SES Physicians Unit - State Personnel System 

Cur r ent O ne-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-20 16 Successor Agreement Negotia tions - All Ar ticles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles tt f Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Uuiou proposetluew article- Retiremeut Beuef its 
State P roposal Union Proposal Comments 

dcductibles, and other issues shall only 
be subject to change during the yearly 
enrollment period occurring October of 
2015. 

State P rogosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state 's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 l/20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20115. 
State Progosal December 15,20 14: Union Progosal December 15, 2014: 
Proposes 1-year agreement to expire on Multi-year agreement with re-openers 
June 30,1016. each year. 

Union Progosal December 15, 20 14: 
Any statutory changes to retirement 
benefits shall not apply to unit un less 
agreed upon. 

Page 7 of7 



FPD - SES Supervisory 
Non-Professional Unit 



FPD I SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal - Article 7 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
J anuary 26. 201 5 

Page I of 2 

ArticJe 7 
EMPLOYE E STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 

SECTION 1 - Employee Representation Right 

An employee may request a union representative be present to advise and/or assist the 
employee during an investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 
alleged misconduct of the employee. The purpose of the investigation will be explained to the 
employee prior to the time of the meeting. 

SECTION 2- Employee Election 

An employee's rights are not v iolated where an investigatory proceeding takes place and 
the employee fa ils to request representation, unless the employer fails to advise the employee of 
the purpose of the meeting. 

SECTION 3 - State Denial of Representation 

The employer may refuse a request for a union representative during an investigatory 
interview not intended to lead to the di scipline of the interviewed employee. If the interview 
transitions to questions which m ay lead to the discip line of the interviewed employee, he o r she 
may have union representation for the interview to continue. 

SECTION 4 ·Standards of Conduct 

(A) The Selected Exempt Service, to which occupational level positions withi n this 
unit are assigned, is designed to provide the delive1y of high quality pe1formance in selected 
positions b y fac ilitating the state's ability to attract and retain qualified personnel in these 
positions, while also providing sufficient management flex ibility to ensul"e that the work force is 
responsive to agency needs. 

(B) The duties and responsibilities for each of the occupational level pos itions are 
assigned by the respective agencies. 

(C) Each employee shall serve at the pleasure of the Agency Head and may be subject 
to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay. demotion, transfer, or other personnel action at the 
discretion and upon prior review and consideration of the Agency Head or designee. Upon 
wlitten request of the Union, agent;ies will in accordance with Chapter 11 9, Florida Statutes. 
provide the Union documentation related to the personnel action. 

For the State For the FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



FPD I SES Sup~rvisory Non-Professiona l Unit 
State Proposal - A1ticle 7 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 10 15-16 
January 26. 2015 

Page 2 of2 

(D) If not ava il able e lectro nicall y. the state will, upon the payment of appropriate 
costs, provide the union with copies of public records related to all personnel actions. Requests 
shall be provided in accordance with Chapter I 19, Florida Statutes. 

For the State For the FPO 

Michael Mattimore Mark Nei meiser 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



FPD I SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal - A11icle 12 

Fiscal Year 20 15-1 6 
December 15,20 14 

Page I of I 

Article l2 
PERSONNEL FILE 

(A) There shall be one official personnel file for each employee. which shall be 
maintained by the empl<.)ying agency. lnfonnation in an employee's official personnel tile may 
be maintained in electron ic as well as paper form, and shall only refer to matters concern ing the 
employee's job or related to the employee's state employment. 

(B) If !!:_derogatory material document is placed in an employee's official personnel 
tile. a copy wi ll be sent to the employee. The employee shall have ten ca lendar days to provide a 
written response and his answer will be attached to the file copy. 

(C) Upon request and the payment of lawful cost7 the employee shall receive a copy 
of material in his file. The state will provide ead1 employee access to his personnel file by 
electr·onic means and if the employee has no access to a computer, the state will make a 
computer avai lable for this puqJose. 

( 0) Where the Agency Head or designee, the Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a document in 
the personnel file is invalid, the document shall be placed in an envelope, together wjth an 
explanation. the outside of the envelope and all pages of the document marked "VOTD". and 
retained in the employee's personnel tile as specified in the State of Florida General Records 
Schedule GSl-SL for State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Depatiment 
of State. In the case of electronic records, a Personnel Action Request (PAR) that has been 
determined to be void shall have a note added to the PAR tonn indicating that the action is 
"'VOiD" . 

(E) lnformation in an employee's official personnel file is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, unless specifical ly exempted by state or federal law (such as 
protected health information and social security numbers), and as such, must be provided to 
anyone desiting inspection or requesting copies in accordance with tbe provisions of the Public 
Records Law. 

For the State For the FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State· s Chief Labor Negoti ator fnterim Executive Director 

Date Date 



FPD I SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal - Article 23 

Fiscal Year 20 I 5-16 
January 20, 20 15 

Page I of I 

Article 23 
INSURANCE BENEFlTS 

The state agrees to admillister the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. Selected 
Exempt Service employees shall pay the same health insurance premiums as Career Servjce 
employees. 

For the State For the FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



SECTION I - Pay Provisions- General 

FPD I SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal - A1ticle 25 

Fiscal Year 2015- I 6 
January 26,2015 

Page 1 of I 

Article 25 
WAGES 

Agencies· authority to provide increases to employees' base rate of pay and salary 
additives from available agency futids shall be in accordance with this Agreement, state law, and 
the Fiscal Year 20 I 5-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2- Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head's discretion, 
each agency is authorized to g~·ant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee·s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area 
closed due to emergency conditions t!·om another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 3- Performance Pay 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 General 
Appropriations Act. and from existing agency resources. each agency is autho1ized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee's exemplary performance, as evidenced by a perfonnance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 4 - Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state. pursuant to section II 0.1245( I), Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 5- Discretionary Raises 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-201 6 General 
Approptiations Act. contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head·s discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities, or other staffing issues. 

For the State For the FPD 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State's Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 





COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

Over the past number of yea rs there has been an erosion of benefits (3% salary tax to defray certain 

costs, new health insurance premiums and access to other benefits) . All the while, without the right to 

be able to confront discipline, discharge or other job loss without an explanation leads us to believe that 

SES workers may be subjected to violations of Law and /or subject to someone's whim. Neither of which 

is in the public interest. 

Each Unit employee shall serve at the pleasure of the agency and is subject to suspension, dismissal. 

reduction in pay, demotion, transfer or other persormel action at the discretion of the agency head for a 

period of not less than six months from the date of hire. Employees retained thereafter shall be subject 

to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer or other personnel action only for just 

cause. No final action will be taken prior to review by the agency head, or designee. Upon written 

request and receipt of payment the State shall provide the Union with copies of any public records 

related to the adverse personnel action. All requests and all documents shall be in accordance with 

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 



Retirement benefits are a form of deferred compensation. The past several years, despite by most 

accounts FRS is one of the best funded Pension systems in the country, SES Represented employees 

have seen this benefit eroded and or taxed(3% pay reduction). During the past three Contract periods 

employees have been made aware of pronouncements by the Governor and legislators to change the 

FRS benefits and or system. Employees need to be able to plan their future and a stable retirement is 

necessary for retention. 

SES Physicians, Attorneys and Supervisors Bargaining Units 

Retirement Benefits 

Retirement benefits shall be provided in accordance with Chapter 121, Florida Statutes (2013). Any 

changes in this statute affecting these benefits shall not apply to this bargaining unit unless agreed to by 

the parties or as a result of negotiations pursuant to Article 24(0) [o r equivalent provision provid ing 

reopeners during a multi-year agreement). 



COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

SES Physicians, Attorneys and Non-Professional Supervisors have gone without a genera l wage increase 

for almost eight years. Further, SES employees work in jobs that have higher education, licensure, or 

experience requirements. 

General Wage Increase for FY 2015-16 .... Effective August 1, 2015 each fulltime eligible unit employee 

shall receive a minimum annual General Wage Increase for Fiscal Year 2015-16 of no less than$ 2,500. 

Special Pay Issues ... Each Agency shall provide a$ 600 lump sum bonus award to full time Unit 

employees, in order recruit, retain and reward employees having served at least three years in their 

current Unit classification as of November 1, 2015. Such bonus award will be paid no later than March 

1, 2016. 

Performance Pay ... Each agency is authorized to grant 2% merit pay increases based on the employee's 

outstanding performance as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted by the employee's 

anniversary date. 

The State Group Health Self-Insurance Plan, has in regard to its benefits and costs, has changed without 

any discussion or negotiation. The Union will no longer agree to a de facto waiver of its rights to 

negotiate on the benefits and costs. 



COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

Represented SES Employees enrolled in the State Group health Self-Insurance shall maintain current 

benefit levels and premium costs. Plan design, deductibles and other issues shall only be subject to 

change during the yearly enrollment period occurring October of 2015. 





• Selected Exempt Service • Non-Professional Supervisors·CBU 86 
Fiscal Year 2015-201 6 

Union/Issue Estimated Cost Comments 

A provision is inserted providing that effective 
August 1. 2015 each fulltime eligible unit employee 

A $2.500 increase for all filled positions in CBU 86 (1.393) calculated 
shall receive a minimum annual General Wage S3.6M 
Increase for Fiscal Year 2015-16 of no less than $ 

using LAS/PBS Dec 2014 information (including Retirement and FICA). 

2,500. 

A provision is inserted that each Agency shall 
provide a $600 lump sum bonus award lo full 1ime 

A $600 lump sum bonus was calculated for filled positions in CBU 86. 
Unit employees, in order to recruit, retain and 

People first was the source used for the calculation. excluding 
reward employees having served at least three $774,587 
years in their current Unit classification as of 

employees with less than 3 yrs of service. Costing prepared by OPB 

November 1, 2015. Bonus award will be paid no 
(1 ,117 filled positions). 

later than March 1, 2016. 

A provision is Inserted that authorizes each agency 
A 2% salary increase was calculated for filled positions in CBU 86. 

to grant a 2 percent merit pay increase to 
·employees that have outstanding performance 

$1.1M LAS/PBS was the .source used for the calculation. Costing prepared by 

based upon their performance evaluation. 
OPB. assuming all members have outstanding performance. 

Represented SES Employees enrolled in the State 
Group health Self-Insurance shall maintain current The Governor's recommended budget for FY 2015-16 eliminates "pay-
benefit levels and premium costs. Plan design, 

$1 .4M 
ails" for SES classes. Calculation prepared by OPB using default 

deduct1bles and other issues shall only be subject to average cost for health insurance ($1.265) multiplied by filled positionsin 
change during the yearly enrollment period People First (1.117). 
occurring October of 2015. 

Page 1 ol 1 





Ar ticle 
I - Recognition 

2 - Gender Reference 

3- Vacant 

4 - No Discrimination 

5 - Union Activities 
and Employee 
Representation 

6 - Grievance 
Procedure 

Fed era tion of Physicians and Dentists 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Super visory Non-Professional Unit- State Personnel System 

C urrent One -Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Barga in ing as of J anuary 26, 2015 

Fisca l Year 2015- 201 6 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

r 1c es a mpasse: , , , , 111011 p ropose n ew ar IC e - e11rem e11 e11e lis A 1· I t I 7 12 23 25 U . d r· I R . t B f 
Sta te Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

State ProQosal December 15= 2014: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 
State ProQosal December 15= 20 14: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 
State ProQosal December 15= 2014: Agreed to and signed state ' s 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State ProQosal December 15= 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/1 5. 
State PrOQOsal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Status quo proposal on 01/20115. 

State ProQosal January 20= 20 15: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Section 4(D)(6)(d) - At least fifteen days proposal on 0 I /20/ 15. 
before the scheduled date of the arbi tration 
hearing, the parties shall file with the 
arbitrator, and provide to each other, a list 
of witnesses to be called at the hearing, 
except rebuttal witnesses, and a brief 
statement of the material facts or matters 
relevant to the grievance about which each 
witness will testify. A party may fil e a 
written request with the arbitrator, with a 
concurrent copy to the other party, for an 
exception to the filing time limits for good 
cause. If such exception is granted, the 
other pa1iy may request that the hearing be 
rescheduled if necessary for the patiy to 

Page I of 8 



Article 
6 - Grievance 
Procedure 
(continued) 
7 - Employee 
Standards of Conduct 

8 - Employee Rights 

Feder a tion of Physicians and Dentists 
Selected Exempt Ser vice (SES) S upervisory Non-Professional Unit- State Per sonnel System 

C urrent One -Year Agr eement E xpires June 30, 2015 
Sta tus of Collective Ba rgaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agr eem ent Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 23, 25, Union proposed new article- Retirement Beue_jits 
State Proposal Union Proposal 

respond to the late fi led witness 
infom1ation. 

State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Union Progosal December 15. 20 14: 
Status quo Each Unit employee shall serve at 

the pleasure of the agency and is 
subject to suspension, dismissal, 
reduction in pay, demotion, transfer 
or other personnel action at the 
di scretion of the agency head for a 
period of not less than six months 
from the date of hire. Employees 
retained thereafter shall be subject to 
suspension. dismissaL reduction in 
pay. demotion. transfer o r o ther 
personnel action only for just cause. 
No final action will be taken prior to 
review by the agency head, or 
designee. Upon written request and 
receipt of payment the State shall 
provide the Union with copies of 
any public re~ords rel ated to the 
adverse personnel act ion. All 
requests and all documents shall be 
in accordance with Chapter I 19. 
Florida Statutes. 

Comments 

State Progosal December 15,2014: Agreed to and s igned state' s 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 

Page 2 of8 



Ar ticle 
9 - Vacant 

10- Career 
Opportunities 
II - Classification and 
Pay Plan 
12 - Personnel Fi le 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists 
Selected Exempt Ser vice (SES) Supervisory Non-Professional Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Current O ne -Yea r Agreemen t Expires June 30, 2015 
Statu s of CoUective Bargaining as of J anua ry 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 201 5 -2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles O pen fo r Negotiation 
S haded = Closed 

rtrc es at mpasse: 
' ' t , 111011 prop ose£ 11ew a111c e- ettrem e11t e11e tts A . l 1 7 12 23 25 U 0 I . I R 0 B fi 

State Proposal Union Prol!_osal Comments 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15 0 
State Progosal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposa l on 0 1/20/ 150 
State PrO J20Sal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state ' s 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/150 
State ProQosal December 15, 20 14: 
(A) lnfonnation in an ernployee·s officia l 
personnel fi le rnay be maintained in 
electronic as well as paper totmo 

(B) Terminology changed from derogatory 
··materiar· to ··document. •o 

(D) Where the Agency Head or designee, 
the Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the courts. an arbitrator. or 
other statutory authority determines that a 
document in the personnel file is invalid, the 
document shall be placed in an envelope, 
together with an explanation, the outside o f 
the envelope and all pages of the document 
marked ··vOID··, and retained in the 
employee's personnel fi le as spec itied in the 
State of Florida General Records Schedule 
GS 1-S L tor State and Local Government 
Records. as promulgated by the Department 
ofStateo In the case of electronic records, a 

Page 3 o f 8 



Article 
12 - Personnel File 
(continued) 

13 - Safety 

14 - Review and 
Performance 
Evaluations 
15 - Scope of 
Professional 
Responsibilities 
16 - Employment 
Outside State 
Government 
17 - Drug Testing 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Supervisory Non-Professional Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires J une 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successo•· Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Jmpil.\'Se: 7, I 2, 23, 25, Union pmposed /lew article- Retirement Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

Personnel Action Request (PAR) that has 
been determined to be oid hall have a note 
added to the PAR form indicating that the 
action is "VOID". 

(E) Information in an employec·s officia l 
personnel file is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, unless 
speci fi cally exempted by state or federal 
law (such as protected health infonnation 
and social security numbers), and as such. 
must be provided to anyone desiring 
inspection or requesting copies in 
accordance with the provisions of the Public 
Records Law. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01/20/ 15. 

State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state·s 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 

State Progosal December 15. 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01/20/ 15. 

State Pro12osal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 

Page 4 of8 



Article 
18- Hours of 
Work/Overtime & 
Leaves of Absence 
19 - Holidays 

20- Training 

21 - Travel Expenses 

22 - Replacement of 
Personal Property 
23 - Insurance Benefits 

24- Vacant 

25 - Wages 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Supervisory Non-Professional Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 23, 25, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal Comments 

State Progosal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 

State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20115. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /2011 5. 
State Progosa1 December 15, 20 J 4: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01/20/15. 
State Progosal 1/20/ 15: Union ProQosal December 15, 2014: 
SES employees shall pay the same health Represented SES employees Costing Estimate: $ 1.4M 
insurance premiums as Career Service enrolled in the State Group Health 
employees. Insurance shall maintain CUJTent 

benefit levels and premium costs. 
Plan design , deductibles, and other 
issues shall only be subject to 
change during the yearly enrollment 
period occtmingOctober of20 15. 

State Pro12osal December 15. 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State Progosal of 1/26/ 15: Union Progosal 12/15/ 14: 
Section I - General Pay Provisions General Wage Increase for FY Costing Estimate: $473K 
Agencies· authority to provide increases to 20 15-20 16: Effective August I, 
employees' base rate ofp·ay and sa lary 20 15, each full time eligible unit 
additives from available agency funds shall employee shall receive a minimum 
be in accordance with this Agreement. state annual general wage increase of no 

Page 5 of8 



Article 
25 - Wages 
(continued) 

Feder ation of Physicia ns a nd Dentists 
Selected Exempt Ser vice (SES) Super visory Non-Profess ional Unit - Sta te Personnel System 

C urrent O ne -Year Agr eemen t Expires June 30,2015 
Sta tus of Collective Ba rgaining as of J anuar y 26, 2015 

Fiscal Yea r 2015-2016 Successo r Agr eement Negotia tions - All ArticJcs Open fo r Negotia tion 
Shllded = Closed 

Article.\' lit lmp(lsse: 7, / 2, 23, 25, UJtion proposer/new article - Retirem ent Benefits 
State P roposal Union Proposal 

law, and the Fiscal Year 20 15-20 16 General less than S2,500. 
Appropriations Act. 

Comments 

Special Pay Issues: Each agency Costing Estimate: $66.532 
Section 2 - Deployment to a Facility or shall provide a S600 lump sum 
Area Closed due to Emergency bonus award to fu ll time unit 
In accordance with the authority provided in employees, in order to recruit, retain, 
the Fiscal Year 2015-20 16 General and reward employees having served 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the at least three years in their cuJTcnt 
avai labi lity of funds and at the Agency unit class itication as of November I , 
Head's discretion, each agency is auth01ized 2015. Such bonus award will be 
to grant a temporary special duties pay paid no later than March I. 20 16. 
additive of up to 15 percent ofthe 
employee's base rate of pay to each Performance Pay: Each agency is 
employee temporarily deployed to a facility authorized to grant 2% merit 
or area closed due to emergency ~onditions increases based on the employee ·s 
from another area of the state that is not outstanding perfo rmance as 
closed. ev idenced by a perfonnancc 

evaluation conducted by the 
Section 3 - Performance Pay emplo)ee·s ann iversary date . Costing Estimate: $545, I 0 I 
In accordance with the authority provided in 
the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act, and ti·om existing 
agency resources. each agency is authorized 
to grant merit pay increases bnscd on the 
employee's exemplary performance, as 
ev idenced by a pertonnancc eva luati on 
conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida 
Administrative Code. 

Page 6 of 8 



Article 
15 - Wages 
(continued) 

26 - Printing of the 
Agreement 
27 - Vacant 

28 - Management 
Rights 
29 - Entire Agreement 

30- Savings Clause 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Supervisory Non-Professional Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 26, 2015 

fiscal Year 2015 - 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 23, 25, Uuiou proposed uew article - Retiremeut Beuejits 
State Proposal Union ProposaJ Comments 

Section 4 - Savings Sharing Progran1 
An employee or groups of employees may 
be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the 
state, pursuant to section I I 0.1245( I), 
Florida Statutes. 

Section 5 - Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority provided in 
the Fiscal Year 20 l S-20 16 General 
Appropliations Act, contingent on the 
availability of funds and at the Agency 
Head·s discretion. each agency is authorized 
to grant competitive pay adjustments to 
address retention, pay inequities, or other 
staffing issues. 

State Progosal December 15.2014: Agreed to and signed state"s 
Status quo proposal on Ol /20/l5. 
State Progosal December 152 2014: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Statusquo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State Pro12osal December 152 20 14: Agreed to and signed state"s 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/1 5. 
State Pro:gosal December l 52 2014: Agreed to and signed state·s 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 
State ProJ2osal December 15. 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01/20/ 15. 

Pagc7of8 



Article 
3 l - Duration 

New Article -
Retirement Benetits 

federation of Physicians and Dentists 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Supervisory Non-Professional Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collec tive Bargaining as of Januaa-y 26, 2015 

f iscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closet! 

A rticles at lmpa.')-se: 7, / 2, 23, 25, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefits 
State Proposal Union Proposal 

State ProQosal December 15, 20 14: Union ProQosal December 15, 20 14: 
Proposes 1-year agreement to expire on Multi-year agreement with re-
J unc 30, 2016. openers each year. 

Union ProQosal December 15, 7014: 
Any statutory changes to retirement 
benetits shall not apply to unit 
unless agreed upon. 

Page 8 of8 

Comments 



SEAG- SES 
Attorneys Unit 



FPD I SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal - A1iicle 7 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26, 20 15 

Pagelof2 

Article 7 
EMPLOYEE STANDARDSOF CONDUCTANDPERFORMANC E 

SECTION 1- Standards of Conduct and Performance 

(A) The Selected Exempt Service is designed to provide the delivery of high quality 
perfonnance in selected classifications by facilitating the state's ability to attract and retain 
qualified personnel in these positions, while also providing sufficient management flexibility to 
ensure that the work force is responsive to agency needs. Moreover, the state recognizes the right 
of a duly recognized Union Representative to express the views of the Union provided they are 
identified as Union views. 

(B) Each employee shall be provided a copy of his current position description. 

(C) The perfonnance of employees shall be evaluated in accordance with Chapter 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

(D) Each employee shall serve at the pleasure of the Agency Head and is subject to 
suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion. transfer, or other personnel action at the sule 
discretion and upon prior review and consideration of the Agency Head or designee. No such 
personnel action shall be grievable under the grievance article of this Agreement. Upon written 
request of the Union, agencies will, in accordance with Chapter 119, Flmida Statutes. provide the 
Un ion documentation related to the personnel action. 

SECTION 2 - Employee Certifications 

Employees shall ensure that all licensures or certifications required by their profession 
shall remain in good standing. The reimbursement of required Florida Bar dues, licensures 
and/or cettifications will be in accordance with the General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 3 - Confidentiality Requirements 

Employees shall comply with all contldentiality requirements imposed by agency policy, 
federal o r state law, federal regulation or administrati ve rule, including rules or codes of conduct 
governing attorney conduct as promulgated by the Supreme Cowi of the State of Florida, or the 
FJorida Bar or other professional cettification or regulatory body that governs the abi lity of an 
employee to practice hi s patticular profession. 

For the State For the SEAG 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State ·s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



SECTION 4- Employee Rep .. esentation Right 

FPD I SES Attorneys Uni t 
State Proposal - Article 7 (S tatus Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26. 2015 

Page2of 2 

An employee may request a union representative be present to advise and/or assist the 
employee during any investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 
alleged misconduct of the employee. Upon the request of the employee, the purpose of the 
investigation will be explained. 

SECTION 5 - State Denial of Representation 

The employer may refuse a request for a union representative during an investigatory 
interview not intended to lead to di scipline of the interviewed employee. I f the interview 
transitions to questions which may lead to the discipline of the interviewed employee, he may 
have union representation fo r the interview to continue. 

For the State For the SEAG 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State·s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

FPD I SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal - Article 12 

Fiscal Year 20 15-l6 
December 15, 2014 

Page I of I 

(A) There shall be only one onicial personnel file for each employee which shal l be 
maintained by the employing agency. Information in an employee's otiicial personnel tile may 
be maintained in electronic as well as paper form. and a A duplicate personnel file may be 
estab li shed and maintained on an employee within an agency. AH employee vlill have the right to 
review his offie1al personAel file, aA:d any duplicate personnel fi le, at reasoAable times under the 
supervis.ion of the designated records custodian. 

(B) If ~derogatory material docw11ent is placed in an employee's official personnel 
ti le, a copy will be sent to the employee. The employee may provide a written response which 
wi 11 also be placed in the fi I e. 

(C) An employee will have the right to review his official personnel file at reasonable 
times under the supervision of the designated records custodian. 

(D) Where the Agency Head or designee. the Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the courts. an arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a document in 
the pers01mel file is invalid, the document shall be placed in an envelope, together with an 
explanation. the outside of the envelope and all pages of the document marked ' 'VOlD'', and 
retained in the employee's personnel tile as specified in the State of Florida General Records 
Schedule OS 1-SL for State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department 
of State. In the case of eJectTonic records, a Personnel Action Request (PAR) that has been 
detetmined to be void shall have a note added to the PAR form indjcating that the action is 
''VOID". 

(E) Information in an employee ' s official personnel file is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 119, Fl01ida Statutes, unless specifically exempted by state or federal law (such as 
protected health infmmation and social security numbers). and as such, must be provided to 
anyone desiring inspection or requesting copies in accordance with the provisions of the Public 
Records Law. 

For the State For the SEAG 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neimeiser 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions- General 

Article 18 
\VACES 

FPD I SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal- Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 26, 2015 
· Page 1 of 1 

Agencies' authority to provide increases to employees· base rate of pay and salary 
additives rrmn available agency funds shall be in accordance with this Agreement, state law, and 
the Fiscal Year 20 15-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 2- Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Approptiations Act. contingent on the availability o f funds and at the Agency Head's discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 percent of 
the employee·s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area 
closed due to emergency conditions fi·om another area ofthe state that is not closed. 

SECTION 3- Performance Pay 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-16 General 
Approp1iations Act, and from existing agency resources. each agency is authorized to grant merit 
pay increases based on the employee· s exemplary performance. as evidenced by a performance 
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 4- Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards fur ideas or 
programs that result in n cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 1 1 0.1245( 1 ), Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 5- Discretionary Raises 

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General 
Appropriations Act. contingent on the avai lability of funds and at the Agency Head"s discretion. 
each agency is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequ ities, or other staffing issues. 

For the State For the SEAG 

Michael Mattimore Mark Ndmeiser 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 



Article 19 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

FPD I SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal - Article 19 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
January 20, 2015 

Pagelofl 

The state agrees to adn1inister the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation . Selected 
Exempt Service employees shall pay the same health insurance premiums as Career Service 
employees. 

For the State For the SEAG 

Michael Mattimore Mark Neirneiser 
State· s Chief Labor Negotiator Interim Executive Director 

Date Date 





COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

Over the past number of years there has been an erosion of benefits (3% salary tax to defray certain 

costs, new health insurance premiums and access to other benefits). All the while, without the right to 

be able to confront discipline, discharge or other job loss without an explanation leads us to believe that 

SES workers may be subjected to violations of Law and /or subject to someone's whim. Neither of which 

is in the public interest. 

Each Unit employee shall serve at the pleasure of the agency and is subject to suspension, dismissal, 

reduction in pay, demotion, transfer or other personnel action at the discretion of the agency head for a 

period of not less than six months from the date of hire. Employees retained thereafter shall be subject 

to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer or other personnel action only for just 

cause. No final action will be taken prior to review by the agency head, or designee. Upon written 

request and receipt of payment the State shall provide the Union with copies of any public records 

related to the adverse personnel action. All requests and all documents shall be in accordance with 

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 



Retirement benefits are a form of deferred compensation. The past several years, despite by most 

accounts FRS is one of t he best funded Pension systems In the country, SES Represented employees 

have seen this benefit eroded and or taxed(3% pay reduction). During t he past three Contract periods 

employees have been made aware of pronouncements by the Governor and legislators to change the 

FRS benef its and or system. Employees need to be able to plan their future and a stable retirement is 

necessary for retention. 

SES Physicians, Attorneys and Supervisors Bargaining Units 

Retirement Benefits 

Retirement benefits shall be provided in accordance with Chapter 121, Florida Statutes (2013). Any 

changes in this statute affecting these benefits shall not apply to this bargaining unit unless agreed to by 

the parties or as a result of negotiations pursuant to Article 24(D) [or equivalent provision providing 

reopeners during a multi-year agreement]. 



COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

SES Physicians, Attorneys and Non-Professional Supervisors have gone without a general wage increase 

for almost eight years. Further, SES employees work in jobs that have higher education, licensure, or 

experience requirements. 

General Wage Increase for FY 2015-16 .... Effective August 1, 2015 each fulltime eligible unit employee 

shall receive a minimum annual General Wage Increase for Fiscal Year 2015-16 of no less than$ 2.500. 

Special Paylssues ... Each Agency shall provide a S 600 lump sum bonus award to full time Unit 

employees. in order recruit, retain and reward employees having served at least three years in their 

current Unit classification as of November 1, 2015. Such bonus award will be paid no later than March 

1, 2016. 

Performance Pay ... Each agency is authorized to grant 2% merit pay increases based on the employee's 

outstanding performance as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted by the employee's 

anniversary date. 

The State Group Health Self-Insurance Plan, has in regard to its benefits and costs, has changed without 

any discussion or negotiation. The Union will no longer agree to a de facto waiver of its rights to 

negotiate on the benefits and costs. 



COLLECTIVE BARGAINNG PROPOSALS- SES Physicians, Attorneys, Non-Professional Supervisors 

Represented SES Employees enrolled in the State Group health Self-Insurance shall maintain current 

benefit levels and premium costs. Plan design, deductibles and other issues shall only be subject to 

change during the yearly enrollment period occurring October of 2015. 





- Selected Exempt Service - State Employees Attorneys Guild -CBU 81 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Union/Issue Estimated Cost Comments 

A provision is inserted providing that effective 
August 1, 2015 each fulltime eligible unit employee 

A $2,500 increase for all filled positions in CBU 81 (721} calculated 
shall receive a minimum annual General Wage $1 .9M 
Increase for Fiscal Year 2015- 16 of no less than $ 

using LAS/PBS Dec 2014 information (including Retirement and FICA). 

2,500. 
A provision is inserted that each Agency shall 
provide a $600 lump sum bonus award to full time 

A $600 lump sum bonus was calculated for filled positions in CBU 81. 
Unit employees, in order to recruit, retain and 

People first was the source used for the calculation, excluding 
reward employees havlng served at least three $290,121 
years in their current Unit classification as of 

employees with less than 3 yrs of service. Costing prepared by OPB 

November 1, 2015. Bonus award will be paid no 
(420 filled positions). 

later than March 1, 2016. 

A provision is inserted that authorizes each agency 
A 2% salary increase was calculated for filled positions in CBU 81 . 

to grant a 2 percent merit pay increase to 
$1M LAS/PBS was the source used for the calculation. Costing prepared by 

employees that have outstanding performance 
OPB. assuming all members have outstanding performance. 

based upon their performance evaluation. 

Represen ted SES Employees enrolled in the State 
Group health Self-Insurance shall maintain current The Governor's recommended budget for FY 2015-16 eliminates "pay-
benefit levels and premium costs. Plan design, 

$530,668 
ails" for SES classes. Calculation prepared by OPB using default 

deductibles and other issues shall only be subject to avera9 e cost for health insurance ($1 ,265) multiplied by filled positions 
change during the yearly enrollment period in People First (420). 
occurring October of 2015. 

Page 1 of 1 





Article 
l -Recognition 

2 - Gender Reference 

3 - Vacant 

4 - No Discrimination 

5 - Employee Rights, 
Management, and Union 
Communications 
6 - Grievance Procedure 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State Employees Attorneys Guild 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benejit.'i 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
State Progosal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state ' s 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state ' s 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 l/20115. 
State Progosal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/15. 
State Progosal December 15,20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/15. 

State Progosal Januar~ 20,2015: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Section 4(C)(6)(d)- At least fifteen days proposal on 0 I /20/ 15. 
before the scheduled date of the arbitration 
hearing, the parties shall file with the 
arbin·ator, and provide to each other, a list 
of witnesses to be called at the hearing, 
except rebuttal witnesses, and a brief 
statement of the material facts or matters 
relevant to the grievance about which each 
witness will testify. A party may file a 
written request with the arbitrator, with a 
concun·ent copy to the other party, for an 
exception to the filing time limits for good 
cause. If such exception is granted, the 
other party may request that the hearing be 
rescheduled if necessary for the party to 

Page I of8 



Article 
6 - Gtievance Procedure 
(continued) 

7 - Employee Standards 
of Conduct and 
Performance 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State Employees Attorneys G uild 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Unit - State Per sonnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotia tions - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new a11icle- Retirement Benefits 

State Proposals Union Proposals 
respond to the late filed witness 
infonnation. 

State Progosal 1/26/ 15: Union Progosal December 15: 2014: 
Status quo Each Unit employee shal l serve at the 

pleasure of the agency and is subject 
to suspension, dismissal, reduction in 
pay, demotion, transfer o r other 
personnel action at the discretion of 
the agency head tor a period of not 
less than six months from the date of 
hire. Employees retained thereafter 
sha ll be subject to suspension, 
dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion , 
transfer or other personnel action only 
for just cause. No fi nal action will be 
taken prior to review by the agency 
head, or designee. Upon written 
request and receipt of payment the 
State shall provide the Union with 
copies of any public records related to 
the adverse personnel action. All 
requests and all documents shall be in 
accordance with Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes. 

Comments 

8 - Workforce Reduction State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state' s 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/15. 

Page 2 of8 



Article 
9 - Employment 
0Qportunities 
10 - Classification and 
Pay Plan 
11 - Classitication 
Review and Professional 
Practice Scope 
12 - Personnel Records 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State E mployees Attorneys Guild 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agr eement Expires June 30, 20 IS 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J a nuary 26, 2015 

Fisca l Year 2015-2016 Successo r Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefit.\· 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
State Proposal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/15. 
State Pro12osal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state ·s 
Status quo proposal on 0 l /20/ 15. 
State ProJ2osal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and s igned state's 
(A) Provides specific broadband proposal on 12/ 15/ 14. 
terminology fo r classification reviews. 
State ProJ2osal December 15,20 14: 
(A) Information in an employee's ofncia l 
personnel ti le may be maintained in 
electronic as well as paper form. 

(B) Tcm1inology changed from derogatory 
--material .. to --document: · 

(E) Where the Agency Head or designee, 
the Public Employees Relations 
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, o r 
other statutory authority determines that a 
document in the personnel file is inva lid , 
the document shall be placed in an 
envelope, together with an explanatio n, the 
outside of the envelope and all pages of the 
document marked --vOID'·. and retained in 
the employee's personnel file as specil·icd 
in the State of Florida General Records 
Schedule GS 1-SL to r State and Local 

Page 3 of8 



Article 
12 - Personnel Records 
(cont inued) 

13 - Safety 

14 - Replacement of 
Personal Property 
15 - Vacant 

16 - Hours of Work and 
Employee Leave 
17 - Training and 
Education 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State Employees Attorneys Guild 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One-Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 26,20 15 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Successor Agr eement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotia tion 
Shaded = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article - Retirement Benefits 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
Government Records, as promulgated by 
the Department of State. In the case of 
electronic records, a Personnel Action 
Request (PAR) that has been determined to 
be void shall have a note added to the PAR 
form indicating that the action is .. VOID''. 

(E) Information in an employee's orticial 
personnel file is public record pursuant to 
Chapter 1 19, Florida Statutes, unless 
specifically exempted by state or federal 
law (such as protected health inf01mation 
and social security numbers), and as such, 
must be provided to anyone desiring 
inspection or requesting copies in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Public Records Law. 
State Pronosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
State Pronosal December 15, 20 I 4: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 l/20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/15. 
State Progosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/ 15. 
State Progosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state's 
Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/1 5. 

Page 4 of8 



Article 
18 -Wages 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State Employees Attorneys Guild 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Unit - State Personnel System 

C un-ent One -Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of J anuary 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations - All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Closed 

A rticles at Impasse: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed 11ew article- Retiremellt Benefit .... · 

State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
State Proposal of 1/26/ J 5: Union ProQosal December 15, 2014: 
Section I - General Pay Provisions General Wage Increase for FY 2015- Costing Estimate: $473K 
Agencies · authority to provide increases to 20 I 6: Etfecti ve August I, 2015, each 
employees· base rate or pay and salary full time eligible unit employee shall 
additives from available agency funds shall receive a minimum annua l genera l 
be in accordance with this Agt:eement. state wage increase of no less than $2.500. 
law. and the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
General Appropriations Act. Special Pay Issues: Each agency sha ll Costing Estimate: $66,532 

provide a $600 lump sum bonus 
Section 2- Deployment to a Facility or nward to full time unit employees, in 
Area Closed due to Emergency order to recruit. retain, and reward 
ln accordance with the authority provided employees having served at least three 
in the Fiscal Y car :20 15-2016 General years in their cunent unit 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the classification as ofNovember I, 2015. 
availability of funds and at the Agency Such bonus award will be paid no 
Head·s discretion .. each ngency is later than March 1. 20 16. 
authori z,ed to grant a temporary special 
duties pay additi ve of up to 15 percent of 
the employee . s base rate 0 r pay to each 
employee temporarily deployed to a 
facility or area closed due to emergency 
conditions ti·om another area of the state 
that is not closed. 

Section 3 - Performance Pay Perfonnnnce Pay: Bach agency is Costing Estimate: $545, I 01 
In accordance with the auth01ity provided authorized to grant 2% merit increases 
in the Fiscal Year 2015-1016 General based on the empJoyee · s outstanding 

Page 5 of8 



A1·ticle 
18 - Wages 
(continued) 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State Employees Attorneys Guild 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Unit- State Personnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires June 30, 2015 
Status of Collecth{e Bargaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Sltatled = Closed 

Articles at lmpas ... ·e: 7, 12, 18, 19, Union proposed new article - Retirement Bene_fits 

State Proposals Union Proposals 
Approptiations Act, and from existing petfonnance as evidenced by a 
agency resources, each agency is pedonnance evaluation conducted by 
authorized to grant merit pay increases the employee·s anniversary date. 
based on the employee·s ext!mplary 
performance, as evidenced by a 
pertormance evaluation conducted 
pursuant to Rule 60L-35. Florida 
Administrative Code. 

Section 4- Savings Sharing Program 
An employee or groups of employees may 
be eligible for monetary awards for ideas 
o r programs that result in a cost saving to 
the state, pursuant to sect ion 110. I 245( I), 
Florida Statutes. 

Section 5 - Discretionary Raises 
In accordance with the authority provided 
in the Fiscal Y car 20 15-20 16 General 
Appropriations Act, contingent on the 
avai lability of funds and at the Agency 
Head·s discretion, each agency is 
authorized to grant competitive pay 
adjustments to address retention, pay 
inequities. or other starting issues. 

Page6of8 

Comments 



Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State Employees Attorneys G uild 
Selected Exempt Ser vice (SES) Attorneys Unit - State Personnel System 

Curren t One -Year Agreement Expi res June 30, 2015 
Status of Collective Ba r gaining as of January 26, 201 5 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Sluuled = Closed 

Articles at Impasse: 7, 12. 18, 19. Union proposed new article- Retirement Benefit: .. · 

Article State Proposals Union Proposals Comments 
19 - Insurance Benefits State ProQosal 1/?0/ 15: Union ProQosal December 15, 20 14: 

SES employees shall pay the same health Represented SES employees enrolled Costing Estimate:$530,668 
insurance premiums as Career Service in the State Group Health Insurance 
employees. shall maintain cunent benefit levels 

and prem ium costs. Plan design. 
deductibles, and other issues shall 
only be subject to change duri ng the 
yearly enrollment period occun·ing 
October of20 15. 

20 - Per Diem and Travel State ProQosal December 15, 20 14: Agreed to and signed state· s 
Expenses Status quo proposal on 0 I /20115. 
21 - Employment Outside State ProQosal December I 5, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 
of State Government Status quo proposal on 0 1/20/15. 
22 - Vacant State ProQosa1 December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 

Status quo proposal on 0 I /20/15. 
23- Management Rights State ProQosal December 15, 2014: Agreed to and signed state's 

Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
24 - Entire Agreement State Pronosal December 15,2014: Agreed to and signed state's 

Statusquo proposal on 01120/15. 
25 - Savings Clause State Pronosal December 15, ?0 14: Agreed to and signed state· s 

Status quo proposal on 01 /20/ 15. 
26 - Duration State ProQosal December 15,2014: Union ProQosal December 15. 20 14: 

Proposes 1-year agreement to expire on Multi-year agreement with re-opencrs 
June 30, 2016. each year. 

Page 7 of 8 



Article 

Federation of Physicians and Dentists I State E mployees Attorneys G uild 
Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Unit - State Personnel System 

Current One -Year Agreement Expires June 30,2015 
Status of Collective Bargaining as of January 26, 2015 

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Successor Agreement Negotiations- All Articles Open for Negotiation 
Shaded = Clo.•itUI 

Article.\· at Tmpasse: 7, 12. 18, 19, Union proposed new article- R etirement Benefit.<,· 

State Proposals Union Proposals 
New A11icle - Retirement Union Progosal December 15. ?Q 14: 
Bene fi ts Any statutory changes to retirement 

benefi ts shall not apply to unit unless 
agret.:d upon. 

Page 8 of8 

Comments 


